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- - - 30 

 31 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 32 

Council convened at the Omni Bayfront Hotel, Corpus Christi, 33 

Texas, Wednesday afternoon, April 18, 2012, and was called to 34 

order at 1:00 p.m. by Chairman Bob Gill. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN BOB GILL:  Welcome the 236th meeting of the Gulf of 37 

Mexico Fishery Management Council.  My name is Bob Gill, 38 

Chairman of the Council.  If you have a cell phone, pager, or 39 

similar device, we ask that you keep them on silent or vibrating 40 

mode during the meeting. 41 

 42 

The Gulf Council is one of eight regional councils established 43 

in 1976 by the Fishery Conservation and Management Act, known 44 

today as the Magnuson-Stevens Act.  The council’s purpose is to 45 

serve as a deliberative body to advise the Secretary of Commerce 46 

on fishery management measures in federal waters of the Gulf of 47 

Mexico.  These measures help ensure that fishery resources in 48 
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the Gulf are sustained while providing the best overall benefit 1 

to the nation. 2 

 3 

Eleven council members are appointed by the Secretary of 4 

Commerce and include individuals from a range of geographical 5 

areas in the Gulf and with experience in various aspects of 6 

fisheries. 7 

 8 

Membership also includes five state fishery managers and the 9 

Regional Administrator from NOAA Fishery Service, as well as 10 

several non-voting members.  Council staff assists the council 11 

by compiling, analyzing, and presenting fishery information, 12 

providing the council with documented management options, and 13 

organizing meetings on a variety of fisheries issues. 14 

 15 

Public comment is a vital part of the council’s deliberative 16 

process and comments, both oral and written, are accepted and 17 

considered by the council throughout the process. 18 

 19 

The Sustainable Fisheries Act requires all oral or written 20 

statements to include a brief description of the background and 21 

interest of the persons in the subject of the statement.  All 22 

written information shall include a statement of the source and 23 

date of such information.  Oral or written communications 24 

provided to the council, its members or its staff, that relate 25 

to matters within the council’s purview are public in nature.  26 

All written comments will be posted on the council’s website for 27 

viewing by council members and the public. 28 

 29 

Knowingly and willfully submitting false information to the 30 

council is a violation of federal law.  Materials submitted to 31 

council members or staff for distribution prior to or during a 32 

council meeting will be treated as all other written comments 33 

and will be posted to the website and will be maintained by the 34 

council as part of the permanent record. 35 

 36 

A digital recording is used for the public record and therefore, 37 

for the purpose of voice identification, each member is 38 

requested to identify him or herself, starting on my left.  39 

 40 

MR. DOUGLAS BOYD:  Douglas Boyd, Texas. 41 

 42 

DR. BOB SHIPP:  Bob Shipp, Alabama. 43 

 44 

MR. KEVIN ANSON:  Kevin Anson, Alabama. 45 

 46 

MR. JOHNNY GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 47 

 48 
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MR. MIKE RAY:  Mike Ray, Texas. 1 

 2 

MR. PATRICK RILEY:  Patrick Riley, Republic of Texas. 3 

 4 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 5 

 6 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  Phil Steele, NOAA Fisheries. 7 

 8 

DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries. 9 

 10 

MR. SHEPHERD GRIMES:  Shepherd Grimes, NOAA General Counsel, 11 

Southeast Section. 12 

 13 

MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, from the great state of 14 

Mississippi. 15 

 16 

MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon, from the beautiful city of New 17 

Orleans, inside the greatest state, Louisiana. 18 

 19 

MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 20 

 21 

MR. DUANE HARRIS:  Duane Harris, council liaison, South Atlantic 22 

Council, Georgia. 23 

 24 

DR. TOM MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi. 25 

 26 

DR. PAMELA DANA:  Pam Dana, Florida. 27 

 28 

DR. LARRY ABELE:  Larry Abele, Florida. 29 

 30 

MS. JESSICA MCCAWLEY:  Jessica McCawley, Florida. 31 

 32 

LCDR CARMEN DEGEORGE:  Carmen DeGeorge, Coast Guard District 8. 33 

 34 

MR. DAVE DONALDSON:  Dave Donaldson, Gulf States Marine 35 

Fisheries Commission. 36 

 37 

MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, Mississippi, the state that has 38 

to put up with all that hot air from the west.  I would like to 39 

introduce Jenny Dressler, who is with Senator Wicker of 40 

Mississippi.  Jenny has been with us for the last couple of days 41 

and will be here part of the afternoon and at lunch, she told me 42 

how impressed she was with the professional manner of all of you 43 

council members. 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STEVE BORTONE:  Steve Bortone, Gulf Council 46 

staff. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you very much.  I would like to explain 1 

the procedure that we’re going to use for public testimony, 2 

which is four or five items down the list on the agenda.  I 3 

would like two cards from those who would like to hold public 4 

testimony and provide us with their thoughts. 5 

 6 

The first card would be for the agenda items and that is Reef 7 

Fish Amendment 35, Greater Amberjack, the Interim Rule for Gray 8 

Triggerfish Annual Catch Limit and In-Season Closure Authority, 9 

and Exempted Fishing Permits, if any.  There are some and so one 10 

card for that and they will be taken first and the second card 11 

will be for general topics, the not amberjack, triggerfish, or 12 

EFPs.  If you all could make the cards appropriately, that’s how 13 

we’re going to conduct public testimony.   14 

 15 

For those that are not familiar with the timing system, there 16 

will be three minutes per person for each card and the green 17 

light comes on when you start and the yellow light will come on 18 

when there’s one minute left and when the red light comes on, 19 

your three minutes are up and please terminate your testimony at 20 

that time. 21 

 22 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I had a constituency point out that on our cards 23 

that they sign up it says they get five minutes, unless we have 24 

a crowd, and they was wondering why it said five minutes when 25 

they get three minutes.  Could you explain that to them? 26 

 27 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The normal procedure is it’s up to the chairman 30 

and the normal time is three minutes, to allow adequate 31 

testimony by all members of the public.  Generally speaking, 32 

given the crowds, that pretty well consumes the time and I don’t 33 

see where it says five minutes on the card.  I have heard that, 34 

but at this point, given that there might be significant public 35 

testimony and, in effect, with two cards you’ve got six minutes, 36 

we’ll be sticking with the three minutes per card. 37 

 38 

The first item on the agenda, Tab A, Number 4, is the Adoption 39 

of the Agenda.  Before we get into considerations by council 40 

members, I would like to add two items under Other Business.  41 

They’re items that I think we need to discuss and the first one 42 

is Red Snapper Consistency and the second one is Shrimp 43 

Electronic Logbooks.  Are there any other changes to the agenda? 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  In order to have a clean copy of the Louisiana 46 

exempted fishing permit, I request we push it back as far as 47 

possible.  Mr. Blanchet is typing as we speak. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you for mentioning that.  I was going to 2 

mention there is an Item VI on the agenda for Review of Exempted 3 

Fishing Permits.  It’s allotted to have fifteen minutes for that 4 

particular topic and given the two exempted fishing permits we 5 

have and the comments and the discussion, I don’t view that 6 

there’s any way that we can fully vet and discuss and decide on 7 

the council’s recommendation, if any, regarding these exempted 8 

fishing permits and so there’s two ways to go. 9 

 10 

We can move that, in its entirety, to the item at the end of the 11 

agenda, which is Item IX, or we can utilize fifteen minutes, or 12 

whatever is allowed, up to the ending time, to start that 13 

discussion, which would help members of the public see where the 14 

drift of the conversation was going and it’s up to the council.  15 

If I see no druthers by the council, my sense is that we’ll move 16 

it to the end of the agenda. 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Under Other Business, I would like to add a 19 

discussion about meetings and attendance. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That will be added, meetings and attendance, at 22 

the end.  Are there any other changes, Dr. Bortone? 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Yes, I have several items, Mr. 25 

Chairman.  One is a discussion about some of the meetings that 26 

staff have attended, to include GOMA, the hypoxia workshop, and 27 

grouper modeling.  Also MARFIN priorities, red snapper 28 

consistency, and the shrimp electronic logbook and that’s it. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  We will add that as well.  Are there 31 

further changes to the agenda? 32 

 33 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just mention that if you are going to move 34 

exempted fishing permits to the end of the meeting that you at 35 

least describe what they are, so that the public is aware and 36 

can provide you any comments they might want to offer. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will ask the agency to do so during that 39 

little section of the agenda that permits that.  The issue is we 40 

don’t have time in the time allotted to fully flesh that out.  41 

Normally, EFPs are not that extensively discussed and in this 42 

particular case, they will be and so when we get to that point 43 

in the agenda, I will ask the agency to briefly describe it. 44 

 45 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  Just a couple of things, Mr. Chairman.  I 46 

would like to have an item to discuss the Law Enforcement AP 47 

workshop in July to revise the strategic and operations plans 48 
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and the other one is just a very quick update on the status of 1 

SEDAR-28, which is the Spanish mackerel and cobia assessment 2 

workshop. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  We will add that at the end.  Are 5 

there further changes to the agenda? 6 

 7 

MR. ANSON:  I was wondering, in light of the additional 8 

information plus some lengthy discussions of the topics that are 9 

currently on the agenda, if tomorrow we might want to be able to 10 

start at eight o’clock. 11 

 12 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  What’s the pleasure of the council?  Should we 15 

start at eight o’clock?  All right.  We will start tomorrow’s 16 

meeting at eight o’clock.  Seeing no further changes to the 17 

agenda, is there any objection to adoption of the agenda?  18 

Seeing none, the agenda is adopted as modified.  The next item 19 

on the agenda is Tab A, Number 6, the minutes from the last 20 

meeting.   21 

 22 

Are there any discussions regarding changes, et cetera, relative 23 

to the minutes?  Seeing none, I have one and it is -- I can’t 24 

find it and so we’ll go without it.  Seeing no changes, is there 25 

any objection to adopting the minutes as written?  Seeing none, 26 

the minutes are adopted. 27 

 28 

The next item on the agenda is Tab A, Number 4, Approval of the 29 

Revised Committee Roster.  Some of the changes here reflect 30 

changes in population of this council, with the departure of Mr. 31 

Teehan, and Florida has designated Ms. McCawley as the member of 32 

this body and so the committees were repopulated accordingly.  33 

Does anyone have comments relative to or changes to? 34 

 35 

APPROVAL OF REVISED COMMITTEE ROSTER 36 

 37 

DR. DANA:  In respect to a revision that would place myself as 38 

the chair for the Spiny Lobster, I would respectfully request 39 

that I remain on that committee, but however that the chair and 40 

council consider Jessica McCawley as the chair, only because she 41 

has a much better understanding of spiny lobster and I have a 42 

little bit of a learning curve there. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Understood and we can do that and the reason I 45 

didn’t make that change is, number one, this wouldn’t take 46 

effect until the next meeting and therefore it would be in place 47 

for both the June and the August meetings and then the new 48 
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chair, whoever that might be, would then reconstitute the 1 

committees and could do it then.   2 

 3 

I didn’t see any meeting of the Spiny Lobster Committee, but if 4 

it’s the council’s preference, we will make that change.  Any 5 

objection to the requested change of the chair on Spiny Lobster 6 

from Dr. Dana to Ms. McCawley?  That change is so noted.   7 

 8 

Any other changes desired by council members?  Seeing none, any 9 

objection to adopting the revised committee roster with that 10 

change noted?  Seeing none, the revised committee roster is 11 

adopted. 12 

 13 

The next item is the Review of the Action Schedule, Tab A, 14 

Number 7.  Does anyone have comments relative to the action 15 

schedule, proposed as Item A-7?  Recollect that we now have 16 

priorities on there and there are -- That is how the staff will 17 

approach dealing with these items and the layout, in terms of 18 

timing and the sequence of events.  Any comments by the council? 19 

 20 

REVIEW OF ACTION SCHEDULE 21 

 22 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I just had a question.  Since we’re talking about 23 

some new items that aren’t on this list that came up in the Reef 24 

Fish Committee, is there any way for us to go back to this, the 25 

ranking and all the proposed actions, maybe towards the end of 26 

the council meeting, especially since we have these new items 27 

coming in? 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will have those and obviously it also will 30 

change during council and so although I am short term in nature, 31 

my thinking is that it will be best for the council to address 32 

this at the beginning of every council meeting, so those changes 33 

can be incorporated by staff and they can input their 34 

priorities, the timing, the sequencing, et cetera, and then if 35 

the council weighs in at the beginning of the meeting, just like 36 

we’re doing now, and all those changes that we make today and 37 

tomorrow will then be incorporated and reviewed by the council 38 

and that would incorporate that.   39 

 40 

I think it’s a little difficult to pull it in at the tail-end of 41 

this meeting.  Any other comments regarding the action schedule?  42 

We will use the action schedule as it is in the document, in 43 

that case. 44 

 45 

The next item is the Review of Exempted Fishing Permits, of 46 

which I believe there are two, and I would ask the agency to 47 

give us a brief synopsis for the benefit of the public, so that 48 
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they can comment thereon if they so choose. 1 

 2 

REVIEW OF EXEMPTED FISHING PERMITS 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  The first one I will mention is one from the 5 

State of Louisiana.  They have requested an exempted fishing 6 

permit to allow a series of fishing tournaments to retain red 7 

snapper outside of the red snapper season.  There are a couple 8 

of tournaments in May and several in July. 9 

 10 

Most of the tournaments are in Louisiana, but there is also one 11 

tournament in Alabama.  I believe that Louisiana personnel would 12 

sample fish that are brought in for otoliths, reproductive 13 

condition, et cetera. 14 

 15 

As submitted, there was a limit of 1,400 on the number of fish 16 

that would be retained, but I believe that Louisiana is 17 

conferring with the other Gulf States at this time, to 18 

potentially make some modifications, and I would ask Mr. Fischer 19 

if he would care to add anything and update us on where that 20 

stands. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  The changes will be forthcoming.  The 23 

modifications are we deleted -- We dropped a few of the 24 

Louisiana tournaments to make room for Texas, Mississippi, 25 

Alabama, and Florida tournaments.  That was the original concept 26 

at the last meeting. 27 

 28 

The Mississippi tournament falls within the forty-day season and 29 

so it won’t be affected by this.  The sampling, the states -- We 30 

will make certain that someone is performing the sampling and if 31 

the states can’t do them, then we’ll supply the manpower.  I 32 

think Alabama has stated that LSU does them and Florida has 33 

stated that someone other than the state organization and I 34 

forget, Jessica, but it’s mainly to get a sampling of the adult 35 

snapper for two main reasons. 36 

 37 

It’s to try to get a cross section of the age of these adult 38 

fish that aren’t sampled by MRIP, but more importantly, to get 39 

gonad samples and see if there’s any fecundity issues, in light 40 

of the incident in the northern Gulf in the last few years, and 41 

make certain that the population is moving forward.  Of course, 42 

there also socioeconomic benefits, by the fact that it allows 43 

people additional fishing. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s a summary of that one, Mr. Gill, and I 46 

don’t know if you want to entertain questions or just move to 47 

the next one. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would move to the next one and we’re going to 2 

hold questions from the council until after public testimony. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would ask Dr. Branstetter if he could come up.  5 

We also have a request for an exempted fishing permit to allow a 6 

test of a headboat individual fishing quota program and Dr. 7 

Branstetter will summarize that request. 8 

 9 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  We’ve received a request from the Gulf 10 

Headboat Cooperative.  Currently, this consists of nine boat 11 

owners representing thirteen different boats throughout the Gulf 12 

of Mexico. 13 

 14 

They have submitted an EFP to look at a pilot program to test a 15 

rights-based program, sort of like an IFQ, following the pilot 16 

program that Assane outlined yesterday, the guidelines of that.  17 

They have tried to work with Andy Strelcheck in developing this, 18 

to try and meet that program, the small group that Assane worked 19 

with. 20 

 21 

They want to test a new electronic data collection method, 22 

basically using iSnapper, to report their landings on a daily 23 

basis and they would like to do a socioeconomic study to look at 24 

how the existing headboat industry versus the cooperative is 25 

doing, how well the non-participants fare for the year versus 26 

the cooperative. 27 

 28 

This EFP would apply to gag and red grouper only and the amount 29 

allotted to the cooperative for use in that one year would be 30 

based on their 2011 average landings or their aggregate 2011 31 

landings. 32 

 33 

They would be using a VMS to hail in and hail out every day and 34 

they would provide a receipt to every customer onboard to their 35 

exact catch and these would be used to verify any dockside 36 

interviews.  All fish caught during the year would be counted 37 

against this allocation.  They would not be able to fish on the 38 

allocation and then say no, I want to get out of the program and 39 

just fish during the open red snapper season.  All fish caught 40 

all year, they would have to remain in the program for the year. 41 

 42 

Now, one part that you may want to consider is they are looking 43 

to expand it for the 2014 year to include additional vessels.  44 

For the second year of the project, they would propose to lease, 45 

which would take exemption from our current regulations, but 46 

they would like to lease no more than 3 percent of the 47 

commercial quota and have an account set up for the cooperative, 48 
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where they could use commercial quota to fish recreationally. 1 

 2 

As I said earlier, the socioeconomic would be looking at how 3 

have things changed over time and has this made this more 4 

economically viable or has it changed their customer seasonality 5 

of demand and did the increased flexibility provide additional 6 

and better recreational products? 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you very much. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  If I could, Mr. Chairman, before we move on, and 11 

I believe Steve said it, that the target species were gag and 12 

red grouper, but I believe he meant to say gag and red snapper. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Correct and was that your comment, Mr. Grimes?  15 

Very good.  I would note that the information for both EFPs is 16 

in the briefing book and it’s Tab L-3 and L-4 and it’s probably 17 

available on the back tables. 18 

 19 

As you may note, we have a fair number of cards here.  As I 20 

mentioned, we will start with first the cards for the three 21 

agenda topics: greater amberjack, gray triggerfish, and the 22 

exempted fishing permits. 23 

 24 

I would ask that you constrain your talk to those topics only 25 

and if you wish to talk on something separate that you put in 26 

another card and we’ll put it in and we’ll get to as many of 27 

those as we can get to.  With that, the first speaker is Mr. 28 

Brad Lanax and he will be followed by B.J. Burkett. 29 

 30 

I would ask that the second speaker get close to the lectern, so 31 

that we can expedite getting everybody through and so that 32 

everybody can have their time to say what they would like to 33 

tell us. 34 

 35 

PUBLIC COMMENT 36 

 37 

MR. BRAD LOMAX:  My name is Brad Lomax and I’m the owner and 38 

operator of Water Street Restaurants here in Corpus Christi.  I 39 

got this call to be here about an hour ago, while I was working 40 

in my restaurant, and so I’m scrambling a bit, but I understand 41 

that the issue is access and allocation to species in the Gulf 42 

of Mexico. 43 

 44 

My restaurants, we specialize in fresh Gulf seafood.  I’ve been 45 

in business in Corpus Christi since 1983 and access to fresh 46 

Gulf seafood is vital to my business.  It’s vital to my family 47 

and it’s vital to my 150 seafood-related employees. 48 
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 1 

Furthermore, fresh Gulf seafood is an integral part of our 2 

area’s tourism and marketing program and it’s a proven fact that 3 

people visit this area and one of the reasons they visit this 4 

area is to partake of the fresh Gulf seafood that’s available 5 

here. 6 

 7 

My sales mix proves that up.  Fully 55 percent of my sales in 8 

those two restaurants come from outside of Nueces County and so 9 

they are visitors to the area.  I’m just going to give you a 10 

quick rundown of statistics for the last two years. 11 

 12 

Total wages my restaurants have paid in 2010 and 2011 were 13 

$6,713,969.  That’s before any of the Lomax family got paid.  14 

Payroll taxes were $818,000 and our total taxable -- Our 15 

estimate paid in sales taxes over those two years was 16 

$1,726,000.  Ad valorem taxes were $161,000 and our total food 17 

costs, spent with area suppliers, is $5,850,505.  I’m at two 18 

minutes and that’s about all I could put together in coming over 19 

from the restaurants. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you for that, Mr. Lomax.  We appreciate 22 

your comments and next up is B.J. Burkett, to be followed by 23 

Mark Kelley. 24 

 25 

MR. B.J. BURKETT:  My name is B.J. Burkett and I’m from Panama 26 

City Beach, Florida.  I mainly charter fish, but I also 27 

commercial fish and there are several different topics that I 28 

want to touch on. 29 

 30 

The first thing is we definitely need status quo for the 31 

amberjack and for triggerfish.  I don’t really understand the 32 

reason for changing the ruling yearly.  It takes years for a 33 

species to adapt to a new regulation, size limits and 34 

everything. 35 

 36 

We’re seeing an improvement on both species in the Panhandle of 37 

Florida.  The best thing I could say would be to chill out and 38 

let the regulation work.  Give it a couple of years and then 39 

maybe address it again, but status quo is what we need right now 40 

for the amberjack and triggerfish. 41 

 42 

On the IFQ, I do not support any IFQ for any more species, the 43 

triggerfish and vermilion snapper and amberjack, and also no IFQ 44 

for any kind of sector separation that may come about that 45 

doesn’t need to. 46 

 47 

The next topic would be the sector separation.  It seems to me 48 
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that the main goal for everybody here for red snapper is we all 1 

want more fish and that’s all it is.  You can separate the 2 

sectors to do what, make it more complicated?  It would be a 3 

real good way to do that. 4 

 5 

The main thing you need to focus on here is worry about the 6 

fish.  Get us more fish and instead of putting all this effort 7 

into the sector separation, put that effort into somehow trying 8 

to figure out how to make the Magnuson-Stevens Act relax a 9 

little bit.  I’m sure there’s a way. 10 

 11 

On the sector separation deal, from where I’m from, there’s very 12 

few people that are for it.  There are some small groups that 13 

are.  If we’re even going to entertain this idea, how about 14 

let’s put it in front of a vote for everybody that owns a 15 

federal for-hire permit and let’s not weight the vote like we 16 

did for the grouper IFQ.  Let every man that owns a federal 17 

fishing permit, let him vote on it.  If they all vote on it, go 18 

further down that road and that’s pretty much all I have and 19 

thank you. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, B.J.  Next up is Mark Kelley, to be 22 

followed by Shane Cantrell. 23 

 24 

MR. MARK KELLEY:  My name is Mark Kelley from Panama City.  I 25 

have two charterboats, one with a dual permit.  As for the 26 

amberjack, I’m for status quo.  I feel like if we increase that 27 

size limit that the mortality rate is going to eat us up, 28 

because of the killing of the larger fish when we have to 29 

release them. 30 

 31 

The gray triggerfish, I go for status quo.  We are, unlike what 32 

I heard yesterday, we are seeing quite a bit of recruitment as 33 

far as smaller fish and we are seeing the enforcement.  FWC is 34 

enforcing the law, contrary to what was said yesterday too.  We 35 

are checked on a regular basis and they are checking them at the 36 

fork of the tail, because I know of several that’s been fined 37 

due to the new regulations. 38 

 39 

We need to give it time to -- We need to give the triggerfish 40 

time for it to catch back up to that three to four-inch increase 41 

we had and as for the exempted fishing permits, at this time I’m 42 

not for that. 43 

 44 

I see an added advantage to your competitor.  I park directly 45 

beside one that says he’s going to get one of these permits and 46 

I see an unfair advantage as far as booking my boat versus 47 

booking his boat and I think that will do it. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mark.  Before we move on, as I 2 

mentioned, we have a lot of cards and we have more coming in.  3 

In the effort to help make sure everybody gets to say their 4 

piece, if you’re going to echo someone’s comments, you can just 5 

say that without utilizing your three minutes.  That would help 6 

to make sure everybody gets to say what they would like to say.  7 

Next up is Shane Cantrell, followed by Jason Delacruz. 8 

 9 

MR. SHANE CANTRELL:  Shane Cantrell from Galveston, Texas, 10 

representing Fishing Addiction Charters.  I’m a charterboat 11 

operator and an advisor to the board for the Charter Fishermen’s 12 

Association.  I represent two federally-permitted charterboats 13 

and I’ve got a marine fisheries degree from Texas A&M University 14 

at Galveston and I’m a former observer in the NOAA Fishery 15 

Program there in Galveston, Texas for shrimp and reef fish and 16 

I’m also working on the NRDA data collection over in Louisiana 17 

and across the Gulf. 18 

 19 

I want to take this time to thank the council for giving me the 20 

opportunity to speak today.  I really want to thank Kay Williams 21 

right here and Chairman Gill for stepping up for the charter 22 

for-hire industry yesterday and taking the first step in a 23 

monumental process to provide us some much needed relief for the 24 

charter for-hire fleet.  We really appreciate that. 25 

 26 

I’m a young captain.  I’ve been in this fishery for about seven 27 

years and in that time, I’ve been -- I guess you could say lucky 28 

to see a six-month season turned to maybe forty days.  We’re 29 

still out to sea on that.  It should be forty days, but as I 30 

talked about last night, it’s getting harder to run my business 31 

each year with the shrinking season.  Everybody knows that and 32 

you’re going to hear that a lot today. 33 

 34 

With all the uncertainty going on with state non-compatibility 35 

this year and coming up the first week in May we should get some 36 

more clarity on that.  It’s getting difficult to run a business 37 

without knowing what the season is going to be and what we have 38 

to offer our clients when they call us. 39 

 40 

I really don’t care what you call it when this stuff moves 41 

forward, a charter for-hire business model, days at sea, sector 42 

separation, FMP, IFQ, EFP, but something needs to be done and 43 

there’s no question there. 44 

 45 

Hopefully it will become clear today that we need options and 46 

the flexibility to run our businesses.  I will be the first one 47 

to say I believe I can run my business better than you all can 48 
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run my business and there’s a lot of -- I don’t have a clue how 1 

you all run your business and it doesn’t pertain to me. 2 

 3 

We’re not asking to change Magnuson and we wouldn’t have this 4 

recovering fishery without it and we wouldn’t have the ability 5 

to access this stuff without it. 6 

 7 

I want to continue support for the days at sea program and the 8 

headboat exempted fishing permit and headboat IFQ and status quo 9 

on amberjack.  It worked great for us last year and let’s not 10 

change it.   11 

 12 

We’re getting a stock assessment coming up and let’s see what it 13 

does and that June and July closure really helps me as a 14 

business.  With the shrinking season, it is something that 15 

alleviates the problem and really comes to help us and it gives 16 

us a trophy fish to sell to our customers as it moves on.  If 17 

you all have any questions, feel free to ask me. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Shane.  Next up is Jason Delacruz, to 20 

be followed by Bob Zales. 21 

 22 

MR. JASON DELACRUZ:  Good afternoon.  I’m Jason Delacruz from 23 

the Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance.  I want to thank everybody 24 

for the chance to speak.  I guess my main concern today is the 25 

Amendment 28. 26 

 27 

I’m really concerned with the methodology used in it.  I 28 

understand there’s, to an extent, limitations, but I think it’s 29 

fair to say that this is not counting fish and this is counting 30 

people and value and those things are a lot easier to do. 31 

 32 

I think it was said best by the authors that wrote that study, 33 

that the usefulness of this for evaluating the recreational 34 

fishery is very questionable.  I think that needs to be around 35 

and I think also there’s a clear potential to violate National 36 

Standard 5, which bothers me a lot, obviously. 37 

 38 

I would also like to say that I support the pilot study for the 39 

headboats.  I think these guys need a chance to work through 40 

this and see if it’s viable, including a potential for an 41 

intersector trading in the second year, to at least see what the 42 

real evaluation of it is. 43 

 44 

The last thing would just be the data collection and when you 45 

guys were talking about that earlier this morning, that it seems 46 

very viable just to move to a real time and I hate to say it, 47 

but enforce.  If a fish processor is significant enough, he’s 48 
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going to have internet access and so there’s no reason this 1 

shouldn’t be an internet access, quick move-forward basis. 2 

 3 

That was kind of one of the things that I didn’t understand in 4 

the process.  I don’t see anybody in this day and age that has 5 

to fax anything that’s doing any more than a couple hundred 6 

pounds of fish a month and so that’s all I have to say and thank 7 

you. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jason, and we have a question. 10 

 11 

DR. DANA:  Jason, you had mentioned something to me earlier 12 

regarding seafood dealers and a process that Florida has in 13 

place and can you ask that question and perhaps Jessica can 14 

respond to it? 15 

 16 

MR. DELACRUZ:  The question was the State of Florida sales tax, 17 

you have a minimum threshold.  Once you get past $1,000 worth of 18 

sales tax in three months in the quarter, they automatically 19 

bump you into a requirement that you have to report once a 20 

month. 21 

 22 

It would seem logical that we would follow the same suit for the 23 

seafood processors.  Once they meet a threshold of a certain 24 

amount of fish processed, they would immediately get bumped into 25 

this mandatory reporting once a week or once a month online.  26 

Anybody in that process is going to have the ability to do this 27 

digitally and we’ve got to kind of catch up to the 21st century 28 

here. 29 

 30 

Also, that kinds of puts in a position where if you set that up 31 

that they don’t report, it locks down their IFQ account or 32 

whatever account they’re using, you’ll find the speed of 33 

business will accommodate that real fast and all of a sudden, 34 

Bonnie will have more data than she can use real, real quick and 35 

so at least on the bulk of the commercial side. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  Next up is Bob Zales, to be followed 38 

by Randy Boggs. 39 

 40 

MR. BOB ZALES, II:  Bob Zales, II, Panama City Boatmen 41 

Association.  To be clear now, I’ve got three cards in and so I 42 

can talk triggerfish and amberjack now and sector separation 43 

later and EFH later on? 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  EFP will be included on this card and so we’ve 46 

got amberjack, triggerfish, and EFP on this card. 47 

 48 
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MR. ZALES:  Okay.  I am still confused, I guess.  I can talk 1 

amberjack and triggerfish now and then EFP later? 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, sir.  On this card, you’re using your time 4 

for amberjack, triggerfish, and exempted fishing permits. 5 

 6 

MR. ZALES:  I’m going to talk to the EFP then.  That program, if 7 

you all have noticed, there’s nine board members on that Gulf 8 

Cooperative and five of them are five of the ten members that 9 

you have on the Headboat AP program. 10 

 11 

There’s a lot of issues in there.  One, this is a voluntary 12 

plan.  We heard yesterday from Assane, or somebody on the staff 13 

table, to where voluntary plans have a lot of bias and are hard 14 

to work.  This thing is requesting for the transfer of 15 

commercial IFQ to the recreational sector and that is a 16 

tremendous problem. 17 

 18 

You have eight of the thirteen boats that are in the program 19 

currently that are also from people that served on that Headboat 20 

AP.  That Headboat AP with the ten members was stacked with 21 

seven supporters of IFQs for headboats and three were not 22 

supporters and of the seven, five are in this headboat 23 

cooperative. 24 

 25 

There are also issues in this plan that it doesn’t provide for 26 

any observers.  Typically, from exempted fishing programs that 27 

I’ve seen, they generally require a minimum of 20 percent 28 

observers on each one of the boats. 29 

 30 

In this program, it also talks about you need a fair 31 

distribution, geographic distribution, of the boats there and 32 

this program clearly doesn’t do that.  You’ve got four in 33 

Clearwater and four in Alabama and one in Galveston and two out 34 

of three in Louisiana and one in Destin. 35 

 36 

It clearly is going to create an unfair competitive advantage to 37 

other headboat and charterboat fishermen in the areas of the 38 

Gulf of Mexico.  We’ve seen no economic analysis on how that 39 

impact is going to be and it’s just not the right way to go at 40 

this point. 41 

 42 

If you’re going to do something like this, I would suggest that 43 

the Fisheries Service get involved with this by selecting who 44 

does and who does not participate, rather than having a board of 45 

nine people select people that they’re going to want to put in 46 

that program. 47 

 48 
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Other than that, amberjack, leave it alone and triggerfish, 1 

leave them alone.  Sector separation, like we’ve always said, is 2 

not good.  Any questions? 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bob. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  Bob, I think you said that the vessels in the IFQ 7 

program, if it were approved, would have a competitive 8 

advantage? 9 

 10 

MR. ZALES:  Yes. 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  You believe that fishing under an IFQ program 13 

would have economically vessels doing that would be better off 14 

than those not fishing under one? 15 

 16 

MR. ZALES:  If you’ve got a headboat -- I’m going to pick Grand 17 

Lagoon in Panama City, Florida, where you have three headboats 18 

on one side of the lagoon and you’ve got four on the other.   19 

 20 

If you’ve got two out of the four on one side of the lagoon 21 

that’s fishing any day they want to fish with the ability to 22 

lease commercial quota and the other five boats are fishing 23 

under the current recreational requirements, you have definitely 24 

given a competitive advantage to those two boats, because they 25 

can clearly advertise that you don’t have to come down in June 26 

and July to fish and you can fish anytime you want. 27 

 28 

Also, you don’t have to comply with a two-fish bag limit or you 29 

don’t have to be constrained by recreational quota, because we 30 

have leased quota from somebody else to give our boats the 31 

ability to provide more fish to more customers. 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  If you believe that type of a system would lead 34 

to improved economic performance, why wouldn’t the for-hire 35 

industry embrace that as a better way of doing business? 36 

 37 

MR. ZALES:  I didn’t say that I agreed that it would increase 38 

economic performance.  I said it gives an unfair competitive 39 

advantage and there’s a distinct difference between the two. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  Next up is Randy Boggs, to be 42 

followed by Wayne Werner. 43 

 44 

MR. RANDY BOGGS:  Ladies and gentlemen of the council, I’m going 45 

to address the exempted fishing permit.  We hope this program, 46 

if it does go forward, will provide an economic advantage and 47 

advantages in the fishing industry are always there. 48 
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 1 

I chose to repower my boat and spend about $200,000 on my boat 2 

to make it faster, to give me an economic advantage over 3 

everybody else, because if you come fishing with me, I can get 4 

you to the fishing grounds and I can get you there quicker and 5 

we can spend more time fishing. 6 

 7 

I don’t think Mr. Zales read the thing as it’s written, because 8 

it is written that in the exempted fishing program, we would not 9 

be able to exceed the recreational bag limit of two fish per day 10 

per person. 11 

 12 

In the second year of the program, if this goes forward, we are 13 

exploring the options of being able to lease commercial quota.  14 

That program is not developed, nor is it etched in stone.  It is 15 

just in there for scoping and to see if it would be possible in 16 

order to do this. 17 

 18 

Most of the commercial guys that I’ve talked to are in favor of 19 

this and a lot of the guys that are asking for the EFP are also 20 

on the Headboat Advisory Panel and the way this came about and 21 

the reason that we’re asking for this is these are people who 22 

are stable. 23 

 24 

We’ve been in business a long time and there’s boats from each 25 

state except for Mississippi.  Mississippi does not have a true 26 

per-person pay headboat is the only reason that Mississippi is 27 

not included in this program and so we’ve tried to include every 28 

geographic area and we’ve tried to put people in the program. 29 

 30 

One of the guys that’s in the program, this will be his second 31 

year with a headboat and I myself am kind of a youngster too, 32 

with eleven years of experience in the headboat program, and 33 

we’ve got some guys that have thirty-plus years of experience. 34 

 35 

We’re trying to do this as a paver to see how the headboat IFQ 36 

program, if we went to a full-blown program and a referendum for 37 

a vote, to make sure that the electronic logbooks and the data 38 

collection and everything will work before we get into a program 39 

and try to bring sixty or seventy boats into a program where 40 

there’s been no experiment to see how it’s going to work. 41 

 42 

As far as the amberjack, I would like to see us stay status quo 43 

on the amberjack.  The triggerfish, I would love to see the bag 44 

limit reduced on triggerfish rather than shortening the season 45 

or closing the season.  A reduction in the bag limit and take 46 

them out of the twenty-fish aggregate would be much preferred to 47 

a closure.  It’s hard to sell people fishing trips when they 48 
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think there’s a closure of any type.  Thank you. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Randy.  It might be helpful, since 3 

the discussion on EFPs seems to be on the forefront, to 4 

recognize that the council may or may not make recommendations 5 

to the Fisheries Service regarding an exempted fishing permit, 6 

but we do not vote it up or down.  That is done by the Fisheries 7 

Service and so we just comment, if we so choose.  Next up is 8 

Wayne Werner, to be followed by David Walker. 9 

 10 

MR. WAYNE WERNER:  Good afternoon.  My name is Wayne Werner, 11 

owner and operator of the Fishing Vessel Sea Quest from Alachua, 12 

Florida.  Basically, I’ve been coming -- Most of you all know 13 

I’ve been coming to these meetings for twenty-five years and 14 

it’s been a long time. 15 

 16 

One thing that always has concerned me, and I’ve got to mention 17 

it again, is we’ve never had an active reef fish permit holder 18 

sitting on the council and I think that’s wrong.  I guess none 19 

of us are smart enough to do it and that really bothers me. 20 

 21 

As far as the amberjacks, I think we should get a 2,000-pound 22 

trip limit.  Triggerfish, I don’t really want to see any trip 23 

limit, because we’re not catching the quota.  If we put a trip 24 

limit on it, it’s just going to probably lower our landings and 25 

we really don’t want to lower our landings any lower than what 26 

they are and make it look any worse.  We really want to see 27 

what’s there. 28 

 29 

To mention king mackerel here, the scoping document that came 30 

out, I think you should have had the AP do a little bit of the 31 

development on that scoping document.  I’ve had so many 32 

fishermen call me from all over the place about that document 33 

and they want to know why it read like it did. 34 

 35 

As far as that economic discussion yesterday, that wasn’t an 36 

economic discussion.  That was a pipedream.  The one thing that 37 

I have to say here is we’re trying to do something to help the 38 

fish.  We know that there are some problems out there and you’re 39 

going to see them over the next few years and you’re going to 40 

hear about them. 41 

 42 

Already in the western zone we’re seeing about a 36 percent 43 

reduction in the b-liner catches and you’re going to start 44 

seeing it.  You’re going to see where we have the problems with 45 

the snappers later on and so we were talking about putting a 46 

set-aside there and we would like your restoration committee to 47 

take a look at our plan as well, what we have in mind.  I guess 48 
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that will be it for today and thank you. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Wayne. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Wayne, I heard you talk last night about 25 5 

percent that was going to be left in the Gulf for five years.  6 

Will you tell us something about what you were discussing? 7 

 8 

MR. WERNER:  What we were kind of proposing is to shelve 25 9 

percent of the fish to allow them to reproduce.  It isn’t that 10 

we don’t need those fish, but it’s that we really believe we 11 

have a problem, Kay. 12 

 13 

This is a serious situation, in our minds.  It may not be in 14 

everybody’s minds here, but we live it and we see it and we have 15 

some serious problems out there and we’re just trying to get 16 

some fish put aside so that they can keep reproducing and help 17 

rebuild the stocks faster.  If that’s a bad thing, I don’t know 18 

what to say. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  As a follow-up, what you’re talking about is the 21 

ITQ holders wanting to leave 25 percent of whatever their 22 

allocation may be in the water for five years. 23 

 24 

MR. WERNER:  Correct, on reef fish that are under an IFQ system. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Wayne.  I was reminded by Counselor 27 

Grimes, subsequent to my last comment, that the exempted fishing 28 

permit will appear in the Federal Register as a notice and there 29 

will be appropriate opportunity for the public to comment on it 30 

at that time as well.  Next up is David Walker, to be followed 31 

by Donnie Waters. 32 

 33 

MR. DAVID WALKER:  I am David Walker from Alabama, a commercial 34 

fisherman from Walker Fishing Fleet.  The methodology, I’m 35 

troubled by the reallocation methodology I heard yesterday.  The 36 

nation gains its access to the resource via the commercial 37 

fishing industry. 38 

 39 

I’m going to speak about IFQs.  The red snapper IFQ program for 40 

the commercial sector has been a huge success.  I think we need 41 

to keep exploring options for the remaining reef fish. 42 

 43 

Amberjack, since amberjack has been closed, we’re going to be 44 

dealing with regulatory discards for the rest of the year.  I 45 

guess for the short term now, we’ll just support the 2,000-pound 46 

trip limit. 47 

 48 
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Vermilion snapper, redirected effort and overcapitalization will 1 

increase restrictive regulation over time, creating derby 2 

conditions under which fishermen will race to fish and intensify 3 

efforts.  These conditions will not achieve optimum yield, but 4 

they will increase bycatch mortality, safety at sea issues, and 5 

regulatory discards. 6 

 7 

Triggerfish, I think increasing the size limit of the 8 

triggerfish is the best short-term solution.  Triggerfish have 9 

the highest survival rate of any reef fish species I have 10 

witnessed. 11 

 12 

Now I will speak on sector separation.  I’m a commercial 13 

fisherman and I support the charter for-hire sector separation 14 

and think it’s their best solution.  Accountability, I think 15 

sectors should not exceed their TAC. 16 

 17 

Kingfish, the AP input needed to be used in the scoping.  Now 18 

I’m going to speak about potential gaps in the future.  I’m 19 

worried about potential gaps in the future stock assessments.  20 

They’re of great concern to me. 21 

 22 

Having damage from forage fish to tunas, I think perhaps leasing 23 

the percentage of the commercial reef fish IFQ to NRDA may 24 

address future issues that develop.  Possibly five-year leases 25 

to begin with and then as many five-year extensions as needed. 26 

 27 

I don’t think many will disagree that pre-oil disaster stock 28 

levels were the highest ever witnessed.  I just don’t want to 29 

get caught up with the issues like the gag grouper.  That 30 

science with the red tide took numerous years before it caught 31 

up.  Thank you. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, David.  Next up is Donnie Waters, to 34 

be followed by Bart Niquet.  Is Donnie in the room?  Then Bart 35 

Niquet, to be followed by Troy Frady. 36 

 37 

MR. BART NIQUET:  Bart Niquet and I’ve had a license since 1949 38 

and I’ve spent thirty-odd years commercial fishing and eighteen 39 

for-hire with a charterboat and almost twenty years running 40 

headboats.  This snapper fishing now is about as good as it has 41 

ever been and the only reason it is, it’s because the commercial 42 

fishermen went to the IFQ program and the recreational fishermen 43 

have been cut down to a two-fish bag limit. 44 

 45 

I see no reason whatsoever to change that.  I think what we 46 

could do is pick any further reallocation -- Not reallocation, 47 

but any raise in the TAC and on the commercial side, put it into 48 
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a program like Mr. Werner is talking about and on the 1 

recreational side, let them have sixty days at two fish. 2 

 3 

The kingfish permits, everybody is talking about those static 4 

permits or whatever you want to call them and I’ve had two of 5 

them, one of them for thirty-four years -- A permit for thirty-6 

four years and one of them for about six years. 7 

 8 

I don’t catch enough fish to make that qualification, but I’ve 9 

got enough permits that I don’t have to throw any fish back.  To 10 

me, kingfish is just a stray fish that comes on my boat and we 11 

don’t want to waste it. 12 

 13 

I think the amberjack should be at status quo.  You’ve got 14 

problems with that, with the way it’s managed.  Triggerfish, the 15 

size limit is too big, but they are coming back fast. 16 

 17 

The vermilion snapper, we may need an IFQ on that and I’m not 18 

sure.  I’ve been both ways on that one and I’ve been cussed by 19 

both sides and so it doesn’t matter, really. 20 

 21 

These exempted permits, why should a recreational so-called 22 

charter for-hire headboat get an exemption to take fish out of 23 

the commercial quota?  Take it out of the recreational side if 24 

you want to run them out of season, but leave the commercial 25 

boats alone. 26 

 27 

One other thing is Dr. Crabtree asked me about what money I paid 28 

for my snapper allocations and I paid -- For all four 29 

endorsements which I have, I get paid a total of $174,000 and I 30 

also spent another two-hundred-and-some-thousand-dollars the 31 

past two years on grouper allocation.  Thanks. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bart.  Up next is Troy Frady, to be 34 

followed by Russell Underwood. 35 

 36 

MR. TROY FRADY:  Good afternoon.  I’m Troy Frady and I’m a 37 

charterboat captain from Orange Beach, Alabama.  I’m also a 38 

member of the Board of Directors of the Orange Beach Fishing 39 

Association and the co-chair of the AP of the Data Collection 40 

Panel of the Gulf Council. 41 

 42 

I would like to first speak to you today on the amberjack, 43 

Amendment 35, about leaving it alone and letting it work.  Last 44 

year was a huge success and I would like to see it left alone, 45 

simply because in the dog days of summer, the water temperature 46 

is hot and I’m not so sure the fish suffer from barotrauma, but 47 

I do know that large amberjacks suffer from exhaustion when 48 
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brought to the surface. 1 

 2 

Off of Orange Beach, within thirty miles of shore, it is really, 3 

really tough and competitive to find a legal-size amberjack 4 

that’s thirty inches right now.   5 

 6 

If you increase the size limit on the amberjack to thirty-two or 7 

even go up to what the numbers say, thirty-four or thirty-five 8 

or thirty-six inches to reach the maximum spawning yield 9 

potential, I think you’re going to just further complicate it 10 

and I think we’re going to end up killing a lot more fish just 11 

because people fish a lot more for the bigger fish, trying to 12 

have something to catch. 13 

 14 

Also, having the advantage of selling the potential cart-topper 15 

outside of the summer season gives myself an opportunity to 16 

operate in commerce. 17 

 18 

Now, one the triggerfish, us fishermen we live in a world of 19 

reality out there.  We see things long before the scientists do 20 

and we see things long before the general public does, but we’re 21 

the pulse of the American fishermen. 22 

 23 

The triggerfish problem has been coming on for years and it took 24 

about four or five years before people reacted to it and we 25 

raised the size limit, but I’ve got kind of a solution.  If we 26 

were to take the triggerfish out of the aggregate and put a 27 

limit of five fish per person, just to see if that would work 28 

and to see if we could not exceed our quota. 29 

 30 

The other thing is being out there this year, I don’t want to 31 

sound like an alarmist, but I’m a realist.  I’m going to tell 32 

you the truth, whether you would like to hear it or not.  I have 33 

caught a small percentage of fish that have lesions on them and 34 

I’m seeing some definite differences in the reduction in bait 35 

fish on the surface waters and there’s a lot of things out there 36 

that are not like they were prior to 2010. 37 

 38 

Nobody is talking about the BP oil spill anymore and I think I 39 

need to bring it to light here, because there’s some things that 40 

are coming to light right now, two years after the spill, that 41 

you need to be aware of and you need to be cognizant of. 42 

 43 

There’s some reports coming out showing that at least 10 percent 44 

of the fish have been affected by the spill and Dr. Crabtree 45 

made a good point yesterday, talking about Andy Strelcheck’s 46 

report saying we can raise the TAC.  If we raise the TAC, he 47 

said nobody is willing to give back. 48 
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 1 

I am cautious.  I am very, very cautious and I don’t want to get 2 

into something to where I’ve got to create a problem by being 3 

greedy right now.  I’m thinking for the future and I want the 4 

fishery healthy and I want to make sure that what we do today, 5 

that the stock is rebuilt by 2032. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Troy, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is 8 

expired. 9 

 10 

MR. FRADY:  Anyway, I would like to see the Restoration 11 

Committee on the agenda for the next meeting and consider an 12 

agenda for a species regulatory change in the NRDA projects.  13 

Thank you. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Troy.  We have a question for you, 16 

Troy. 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Troy, what else was it that you needed to tell 19 

us? 20 

 21 

MR. FRADY:  About which one? 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We interrupted your speech about as far as 24 

leaving the quota in the water and could you tell me a little 25 

more about that? 26 

 27 

MR. FRADY:  My thoughts are a little bit different.  I am very 28 

conservative and I care more about the fish than I do myself 29 

right now.  I want to make sure that everything we do today and 30 

the quota, the TAC, that you set takes into consideration 31 

conservative measures to make sure we are on track for the 32 

future. 33 

 34 

I would rather put the money in the bank right now and in the 35 

banking industry, for instance, we used to have what was called 36 

reserve for long losses.  We would put our money into reserve 37 

and it was required, in case you had a charge off.  It’s called 38 

a savings account for a bank, but they call it reserve for long 39 

losses in an accounting principle term. 40 

 41 

I have no problem by setting aside some fish this year for 42 

myself and putting it into an account just in case the 43 

scientists are right who are investigating the oil spill and the 44 

effects of it.  I would rather be safe than sorry than to come 45 

up short a few years from now and that’s all.  Thank you. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Troy.  Next up Russell Underwood, to 48 
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be followed by Russell Nelson. 1 

 2 

MR. RUSSELL UNDERWOOD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’m Russell 3 

Underwood from Panama City, Florida.  I’ve been fishing for 4 

about forty years and I own about six boats.  I fish out of 5 

Louisiana and I live in Panama City. 6 

 7 

The first thing on the agenda is amberjack, on the commercial 8 

sector.  I would like to see a 2,000-pound trip limit.  I asked 9 

for that a while back and you see what’s happened already and 10 

there’s no commercial quota for amberjacks for the commercial 11 

for the rest of the year and so a lot of the fishermen have been 12 

left out.  We need to slow this fishery down so everybody gets a 13 

fair chance and gets able to catch a few fish. 14 

 15 

On the triggerfish, yesterday I heard testimony and I believe 16 

the triggerfish -- They’re just a bycatch.  They are worth 17 

something and just like the amberjack, you take the triggerfish 18 

away from the commercial fishermen and we just lost the 19 

amberjack for this year and a lot of boats never caught one 20 

amberjack. 21 

 22 

It’s not a directed fishery and it’s a bycatch.  Some trips, my 23 

boats come in with 12,000 pounds of fish and they’ve got fifty 24 

pounds of triggerfish and the next trip they come in with 7,000 25 

pounds of fish and they’ve got 200 pounds of triggerfish and 26 

it’s just a bycatch.  They’re a small, cheap fish, but we need 27 

the few fish that we catch. 28 

 29 

Another thing I would like to talk about is the presentation 30 

yesterday about the economics about reallocation.  With all due 31 

respect to everybody, I think it was a poor presentation.  Your 32 

telephone was all goggled up and nobody could understand it back 33 

here in the audience. 34 

 35 

The people back here in the audience don’t have no written 36 

literature about that and if you’re going to have a statement 37 

and you’re going to have an argument, you need some paperwork to 38 

back it up. 39 

 40 

I personally believe that the analogy of how you all came about 41 

the value of our fish is wrong.  I think that reallocation is a 42 

very poor way to manage a fishery.  You’ve got to be fair with 43 

everybody and just giving fish to another sector that’s not been 44 

held accountable is -- I talked to a senator yesterday about it 45 

and that’s crazy. 46 

 47 

Every sector needs to become accountable.  We’re counting fish 48 
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and everybody needs to come up to the plate and be good stewards 1 

of this fishery.  I’m like the last gentlemen here and I’m more 2 

worried about the fishery than I am myself. 3 

 4 

On this NRDA deal, I have not heard one person or one agency 5 

speak.  I’ve been to a lot of things here lately and how are we 6 

going to restore the fish that’s been damaged in the Gulf?  I 7 

have not heard one thing about the b-liners that might have been 8 

damaged. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Russell, your time is up. 11 

 12 

MR. UNDERWOOD:  My prediction on b-liners is off by 30 percent 13 

and we need your support to save these fish.  It’s for the 14 

recreational and the commercial, to keep this fishery viable and 15 

productive and I thank you. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Russell, thank you for your time.  Next up is 18 

Russell Nelson, to be followed by Chad Hansen. 19 

 20 

MR. RUSSELL NELSON:  My name is Russell Nelson and I’m a 21 

fisheries scientist and I’m here representing my client, the 22 

Coastal Conservation Association.   23 

 24 

I would like to begin by agreeing with the other Russell.  These 25 

telephone presentations of very complicated scientific data are 26 

not adequate for this group.  You’ve got it in black and white 27 

and you might as well read it off a piece of paper if you can’t 28 

have effective interaction. 29 

 30 

With respect to amberjack, we support the thirty-four-inch 31 

minimum size.  With respect to gray triggerfish, we don’t have a 32 

position on it yet.  We’re looking at the data as it unfolds.  I 33 

think it would be wise to explore looking at a bag limit, a 34 

removal from the aggregate bag limit, and having a specific 35 

triggerfish limit.  We would like to see the impacts. 36 

 37 

You will also remember that we raised the question last time of 38 

the assessment used a maximum average size for the largest and 39 

oldest fish in the population of thirty-seven inches.  The 40 

largest triggerfish ever recorded by the IGFA and the world 41 

record was a bit less than twenty-five inches. 42 

 43 

I have talked to Bonnie and Roy and they assure me that the 44 

staff at the Southeast Science Center have looked into this and 45 

said it’s not a big deal and I think it deserves further 46 

scrutiny and perhaps maybe an ad hoc assessment review team, so 47 

at least some of us would be in a position to reassure anglers 48 
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out there that this was the best science.  It’s going to create 1 

quite a funny perception of what you’re doing. 2 

 3 

With respect to the EFP, I’m not going to comment in detail on 4 

it.  We’ll reserve our opportunity to comment once it has been 5 

published in the Federal Register.  To me, it’s very much akin 6 

to CCA coming here and saying we would like a program where only 7 

CCA members would be able to get a permit to catch red snapper 8 

and then we’ll do a real good job of counting them. 9 

 10 

You’ve heard the problem with voluntary and everything else and 11 

it’s a big issue and we’ll wait on it and that’s all I’ve got to 12 

say unless you have any questions and thank you very much. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Russ.  Up next is Chad Hansen, to be 15 

followed by Mike Miglini. 16 

 17 

MR. CHAD HANSEN:  Good afternoon, Chairman Gill and the members 18 

of the council.  My name is Chad Hansen of the Pew Environment 19 

Group and I appreciate the opportunity to talk about Amendment 20 

35, the greater amberjack rebuilding plan. 21 

 22 

As we know, greater amberjack has been overfished since at least 23 

1998.  The rebuilding plan put in place in 2003 has failed to 24 

rebuild the population.  Since that time, the council’s 25 

scientific advisors have recommended increasing the recreational 26 

size limit to where at least 50 percent of the females are 27 

mature, a standard fisheries management rule of thumb. 28 

 29 

That point for greater amberjack is just short of thirty-five 30 

inches.  We strongly recommend increasing the recreational 31 

minimum size limit to thirty-four inches as a tradeoff to keep 32 

the fishery open year-round, at least until the next stock 33 

assessment, available next year. 34 

 35 

It is widely recognized that at the current size limit of thirty 36 

inches that only about 2 percent of the female amberjack are 37 

sexually mature.  At thirty-four inches, that maturity level 38 

increases to about 30 percent. 39 

 40 

We’ve known for more than a decade that we need to allow greater 41 

amberjack to get bigger in order to reproduce and rebuild and it 42 

is widely acknowledged that the population cannot be rebuilt by 43 

continuously harvesting mostly immature fish. 44 

 45 

We don’t need to wait until the next stock assessment.  The 46 

science tells us this now and we can act on that.  At a minimum, 47 

the council should increase the size limit to thirty-two inches 48 
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as an interim measure, with the expectation that the minimum 1 

size limit for the recreational fishery needs to be readdressed 2 

following the next assessment and raised high enough to allow 3 

the species to rebuild.  Even a bump to thirty-two inches would 4 

allow about 10 percent of the females to reproduce. 5 

 6 

Some have expressed concern with discard mortality and with an 7 

increasing size limit.  Newer science, however, shows that the 8 

assumed 20 percent discard rate from the last assessment may 9 

actually be too high and the actual discard mortality rate is 10 

likely much lower. 11 

 12 

Research from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 13 

Commission and the University of Florida indicates discard 14 

mortality rates may be less than 5 percent for amberjack and 15 

newer data from the South Atlantic side points to a rate of 16 

about 14 percent. 17 

 18 

The Gulf data was referenced in the 2011 update assessment for 19 

amberjack and so that’s not new information.  Even the discard 20 

mortality rate, even if it hasn’t been overestimated, as the 21 

latest science seems to indicate, the total or overall mortality 22 

rate is lower with an increasing size limit, to either thirty-23 

four or thirty-two inches. 24 

 25 

At thirty-four inches, the council could reopen the fishery 26 

year-round.  As the species recovers, adjustments may need to be 27 

made, but in the interim, you can both increase access to the 28 

resource for recreational anglers and do the right thing 29 

biologically for this fish by going to thirty-four inches. 30 

 31 

Also, for Amendment 35, we support the use of the annual catch 32 

target to provide a buffer from the annual catch limit.  The ACL 33 

adjustment is strongly recommended in the National Science 1 34 

Guidelines if catch limits are exceeded and readjusting the ACT 35 

is then necessary so that management uncertainty levels 36 

correspond to that ACL. 37 

 38 

However, the ACT should be recalculated using the council’s ACT 39 

control rule rather than doing a straight adjustment based on 40 

the amount that landings exceed the ACL.  Using this control 41 

rule to adjust the ACT allows for flexibility to adapt to 42 

changing fishery and data conditions. 43 

 44 

This approach also provides consistency across management plans, 45 

as intended by the Generic ACL Amendment and the NS-1 46 

Guidelines.  Thank you for the opportunity today, council 47 

members, and we look forward to continuing to work on 48 
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sustainable fish resources in our Gulf. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Chad.  Next up is Michael Miglini, to 3 

be followed by Pam Anderson. 4 

 5 

MR. MICHAEL MIGLINI:  My name is Michael Miglini and I fish out 6 

of Port Aransas, Texas.  I want to welcome everybody to Corpus 7 

Christi.  It’s my home and I hope you guys are enjoying it. 8 

 9 

I would like to speak on the exempted fishing permit first.  A 10 

group of headboats came together and formed a cooperative to try 11 

and make things better.  I know it’s not everybody, but that’s 12 

kind of the way things generally work.  You get a group of 13 

people that try to rise to the top and do something. 14 

 15 

I would like to see you support the headboat cooperative.  The 16 

whole idea behind testing new ideas is to see if these new ideas 17 

are better than the old way.  If the headboat exempted fishing 18 

permit gives cooperative members an advantage, then I suggest 19 

the non-members take note and join the cooperative or move the 20 

idea through full implementation. 21 

 22 

On the issue of amberjack, I support a thirty-inch amberjack 23 

size limit with a June and July closure.  That’s what is best 24 

for me, but the real issue here is that we need flexibility for 25 

different user groups and can’t get it with a one-size-fits-all 26 

regulation.  I would love to see amberjack stand as yet another 27 

example of how flexible systems are needed in our fishery 28 

management.  29 

 30 

I would like to see you send sector separation to scoping and 31 

allow it to move through the process, as this system was 32 

designed to allow.  We’ve had the issue in front of the council 33 

for years and need the process and the scoping process to do its 34 

job. 35 

 36 

I want a days at sea pilot and a headboat IFQ pilot also.  I 37 

know I’m asking for a lot today, but that’s kind of my job.  I 38 

would like to have a days at sea pilot and a headboat IFQ pilot 39 

program.   40 

 41 

I think now it pretty much seems unanimous that everybody up 42 

here says it gives somewhat of an economic advantage and it 43 

seems like it’s a better idea to have a flexible management 44 

system and it gives people an advantage and so let’s try some 45 

more advantageous ideas and see if they work out.   46 

 47 

They could be better than what we’re going now and if not, I 48 
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don’t think a whole lot of the people that are testing the ideas 1 

are going to come up here and say they want to keep doing it and 2 

I think that if people that aren’t testing these ideas see that 3 

they’re good, they’re probably going to join in and want to do 4 

them, too. 5 

 6 

As far as essential fish habitat status for the Rigs to Reef 7 

Program, anything that this council can do to help save that 8 

unintentional but still very important habitat, I would like to 9 

see the council do it.   10 

 11 

If essential fish habitat status or anything else the council 12 

can do can help, I would really appreciate seeing the council do 13 

that and I want to thank the  council for all the work it has 14 

done in the Rigs to Reef Program and exploring it and exploring 15 

different ways to help.  I just really would hate to see that 16 

structure go away, both for my customers and for the fish that 17 

live on it.  Thank you very much for the opportunity to give 18 

public comment. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Michael.  Next up is Pam Anderson, to 21 

be followed by Johnny Williams. 22 

 23 

MS. PAM ANDERSON:  Dr. Crabtree, Chairman Gill, and council 24 

members, I’m Pam Anderson, Operations Manager of Captain 25 

Anderson Marina in Panama City Beach, Florida, and 1st Vice 26 

President of the Panama City Boatmen Association and a member of 27 

the Bay County Chamber of Commerce Government Affairs Committee. 28 

 29 

I wanted to talk with you about several things today.  One is 30 

the triggerfish and the grouper.  I wanted to remind you that 31 

much testimony has been given to this council regarding the 32 

taking of triggerfish eggs by red snapper and it was reported 33 

that juveniles of gag grouper and other reef fish species, such 34 

as vermilion snapper, have been found in the stomachs of red 35 

snapper. 36 

 37 

Possibly the problem is the overabundance of the red snapper and 38 

if checked, would reduce or eliminate the decreasing stocks of 39 

triggerfish and gags.  My understanding of the law is if there 40 

are other factors besides fishing effort that impact a stock, 41 

this is to be considered in the restrictions you implement. 42 

 43 

As far as the sector separation and headboat pilot program, we 44 

are adamantly opposed to both.  It is simply a way to further 45 

divide the stakeholders, causing them to fight against each 46 

other for their share of the annual catch limit.  It is divisive 47 

and bad for the economy. 48 
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 1 

The headboat pilot program in itself is a catch shares program.  2 

You are allowing a small group of stakeholders to guide this 3 

fishery to its demise.  Much of that small group is here and I 4 

do believe it was by design that this subject was presented in 5 

an area that made it more difficult for the majority of the 6 

stakeholders to attend. 7 

 8 

We are adamantly opposed to this headboat catch share program.  9 

In the discussion yesterday, the statement was made that there 10 

are some winners and some losers in every scenario and this is 11 

not acceptable management. 12 

 13 

If the whole premise of your understanding of fisheries 14 

management is this, then there will always be winners and 15 

losers.  We all need to be concentrating on perfecting data 16 

collection and stock assessments and not eliminating jobs. 17 

 18 

Red snapper overages on page 1, Tab B, Number 8, it states that 19 

overage adjustments are not required, but National Standard 1 20 

Guidelines indicate that they can be included in accountability 21 

measures.   22 

 23 

You have a choice in this matter.  An ACL was set by this 24 

council for the recreational fishery.  The stakeholders abided 25 

by the limitations you set in bag limits and season days.  This 26 

fishery’s stakeholders should not be held accountable for your 27 

agency’s miscalculations.  Please consider this as you implement 28 

this year’s season.  Thank you. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Pam.  We have several questions for 31 

you. 32 

 33 

DR. DANA:  Pam, your marina has headboats located there? 34 

 35 

MS. ANDERSON:  Yes. 36 

 37 

DR. DANA:  What is your opinion, if you’ve had the opportunity 38 

to review the exempted fishing permit, for the headboat pilot? 39 

 40 

MS. ANDERSON:  We do oppose that.  The whole situation is going 41 

to pit one group against another.  We have five headboats there 42 

that we sell tickets for out of the same office and so when we 43 

have a season of forty days for red snapper, that’s what we 44 

advertise and so from June 1 to July 10 or whatever, that’s what 45 

we promote as a marina and so that’s when people plan to come. 46 

 47 

If we have somebody else in that marina that’s allowed to catch 48 
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fish at other times, we can’t promote that, for one thing, 1 

because it’s only one person or two people out of all of the 2 

rest of them and we also -- It would be difficult to condone 3 

something like that, simply because they have an unfair 4 

advantage and it will be very divisive on the dock. 5 

 6 

We will have one boat coming in that is allowed to have red 7 

snapper and the boat beside him will not and that’s the reason 8 

why we’ve been against the non-compatibility in the state, 9 

because that causes that hardship also.  It causes very serious 10 

problems in a situation where you have all those boats right 11 

there together. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Pam, and I actually have a couple of 14 

questions.  You have five headboats, two of which will be in it 15 

or will not? 16 

 17 

MS. ANDERSON:  I don’t know.  Jerry Anderson, my husband’s 18 

cousin, has been a part of this group, I believe, that is 19 

promoting this.  I don’t believe to this date that he has put 20 

his name on anything.  He has told some folks in Panama City he 21 

is going to have his boats in it and he has told some that he 22 

will have one in it and one not and then for me, he told me he 23 

was probably not going to be a part of it and so I don’t know 24 

what he is going to do, but if he’s in it, it’s going to cause 25 

problems at the marina. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  You had five boats and you think one may or may 28 

not be in it and do you know why the other four wasn’t even 29 

interested in it? 30 

 31 

MS. ANDERSON:  Because they didn’t believe that it would help.  32 

When you have headboats in a marina where you’re advertising a 33 

season and you know that folks are looking for red snapper, then 34 

you promote a season from X to Y and if you have to say it’s 35 

going to be X to Y for these guys and then maybe this weekend 36 

and maybe that weekend and maybe before the season and maybe 37 

after the season. 38 

 39 

It’s hard to fill those boats.  It’s hard to explain why one 40 

boat can go out and the other boat cannot.  It’s a tough sell 41 

already, because folks want to go out the six months that they 42 

were used to and so now we have to talk to them about all the 43 

other things they can do to experience fishing and fun the days 44 

that are not open for red snapper. 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was just wondering, because if they had the 47 

opportunity to join and then they didn’t join, that was just a 48 
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little bit confusing to me, especially when you say that there’s 1 

going to be an advantage if -- 2 

 3 

MS. ANDERSON:  No, it’s not going to be an economic advantage 4 

unless they are going to be purchasing shares from the 5 

commercial fishery and then there would be a -- Then they would 6 

be having an advantage, because they would be able to fish more 7 

days than the rest of the boats.   8 

 9 

That would be the only advantage they would have and I would 10 

think that that wouldn’t be allowed when one of the Gulf Council 11 

mandates is to be fair and equitable. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I think the first part of that though, they’re 14 

actually going to be using their own recreational quota that 15 

they’ve landed historically is the way that I read it, the first 16 

year at least anyway.  I think there’s still a lot of if’s 17 

there.  The other thing that I wanted to ask you about is -- 18 

 19 

MS. ANDERSON:  Let me -- May I say something about the landing? 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Ms. Williams and Pam, we need to be moving on 22 

and so please be concise. 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Just let me ask this question.  On these sectors 25 

that are running over their allocation and affecting other 26 

people’s livelihoods and stuff, do you think whatever sector it 27 

may be that runs over their allocation, that they should have to 28 

pay that back the next year? 29 

 30 

MS. ANDERSON:  No. 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  You don’t think they should have to pay it back? 33 

 34 

MS. ANDERSON:  No, I don’t, because, number one, I believe that 35 

there are a whole lot more fish out there than what science is 36 

telling you, the science that you’re going by, and number two, 37 

those fishermen in the recreational fishing industry, they are 38 

going by the rules made by this council and so they should not 39 

be punished for the numbers that come out of this council. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Pam, thank you very much.  Next up is Johnny 42 

Williams, to be followed by Chad Haggert. 43 

 44 

MR. JOHNNY WILLIAMS:  Hello, I’m Johnny Williams from Williams 45 

Party Boats Incorporated in Galveston, Texas.  I guess I’m 46 

feeling a little nostalgic here today.  The first Gulf Council -47 

- I first became involved with the Gulf Council in 1989 and the 48 
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first council meeting I attended was actually here in Corpus 1 

Christi, at the hotel right down the street.  As a matter of a 2 

fact, I even wore this suit.  I got it out of the back of the 3 

closet. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I’m glad to see it still fits. 6 

 7 

MR. WILLIAMS:  It’s a little tight now, I must admit, but 8 

anyway, when I first got involved with the council, I wrote a 9 

letter and we were kind of concerned about the seven fish bag 10 

limit out of Galveston and one of the things that I mentioned in 11 

there is that the partyboats and charterboats really shouldn’t 12 

be part of the recreational sector and they should be in a 13 

sector of their own, because even though they take out 14 

recreational fishermen, we’re doing it for a living. 15 

 16 

That was over twenty years ago and we’re finally getting 17 

something on the table here at the council addressing that issue 18 

and we’ve got another issue coming up right now and it’s the 19 

headboat cooperative. 20 

 21 

We would like you all giving us a recommendation, a support 22 

letter, basically, supporting this.  We need this now.  Our 23 

season is going to be, at best, forty days this year.  That 24 

depends on what some of the states do with their state waters 25 

and so we’re basically on a road to decline and we have been for 26 

a long time and we need some help. 27 

 28 

You all could help us by giving us this letter of 29 

recommendation.  We need this headboat cooperative and this 30 

exempted fishing permit and if you think about it, we’re 31 

actually going to land less fish inside this cooperative than we 32 

would if we were fishing in the regular season and the reason I 33 

say that is probably about twenty out of twenty-two years or 34 

something like that, we’ve overfished our quota in the 35 

recreational sector, after everything was said and done. 36 

 37 

We’re going to be limited to the number of fish that we’re going 38 

to be able to catch and so if the recreational sector goes over 39 

their quota, they’re going to catch more fish than they were 40 

supposed to, but we’re going to be under that limit, because if 41 

we were in the purely recreational fishery, we would be trying 42 

to harvest the fish as we were on the days that we were going to 43 

be fishing and we would actually be harvesting more fish that 44 

way than we will under this program. 45 

 46 

There are some people that are concerned about the intersector 47 

trading and number one, that’s something that we would like to 48 
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see the second year, but the first year, there is no intersector 1 

trading. 2 

 3 

The second year, at the current time, there’s no mechanism to do 4 

that and there might be one in the future.  It’s something that 5 

we would like to look at though, to see if it were possible, but 6 

that’s not paramount to this position.  We want it if we get the 7 

intersector trading or not. 8 

 9 

As far as being in an economically advantageous position, that’s 10 

why I’m doing it.  I can run my business better than you all can 11 

or the federal government can.  Give me the opportunity to do 12 

that and give me a fighting chance.  We don’t currently have 13 

that under this system and thank you very much. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Johnny.  Next up is Chad Haggert, to 16 

be followed by Tres Atkins. 17 

 18 

MR. CHAD HAGGERT:  Good afternoon, council and staff.  My name 19 

is Chad Haggert and I’m vice president of my family-owned 20 

fishing business, the Double Eagle Fishing Fleet, in Clearwater, 21 

Florida.  I am one of the members of the headboat cooperative 22 

EFP.  I have both of my boats listed on there. 23 

 24 

I’ve got to reiterate some of the facts that some people have 25 

had, that they’re saying that we’re trying to ask for more fish, 26 

which just isn’t the case.  We’re going on a percentage based on 27 

what our historic landings are. 28 

 29 

I agree with what Johnny just said, that there’s a chance that 30 

we’ll probably harvest less fish as part of this EFP than we 31 

will if we fished in the open season.  I think this plan will 32 

help test the economic value that it will provide to the 33 

headboat fleet and to be honest with you, I don’t know how much 34 

of an impact that’s going to be, but I think it’s willing to 35 

test that and what it’s going to help provide my business is the 36 

ability to provide a consistent product to my customers. 37 

 38 

I know there’s talk of a forty-day season and we’re waiting to 39 

see what other states are going to do and that might go down.  40 

There might be no season and the same with the gag grouper after 41 

the State of Florida, which I reside in and have my business in, 42 

has opened up a special four counties, which, in my opinion, has 43 

created an economic advantage for the people in those four 44 

counties. 45 

 46 

I would love to have a season in April.  There’s a lot of gag 47 

grouper in my area there and so that’s an advantage to those 48 
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four counties which has been overlooked, and I know you guys 1 

don’t regulate that, but I just wanted to bring that to light. 2 

 3 

There was comment earlier about us being able to catch more than 4 

the bag limit and somebody also brought up that we’ve got it 5 

written into the EFP that we would stay within that.  I know my 6 

boats and my competitor, right in the same marina, have actually 7 

talked about lowering that to one fish per person while we’re in 8 

this plan, to help extend the season as long as we can for our 9 

customers. 10 

 11 

I’ve had plenty of people talk on the boat when I tell them they 12 

have to throw these fish back and they say it would be nice if 13 

we could just keep one and so we brought that to the table, as 14 

friendly competitors right next to each other, about issuing 15 

that if this plan goes forward.   16 

 17 

It will give us a longer season by helping us keep just one fish 18 

per person and we’ve even talked about just a boat limit on 19 

there, one per person or maybe twenty per boat, but none of this 20 

can be talked about until we actually get this plan to move 21 

forward. 22 

 23 

I don’t believe that this pilot program will cause the demise of 24 

the headboat or the charter for-hire fleet.  I believe we’re 25 

already seeing that happen now.  There’s been presentations 26 

showing that we’re losing more and more federal permits every 27 

year and a two-year plan to see if it will work -- I don’t know 28 

if it will or not, but it will allow us to try something and be 29 

able to learn and work from that. 30 

 31 

I also -- Some of you might remember me from the Orange Beach 32 

meeting last year and I had 800 letters of support from 33 

fishermen in my marina and I’ve got another 175 to turn over and 34 

I handed them to you in hard copy last year and I guess they’ve 35 

been told now that I have to submit them via email or 36 

electronically, which we’ll take care of doing, but I have 37 

collected some more letters of support from customers that want 38 

us to be able to at least move forward with this. 39 

 40 

I also support the sector separation moving forward and I’m glad 41 

to hear that there was some more talk about that and would hope 42 

that you would vote to move it to scoping and see where that 43 

goes. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Chad, your time is up and you need to wrap it 46 

up. 47 

 48 
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MR. HAGGERT:  Thank you very much and I appreciate the time to 1 

talk. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We do have a question for you from Ms. Williams. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  What did you say about your signatures?  You were 6 

told you couldn’t turn them in on paper and you had to do it 7 

electronically? 8 

 9 

MR. HAGGERT:  There was something that I read on the agenda over 10 

there that any comments or any paperwork being turned over 11 

needed to be submitted electronically and something about thirty 12 

copies or submitted electronically and I don’t have thirty 13 

copies of the paperwork and so I will be submitting it 14 

electronically. 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We’ll see what we can do to help you out with 17 

that. 18 

 19 

MR. HAGGERT:  Okay.  Very good. 20 

 21 

MR. ANSON:  Chad, thanks for coming.  Did your plan EFP have any 22 

provisions in there for penalties if captains who are 23 

participating in there had exceeded any of the provisions, as 24 

far as the two fish or declaring a trip and that type of thing, 25 

if they were caught outside of those parameters within the 26 

program?  Did it describe or offer any penalties for those 27 

captains? 28 

 29 

MR. HAGGERT:  There were several different penalties in there, 30 

one being that if they were caught going over what their 31 

allotment of the cooperative was, it would be to be ejected or 32 

released from the cooperative and not be able to participate and 33 

if the current open season was still there, they would be out of 34 

that. 35 

 36 

It even went as far as if somebody went what we quoted as rogue 37 

and went off, that there would be -- As us being a cooperative, 38 

there would be civil penalties that we could bring against them 39 

and we’ve also had an agreement to leave a certain percentage of 40 

whatever allotment we might get as a buffer to cover that and so 41 

as a cooperative, we didn’t go over if somebody decided to try 42 

and catch more than what their allotment was.  We had that 43 

buffer zone so we didn’t go over what the allotment was for the 44 

whole cooperative. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Chad.  Next up is Tres Atkins, to be 47 

followed by Danny Pritchard. 48 
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 1 

MR. TRES ATKINS:  Good afternoon, council members.  My name is 2 

Tres Atkins and I’m a charter fisherman, an owner/operator, from 3 

Galveston, Texas.  I’ve been in the business for about eight 4 

years and I want to thank you for giving me the opportunity to 5 

speak today. 6 

 7 

First off, just real quick, I support keeping the amberjacks at 8 

a thirty-inch fork length and the June/July closure.  As a Texas 9 

fisherman, it allows me to have a few more days on the water and 10 

I feel like if we increase the size that we’re just going to 11 

kill more fish. 12 

 13 

Secondly, I would like to support a fisheries management plan or 14 

sector separation or whatever you want to call it for the 15 

charter for-hire sector.  Let us move forward.  Better science 16 

and better data, there’s a lot of things that have been brought 17 

forth that we need and that’s great, but it doesn’t fix the 18 

problem. 19 

 20 

I’m out of time and I need your help.  I’m trying to raise a 21 

family and my business needs your help.  I want to fish in an 22 

accountable fishery and I want to continue to provide access to 23 

this fishery to the non-boat owning public.  Those are the 24 

people that pay my way. 25 

 26 

The charter for-hire sector must be allowed to protect 27 

themselves from state non-compliance.  Customers don’t 28 

understand why a boat without federal permits can retain fish 29 

that we’re forced to throw back and law enforcement cannot seem 30 

to curtail the non-permitted boats from fishing outside the 31 

nine-mile barrier and bringing these federal-water fish to the 32 

dock, claiming to have taken them in state waters. 33 

 34 

I know this is a tough task for law enforcement and I wish I 35 

could help them any way I can, but the sad part of it is that 36 

this is going to continue to happen.  Sector separation takes a 37 

step, in my opinion, towards at least allowing our sector to 38 

become compliant and accountable.  Thank you for your time. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Tres.  Next up is Danny Pritchard, to 41 

be followed by Mike Nugent. 42 

 43 

MR. DANNY PRITCHARD:  Good afternoon.  My name is Danny 44 

Pritchard and I would like to thank you all for meeting with us 45 

today and hearing the voices and opinions of our fellow anglers.  46 

I graduated with a degree in marine biology from Texas A&M 47 

Corpus Christi in 2005 and since then, I’ve had the pleasure of 48 
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working on a charter for-hire boat called the Orion out of Port 1 

Aransas, Texas. 2 

 3 

Since then, in my short time in the industry, I’ve noticed both 4 

a dramatic decrease in the amount of days we’re allowed to fish 5 

for red snapper and the number of locations we have to fish for 6 

red snapper, with many of the oil rig platforms being pulled. 7 

 8 

I would like to stress the importance of the charter for-hire 9 

industry to the many landlocked anglers throughout the United 10 

States.  I would like to stress the importance of data 11 

collection projects such as the iSnapper program, which I feel 12 

was very successful in 2011. 13 

 14 

I don’t see a better way of collecting data or the information 15 

on the number of fish, the weight of the fish, and the species 16 

that we’re fishing out there, other than to record this 17 

information as they’re coming out of the water and it’s 18 

submitted directly to the operator of such program. 19 

 20 

I would like to stress the importance of a days at sea program, 21 

which will help us break up the number of days we’re allowed to 22 

fish for red snapper throughout the year and I would also like 23 

to stress the importance of programs such as Rigs to Reef, which 24 

will keep essential fish habitats for us to continue fishing off 25 

of for years to come. 26 

 27 

With the number of platforms being pulled on a yearly rate, it 28 

will soon be that us anglers will have nowhere to fish off of 29 

and that’s all I have and thank you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Danny.  Next up is Mike Nugent, to be 32 

followed by Nicholas Garthwaite. 33 

 34 

MR. MIKE NUGENT:  My name is Mike Nugent and I’m a charterboat 35 

owner/operator from Aransas Pass, Texas.  I started chartering 36 

in 1978 and so that makes me feel kind of like a fossil, but in 37 

the matter of amberjack, I support status quo on bag and 38 

lengths, but I would prefer to see a spawning season closure 39 

rather than a June and July closure. 40 

 41 

On triggerfish, it will be more closely related to what I speak 42 

about in open session, but I would just like you to keep in mind 43 

that when it comes to triggerfish nesting and triggerfish 44 

spawning how important habitat is. 45 

 46 

On the matter of the headboat co-op, I want to state my 47 

opposition to the program as it’s being presented to you.  One 48 
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of the first things that I want to mention is as a member of the 1 

-- Pardon me on all the initials here, but I think it’s LAPP AP, 2 

that when we’ve been talking about the days at sea program, it 3 

was stressed to us on that panel that you don’t need volunteers 4 

in this pilot program, but you need to come up with a random 5 

selection or draft of the for-hire industry. 6 

 7 

It was also stated to us that you need geographic 8 

diversification on this project and I fail to see why an LAPP 9 

for for-hire boats would differ that radically from a pilot 10 

program for headboats.  I just can’t follow that logic. 11 

 12 

I also fail to see how it helps when you have multi boat owners 13 

in a very limited scope pilot program.  I don’t know why you 14 

would need someone that owns two vessels to participate rather 15 

than a person that owns a vessel somewhere else. 16 

 17 

The other things that’s disturbing about it to me is when you 18 

get into the second year and all of a sudden you start talking 19 

about intersector trading and just like always, when you talk 20 

about sector separation or anything of this nature, the elephant 21 

in the room becomes the catch shares and the intersector trading 22 

and I have to differ with Roy. 23 

 24 

I don’t think it’s an economic advantage, but I think anybody 25 

that can sit and look and add can see that it is a competitive 26 

advantage if a person is able to acquire commercial shares to 27 

run a headboat in the second year of that program.  I don’t 28 

think that can be disputed.  I might be a little biased on it, 29 

admittedly, but that’s the way I feel about it. 30 

 31 

I just feel like you need to go after some of the boats that we 32 

brought dozens upon dozens of signatures to you last April that 33 

are opposed to catch shares and if this is a valid program and 34 

if you can develop something that works, like they’re talking 35 

about, well get some of the people that are skeptics in it and 36 

see how it works. 37 

 38 

Somebody mentioned future referendums and don’t just take the 39 

people who are supporting you, but try to get everybody into it, 40 

but as it’s worded to you, I strongly oppose this concept. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mike, your time is up and you need to wrap it 43 

up. 44 

 45 

MR. NUGENT:  I am wrapped. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  I appreciate it.  Next up is 48 
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Nicholas Garthwaite, to be followed by Cliff Cox. 1 

 2 

MR. NICHOLAS GARTHWAITE:  My name is Nicholas Garthwaite and I’m 3 

a captain out of Galveston, Texas.  I’ve been a licensed captain 4 

for eight years.  I started deck-handing when I was sixteen and 5 

it became my career right after high school. 6 

 7 

Currently, I own my own charter company and I freelance to run 8 

other boats in my free time, just to make a good living.  I can 9 

remember when it was easier to make good money.  Gas was 10 

cheaper, snapper season was longer.  Now it’s hard to make 11 

steady income. 12 

 13 

We all know all our customers want snapper.  However, trips cost 14 

so much and the season is shortened and it’s harder to make a 15 

good living.  I know, myself, I will work seven days a week all 16 

summer long just to stockpile money for the winter.  It would be 17 

a dream of mine to know that I can spread out my income 18 

throughout the year. 19 

 20 

The way the regulations are at this time leaves me guessing how 21 

much money I can make in a year.  If a charter company had an 22 

exact number of days they could fish and could fish any day of 23 

the year, it would make income more consistent. 24 

 25 

As of now, during snapper season, I cannot book a trip for other 26 

species because I have to leave those days open for my snapper 27 

customers.  However, during that period, if something happens 28 

due to your boat breaks down or the weather is bad or family 29 

issues, anything that keeps you off the water during the snapper 30 

season, it costs you a lot of money. 31 

 32 

During the winter, I starve and it shouldn’t be that way.  If 33 

you are a charter company, we should be able to make income all 34 

twelve months of the year.  Any other career you choose, you are 35 

allowed to work twelve months a year and we want the same and so 36 

with that said, I push for sector separation. 37 

 38 

Also, when you’re fishing for amberjack and you catch a fish and 39 

he’s not the keeper size and you let him go, there’s no 40 

guarantee that he’s going to make it when you release him and so 41 

I push for keeping the thirty-inch limit.  That way, when you 42 

reach your limit, you’re not dropping any more baits and killing 43 

any more fish.  Thank you, guys, for your time. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Nicholas.  Next up is Cliff Cox, to 46 

be followed by Joshua Abbott. 47 

 48 
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MR. CLIFF COX:  My name is Captain Cliff Cox from Destin, 1 

Florida.  I own and operate a fifty-six-foot headboat and I’m 2 

vice president of the Destin Fishermen’s Co-op and a member of 3 

the Charter Fishermen’s Association and I’m coming to you today 4 

-- I thank you for the opportunity to speak to you and our 5 

industry needs some help. 6 

 7 

We’re facing a lot of issues and I strongly support sector 8 

separation.  I think it’s the only way we’re going to fix our 9 

industry.  10 

 11 

Having our own allocation of fish would allow us to get away 12 

from this derby-style fishery that we’re trapped in right now 13 

and give us flexibility to operate our businesses the way we 14 

think we need to and also it would give us some value, which we 15 

currently don’t have, to our permits and our businesses. 16 

 17 

The commercial sector has proved that having an allocation and 18 

fishing it responsibly and having the highest degree of scrutiny 19 

and accountability works for the fish as well as the fishermen.  20 

It also gives National Marine Fisheries and the Science Center 21 

the best data possible to work with. 22 

 23 

We need the council’s help in moving forward with some new 24 

management tools, be it headboat pilots, charterboat pilots, or 25 

the headboat cooperative.  The Gulf Headboat Cooperative was 26 

formed to test a cooperative-style management plan for red 27 

snapper and gag grouper, with a group of about twenty boats from 28 

around the Gulf. 29 

 30 

We believe this program, as well as other pilot programs, will 31 

give National Marine Fisheries and the Gulf Council models to 32 

look at in future management of the charter for-hire industry.  33 

It’s time for some new ideas and to move towards a viable 34 

fishery management plan for the charter for-hire sector. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Cliff.  Next up is Joshua Abbott, to 37 

be followed by Jim Clements. 38 

 39 

MR. JOSHUA ABBOTT:  My name is Josh Abbott and I’m an Assistant 40 

Professor of Environmental and Resource Economics in the School 41 

of Sustainability at Arizona State University.  I hold a PhD in 42 

Ag and Resource Economics from U.C. Davis, as well as Master’s 43 

and Bachelor’s Degrees in Economics from the University of 44 

Washington and Baylor University. 45 

 46 

I’ve published papers in peer-reviewed journals on commercial 47 

and recreational fisheries management, including two papers 48 
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specifically focusing on the management of charter and 1 

recreational headboat fisheries. 2 

 3 

A substantial part of my work really focuses on examining the 4 

impacts of large-scale management changes in fisheries with 5 

published and ongoing work related to the impacts of catch 6 

shares in Alaskan red king crab and snow crab fisheries and the 7 

transition to cooperative management in the groundfish trawl 8 

fleet of the Bering Sea. 9 

 10 

My involvement comes at the request of the Gulf Headboat 11 

Cooperative and Charter Fishermen’s Association, who have asked 12 

me to contribute to the socioeconomic study portion of the 13 

headboat pilot EFP, in the event of its passage. 14 

 15 

In this capacity, I would like to offer my support for the data 16 

collection and socioeconomic study portions, which are Sections 17 

2.3 and 2.4 of the draft EFP, both from the perspective of its 18 

merit and contributing to the academic literature on fisheries 19 

economics and management and in improving the quality of 20 

information for recreational for-hire fisheries management in 21 

the Gulf of Mexico and beyond. 22 

 23 

The data collection plan and study design have substantial 24 

potential to improve the state of knowledge in both the academic 25 

and management communities of the effects of the large-scale 26 

changes in the management on the for-hire sector. 27 

 28 

While there is a small amount of conceptual modeling in this 29 

area and some existing data outlining the current economic and 30 

social context of for-hire fisheries, there remains relatively 31 

little policy experience and quantitative information to guide 32 

decision making. 33 

 34 

Modeling and extrapolation from experiences with similar 35 

policies in commercial fisheries can be useful.  However, the 36 

for-hire sector is unique in terms of its economic structure and 37 

role in coastal economies and both management and academic 38 

progress would be greatly facilitated by purposeful, targeted 39 

data collection and evaluation, in anticipation of important 40 

management changes. 41 

 42 

The language in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 of the EFP reflects a 43 

collaboration between fishermen and academic partners to 44 

establish exactly such a protocol.  The indicators that are 45 

mentioned there are therefore of clear importance to owners, 46 

crew, and clients of the for-hire sector and fisheries managers 47 

as well. 48 
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 1 

All data gathering instruments will be designed to be as 2 

compatible as possible with current data collection, in order to 3 

soundly evaluate changes in fishing practices and impacts that 4 

may result from the EFP. 5 

 6 

An especially important aspect of the socioeconomic evaluation 7 

study is the fact that participation in the headboat pilot is 8 

voluntary.  This creates the potential for researchers to 9 

compare the change in important performance metrics before and 10 

after the EFP for vessels that opted in and out of the pilot.   11 

 12 

This allows those vessels that do not participate to serve as a 13 

control group for those that do.  Such a scenario is fairly rare 14 

in fisheries management and offers a far more robust 15 

contribution to academic and management knowledge than studies 16 

that focus on before and after impacts alone. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Josh, your time is up and you need to wrap it 19 

up. 20 

 21 

MR. ABBOTT:  In summary, this represents a significant 22 

opportunity to expand the scientific foundations for sound 23 

management and I think this is exactly what we’re talking about 24 

when we talk about the ongoing adaptive management in the Gulf 25 

of Mexico.  This is a step in the right direction. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Josh.  We have a question for you, 28 

Josh. 29 

 30 

MR. PERRET:  Where are you located? 31 

 32 

MR. ABBOTT:  I’m at the School of Sustainability at Arizona 33 

State University. 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  Well, I was going to suggest we get your résumé, 36 

because when we have openings on our particular committees, it 37 

sounds like you might be a good member, but traveling from 38 

Arizona State and is that what you said? 39 

 40 

MR. ABBOTT:  Yes, sir. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  That would probably be a little costly, but why 43 

don’t you, if you would be interested in serving on an 44 

appropriate socioeconomic panel, send the staff your résumé and 45 

when that comes up, we may want to consider it, if you’re 46 

interested. 47 

 48 
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MR. ABBOTT:  I will consider it. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, sir.  Next up is Jim Clements, to be 3 

followed by Brent Casey. 4 

 5 

MR. JIM CLEMENTS:  My name is Jim Clements and I’m a commercial 6 

fisherman from Carrabelle, Florida.  Three weeks ago, I wrote an 7 

editorial that was published in the Panama City News Herald and 8 

the Tallahassee Democrat. 9 

 10 

Charlene Ponce sent a copy to each of you.  The name of the 11 

article was “Current Fishing Policies are Working Well” and in 12 

the article, I asked Congress to interfere with the council 13 

process and not to reopen the Magnuson-Stevens Act.  I praised 14 

this council for its good management decisions and the sciences 15 

that provided the data for you to make those decisions. 16 

 17 

I think the methods the scientists use to gather their data are 18 

sound.  That is until yesterday.  When I heard the economic 19 

evaluation of grouper allocations presented over the phone by 20 

Mr. Agar and Mr. Carter, I was appalled.  I cannot believe they 21 

put an economic value on grouper using IFQ allocations. 22 

 23 

The grouper IFQ program is in its infancy.  When the red snapper 24 

IFQ program came out five years ago, I bought shares for $4.00 25 

and now they’re $35.00 and what figure are you going to use? 26 

 27 

This method of gathering data is totally wrong.  The value of a 28 

grouper is its end use.  If a recreational angler is willing to 29 

pay $9.13 for a pound of gag grouper, as Mr. Agar and Mr. 30 

Carter’s study suggests, that is what that grouper is worth when 31 

the angler takes it home and eats it. 32 

 33 

If a consumer goes to the supermarket and he’s willing to pay 34 

$15.00 for a pound of gag grouper and takes it home and eats it, 35 

that is its end value.  If you go out tonight and are willing to 36 

pay $25.00 for a grouper dinner, that is the end value and you 37 

only get eight-ounces on your plate. 38 

 39 

Even though this puts the value much higher for a commercial 40 

grouper, I don’t advocate taking grouper from the recreational 41 

sector and giving it to the commercial sector.  I propose that 42 

this council abide by its fisheries allocation policy, which in 43 

Section B, Number 1, states, and I quote, “suggested methods for 44 

determining reallocation should be accountability, a sector’s 45 

ability to keep within its allocations”, unquote. 46 

 47 

Keep the allocations split between each sector just as it is now 48 
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and each year thereafter, whichever sector exceeds their quota 1 

should have a payback provision to make them accountable.  Isn’t 2 

that fair and equitable for all?  What’s good for the goose is 3 

good for the gander and it don’t matter who comes out ahead. 4 

 5 

Why don’t we stop fighting over money and greed and let the fish 6 

population and American public be the ones that come out ahead?  7 

After all, Magnuson-Stevens advocates the maximum benefit to the 8 

nation and not people who can afford pleasure boats.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jim.  Next up is Brent Casey, to be 11 

followed by Jillian Williams. 12 

 13 

MR. BRENT CASEY:  Mr. Chairman, is it all right at this time if 14 

we speak about Rigs to Reef? 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes, that’s correct. 17 

 18 

MR. CASEY:  My name is Captain Brent Casey and I’m the owner and 19 

operator of the Deep Blue Scuba and Fishing Charters out of Port 20 

Aransas, Texas.  I’m not going to get up here and talk about all 21 

the different types of fish and all the snapper and all this, 22 

but I’m going to talk about losing our habitat. 23 

 24 

Down here in the southern part of Texas, I would like for 25 

everyone in here from Florida or Mississippi or Alabama or 26 

Louisiana or the northern coast to take heed on what’s taking 27 

place down here. 28 

 29 

Our major fishing habitats are artificial reefs.  These 30 

platforms have been here for thirty and forty years.  I myself 31 

have been an oil worker for thirty-five years out in the Gulf.  32 

I’ve spent most of my life in the Gulf of Mexico and I’ve 33 

watched these things grow and develop into habitats, even though 34 

they’re not recognized. 35 

 36 

I’m begging this council to please get onboard and help us more 37 

with this problem.  By the end of this year, in the Corpus area, 38 

we will have no more platforms.  They’re going to be gone, 39 

everything.  They’ve already moved over 83 percent out of the 40 

state waters and guys up around Galveston, take heed.  It’s 41 

coming your way. 42 

 43 

When they started this back in 2009, it was to remove the 44 

platforms that were toppled over by Gustav, Rita, Katrina, and 45 

Ike, the cause of the pollution problems of the productions.  46 

That’s not happening.  They’re coming down here and there was no 47 

mandate on which platforms to pull first. 48 



49 

 

 1 

What they’ve done, they have come down here and taken these 2 

pristine platforms that are depleted and no more gas and oil is 3 

on these platforms and it is only a shell and there’s a habitat.  4 

Grouper and sawfish and every species lives underneath these 5 

platforms. 6 

 7 

I myself have witnessed the breeding and the birthing of red 8 

snapper and the African pompano.  They do a mating ritual that 9 

is unbelievable to see and I’ve got to witness this in my 10 

thirty-five years out in the Gulf. 11 

 12 

I beg this council to argue with the feds or whoever we need to 13 

do.  Help us with this problem.  We are running out of time.  By 14 

the end of this year, we’ll have to go over eighty miles to 15 

reach fishing grounds. 16 

 17 

I myself am a diver and I take sport divers out and I also take 18 

fishing charters.  Where am I going to take these people?  Who 19 

is going to pay for my charters now?  Who is going to pay more 20 

for my livelihood that I’ve worked all my life for to build and 21 

retire with?  Who is going to protect it for my children and my 22 

children’s children?  Thank you. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Brent.  Brent, we have a question for 25 

you and, Brent, if you would come back to the mic. 26 

 27 

DR. ABELE:  The council has written a letter of support, but 28 

what else would be possible to assist with this? 29 

 30 

MR. CASEY:  Can you say that again? 31 

 32 

DR. ABELE:  What could the council do to reduce the removal of 33 

these rigs? 34 

 35 

MR. CASEY:  Sitting through all the meetings, I hear about the 36 

counts that we take this and that for breeding and population 37 

and tell me this.  These platforms have been here for thirty and 38 

forty years and there’s been over 1,100 acres just taken out of 39 

the Texas waters alone in the past, we’ll say three years. 40 

 41 

That’s got some kind of eco problem.  It is doing something out 42 

there and using high explosives to blow these platforms up, 43 

you’ve just killed all the breeders and you’ve killed every 44 

living thing, turtles and I can say turtles, because I’ve been 45 

out there and witnessed it and everything is dead and so that’s 46 

-- I am speechless and why can’t this be implemented in?  47 

 48 
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That’s what I am trying to get pushed forward.  This is our 1 

breeding ground for this end and if it’s taking place down here, 2 

it’s going to reach the northern part, where the majority of the 3 

platforms are at and what’s going to happen when all these 4 

structures are removed? 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Brent.  We appreciate it.  Next up is 7 

Jillian Williams, to be followed by Paul Eberhardt. 8 

 9 

MS. JILLIAN WILLIAMS:  Hello.  My name is Jillian Williams and 10 

I’m from Williams Partyboats in Galveston, Texas.  I am the 11 

fourth generation and we’ve actually been in business since 1946 12 

and we’re Texas’s oldest partyboat business and I’m here today 13 

to support the headboat pilot program. 14 

 15 

I made my first red snapper trip at two years old with my father 16 

and my grandfather and I’ve always dreamed of taking over this 17 

business and making a living doing it and every year, it’s just 18 

becoming more and more difficult to keep our business going. 19 

 20 

I believe that we should have a chance to explore this option, 21 

just to see if it is a better way.  It may not work, but I think 22 

we deserve a chance to at least find out if it’s a better option 23 

and to see if it helps us make our businesses more profitable. 24 

 25 

I have heard people complaining in here that they think we’ll be 26 

having an unfair advantage and obviously if they think we have 27 

an unfair advantage, something must be working more in our 28 

benefit and the whole point of this program is to see if it 29 

works and to hopefully get all headboats to be able to do 30 

something like this. 31 

 32 

I mean you have no idea how much more it would benefit us to be 33 

able to pick and choose our own days.  There’s so many problems 34 

that could happen to prevent us from using our forty days this 35 

year. 36 

 37 

A few years back, our snapper boat broke down the first week of 38 

snapper season and we lost about two weeks.  We couldn’t handle 39 

another year where we wouldn’t be able to have two weeks of 40 

snapper boat fishing.  We would just go under. 41 

 42 

Like everybody has said, they can run their business better than 43 

anybody else and I think that they should be able to be able to 44 

pick and choose whenever they want to go out and get it, because 45 

only they can know when it’s best for them. 46 

 47 

If you’re giving us forty days and a boat breaks down or it’s 48 
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bad weather or a family member dies -- Anything could happen and 1 

then you just completely lose that and how are you supposed to 2 

make any money?  I just really want to see my business continue 3 

with me and from the way my dad is talking, he thinks that if we 4 

can’t get something like this going that I’m just going to have 5 

to pursue something else, because I’m not going to be able to 6 

make a living doing this. 7 

 8 

I love what I do.  I love being out on the ocean and I love 9 

catching fish and I love my customers and I just want to be able 10 

to continue what my family has been doing for three generations 11 

before me. 12 

 13 

I can’t stress to you how horribly important this is for you all 14 

to give us this chance.  I would get down on my knees and beg if 15 

I thought it would help my cause at all, but I’m just really, 16 

really asking you all for the chance for us to be able to try 17 

something to improve our businesses and our livelihoods.  Thank 18 

you all very much for your time. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jillian.  Next up is Paul Eberhardt, 21 

to be followed by Billy Archer. 22 

 23 

MR. PAUL EBERHARDT:  My name is Paul Eberhardt and I’m president 24 

of Western Rubber and Manufacturing and I am in no way 25 

affiliated with the fishing industry.  I am a customer for the 26 

charterboat industry.  I’ve done the math and I understand that 27 

it’s a whole lot cheaper to call up somebody and let them take 28 

me fishing than to own a boat large enough to get me to where I 29 

want to go. 30 

 31 

I have been fishing the Gulf now for about thirty years and I 32 

have seen the season dwindle to almost nothing.  I will 33 

typically call up my captains and book three to four trips to 34 

hopefully get one in. 35 

 36 

There have been numerous years that a forty, fifty, sixty-day 37 

season, my schedule, their schedule, and the weather dictates 38 

that I don’t have an opportunity to go fish.  It would be better 39 

for me if the captains was given the ability to go fish when 40 

it’s convenient and the weather is better and it’s for the 41 

clients. 42 

 43 

I can’t take off, because I own a business, in the middle of the 44 

week to catch a time to go fishing.  I typically take my family 45 

with me and of the employees, four of them work for me and so a 46 

midday trip, when the water is right, is not going to work.  I 47 

need a time where I can schedule it for a Friday, Saturday, or 48 
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Sunday, to be able to get out. 1 

 2 

They don’t have that luxury, because the feds mandate this is 3 

the timeframe and regardless of what happens, it starts here and 4 

it closes there and if you can’t fit it in, I’m sorry. 5 

 6 

If you all could look at this and help people like myself be 7 

able to get out when we can do it, it would be deeply 8 

appreciated and thank you all very much. 9 

 10 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you, Paul.  Next is Billy Archer, followed by 11 

Mike Colby. 12 

 13 

MR. BILLY ARCHER:   Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I appreciate this 14 

time and thank you, council.  I also would like to thank the 15 

Reef Fish Committee.  I know everybody is tired, but I 16 

appreciate you all moving our sector separation initiative 17 

forward. 18 

 19 

I believe being able to explore what a separate ACL for the 20 

charter for-hire industry looks like may well provide my 21 

business a better business model and I would love to see what 22 

that looks like.  I encourage the council tomorrow to please 23 

vote for moving that scoping document ahead. 24 

 25 

Also, I also support a days at sea program and I also like the 26 

idea of an exempted fishing permit.  It might work well for the 27 

headboat and be something that a cooperative charterboat 28 

operation might be able to use as well. 29 

 30 

Last year at this time, and this is the personal part of this 31 

thing that I debated on sharing with you, but I will.  In April 32 

of last year in Orange Beach, you all voted to separate 33 

amberjack from the red snapper.  I had twenty-one days booked 34 

with my old customers that I’ve carried for years. 35 

 36 

When I got home and told them the news that we would not be able 37 

to harvest amberjack and red snapper in the same trip as well as 38 

gag grouper, and this is for June alone, I had eighteen 39 

cancellations out of twenty-one days.  That was unbelievable and 40 

I had to start all over. 41 

 42 

I had to reduce my price by $25.00 an hour just to land on my 43 

feet so I could find a place to charge for a June snapper 44 

season, just to catch our two red snapper.  It worked out okay 45 

and it wasn’t great.  We’re rebuilding our business and I have 46 

to say that I support the amberjack status quo right now, 47 

because it gives us a fall fish for the fall season. 48 
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 1 

We had a great gag grouper fishery last fall.  The weather was 2 

horrible, but we got to fish and we went fishing and there was 3 

not one trip that I took that I did not catch my limit of gags 4 

and jacks, which makes for a really nice catch of fish. 5 

 6 

Our average customer number is between eight and ten passengers 7 

and although the weather was horrible, it was good fishing and 8 

that’s what my business is all about and so I appreciate this 9 

time and it’s good to see everybody and I wish you well. 10 

 11 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you, Billy?  Any questions for Billy?  Mike 12 

Colby, followed by Tom Hilton. 13 

 14 

MR. MIKE COLBY:  Thank you for entertaining my comments.  I am 15 

Mike Colby from Clearwater, Florida, owner/operator of Double 16 

Hook Charters, President of the Clearwater Marine Association 17 

and the Board of Directors for the Charter Fishermen’s 18 

Association. 19 

 20 

One of the problems I have with informing a smaller association 21 

like mine is they always ask you questions a lot and they want 22 

things to move real quick and so what I told them in regards to 23 

this council meeting was that what we’re doing here hopefully is 24 

we’re setting the table for the main course and the main course 25 

is a separate fishery management plan for charter for-hire 26 

businesses. 27 

 28 

Setting the table, I explained to them, is moving along with a 29 

scoping amendment process on the issue of sector separation and 30 

sector allocation. 31 

 32 

I think that there is great advantage in doing this, regardless 33 

of what side of the fence you’re on in this issue.  Bringing all 34 

of the nuts and bolts of a sector split in the federal 35 

recreational fishery, bringing that to the light of day and 36 

getting it up into a debatable, rigorous debate of the issues, 37 

which will do several things for us. 38 

 39 

It will stop the speculation of what the merits of a program 40 

like this may or may not be.  Nobody has to hide behind their 41 

computers or nobody has to mischaracterize what sector 42 

separation is or isn’t. 43 

 44 

Similar to any issue sometimes when it hangs around too long, 45 

you start getting things that -- If you say something long 46 

enough, it’s believable and so I think there’s great advantage 47 

in having a full, rigorous debate in this. 48 
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 1 

We could wrap together the challenges of data collection and the 2 

headboat IFQ pilots, the days at sea.  All of these issues can 3 

come together and particularly the most challenging one is the 4 

historical allocation, the sector allocation issue, but we can 5 

all have a debate and put that together. 6 

 7 

The data collection issue is interesting.  Yesterday at the 8 

roundtable, there were some comments made about data collection 9 

and I fully believe that as we move forward with the new 10 

advances in MRIP and iSnapper -- There’s all kinds of tools out 11 

there ready for us that our operators know will be mandated to 12 

use. 13 

 14 

I’ve talked with the Snook and Game Fish Foundation.  I’ve 15 

talked to their board of directors two or three times and they 16 

have an interesting program.  I don’t know if it will work or 17 

not, but it’s all part of the process of moving forward with a 18 

good, rigorous debate about sector separation. 19 

 20 

If a year or a year-and-a-half from now, if nobody on this 21 

council can wrap their arms around that and find a way to make a 22 

separate FMP work, then vote it down.  Just vote it down, but 23 

give it a chance.  Give the process a chance to work through.  24 

If it is voted down, somebody tell me where I go from here.  25 

Tell me what I can do and tell our operators where we go from 26 

here.  Thank you. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Tom Hilton, to be 29 

followed by Kenny Bleakney. 30 

 31 

MR. TOM HILTON:  Hi, council.  This is Tom Hilton and thank you 32 

for letting me talk today.  Mr. Abele, you asked a person back 33 

here what could the council do to help with the removal of the 34 

rigs and I believe if this council could move forward and 35 

declare the ecosystems that have been built around these older 36 

rigs that are twenty to forty or fifty years old as essential 37 

fish habitat, that would force the hand of the federal 38 

government to halt the destruction of these very important 39 

structures to all of us. 40 

 41 

I would like to discuss the two pilot programs.  I believe that 42 

the purpose of both of these is to implement catch shares into 43 

the recreational sector.  All of the Gulf governors a while back 44 

wrote a letter to the Secretary of Commerce stating their 45 

opposition to catch shares in the recreational sector. 46 

 47 

I believe all the Governors are responsible for appointing you 48 
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all and they don’t really come in and micromanage the fisheries 1 

management, but if they find a subject that is important enough 2 

for them to write a letter and make a united stand upon, I think 3 

it’s important for you to take heed of who the people that are 4 

appointing you to your position are wanting you all to do. 5 

 6 

I believe the headboat IFQ pilot is totally illegal, as it 7 

promotes the intersector trading.  The law is very clear that 8 

any catch share program would require a referendum and approval 9 

by two-thirds of the headboat permit holders. 10 

 11 

The council and the agency was given, last April, signed, 12 

notarized affidavits from about 75 percent of all the headboat 13 

operator owners from Texas to Alabama stating their adamant 14 

opposition of any type of IFQ implementation in the Gulf, 15 

whether it’s pilot or not pilot. 16 

 17 

That’s very clear if there’s going to be a referendum, then you 18 

all you need to do it prior to the implementation of this.  19 

Ignoring this data, so much for the best available information, 20 

right?  So much for the rule of law.  Thank you so much. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Tom.  Next up is Kenny Bleakney, to 23 

be followed by Robert Peel. 24 

 25 

MR. KENNY BLEAKNEY:  Hi, guys.  My name is Captain Kenny 26 

Bleakney with Laser Marine in Galveston, Texas and I’ll make 27 

this as short as I can.  I’ve been in the boat business for 28 

thirty years and I’ve got a little different hat than most 29 

everybody in here. 30 

 31 

My main goal in life is to fix and sell boats, but with 32 

hurricanes and four-dollar-a-gallon gasoline, that’s pretty hard 33 

to do and when you ask a man to buy a three-or-four-hundred-34 

thousand-dollar boat to go fishing to catch two fish, where he 35 

can fish when he’s told to fish, is really not right. 36 

 37 

If your boat breaks -- For instance, I have a customer who is a 38 

commercial captain and his boat broke on June the 5th and it was 39 

perfectly maintained and it just happened.  Everything breaks 40 

and his boat broke on June the 5th and it was three weeks before 41 

his boat was fixed and so does that man get to fish an extra 42 

three weeks?  No, he’s just out and he’s out several thousand 43 

dollars.  What I would like to do is see the regulations 44 

separated from the charter for-hire versus recreational.  45 

Thanks.  Any questions? 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Kenny.  Next up is Robert Peel, to be 48 
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followed by L.G. Boyd. 1 

 2 

MR. ROBERT PEEL:  Good afternoon.  My name is Robert Peel and 3 

I’m a charterboat captain out of Port O’Connor, Texas.  It’s a 4 

little small town and I’m going to make it pretty short. 5 

 6 

My charterboat business mainly prevails in the summertime, 7 

because there’s not enough business out there for me to provide 8 

for my family.  It’s gotten so small in the last few years that 9 

it’s even difficult to pay for my storage for my boats.  I have 10 

a storage building and a slip for my boat. 11 

 12 

The income monies there is very, very minimal.  I advertise hard 13 

and I have repeat customers every year, but every year we seem 14 

to lose one and it’s like everybody says.  The season is just 15 

shorter and shorter and shorter and so what do you do? 16 

 17 

I do support the separation.  I think really you guys have 18 

already separated the charterboat industry from the primary just 19 

your everyday average fisherman anyway.  I think you should give 20 

us the opportunity to move forward with that program and as far 21 

as the amberjack, I’m kind of on the fence on that one. 22 

 23 

I personally feel like if you were going to leave the season 24 

open for a longer fish, my personal opinion is that I would be 25 

more in support of that, but if you was going to close the 26 

season and extend the length of the fish, I would be opposed.  27 

Thank you. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Robert.  Next up is L.G. Boyd, to be 30 

followed by Jimmy Garner. 31 

 32 

MR. L.G. BOYD:  Hello.  My name is L.G. Boyd and I’m a 33 

charterboat captain out of Galveston, Texas and I would like to 34 

see sector separation, just where we can fish when we want to.  35 

I also support the headboat test program and would like to see 36 

the amberjack stay the way that they are.  Thank you. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, L.G.  Next up is Jimmy Garner, to be 39 

followed by Colby Rochell. 40 

 41 

MR. JIMMY GARNER:  My name is Jimmy Garner and I run and operate 42 

three permitted boats out of Galveston and I can only talk about 43 

Galveston.  I think you all are doing a wonderful job.  44 

Everybody up here is moaning and groaning, but I have never seen 45 

the snapper like they are out of Galveston.  If a man can’t go 46 

fishing and catch fifteen to twenty-five-pound snapper, then he 47 

can’t fish.  48 
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 1 

As a problem -- Fishing is great.  You all have done a great job 2 

and you’ve brought the management up, but this is the United 3 

States and you’ve got the President and you’ve got the federal 4 

government and you’ve got the state government and you’ve got 5 

the city government. 6 

 7 

You can only do so much and you’ve done your part and you’ve 8 

said here’s the fish and here’s the fish you can catch and catch 9 

them and that’s all we’re asking to do.  We’re listening to you 10 

and we’ve done everything and you’re doing a great job, but if 11 

you will let us take the allotment of fish that you’re willing 12 

to give us -- We’re not asking for anything else, but just the 13 

fish that you’re going to give us, then let us regulate it. 14 

 15 

I guarantee you as a charter business that we’re going to 16 

regulate it, because we’re there every day.  If one of us is 17 

trying to do something wrong, they’re going to get stopped, 18 

where you can’t stop us. 19 

 20 

The outlaws are out there and they’re going to be out there and 21 

there’s nothing none of us can do about it.  The game wardens do 22 

all they can, but the people are out there every day poaching 23 

the fish, but if you let us regulate it, where we have to record 24 

every fish that we bring in that you said we can have, then the 25 

outlaws are going to get caught, because they’re not going to be 26 

monitored and they’re going to get caught with the fish and 27 

that’s all we’re asking.  All we’re asking is for an opportunity 28 

to do what you’ve asked us to do and thank you. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jimmy.  Next up is Colby Rochell, 31 

followed by Mark Holland. 32 

 33 

MR. COLBY ROCHELL:  Good afternoon.  My name is Colby Rochell 34 

and I am a charterboat captain and own and operate Gulf Coast 35 

Marina and Charters in Surfside Beach.  I’ve been in the marina 36 

business for several years, but this will only be my second 37 

season in the charter business. 38 

 39 

This is my first council meeting and so I’ve had the opportunity 40 

to meet a lot of people that share my passion for the industry.  41 

I see the majority of these guys have been doing this a long 42 

time and some of them longer than I’ve been alive and so when I 43 

see them concerned about their future in this business, it 44 

doesn’t make me very optimistic about mine. 45 

 46 

If these guys, with all their knowledge and all their 47 

experience, are struggling, how can I expect to start a charter 48 
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business from scratch and ever expect to succeed? 1 

 2 

As I said earlier, I also own and operate a dry stack marina, 3 

which keeps me from the luxury of getting to fish much during 4 

snapper season and so it would be very beneficial to myself to 5 

have the privilege of choosing when to fish and even more so, 6 

the ability to run my business how it best suits me. 7 

 8 

I beg the council to please move sector separation through 9 

scoping and set us aside our allocation to manage however it 10 

best suits our needs.  I would also like the council to move 11 

forward with the headboat pilot program, the headboat 12 

cooperative, and the days at sea program. 13 

 14 

I’ve heard testimony from several people here this week that 15 

started pushing these issues four and five years ago and some of 16 

them a whole lot longer than that.  I personally don’t have five 17 

years to see whether or not my business is going to make it.  I 18 

need it to succeed immediately. 19 

 20 

Furthermore, I just don’t like the idea of failing in this 21 

business before I even have the chance to get started.  Thank 22 

you for your time. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Colby.  Next up is Mark Holland, to 25 

be followed by Mike Jennings. 26 

 27 

MR. MARK HOLLAND:  Good evening, everybody.  I talk kind of loud 28 

and so I excuse myself if I get loud on you.  My name is Mark 29 

Holland and I’m the owner and operator of Matagorda Sportfishing 30 

in Matagorda, Texas. 31 

 32 

I’ve fished the waters of the Gulf of Mexico for about fifteen 33 

years.  I’ve been a charterboat operator or captain for about 34 

ten years now.  Ladies and gentlemen, our charter industry is in 35 

trouble. 36 

 37 

There have been numerous charter businesses that have gone out 38 

of business recently because our current system is not working 39 

for us.  Quickway Charters out of Port O’Connor, Texas is out of 40 

business.  That’s a two-boat charter business out of business 41 

and we need help. 42 

 43 

We need a separate allocation of fish and we need it now, before 44 

more of us will be forced out of business.  We don’t want more 45 

fish, but we want our fair share of the fish.  That’s what we 46 

want and we will make this system work, with your help. 47 

 48 
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I also would like to show my support for the headboat 1 

cooperative program that’s been proposed here.  You know with 2 

the forty-day season that is proposed before the council now, it 3 

could be a dangerous situation for the charterboat industry. 4 

 5 

June is historically a windy month and rough.  If we know we 6 

have forty days to take people snapper fishing, we may go on 7 

days that are not particularly good days to go, but it’s the 8 

only day we have and so we have to go.  That puts our business 9 

and our people that we take offshore fishing and possibly puts 10 

them at risk.  We might have had ten days last year, good days, 11 

to fish and so keep that in mind also, please. 12 

 13 

I also would like to show my support for the thirty-inch fork 14 

for amberjack.  I think what you have now is working good and I 15 

would like to support the status quo.  It works good for us. 16 

 17 

Our customers do not own their own boats.  They rely on us to 18 

take them fishing.  These boats, the equipment that we have to 19 

have, the permits that we have, cost a lot of money and your 20 

average citizen cannot afford that and so therefore, they rely 21 

on us to take them fishing to be able to enjoy the resource that 22 

we have here. 23 

 24 

Also, I would like to show my support for the Rigs to Reef 25 

Program.  Out of Matagorda, Texas, we have lost several rigs 26 

here in the last few years, good rigs and good habitat.  We need 27 

to do something to help these rigs stay in place to support our 28 

fishery also.  That’s all I have and I would like to thank you 29 

for this opportunity to give testimony.  Thank you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mark.  We have a question for you, 32 

Mark. 33 

 34 

MR. BOYD:  You mentioned Port O’Connor and where did you say 35 

that you’re chartering out of? 36 

 37 

MR. HOLLAND:  Mine is out of Matagorda, Texas. 38 

 39 

MR. BOYD:  Out of Matagorda? 40 

 41 

MR. HOLLAND:  Yes, sir.  Port O’Connor is, as the crow flies, 42 

it’s about twenty miles from me, down south. 43 

 44 

MR. BOYD:  You’re a reef fish holder, permit holder? 45 

 46 

MR. HOLLAND:  Yes, I’m a permit holder, yes. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mark.  Next up is Mike Jennings and I 1 

apologize and I can’t read the last name, but it looks like it’s 2 

John Walker from Pasadena, Texas that will be next up. 3 

 4 

MR. MIKE JENNINGS:  Hello.  My name is Mike Jennings and I’m a 5 

charterboat owner and hunting and fishing outfitter out of 6 

Freeport, Texas.  I have two permitted charterboats that 7 

currently fish in the EEZ and I’m also the vice president of the 8 

Charter Fishermen’s Association. 9 

 10 

As an association, we’ve got just a few topics today.  We would 11 

like to see the council move forward on several of the proposals 12 

that are at your feet right now and that’s the headboat IFQ 13 

pilot program.   14 

 15 

I would like to see the council explore that and delve into it a 16 

little further and if it works for us, it works for us and if it 17 

doesn’t, it’s not something we’re going to be interested in, but 18 

I don’t think those are decisions that can be made now, without 19 

further exploration. 20 

 21 

The days at sea pilot program, we would like to see the council 22 

not just kill it and look into it a little further.  I 23 

understand that the council sees some problems with that and we 24 

would like to know what the problems are and is there something 25 

that the industry can do to look into what those individual 26 

problems may be? 27 

 28 

The headboat cooperative, I think that that group brought to 29 

this council a very well thought out proposal and it shows some 30 

merit and I would like to see the council’s input and the 31 

public’s input on that as well. 32 

 33 

As an association, we ask for you all to leave the amberjacks 34 

alone.  We support the thirty-inch fork limit and the June and 35 

July closure.  It seemed to work well for the majority of our 36 

members last year and on a personal note, as an association we 37 

would like to see the council move sector separation into 38 

scoping.  Let’s move forward with it and let’s flesh this thing 39 

out and let’s give it an opportunity to really see what it’s 40 

about. 41 

 42 

On a personal note, I hear the comment that we don’t need to do 43 

any of this and that it’s just better data, better data, better 44 

data.  I am still confused as to whether the better data is 45 

going to get us more fishing days or whether it’s going to show 46 

we’re already catching more fish than we ever thought we were 47 

catching. 48 
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 1 

I’m going to be overly simplistic for a moment and say let’s say 2 

that the better data comes back as a stock assessment and we get 3 

twice the quota and so that gives us twice the season and I 4 

understand weather days and other things factor in there, but as 5 

I said, I’m being overly simplistic. 6 

 7 

If it gives us twice the season and you all give us twice the 8 

days, given our ability to not overfish this fishery and you 9 

give us twice the days -- Do we have overfish it the first year 10 

and be right back in the same boat we are right now?  I think 11 

it’s a very distinct possibility. 12 

 13 

What that tells me is that the management plan that we’re 14 

fishing under currently is as much a failure as the data.  I 15 

think the things go hand-in-hand and I think it’s time that we 16 

kind of stop paying attention and sitting on our laurels and 17 

looking at a management system that has failed us since 18 

Amendment 1 and start looking at some options and some 19 

opportunities. 20 

 21 

If they are options that won’t fit this industry and won’t fit 22 

this fishery, let’s toss them aside and look at another one, but 23 

just sitting here and arguing over better data and kicking this 24 

can down the road is not serving any of us.  Thank you very 25 

much.  I see my light is red and I will step down.  Thank you, 26 

all. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  We appreciate it.  John from 29 

Pasadena, Texas, to be followed by Bill Platt. 30 

 31 

MR. JOHN WALKER:  My name is Johnny Walker and I’m a charterboat 32 

captain out of Galveston, Texas.  I’ve been in the charter 33 

fishery for about twenty-five years and I’m also in the 34 

commercial IFQ fishery and I’ve been doing that for about 35 

eighteen years. 36 

 37 

I’m here because at the present rate, the charter for-hire 38 

industry is heading for collapse.  In the last ten years, I’ve 39 

seen, on my dock alone -- There’s four docks in Galveston and 40 

I’ve seen it go from thirty charterboats to six, to six 41 

charterboats. 42 

 43 

At this rate, in the next couple of years there’s not going to 44 

be any charter fishery and it’s going to be over and within the 45 

last few years, it’s been shortened so many days that there’s no 46 

way to sustain a viable business.  There’s just no way.  Even 47 

this year alone, I’ve got customers calling me and we don’t even 48 
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know if we’re going to get the forty days and so how do you book 1 

your trips?   2 

 3 

We’re confined to two months now and there is no possible way.  4 

It’s like asking you guys to make your living in two months and 5 

there’s just no way it can happen. 6 

 7 

I feel with a separate ACL that the charter for-hire sector can 8 

better manage our little piece of the pie and with non-9 

compatibility on the recreational side, I don’t think we have 10 

time to wait.  We can’t wait four or five years for those guys 11 

to get their ducks in order. 12 

 13 

Sector separation is a must, in my mind.  Flexibility within the 14 

program, it just breeds tremendous opportunities, like through 15 

better data acquisition, accountability measures, and just plain 16 

better management. 17 

 18 

Whether it’s a days at sea pilot program, but whatever you guys 19 

and us as fishermen can work out -- That’s the neat thing about 20 

this program, is it lets you all and us work together and we can 21 

mold this thing to where it’s good for all parties and I -- 22 

Please implement this program, because without it, we’re going 23 

to go broke and I just -- That’s all I have to say and thank 24 

you. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, John.  Next up is Bill Platt, to be 27 

followed by Jeff Gerrans. 28 

 29 

MR. BILL PLATT:  Hello, y’all.  My name is Bill Platt and I’m a 30 

charterboat captain and I’ve been a captain for fifteen years.  31 

I also own a marine electronics business and I professionally 32 

fish tournaments and I’m also a boat rep. 33 

 34 

I tell people all that stuff and they’re like why do you do so 35 

much and it’s because I cannot make it as a charterboat captain.  36 

I just can’t.  Look how many days we get and look how many days 37 

year after year after year and I don’t even know if I’m going to 38 

get to book any trips this year.  I have no idea and so I’ve got 39 

rely on other things, other means, to support my family. 40 

 41 

Of course, I’m going to say I’m for a separate allocation for 42 

charter for-hire.  I need to know that I can have so many days 43 

next year that I can book trips and I can book them and then 44 

each year I can do that over and over, I hope. 45 

 46 

We’re a dying breed.  I’ve been in and out of this and fishing 47 

is my life.  I’ve been doing it since I was a little boy and 48 
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that’s all I know and so please don’t put me out of business.  I 1 

want to stay in the charterboat business and I want to push for 2 

the sector separation.  Give us our own allocation and let us go 3 

forward and police this thing like the commercial people did and 4 

look how many fish there are now. 5 

 6 

I don’t think we have any more time to do it and I think we need 7 

to do it now and so push this issue through and keep us in 8 

business and that’s all I’ve got to say and thank y’all. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I have a question for you, Bill.  11 

 12 

DR. DANA:  Where are you from, Bill? 13 

 14 

MR. PLATT:  Galveston, Texas. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bill.  Next up is Jeff Gerrans, to be 17 

followed by Jonathan Jenkins. 18 

 19 

MR. JEFF GERRANS:  My name is Jeff Gerrans and I’m a charterboat 20 

captain from Matagorda, Texas.  I’ve been a charterboat captain 21 

since 1999.  I started fishing out of Matagorda in 2008. 22 

 23 

I don’t want to get up here and sound like a broken record and 24 

say the same things as everybody else, because I think we all 25 

have the same similar concerns, but I’m very concerned about the 26 

future of my charter business in the current system as it’s 27 

working now. 28 

 29 

Take, for instance, last year and the forty-day season.  As one 30 

other gentleman stated, I think we had -- Down here, the part of 31 

Texas that we fish, we had ten to twelve safe, fishable days and 32 

when you’re trying to make a living fishing for red snapper and 33 

when you only have twelve days of doing it, it’s really hard to 34 

do. 35 

 36 

We also have a big problem with illegal charters in Matagorda.  37 

I take customers fishing when snapper season is closed and with 38 

the Texas law and a state fishery, I’ll be thirty or forty miles 39 

offshore fishing next to other boats and customers will ask me 40 

why they’re keeping their red snapper and I’ll say, I don’t 41 

know, I don’t know why they’re keeping their red snapper and 42 

they’re not supposed to be able to keep the red snapper. 43 

 44 

We get back to the dock and the same boat pulls up to the dock 45 

and they unload fifteen and twenty-pound red snapper, four per 46 

person, and there’s seven or eight people on the boat and my 47 

customers why to know why they’re doing that and we’re paying 48 
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you $1,500 to go fishing and they’re keeping all these fish. 1 

 2 

I tell them they’re poachers and they’re illegal and where’s the 3 

game wardens and where’s the law to take care of this and I tell 4 

them they can’t enforce all this.  There’s not the resources to 5 

enforce it. 6 

 7 

It makes it hard for a business guy to go out there and explain 8 

this to customers and then you start losing customers because 9 

they want to go fishing and that’s all they care about.  99 10 

percent of the people in this country are recreational anglers 11 

and the 1 percent of recreational anglers that own boats, the 12 

other 99 percent rely on us to go fishing. 13 

 14 

When they ask us how come we can’t keep those fish, it’s really 15 

hard to explain and so then they go out and find other charter 16 

captains that don’t have permits, that don’t follow the laws, 17 

that blatantly abuse the law and it’s getting really tough for 18 

us guys. 19 

 20 

If we could implement sector separation and have forty days or 21 

whatever you guys choose for us to fish a year and are able to 22 

fish on those forty days when the weather is good and when it’s 23 

safe for us to go and when we have customers to go, it just 24 

makes a lot of sense and we’re not asking for any more days than 25 

we have now, but just let us go when we want to go.  Thank you. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Jeff.  Next up is Jonathan Jenkins, 28 

to be followed by John Kantowski.  Is Jonathan Jenkins in the 29 

room? 30 

 31 

MR. JONATHAN JENKINS:  Good afternoon, guys.  I’m Jonathan 32 

Jenkins from Get-Up Charters out of Galveston.  A couple of 33 

things I would like to make light of is the sector separation 34 

definitely helps us out, especially when the weather gets real 35 

bad. 36 

 37 

I’ve done a lot of fishing, primarily mostly northern east coast 38 

and Gulf of Mexico, and have worked in the oil fields for seven 39 

years.  There’s a lot of times in the Gulf of Mexico that the 40 

water, especially around hurricane season, will get extremely 41 

rough. 42 

 43 

Now, being ex-Coast Guard, it’s quite a risk to take people out 44 

in gale force winds, like, speaking of which, this Saturday.  45 

We’re supposed to be having gale force winds and there’s no 46 

reason why we should put the risk of our lives, our company, and 47 

the risk of other people’s lives for a certain amount of time 48 
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for fishing. 1 

 2 

You only give us a certain amount of time to catch red snapper 3 

and if we did have this sector separation, to where we could 4 

catch red snapper when we wanted to on the nice days, that would 5 

keep people a lot safer and keep the Coast Guard from being 6 

completely overloaded and also to keep everybody from poaching, 7 

because we will have to keep a logbook to tell you the forty 8 

days that we have been fishing and everything. 9 

 10 

As far as the artificial reefs go, for the seven years that I’ve 11 

been a captain in the oil fields, there is quite a plethora of 12 

fish that are out at these oil rigs, from ling to shark to just 13 

about you name it and you can find it there, blackjack, 14 

amberjack, yellowfin, everything. 15 

 16 

To take away these oil rigs, these artificial reefs that have 17 

been there thirty or forty or fifty years, you might as well go 18 

home and write yourself a ticket for killing fish.  That’s truly 19 

how I feel about it, because to destroy these habitats, where 20 

these fish live, it’s going to destroy fishing, period, and 21 

that’s pretty much all I have to say and thank you. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:   Thank you, Jonathan.  Next up is John 24 

Kantowski, to be followed by Scott Hickman. 25 

 26 

MR. JOHN KANTOWSKI:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.  My 27 

name is John Kantowski and I’m a charterboat captain out of 28 

Galveston, Texas.  Folks, my business is in trouble.  The last 29 

few years, I’ve seen a steady decline.  We’re all in an 30 

immediate need of rapidly pushing through sector separation and 31 

an ACL for our sector. 32 

 33 

As a professional fisherman, I support the headboat co-op and 34 

the exempted fishing permit, along with taking the measures to 35 

establish essential fish habitats that already exist and are 36 

being destroyed in the Gulf of Mexico, which is reducing our 37 

biomass.  I also support the amberjack status quo and thank you. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, John.  Next up is Scott Hickman, to 40 

be followed by Steve Tomeny. 41 

 42 

MR. SCOTT HICKMAN:  Mr. Chairman and Gulf Council, thanks for 43 

coming to Texas and bringing us the first decent rain we’ve had 44 

in three years.  I will make it real short. 45 

 46 

I support essential fish habitat for artificial reefing and 47 

let’s try to get that fast-tracked and we think that will make a 48 
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difference, especially in our stock assessments, and amberjacks, 1 

the current guidelines are working for everybody in the industry 2 

that I’ve talked to, a thirty-inch fork and June and July 3 

closed. 4 

 5 

I support the headboat cooperative.  We need to make some 6 

drastic changes in the way we run the charter for-hire industry 7 

and let’s test some things and let’s see if they work.  Let’s 8 

see if they have merit. 9 

 10 

iSnapper or electronic logbooks for the fleet, for the charter 11 

fleet, sooner than later.  Let’s get that moving on and let’s 12 

fast-track it.   13 

 14 

We absolutely need a business model, whatever that business 15 

model is, but without moving through the scoping process, where 16 

we can flesh some of these things out, especially some type of 17 

separate allocation, allocation issues in general, it’s going to 18 

bring a lot of things to discussion and something good will come 19 

from it and let’s move forward.  Thank you. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Scott.  Next up is Steve Tomeny, to 22 

be followed by Bill Tucker. 23 

 24 

MR. STEVE TOMENY:  Hi, everyone.  I’m Steve Tomeny and I own and 25 

operate three charter/headboats in Port Fourchon, Louisiana.  I 26 

have owned these charterboats -- I’ve been in the charterboat 27 

business for about thirty years and my business probably reached 28 

a peak about ten or twelve years ago. 29 

 30 

I had four sixty-five footers and about fifteen employees and 31 

right now, I have three boats and myself and one permanent 32 

deckhand a part-time captain and I’m going to have to hire a 33 

deckhand for the summer and so it’s pretty slow, when you have 34 

these boats just sitting at the dock. 35 

 36 

I am one of the participants or want to be one of the 37 

participants in the IFQ pilot program or not IFQ, but in the 38 

headboat pilot program.  I think it will give us some 39 

flexibility and kind of hitting on the thing that everybody 40 

says.  This little narrow window that you have to make your 41 

living is just a tough way to do it.   42 

 43 

I would also like to see a separate and accountable fisheries 44 

management plan or sector separation, however we want to call 45 

it, but we’re moving that -- I would like to see that move along 46 

and I’ve kind of always been in that mode and I think it will 47 

help the charter for-hire industry and it’s long overdue. 48 
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 1 

I’m also a commercial IFQ shareholder and a member of the 2 

Shareholder’s Alliance.  I would like to see some movement 3 

forward on Amendment 33.  I was a little not really troubled, 4 

but confused with the presentation on the grouper allocation 5 

yesterday. 6 

 7 

I am very much like I heard the council members say, apples and 8 

apples.  I got to hear something that makes a little more sense, 9 

but I just couldn’t fly with that yesterday.  I just had a hard 10 

time gripping it and so I want to thank you for letting us voice 11 

our opinions up here and that’s about all I have for today. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Steve.  Next up is Bill Tucker, to be 14 

followed by Jamie Pinter. 15 

 16 

MR. BILL TUCKER:  My name is Bill Tucker and I’m a commercial 17 

fisherman out of Clearwater, Florida.  I fish out of Clearwater, 18 

but I live in Dunedin and I’m also a member of the Shareholder’s 19 

Alliance and I have several comments. 20 

 21 

On the red snapper five-year review, the snapper IFQ has met its 22 

objectives of reducing overcapacity and controlling effort of 23 

reducing discards and also establishing a year-round season.  24 

It’s been a success and we need to consider these IFQ regimens 25 

for some of the other remaining reef fish species. 26 

 27 

On the king mackerel sale and permit provisions, there’s a group 28 

of fishermen -- Most of the guys in our area, we have king 29 

mackerel permits and we use them to land the limited amounts of 30 

king mackerel we catch as bycatch.  In the fisheries, I see the 31 

alternatives in this document and some of them are latent 32 

permits.  Our permits aren’t latent.  They are limited use and I 33 

understand the elimination of latent permits.  The idea there is 34 

to control effort and it’s to control effort shifting. 35 

 36 

If you’re looking to control effort shifting, you should be 37 

considering IFQs.  It allows the small participants to remain 38 

small without adding effort while also allowing people to catch 39 

more fish, but not adding total effort, but by shifting effort 40 

within the fishery. 41 

 42 

On the snapper overage adjustments, I think there should be 43 

payback provisions for overruns in the recreational quota.  I 44 

support the development of separate quotas for the private and 45 

the for-hire sectors and I think we should hold each sector 46 

accountable for staying within their respective quotas. 47 

 48 
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I support the headboat exempted fishing permit application and 1 

the two pilot programs.  I think we ought to conduct the 2 

experiment and see what the conclusion is.  Let’s not jump to 3 

conclusions and let’s actually do the experiment. 4 

 5 

On Amendment 28 and the Agar/Carter study, I think we need to 6 

keep in mind that the economists themselves recognize that the 7 

stated willingness to pay and the amount a fisherman is actually 8 

willing to pay are very different, but I think an allocation 9 

policy that uses a market mechanism will reflect the true and 10 

changing values of access to fish much more accurately than a 11 

computer model. 12 

 13 

We should not ignore the authors’ caveats that an effective 14 

framework to optimally allocate groupers does not exist and only 15 

the marketplace does that.  Thank you. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bill.  Next up is Jamie Pinter, to be 18 

followed by Kevin DeGough.  Mr. Pinter is not here and in that 19 

case, Kevin DeGough, to be followed by Tom Marvel. 20 

 21 

MR. KEVIN DEGOUGH:  My name is Kevin DeGough and I’m currently a 22 

commercial fisherman out of Port Aransas, Texas and I believe in 23 

the sector separation for the charter for-hire.  I’ve run oil 24 

field boats and all kinds of other boats, charterboats, but if 25 

they didn’t have the IFQ quota system, where we could choose our 26 

days to go fishing right now, I wouldn’t be in the commercial 27 

business. 28 

 29 

For the charter for-hire not to be able to pick their days, then 30 

they’re just risking the liability of taking people out in 31 

questionable weather.   32 

 33 

I worked the oil fields for twenty years and I can’t imagine why 34 

you would let them take an artificial reef and remove it.  It 35 

seems like if they put the reef in, then it ought to stay there.  36 

It’s a fish habitat and it shouldn’t be removed. 37 

 38 

They talk about the dead zone coming out of the Mississippi 39 

River and in the oil fields, we catch fish at the rigs all the 40 

time in the dead zone and I guess that’s it.  Thank you. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Kevin.  Next up is Tom Marvel, to be 43 

followed by David Krebs. 44 

 45 

MR. TOM MARVEL:  I ask that you switch gears for a second.  I 46 

thought I was under Other Business.  My name is Tom Marvel and 47 

I’m a commercial and charterboat fisherman.  I’ve come on behalf 48 
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of the charterboats for this meeting from Naples in southwest 1 

Florida. 2 

 3 

I ask that the council consider dropping the February and March 4 

total shallow-water grouper closure.  This closure occurs at the 5 

height of our charter season and causes obvious economic 6 

hardship and is not accomplishing its goals. 7 

 8 

The original goal was, I believe, to protect spawning gags from 9 

release mortality that results from fishing for red grouper.  10 

Gags do not spawn in the depths of water that the vast majority 11 

of our charter trips are run and I’m speaking about the 12 

southeast Gulf of Mexico, off of the southwest Florida coast. 13 

 14 

Furthermore, with all grouper off the table, meaning when you 15 

prohibit any grouper harvest, the mix of fish that we’re left to 16 

target, which would be mangrove snappers, cobia, and amberjack, 17 

that mix occurs on habitat, on bottom, on the type of bottom 18 

that is almost considered total gag bottom.  If someone asked 19 

you to go gag fishing, that is the type of bottom you would 20 

target.  The mangroves and gags overlap tremendously. 21 

 22 

With red grouper open, we would be targeting red grouper, which 23 

would be a different type of bottom, flat rock with solution 24 

holes, and there is gag overlap on that bottom, but it is much, 25 

much less than the bottom we were currently fishing during the 26 

grouper closure. 27 

 28 

We would have much, much less interaction with gag and I believe 29 

we’re actually doing more harm to gag with the proposals the way 30 

you have it set up now.  31 

 32 

As an aside, I encourage the council, with these two amendments, 33 

19 and 20, to pursue IFQs for kingfish as opposed to the pile of 34 

micromanagement stuff that we have before us, and in reference 35 

to the micromanagement stuff that I don’t support, I don’t 36 

support changing the boundaries in Amendment 20 and your 37 

discussion on latent permits and the easiest way to approach 38 

that, and it was brought up by Kay and others, is to just use 39 

zero as eliminating permits and not get into whether 5,000 or 40 

3,000 or the thresholds.  It’s a nasty, nasty place to be, but 41 

zero changes the discussion significantly.  It represents a 42 

whole other class.  Thank you very much. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Tom.  We have a question for you. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  Tom, when you need to fish red grouper in 47 

February and March, what depths do you need to fish them at? 48 
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 1 

MR. MARVEL:  We’re not and so you mean hypothetically? 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  Hypothetically. 4 

 5 

MR. MARVEL:  The charter fleet, you’re limited by your fuel and 6 

the day you have and so if it’s a full-day charter, you have 7 

nine hours to work with and thirty miles is the maximum range we 8 

have and we would be in seventy feet of water or less. 9 

 10 

I would venture a guess that from Marco Island to Boca Grande 11 

and I can’t speak north of that, because I just don’t live 12 

there, but I would even take a guess that further north that 95 13 

percent of the six-pack charter trips, full-day trips, are run 14 

inside of eighty foot of water. 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  If we eliminated that closure at depths inside of 17 

twenty fathoms or thirty fathoms, that would work? 18 

 19 

MR. MARVEL:  That would work, yes.  The people that would be 20 

impacted, obviously, would be overnight trips and like the big 21 

headboats out of Madeira Beach.  They, I’m sure, run two-night 22 

trips, but as it is now, they’re still running it and having to 23 

probably fish amberjack and mangos. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Tom.  Next up is David Krebs, to be 26 

followed by Werner Wieboldt. 27 

 28 

MR. DAVID KREBS:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and council.  My 29 

name is David Krebs and I’m the President of the Shareholder’s 30 

Alliance.  I own Ariel Seafoods in Destin, Florida, along with 31 

three commercial fishing boats that are participating in the 32 

reef fish fishery. 33 

 34 

I will begin my comments today with disagreeing with the metrics 35 

that were used in the grouper reallocation model.  I think Jim 36 

Clements couldn’t have said it better and I think the council 37 

pretty much gets that, that we should compare apples to apples. 38 

 39 

Two years ago, the council, two years ago in April, formed a 40 

King Mackerel LAPP AP.  That AP never met, yet we’re sitting 41 

here with Amendment 19 and 20 that went to scoping that we spent 42 

all kinds of money to send out to get input from, of which none 43 

of the stuff makes any sense to any of us that are involved in 44 

the kingfish industry.  I’m very disappointed that that money 45 

has been spent and this advisory panel of stakeholders was never 46 

convened, or even canvassed, to participate in that document for 47 

scoping.   48 
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 1 

The Shareholder’s Alliance does support the headboat pilot 2 

program, the days at sea program.  We support the charter for-3 

hire industry having their own allocation. 4 

 5 

Last year, Ms. Williams asked me to bring vermilion snapper 6 

fishermen to the podium and I think at the Mobile meeting, which 7 

I had to leave to go overseas before public testimony happened, 8 

but I know there were several vermilion fishermen from the 9 

Panhandle area that came and testified and so you’ve also heard 10 

more testimony about the concern of the future vermilion 11 

fishery, as it’s currently being prosecuted. 12 

 13 

Even before the oil spill, you had tracked that the effort was 14 

ramping up from other areas of the Gulf.  This has been a 15 

concern.  I can appreciate the fact that you want to delay 16 

Amendment 33 until June, but I really implore that you keep that 17 

on your agenda, keep it on the radar, to know that if we’re 18 

going to control effort in these fisheries and not have closed 19 

seasons that none of our fishermen that are out there today in 20 

the commercial industry can survive a closed season.  The fish 21 

can’t survive it and we’ve certainly learned that throughout the 22 

1990s.  I think that’s about all I have for today. 23 

 24 

If we’re going to stay with the king mackerel scoping document, 25 

we do need to add the option of a catch share or an IFQ into 26 

that document.  Thank you. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have some questions for you, David. 29 

 30 

DR. DANA:  David, you attended the scoping meeting that we had 31 

in Destin a month ago and part of that scoping meeting had the -32 

- We dealt with the seafood dealer reporting requirements and 33 

both yourself and Chatham Morgan were there. 34 

 35 

In the public comments that were provided us, the overview of 36 

the public comments from that scoping meeting, neither -- At 37 

this point, and I’ve asked that those comments be updated to 38 

reflect what you had said and what Chatham had said, but what is 39 

your -- What is your feeling on the seafood dealer reporting 40 

requirements with electronic reporting, et cetera? 41 

 42 

MR. KREBS:  In Florida, we were under the Louisiana electronic 43 

program well before Florida was and as a company in Florida, I 44 

was really, I think, instrumental in getting Florida to go 45 

electronic.   46 

 47 

It makes perfect sense and I don’t understand how the council or 48 
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the State of Florida can operate under the paper system anymore.  1 

The lag time in just trying to disseminate that information is -2 

- I can’t even imagine it and so we strongly support electronic 3 

reporting. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  David, I wanted to go a little further with what 6 

I asked you to do.  I believe you were asking me about putting 7 

vermilion and some other fish under an IFQ and I said if you 8 

want them, have the fishermen come tell us, because until they 9 

come -- If they don’t come tell us, I’m not going to put it on 10 

the table.  What you’re saying is they did come and tell us that 11 

they wanted us to do that and is that right? 12 

 13 

MR. KREBS:  Yes, ma’am, and that’s my understanding.  By 14 

disclaimer, just for the audience, I launched the Hallelujah 15 

last May and it made its first fishing trip in September.  16 

Captain Carey Hurst, who ran the Nan Baldwin for the previous 17 

five years, is a vermilion fisherman. 18 

 19 

The Hallelujah has zero catch history with it and by me saying 20 

go to catch shares in the vermilion snapper fishery, I’m 21 

screwing myself, because I will have to buy allocation for that 22 

boat to survive.  He catches 100,000 pounds of vermilion a year, 23 

but it is the right thing for vermilion fishermen to do. 24 

 25 

Also, on the king mackerel side, I’ve got two or I might even 26 

have three permits and I don’t have any landings on any of my 27 

king mackerel permits commercially and so this is not a self-28 

benefiting ask that I have, but it’s asking for the industry 29 

that I represent as the president of the Alliance.  Thank you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, David.  Next up is Werner Wieboldt, 32 

to be followed by Buddy Guindon. 33 

 34 

MR. WERNER WIEBOLDT:  Hello, ladies and gentlemen of the Gulf 35 

Council.  My name is Werner Wieboldt and I am from south Texas, 36 

deep south Texas.  Everything has been said here and it’s a 37 

wealth of information. 38 

 39 

All I can say is these pilot programs are well thought out and 40 

should -- These ideas should be pushed through and we need it as 41 

well as the fish and without us and you all, the fish don’t have 42 

a chance and let’s just focus on what we’re here for and let’s 43 

move forward and thank you. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Werner.  Next up is Buddy Guindon, to 46 

be followed by John Schmidt. 47 

 48 
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MR. BUDDY GUINDON:  I’m Buddy Guindon from the Gulf Of Mexico 1 

Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance, a commercial fisherman, fish 2 

house owner, and father and son and all those things. 3 

 4 

One of the reasons I’m here is Amendment 33.  I want to, in my 5 

lifetime, get to a point where we have a 100-percent-fully-6 

accountable fishery and the only way I see the path to that 7 

fully accountable system is through the individual quota system. 8 

 9 

These remaining reef fish, I’m not going to be a big 10 

participant.  I have a bycatch participation on the three 11 

permits that I operate on and so I will get some.   12 

 13 

I won’t say I won’t get any, but if we can’t get Amendment 33 14 

put into law before the expiration of the control date, the date 15 

by which catch history is measured, then the folks that are 16 

fighting this will win the game, that all they want is to take 17 

the catch history of the historical vermilion snapper fishermen 18 

away from them.  What will also happen is I will have my four 19 

boats that I’m operating now fishing for vermilion snapper full 20 

time. 21 

 22 

The next thing is the methodology that was used, it’s not really 23 

necessary.  You’re looking at red snapper coming up on the nine-24 

million-pound TAC, where we said as an organization that we 25 

would be willing to consider reallocation of the red snapper and 26 

make sure the recreational fishery is in a sector-separated, 27 

sector-accountable program, where the measures that are in place 28 

with the commercial fishery now will be in place for them. 29 

 30 

We’re willing to look at those, but you’re talking about gag 31 

right now and 67 percent of the gag is in the recreational 32 

fishery.  They’re in a state of disaster and discards are the 33 

biggest problem. 34 

 35 

You can’t look at changing anything until you fix the problem 36 

that they have now.  Taking fish away from the commercial 37 

fishery will only create more discards.  They already don’t have 38 

enough to cover their normal fishing activity and it’s a 39 

bycatch. 40 

 41 

I want to support the headboat guys in a pilot program to maybe 42 

save their business.  The Williams Partyboats is right down the 43 

street from me and I know their whole family and I would like to 44 

see them stay on the street with me. 45 

 46 

King mackerel went to scoping without convening the AP and I 47 

don’t know why that took place and why you would pick an AP and 48 
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then not use them.  I appreciate all your time and thanks for 1 

all your hard work. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a question for you from Ms. Williams. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Buddy, you and I have talked and in that 6 

conversation, did I understand you to say that you felt like 7 

under these sector quotas that the commercial industry would 8 

probably be willing to not take the increase as the TAC is 9 

raised if it was necessary to allow that small amount to shift 10 

over so that these guys in the for-hire sector, should they need 11 

it, should it give them enough days so that they can be in this 12 

same system, to where they can count for their quota?  Was that 13 

my understanding?  Is that what you were saying? 14 

 15 

MR. GUINDON:  Yes, you heard me very clearly.  Sector separation 16 

and sector accountability, where each group is 100 percent 17 

accountable for their participation in the fishery, whether it 18 

be within their limits or over their limits, but they need to be 19 

the ones responsible to control that and I think that’s been our 20 

organization’s position that once we got to the 9.1 million, 21 

which we’ll probably be to before any of this ever gets to the 22 

table, except for any disaster that may be pending, yes, that’s 23 

something we would very much look forward to participating in. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  Buddy, thanks for your comments.  Just as a 26 

different thought process, and I appreciate your willingness to 27 

give us some of your quota, but would you consider giving up 28 

some of your quota to new entrants into the harvesting sector? 29 

 30 

MR. GUINDON:  That is part of the plan and had we been able to 31 

make our presentation of our five-year review of the red 32 

snapper, you would have heard that portion of the plan presented 33 

to you, but for some reason or other, we got blocked out of 34 

doing that. 35 

 36 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s great and thank you. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Buddy.  Before we get to John 39 

Schmidt, John’s is the last card of folks that have spoken once, 40 

with the exception of Mr. Pinter, who if he is not here, we’ll 41 

be going into folks that have already spoken.   42 

 43 

If there’s anyone in the audience that hasn’t spoken, but would 44 

like to, please get your card in and I will recognize you upon 45 

the completion of John’s talk and failing that, we will go into 46 

cards, and there are some cards here, of folks that have already 47 

spoken and we will address those. 48 
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 1 

MR. JOHN SCHMIDT:  I want to thank the council for this 2 

opportunity to make my comments.  I felt like that was kind of 3 

like a cooling-off period that you would do for a kicker, to 4 

kind of put me on ice there, but everything is good. 5 

 6 

I want to talk about the allocation process that we’re 7 

undergoing now.  I think it’s really not only part of the law, 8 

but I think it’s the right thing to do, to evaluate how we 9 

allocate the fisheries to the certain segments, so that we do 10 

make the best use of the fishery for our nation and so I’m in 11 

100 percent agreement with that. 12 

 13 

I can say I don’t want to criticize what we’ve seen so far with 14 

that process, except to say that I really hope that there’s a 15 

whole bunch more work yet to be done to really get to the point 16 

where we have our plan correct. 17 

 18 

Three things that I think are important in allocations are that 19 

we have an objective and thorough evaluation that considers what 20 

is best for the country and one point I want to make about that 21 

is that federal fisheries are not just about fishermen. 22 

 23 

97.3 percent of our citizens can’t fish our federal waters and 24 

they need to have input into how we utilize these fisheries and 25 

I’m not seeing that as a significant part of the process and it 26 

needs to be built in. 27 

 28 

The second thing that I want to mention is that allocations 29 

should be only moved to a part of the fishery that’s manageable.  30 

I honestly think that there’s a lot of smart and really good 31 

people on the council that have done really good things, but you 32 

don’t manage and you can’t manage the number of fishermen. 33 

 34 

You can’t manage the economy in the recreational sector and you 35 

can’t manage fuel prices and you can’t manage technology that 36 

affects how easy it is to catch fish and you can’t manage the 37 

weather and climatic conditions.  You can’t find, so far, a 38 

season that makes everybody happy.  There’s always a fight over 39 

the season. 40 

 41 

I don’t see how we’ll ever have enough resources, with the 42 

present recreational fishing system, to really account for how 43 

many fish get caught and so you don’t manage the things that 44 

account for how many fish get caught and so something has to 45 

change there. 46 

 47 

If allocation were to move to that sector, that part has got to 48 
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be fixed first and lastly, I wouldn’t want to jeopardize what we 1 

ought to be celebrating as an incredible rebuilding process that 2 

we began and I wouldn’t want to jeopardize that by any of this 3 

allocation consideration. 4 

 5 

It’s something that we should be celebrating in our nation and 6 

there are concerns that we have as far as the effects of the oil 7 

spill are just now starting to become apparent. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  John, your time is up, if you would wrap it up, 10 

please. 11 

 12 

MR. SCHMIDT:  That’s what that red light is about? 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s what it means.  You’re overdue and thank 15 

you, John.  Last call for Mr. Pinter.  Mr. Pinter is not here?  16 

Is there anyone in the room who has not spoken that would like 17 

that opportunity and has not yet put in a card?  Seeing none, 18 

we’ll go to cards for folks that have spoken before and the 19 

first one I have is Pam Anderson, to be followed by B.J. 20 

Burkett. 21 

 22 

MS. ANDERSON:  I’m Pam Anderson with Captain Anderson Marina in 23 

Panama City.  I wanted to speak briefly about artificial reefs 24 

and the discussion the other day.   25 

 26 

I totally agree that fixed petroleum platforms and other 27 

artificial reefs be considered essential fish habitat and 28 

encourage this agency to definitely emphasize that to other 29 

agencies that are responsible for the dismantling of the 30 

petroleum platforms. 31 

 32 

Each of you who are representing a state can bring this to the 33 

attention of the proper agencies in your area and I think that 34 

it will help everyone, as well as definitely helping the 35 

fishery. 36 

 37 

I would like to take a couple of minutes, almost tongue in 38 

cheek, and ask you to think outside of the box.  Instead of 39 

micromanaging our businesses and our lives, let’s consider your 40 

job as fishery managers as a business. 41 

 42 

If you raise chickens and many people purchase your chickens, to 43 

increase your business, you would build more chicken coops and 44 

save some of your chickens for a hatchery and become a producer 45 

of more chickens.  You have enhanced and not depleted your 46 

chicken stock and in the process, you have increased the 47 

profitability of your business, added more employees, bought 48 
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more chicken feed, and added to the economy of your community. 1 

 2 

Now let’s change that to the Gulf of Mexico.  The Gulf of Mexico 3 

is your chicken coop and you can hang on to the status quo, keep 4 

the status quo with lots of micromanaging, or you can add 5 

habitat. 6 

 7 

With the environmental groups and stakeholders in this room for 8 

support, you could build the largest artificial reef system in 9 

the world, all the way from south Texas to the Keys.  You would 10 

automatically increase the habitat, so there will be a place for 11 

all species to flourish, and keep them protected for the first 12 

couple of years, to allow habitation and growth of the different 13 

species. 14 

 15 

Working with the states, reefs built in thirty feet would be 16 

great for beginning divers and small recreational fishermen.  In 17 

sixty feet, most areas would be reachable to private and for-18 

hire anglers and ninety to 120 feet would be for longer private 19 

and for-hire anglers and then 150 feet or more, they would be 20 

great for the commercial fishery. 21 

 22 

Could you just imagine what this would do for our fisheries and 23 

our communities and the economy?  I believe we need to stop 24 

thinking about limitations and let’s start thinking about 25 

building and expanding the fishery. 26 

 27 

We can stop importing much seafood from other countries and we 28 

will have coastal communities thriving, probably year-round, 29 

with the influx of tourists from all over the world.  We need to 30 

think of something else.  Thank you. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Pam.  We have a question for you, 33 

Pam, from Mr. Riley. 34 

 35 

MR. RILEY:  Ms. Anderson, a little tongue-in-cheek, but seeing 36 

the value of offshore oil production platforms to the fishery, 37 

would you support drilling off of Florida? 38 

 39 

MS. ANDERSON:  Most of the fishermen in our area would support 40 

it.  I do not, simply because I know that in our area it’s a 41 

very crucial area for the military and that’s the reason why 42 

that area is set aside and so I think that it’s very important 43 

to keep the ones that we have, but as far as putting some in 44 

those areas, we also need to protect our military. 45 

 46 

MR. RILEY:  I would agree and I wouldn’t want it in a range for 47 

Air Force bombing or Naval practice either. 48 



78 

 

 1 

MS. ANDERSON:  Right and there is a large area off of northwest 2 

Florida that is protected just for that reason. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Pam.  Next up is B.J. Burkett, to be 5 

followed by Russell Nelson. 6 

 7 

MR. BURKETT:  Again, my name is B.J. Burkett and it will be 8 

short this time.  I’m from Panama City Beach, Florida, mainly a 9 

charterboat fisherman and a little bit of commercial fishing, 10 

too.  I’m an IFQ shareholder. 11 

 12 

The only thing I want to touch on this time is the exempted 13 

fishing permits.  I’m definitely not for that and many of the 14 

other businesses, the charterboat businesses that I’ve talked to 15 

since I stood up here an hour ago, are also against it.  They’re 16 

not here and it’s 800 miles from here and that’s why we don’t 17 

have more people here, but I’m just not for it.  Thank you. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, B.J.  Russell Nelson passes and next 20 

up is Mike Nugent and is Mike still in the room?  Could someone 21 

check the hall for Mike?  Next up is Bob Zales, to be followed 22 

by -- Is Donnie Waters in the room?  I haven’t seen him at all 23 

and I don’t know that he’s here.  Bob Zales will be followed by 24 

Mike Nugent, if Mike shows up. 25 

 26 

MR. ZALES:  Bob Zales, II, President of Panama City Boatmen 27 

Association.  I’m going to talk about our little logbook 28 

situation.  I’ve been involved in this now for going on twenty-29 

two years and it started with king mackerel and it pretty much 30 

started with dealing with MRFSS information and have talked 31 

about, with the bosses in Silver Spring, logbooks for 32 

recreational fishermen and then the for-hire business for that 33 

whole period of time. 34 

 35 

I’ve been involved in working to help create the for-hire survey 36 

that we currently have and working with the Fisheries Service 37 

with MRFSS and with Dave Donaldson and all his people, and 38 

Larry, on these kind of things for this period of time. 39 

 40 

For the entire twenty-two-year period that I’ve been involved, 41 

the key people in D.C., Silver Spring, have told me, Bob, 42 

logbooks will never work in the for-hire industry.  I continued 43 

to say no, clearly they will and people would like them and at 44 

first they didn’t, but they came along and most everybody that I 45 

talked to wanted a logbook system and so we got a pilot program. 46 

 47 

Actually, it was two pilots and I was involved in both, the 48 
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iSnapper and also the one for the Panhandle and Aransas Pass.  1 

The iSnapper was clearly much easier to use and it didn’t 2 

provide all the information that the Fisheries Service seemed to 3 

want, but it provided most of it. 4 

 5 

We’re still waiting on the report to come out, but as Bonnie 6 

said this morning, and from what I’ve heard from other key 7 

people, it’s just not working and so I’m here to tell you that 8 

you all can pass on to Dave Van Voorhees and everybody in D.C. 9 

and everybody above and below him that I’m convinced now that 10 

the logbook system ain’t going to work in this system and why, I 11 

don’t know. 12 

 13 

My personal feeling is that the Fisheries Service doesn’t want a 14 

logbook system for fishermen, because in this day and age and 15 

technology, there’s got to be an easy and simple way to do it, 16 

but apparently it’s too easy or too complicated and I don’t 17 

know, but that’s a problem. 18 

 19 

You talk about accountability and I’ve been to meeting after 20 

meeting and I see information going all around about we’re going 21 

to get logbooks and we’re going to get logbooks and a lot of 22 

programs and proposals depend on logbooks. 23 

 24 

I’ve been telling people for the past few months that don’t get 25 

your hopes up and it ain’t going to happen and clearly I don’t 26 

believe it is, unless this report comes out different than what 27 

people say and so that’s my two-cents and if you’ve got any 28 

questions about it, you can ask me and other than that, thank 29 

you very much. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  Next up is Mike Nugent and he’s 32 

the last card I have.  You’re the last man standing, Mike. 33 

 34 

MR. NUGENT:  Really?  Unlimited time? 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Negative. 37 

 38 

MR. NUGENT:  Negative?  I appreciate the time you all have spent 39 

listening to us today already.  I’m Mike Nugent and I’m Chairman 40 

of the Board of Directors of the Port Aransas Boatmen 41 

Association and again, the membership of Port Aransas Boatmen 42 

wants to come before you and ask for even more support and more 43 

assistance than you’ve given when it comes to the oil and gas 44 

structure removal. 45 

 46 

I would like to answer a question that was posed to Brent Casey 47 

earlier today during his testimony about the council has already 48 
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sent a letter and what would we like you to do and to do that, I 1 

would like to answer a question with a question, because I’ve 2 

never heard the answer to this.  Was there an answer from BOEMRE 3 

when you sent them the letter? 4 

 5 

Just because you sent them the letter, it doesn’t mean they 6 

responded and so we would ask you to keep hammering at them if 7 

they’re not responding and if they have responded, if you would 8 

post the letter on your website where we could read it and see 9 

what they’re saying. 10 

 11 

Another thing we would ask of you, besides writing a letter, is 12 

have you ever asked them to come and not just give a report to 13 

the council, like they did in August, but have you invited them 14 

to appear before the Artificial Reef Committee, so you could ask 15 

them some questions? 16 

 17 

The whole sticking point in Rigs to Reef right now is the Rigs 18 

to Reef Program that was passed in 1984 was working.  When they 19 

passed this addendum to the Rigs to Reef Program in December of 20 

2009, that’s where things came to a halt. 21 

 22 

This wasn’t a piece of legislation and it wasn’t anything more 23 

than a paper that came out of BOEMRE, but the problem is that, 24 

unlike you all and unlike a lot of other things, they didn’t 25 

post this in the Federal Register and they didn’t ask for 26 

scoping meetings and they didn’t come have public hearings and 27 

they didn’t even come to our state agency and ask them what they 28 

thought. 29 

 30 

There are some things that we are begging to get done and first 31 

of all is if we could get them to appear before people and ask 32 

them to review and look over this thing and the consequences of 33 

what it’s doing to us and I know it’s redundant and I know every 34 

time I see you anymore I’m asking for this, but our association 35 

feels it’s crucial to the future of our association and our 36 

community and this area and indeed, probably the Gulf of Mexico.  37 

Thank you very much for your time and I appreciate it. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  That’s the last card I have 40 

and is there any member of the audience that has not spoken and 41 

would like to do so?  Seeing none, that concludes public 42 

testimony.  The time that I have is about 4:18 and we’ll take a 43 

recess until 4:25 and we will reconvene after the recess at 44 

4:25. 45 

 46 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will reconvene.  If you all could take your 1 

conversations in the back outside, please.  My intention is that 2 

we will use the rest of the time that we have today to frontload 3 

the work for tomorrow. 4 

 5 

As you know, we have a number of items.  The Mackerel Committee 6 

has five hours of work yet to do and we have a number of items 7 

that were added to Other Business and I’m told that a number of 8 

folks have flights that will necessitate their departure at 3:30 9 

or some such time and so I’m thinking we’ll spend the next hour 10 

doing what committee reports we can or the Mackerel Committee or 11 

Other Business or some combination thereof. 12 

 13 

I guess my inclination is, since the Full Council is convened, 14 

that we utilize the time to go through committee reports, those 15 

that are ready.  I don’t know which ones those are, but the 16 

first one on the agenda is the SSC Selection and is that 17 

committee report available, Chairman Anson? 18 

 19 

SCIENTIFIC & STATISTICAL COMMITTEE SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN ANSON:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The 22 

committee report is available.  Committee members present were 23 

myself, Dr. Abele, Dr. Crabtree, Dr. Dana, Mr. David Donaldson, 24 

Mr. Fischer, Dr. Shipp, and Mr. Perret. 25 

 26 

The Scientific and Statistical Committee Selection Committee met 27 

to further discuss the SSC’s duties and responsibilities.  Mr. 28 

Anson chaired the meeting in Mr. Simpson’s absence.  The minutes 29 

of the January 2012 meeting were approved with no changes. 30 

 31 

Dr. Bortone reviewed a PowerPoint presentation on the Option 3 32 

outline approved by the committee at the last meeting.  He 33 

explained that members were sometimes voting on issues outside 34 

their expertise.  35 

 36 

For example, individuals with socioeconomic backgrounds were 37 

voting on biological issues and vice versa.  He proposed that 38 

there be a Biological SSC and a Socioeconomic SSC, with the 39 

Ecosystem SSC addressing issues of both types.  This would more 40 

efficiently use the expertise of the SSC members. 41 

 42 

Dr. Bortone explained Tab B, Number 3(a), which separated the 43 

roles of the SSCs for the committee’s consideration.  Dr. Abele 44 

noted there was an anticipated thirty-one days of meetings 45 

required for the SSC to attend and that was considerable for 46 

someone volunteering for a panel.   47 

 48 
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Dr. Bortone noted that some of the attendance issues have been 1 

improved by further defining what the meetings would address and 2 

by setting the approximate meeting dates a year in advance.  By 3 

using the proposed SSC split, the groups would be smaller and 4 

hopefully the attendance would be higher, because the attendee’s 5 

expertise would be more useful. 6 

 7 

Mr. Riechers indicated that if the Council splits the SSC into 8 

two groups that it would be essential to get the information 9 

between the two panels, which may delay the results and take 10 

more time for the meetings to be held. 11 

 12 

Dr. Bortone responded that he concurred and proposed that the 13 

chair of each of the two SSCs attend the opposite panel’s 14 

meeting.  He believed the meetings would be more efficient 15 

because they would be shorter.  Ms. Williams opposed splitting 16 

the SSC into two groups. 17 

 18 

Mr. Gill was concerned with the details that would need to be 19 

worked out.  The council asked the staff to develop those 20 

details which were being presented.  He believed the committee 21 

must further direct staff in which direction for staff to 22 

proceed.  Mr. Perret supported asking the current SSC members to 23 

comment on the proposed action. 24 

 25 

Dr. Abele asked if the proposed route would address the concerns 26 

raised by Mr. Gregory.  Dr. Bortone sensed that some members of 27 

the SSC wanted to take on even more responsibility and this may, 28 

in turn, result in longer and more meetings. 29 

 30 

Dr. Abele referred to Tab I, Number 3(c) and asked if “shall 31 

develop a” meant they “must” do something.  Dr. Bortone 32 

responded he believed “shall” meant “must”.  Mr. Grimes 33 

concurred.  Mr. Gill felt it was premature to ask the SSC for 34 

opinions at this time, until the council developed a plan 35 

further.  Dr. Abele supported having the SSC involved earlier 36 

rather than later.  He stressed the need for the clear defining 37 

of legal obligations required of the council versus the SSC.   38 

 39 

The committee passed the following motion, and on behalf of the 40 

committee I so move, to recommend to staff to proceed with 41 

Option 3 and to consult with the SSC on their recommendations 42 

regarding this option.  43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on 45 

the motion? 46 

 47 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I want to make certain that I do understand 48 



83 

 

exactly what it was that we did, because I disagreed and I know 1 

in our summary that you don’t always hear what all of the 2 

discussion was and it’s bits and pieces and a lot of the 3 

discussion is just lost. 4 

 5 

Our SSC, what you will recall, they normally pretty worked well 6 

together and we got some pretty good recommendations and then, 7 

of course, they got flooded because of the ACLs and the AMs and 8 

all of that and so we can’t always blame everything on our SSC, 9 

plus you have to understand that most of the time our SSC, they 10 

do not have their materials until the day they get there or the 11 

day before. 12 

 13 

They’ve requested that they have them two or three weeks, so 14 

that that they can read them and review them and make notes or 15 

whatever it is, so that they can really give us the information 16 

that we need. 17 

 18 

Over the years, they have made motions and they’re read to us 19 

and nothing happens with their motions and so they was a bit 20 

upset about that.  Their meetings have gotten less and the time 21 

that they’re allowed to discuss has gotten less. 22 

 23 

I believe it was Sean that come and said we need more time and 24 

even when he was here the last time before this council.  We’re 25 

rushed and we don’t get our materials and all sorts of things 26 

and so they have ideas of themselves of what they need to do a 27 

better job for us in a timely fashion. 28 

 29 

This motion, if I understood it, was for us to go to them and 30 

ask them for their suggestions on what they felt would help them 31 

to help us to do a better job and to help them to do a better 32 

job and that that would be then brought back to this council and 33 

the council would then take a look at that and maybe perhaps 34 

work on something from that point.  That’s what I understood 35 

this motion to say and Mr. Gill is saying no, that’s not what it 36 

says. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, that’s not what the option said, Mr. 39 

Williams.  The motion said that staff was to proceed developing 40 

Option 3 and to also consult with the SSC on their 41 

recommendations concerning Option 3 and so it’s not a blank page 42 

for the SSC to come back with, but to comment on pros and cons, 43 

from their point of view, relative to the concept provided in 44 

Option 3.  That’s different than a blank page. 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Then I’m going to speak in opposition to the 47 

motion, because I think our SSC should know what their job is.  48 
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If they don’t know what their job is, they shouldn’t be there 1 

and I don’t think it’s our staff that should be telling them 2 

what their job is. 3 

 4 

Our staff is to help us to do council work and to help us with 5 

things that we need and I just feel that our SSC should be 6 

letting us know what it is that they feel like will help them to 7 

do a better job. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, 10 

is there any objection to the motion?  Ms. Williams objects to 11 

this motion and is there any other objection to the motion?  12 

Seeing none, the motion passes with one objection. 13 

 14 

MR. ANSON:  There was no further business to discuss and this 15 

concludes my report. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, sir.  I’ve seen the Budget Committee 18 

Report come out and are there other reports that are available 19 

for committee review?  Mr. Perret, do you have Outreach and 20 

Education ready to go? 21 

 22 

MR. PERRET:  Yes, with the excellent work of my staff person, we 23 

are ready, if you are ready. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If you would proceed, sir. 26 

 27 

OUTREACH & EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT 28 

 29 

MR. PERRET:  Summary of the Outreach and Education Committee, 30 

Dr. Abele, Mr. Anson, Mr. Pearce, Mr. Gill, and Mr. Perret were 31 

in attendance.  The meeting was called to order and the agenda 32 

was adopted and minutes were approved. 33 

 34 

Emily Muehlstein provided a summary of the Draft Crisis 35 

Communications Plan.  The plan was developed in-house, by staff, 36 

and I think they did a very fine job.  Dr. Abele asked staff who 37 

would be the key decision maker during a crisis and that 38 

response is the Executive Director is the key decision maker. 39 

  40 

Bob Gill asked for some clarification on the responsibility as 41 

to who identifies the existence of a crisis and that is -- The 42 

clarification is that the Public Information Officer holds that 43 

responsibility.   44 

 45 

There was discussion about the spokesperson in time of crisis 46 

Mr. Perret stated that in some of his experience with this type 47 

of thing that it’s always good that you have a spokesperson from 48 
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the geographical area affected available. 1 

 2 

Mr. Boyd asked how council members should respond during a 3 

crisis and staff assured him that the communication team would 4 

be in direct communication with council members and proper 5 

responses and how to respond in the time of a crisis.  After 6 

review of the plan, the committee recommends, and I so move, 7 

that the council approve the Crisis Communications Plan.  So 8 

moved, Mr. Chairman.  9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 11 

on the motion?  Seeing none, is there any objection to the 12 

motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries. 13 

 14 

MR. PERRET:  Emily Muehlstein then updated the committee on the 15 

stakeholder survey.  She explained that there was a university 16 

professor who was going to develop a stakeholder survey to 17 

measure the effectiveness of the council communications efforts, 18 

but he was unavailable.  Vendors quoted $35,000 to conduct a 19 

survey and Dr. Bortone and his staff decided that they could 20 

conduct the survey in-house and they had the people to do it and 21 

thus, save us some money and so that’s going to proceed in that 22 

manner. 23 

 24 

It was further pointed out that one of the Outreach and 25 

Education Panel members, Ms. Heather Fox from Louisiana, and I 26 

think she retired, is no longer available and Mr. Fischer from 27 

Louisiana will provide the proper replacement person for Ms. 28 

Fox.  29 

 30 

Emily Muehlstein then asked committee members if there was a 31 

need to convene the Outreach and Education Advisory Panel.  The 32 

committee determined that the panel could perform its duties 33 

electronically and that a meeting would be more appropriate once 34 

the survey is conducted.  35 

 36 

Finally, Jessica McCawley asked what progress the staff was 37 

making to produce council documents that incorporate plain 38 

language and readability and we were advised by Dr. Bortone that 39 

the staff is in the process of working with NOAA Fisheries to 40 

unify and produce a template for this and that concludes the 41 

report, Mr. Chairman, and thank you.  42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I think next, as I 44 

understand, the Data Collection Committee Report is ready and 45 

has been sent out.  It’s not sent out? 46 

 47 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Mr. Chairman, I have the Budget Committee. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Then Chairman McIlwain, if you would do the 2 

Budget Committee.  Thank you, sir. 3 

 4 

BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORT 5 

 6 

DR. MCILWAIN:  The Budget/Personnel Committee met on April 16 7 

and the committee was there: Robin Riechers, myself, Doug Boyd, 8 

Kevin Anson, Harlon Pearce, and Kay Williams.; 9 

 10 

The Budget/Personnel Committee convened at 1:30.  The agenda was 11 

approved with the change of moving Item IV to be discussed 12 

before Item III.  The minutes of the August 17, 2011 meeting 13 

held in Austin, Texas were approved as written. 14 

 15 

Executive Director’s Evaluation Process, Mr. Gill reminded the 16 

council that the Executive Director’s review is due in May and 17 

the process is similar to that of the past.  The Chair and Vice 18 

Chair will be developing the evaluation and comments from the 19 

council are welcome. 20 

 21 

There was discussion regarding the Executive Director’s 22 

evaluation form and his position description.  Mr. Riechers 23 

suggested the position description and the critical 24 

elements/evaluation form be provided to the council.  He 25 

encouraged the council members to provide comments to the Chair 26 

and Vice Chair. 27 

 28 

Ms. Williams asked if the Executive Director’s review would be 29 

presented to the council before completion.  Mr. Gill responded 30 

that it would not.  It would be completed by the Chair and Vice 31 

Chair and a final copy can be provided to council members if 32 

they wish to receive a copy. 33 

 34 

Future Funding Overview, Ms. Readinger advised the committee 35 

that NOAA suggested the council plan its 2012 budget at $100,000 36 

less than the 2011 level.  The council has not been given an 37 

exact number for its 2012 allocation.   38 

 39 

She noted that the council has over $600,000 in surplus funding 40 

for Calendar Year 2010 and over $300,000 in surplus funding for 41 

2011.  The surplus for the two years, less the 2012 deficit, 42 

will provide approximately $800,000 to offset anticipated 43 

funding reductions in 2013 and 2014. 44 

 45 

Ms. Williams expressed concern as to why the 2012 budget was not 46 

presented prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.  Ms. 47 

Readinger responded that since 2010, the council has operated 48 
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under continuing resolutions and the funding levels were not 1 

available until the second quarters.  There is still uncertainty 2 

as to the 2012 funding level. 3 

 4 

Ms. Readinger suggested a solution could be to direct staff to 5 

develop a budget in October of this year for the 2013 budget 6 

year, with the understanding that revisions will need to be made 7 

once NOAA provides funding levels to the councils. 8 

 9 

Dr. Bortone explained that the Chairs and Executive Directors 10 

participated in a conference call in February and reviewed the 11 

President’s budget, which showed an anticipated decline of 12 

several million dollars.   13 

 14 

He explained this could result in a reduction in the 2013 budget 15 

by $400,000 and considering inflation, the operating costs could 16 

be 25 percent less than 2011 funding.  The carryover funding 17 

will ensure that funds will be available for existing services 18 

and activities.  The five-year budget cycle will end in 2014. 19 

 20 

Ms. Readinger continued to review the reasons for the 2010 and 21 

2011 funding.  It was agreed that the surplus funding 22 

explanations would be provided to the council. 23 

 24 

Under the 2012 Proposed Budget, Dr. Bortone advised the 25 

committee that the councils’ budget concerns will be addressed 26 

at the next CCC meeting.  Dr. Leard reviewed the proposed 2012 27 

activities and noted the various activities that are planned for 28 

reef fish, for coastal migratory pelagics, for shrimp, spiny 29 

lobster, and then other meetings that the council will 30 

participate in. 31 

 32 

Ms. Readinger reviewed Tab K, Number 3, the proposed 2012 33 

budget.  She advised the committee that total travel costs are 34 

budgeted at $538,000; personnel costs at $1,704,000; fringe 35 

benefits at $711,000; equipment at $12,000; supplies at $18,000; 36 

contractual services at $296,000; and other expenses, such as 37 

rents, communications, transportation and printing, are budgeted 38 

at $321,000.   39 

 40 

The total proposed 2012 budget is $3.6 million, which is 41 

$142,000 more than anticipated funding.  The council will use a 42 

portion of the 2010 and 2011 surplus funding to offset the 2012 43 

deficit. 44 

 45 

There were questions regarding increases and decreases in 46 

various cost categories when comparing the 2011 and the 2012 47 

budgets.  Mr. Riechers suggested adding a column to the 48 
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spreadsheets to indicate the actual expenditures in the prior 1 

year budget compared to the amount that was budgeted.  After 2 

review and discussion, on behalf of the committee, I so move to 3 

approve the 2012 budget as outlined in Tab K, Number 3. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have a committee 6 

motion and is there discussion? 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  There’s a couple of things in here that I really 9 

didn’t recall and I’m sure it’s probably just the wording and I 10 

actually have a few comments and questions.  One is as far as 11 

the Executive Director’s review coming up. 12 

 13 

It states that it would be completed by the Chair and Vice Chair 14 

and a final copy can be provided to council members if they wish 15 

to receive it and I don’t remember hearing that.  What I 16 

remember hearing is I asked if it would be brought before the 17 

members and I was told no, because that’s normally the Chair and 18 

the Vice Chair that looks at that. 19 

 20 

If you recall the last time, the Chair and the Vice Chair 21 

brought it to the council in closed session and we actually 22 

voted on it.  That would not be the same as what we did last 23 

time, if you will think back as to what happened. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Your recollection is different than mine.  26 

Clearly the review in the SOPPs is signed by the Chair and 27 

available to any council members that so desires. 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am just telling you what took place last time 30 

in the closed session and if you think back, I believe you will 31 

probably recall what happened, but anyway, I think it’s still a 32 

good idea to know ahead of time, in case there is some 33 

discussions, before something like that takes place, but do as 34 

you wish. 35 

 36 

The other part was I remember Rick going over some figures and I 37 

also thought, and maybe I misunderstood, but I thought that 38 

Cathy was going to provide us, before the council meeting, with 39 

some figures that she was reading off of and I think maybe a 40 

couple other people thought that too. 41 

 42 

I don’t know if that got lost in translation, but we never 43 

received those.  I would ask that we have verbatim minutes for 44 

the committee for us to take a look at, please.  Of course, I’m 45 

sure you will have to email them to us after the meeting, but I 46 

would like to look back over those. 47 

 48 
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The other thing is that some of the figures I had some issues 1 

with, because they just didn’t seem to add up to what the past 2 

committee motion discussions would say and I think one breakdown 3 

is that you look at a budget and the budget that you’re looking 4 

at has nothing really to do with how the money is spent, because 5 

of the things being grouped. 6 

 7 

The reason I’m going through this is some of the members weren’t 8 

there, because of the plane situation, but this is kind of a 9 

general budget and things are grouped together.  Monies can be 10 

moved around, into certain categories. 11 

 12 

For instance, let’s say there’s some money left over and you 13 

don’t have enough money in sick leave or you don’t have enough 14 

money in annual leave and you can take whatever money is left, 15 

actually, and whatever your deficit is, you can put it over into 16 

those two categories if what I read in some of the prior minutes 17 

said. 18 

 19 

Also, I know that we can use some monies, up to a certain 20 

percentage, and you can move some things around in here and so 21 

when you look at the budget, that’s not necessarily where the 22 

money went or what it was spent on and I know they have a term 23 

for that in the banking -- Doug, do you remember what that -- 24 

Can you help me with that?  You’ve got your budget, but then 25 

you’ve got -- What’s it called where it’s your actual 26 

expenditures? 27 

 28 

MR. BOYD:  Any budget, during a year, is compared against the 29 

actual for that given period of time, whether it’s monthly or 30 

quarterly or even daily.  I think what Mr. Riechers suggested 31 

was that in the format of the budget that we include a column 32 

that shows last year’s same period, for whatever period that 33 

we’re producing for the council to look at, so that we could 34 

compare let’s say up through the first quarter of last year’s 35 

actual expenditures versus this year’s budget versus this year’s 36 

actual expenditures.  Is that what you’re asking? 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, that was one of them, because there’s also 39 

something where you’ve got your budget and then you’ve got these 40 

large groupings together, but you don’t really know where the 41 

money is going and it’s just kind of out there and you pull it 42 

from here or there or yonder and spend it. 43 

 44 

I believe maybe it’s the way that your register reads or 45 

something, but they was going to show us like what the money was 46 

actually spent on and what it was spent for. 47 

 48 
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MR. BOYD:  What we don’t receive from staff is a full financial 1 

statement set, which would be cash flow statements and a balance 2 

sheet and a general ledger and everything and I don’t know if we 3 

want to get the council involved in that kind of depth.  That 4 

probably should be done with the Budget Committee to look at the 5 

accounting, I think.  Steve, you could respond to that. 6 

 7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I could ask Cathy to respond, but 8 

on a quarterly basis, you get a full accounting of anticipated 9 

expenditures and actual expenditures and as you inquired just 10 

the other day, Doug, that is going to be posted I believe next 11 

week for this quarter and so it’s done on a regular basis. 12 

 13 

MR. BOYD:  Yes, there’s usually a lag in whenever financial 14 

statements are produced, because you have to close a quarter and 15 

you have to make sure that the accounting is done correctly and 16 

make any adjusting entries and then produce your financial 17 

statements.  In any given quarter, there’s going to be a lag and 18 

then there’s a little bit longer lag at the end of the year, 19 

because you have to close everything. 20 

 21 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Where that came up is -- I’m glad that you said 22 

that, because that wasn’t what I understood when it was 23 

explained, because I was using actual when I said that from I 24 

think it was 2010 to 2011 or maybe it was 2011 to 2012, there 25 

was a $249,000 increase in salaries, if in fact what Dr. Bortone 26 

just said, and what you just repeated, is so and I couldn’t 27 

understand how we could have $249,000 worth of differences in 28 

salaries from one year to the next, but yet in the next year we 29 

was only going to allow let’s say maybe $20,000 or something.  30 

It just didn’t make sense and so maybe all of that will come to 31 

light at this next one and we’ll have more details that Cathy 32 

was going to give us and we can look at it and dig into it a 33 

little more at that time.  Thank you. 34 

 35 

MR. BOYD:  Steve, just one follow-up on that.  Do you think we 36 

could have the actual, last year year-to-date, on the next 37 

statement?  Would that be possible? 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I would have to ask Cathy. 40 

 41 

MS. CATHY READINGER:  The last year year-to-date is already 42 

posted on the FTP.  You requested quarterly financial reports 43 

and right now you have the third quarter and the fourth quarter 44 

of 2011 and the first quarter of 2012 will be posted next week. 45 

 46 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  Is there further discussion on the motion? 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Then, Mr. Chairman, maybe they can explain next 3 

time why one time it was a $249,000 increase in salaries and 4 

then the next year it wasn’t. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I believe we discussed that in committee.  Is 7 

there further discussion on the motion?  Is there any objection 8 

to the motion?  The motion carries with one objection.  Back to 9 

you, Mr. Chairman. 10 

 11 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I see we have the Data 14 

Collection Committee Report that has recently arrived here and 15 

so I will pass it to Chairman Pearce and I’m going to turn the 16 

gavel over to Vice Chair Boyd so that I can comment thereon, as 17 

I promised in the committee. 18 

 19 

DATA COLLECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 20 

 21 

MR. PEARCE:  The Data Collection Committee met and the members 22 

present were myself, Dr. Crabtree, Mr. Fischer, and Mr. Greene.  23 

I think Pam is also on it.  The agenda was adopted as written 24 

and the minutes of the February 1, 2012 meeting were approved 25 

with no modifications.   26 

 27 

Dr. Froeschke provided a summary report of the MRIP calibration 28 

workshop held March 27 through 29, 2012 in Raleigh, North 29 

Carolina.  The purpose of this workshop was to propose a 30 

methodology for calibrating MRFSS to MRIP data.  31 

 32 

Estimates using both methodologies are available from 2004 to 33 

2011 and paired estimates from this period can be used to 34 

calibrate the two estimates and hind-cast MRIP estimates for 35 

years prior to 2004.  The working group recommended a plan for 36 

implementing the calibration methodology into updated and 37 

benchmark stock assessments and will release a full report for 38 

review and comment in 2012.   39 

 40 

Dr. Froeschke reviewed the dealer reporting scoping document and 41 

I hope that the full council will approve or reject the 42 

suggestions from the South Atlantic and I would hope that the 43 

council would also consider the alternatives and any changes we 44 

could make and I would hope the council would hopefully suggest 45 

some preferred alternatives as we go through this.   46 

 47 

The committee considered the revised actions and alternatives 48 
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from the March 2012 South Atlantic Council meeting.  Action 1 1 

considers what dealer permits would be required and for which 2 

species.   3 

 4 

For Action 1, three alternatives are included in the document.  5 

Alternative 1 is no action, do not modify the current six 6 

Federal dealer permits.  Alternative 2 is to establish one 7 

universal Federal dealer permit and Alternative 3 is to 8 

establish separate Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic Federal 9 

dealer permits.   10 

 11 

At their March 2012 meeting, the South Atlantic Council moved 12 

Alternatives 2a and 3a to the considered but rejected appendix, 13 

as it fails to meet the purpose and need of the amendment.   14 

 15 

Proposed options 2a and 3a were added.  Proposed Option 2a is to 16 

require a universal dealer permit to purchase all federally-17 

managed species, except south Atlantic coral and South Atlantic 18 

sargassum.   19 

 20 

The universal dealer permit would be required to purchase 21 

species in the following fishery management plans: Atlantic 22 

Dolphin-Wahoo; Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish; South Atlantic Golden 23 

Crab; South Atlantic Rock Shrimp; South Atlantic Snapper 24 

Grouper, including wreckfish; Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic 25 

Coastal Migratory Pelagics; Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic 26 

Spiny Lobster; Gulf of Mexico Coral and Coral Reefs; Gulf of 27 

Mexico Red Drum; Gulf of Mexico Shrimp; South Atlantic Shrimp; 28 

Gulf of Mexico Shrimp. 29 

 30 

Proposed Option 3a would require dealer permits to purchase all 31 

federally-managed species, except south Atlantic coral, south 32 

Atlantic sargassum.  Dealer permits would be required to 33 

purchase species in the following fishery management plans: 34 

Atlantic Dolphin-Wahoo; Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish; South Atlantic 35 

Golden Crab; South Atlantic Rock Shrimp; South Atlantic Snapper 36 

Grouper, including wreckfish; Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic 37 

Coastal Migratory Pelagics; Gulf of Mexico and South Atlantic 38 

Spiny Lobster; Gulf of Mexico Coral and Coral Reefs; Gulf of 39 

Mexico Red Drum; Gulf of Mexico Shrimp; South Atlantic Shrimp; 40 

Gulf of Mexico Shrimp.  There’s also a note that the italics 41 

designate alterations from species that currently require dealer 42 

permits.  Are there any suggested changes? 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I have a question.  The committee did not choose 45 

a preferred in Action 1 and is that correct? 46 

 47 

MR. PEARCE:  That is correct and we did not adopt the changes or 48 
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get rid of the changes the South Atlantic made. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You’re therefore asking this council to adopt 3 

changes, if they so desire, and to adopt a preferred, if they so 4 

desire.  Is that correct? 5 

 6 

MR. PEARCE:  Correct.  I would entertain any motions from the 7 

council at this time. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Since you know I don’t shy away from that, I 10 

move that we accept the proposed options with the associated 11 

deletions in Action 1 of the document. 12 

 13 

MR. PEARCE:  Do we have a second?  We have a second from Ms. 14 

McCawley.  Is there any discussion?  Any opposition to the 15 

motion?  Hearing none, the motion carries.  You have the floor, 16 

Mr. Gill. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I don’t have a preferred.  I would like to hear 19 

some discussion relative to thoughts by other council members in 20 

that regard. 21 

 22 

MR. PEARCE:  Any other council members? 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  With respect to what species we’re going to 25 

require dealer permits on, it seems to me that by including 26 

shrimp in that that we create a lot of administrative burdens 27 

and I’m not sure what we get out of it.  I guess this is going 28 

to be set up in a way where we can change that and it doesn’t 29 

seem to be easily set up to allow that at this moment. 30 

 31 

MR. PERRET:  I thought shrimp was out, that Gulf of Mexico 32 

shrimp had been deleted. 33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  That was moved to considered but rejected, but I’m 35 

still seeing it. 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m still seeing it listed in the alternatives 38 

that are in here. 39 

 40 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Froeschke, is it still in the alternatives? 41 

 42 

DR. JOHN FROESCHKE:  Yes, I believe so.  The difference between 43 

the removed alternative had to do with the wording of where it 44 

says “purchase species that currently require dealer permits” as 45 

opposed to “purchase all federally-managed species” and so that 46 

was the verbiage difference and so shrimp is still -- In one of 47 

the alternatives, shrimp is included and one of them it’s not 48 
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and I believe -- 1 

 2 

MR. PEARCE:  Does that clarify it, Roy? 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, I see it in 3a and I see it in 2 and so if 5 

you don’t want to require reporting on shrimp, we probably ought 6 

to pass a motion and take out Gulf of Mexico Shrimp. 7 

 8 

DR. FROESCHKE:  Proposed Options 2a and 3a would include shrimp.  9 

If you look on Options 2b and 3b, it is except South Atlantic 10 

Coral, South Atlantic Sargassum, and shrimp species. 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  Then we already have an alternative in here that 13 

doesn’t include shrimp that we could select and take care of it? 14 

 15 

MR. PEARCE:  Correct. 16 

 17 

DR. FROESCHKE:  The other thing, and not to jump ahead, but if 18 

you recall on Action 2, there is the one component, one 19 

alternative, that considers the phase-in alternative and if you 20 

wanted to consider that, I believe that is linked to choosing 21 

separate dealer permits and so I just wanted to remind you. 22 

 23 

MR. PEARCE:  Is everyone clear?  Are there any preferred 24 

alternatives? 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I don’t see any indication here that suggests 27 

the South Atlantic chose a preferred and so I would ask Mr. 28 

Harris to clarify that and either verify it or not.  Did the 29 

South Atlantic choose any preferreds in this document at all at 30 

your March meeting? 31 

 32 

MR. HARRIS:  Not that I recall, Mr. Chairman.  I will also say 33 

that Proposed Option 3a, following an IPT recommendation, was 34 

moved to the considered but rejected appendix and that’s the one 35 

that includes, under Alternative 3, the shrimp species. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think the problem is that there are several 38 

3a’s and -- 39 

 40 

MR. HARRIS:  This is under Alternative 3. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes, I understand, but there’s a -- One 3a was 43 

sent to the considered but rejected and the other one was 44 

proposed and so the nomenclature gets a little confusing in 45 

terms of what we’re talking about here, I’m sorry to say, and so 46 

I think it needs to be clarified before we can choose a 47 

preferred, Mr. Chairman. 48 
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 1 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree.  Any motions to clarify that, so we can 2 

change this?  Corky, if we want to pick a preferred option that 3 

shrimp is out, we can do that now too. 4 

 5 

DR. FROESCHKE:  Just to clarify on the nomenclature, there was 6 

the existing Options 2a and 3a and that was what in the document 7 

last time you saw it.  They made a change to move those to 8 

considered but rejected, but because you hadn’t seen the 9 

document, we didn’t want to just remove them from the document 10 

and so we marked those out and then put in the proposed option. 11 

 12 

The proposed Option 3a and 2a, they don’t include shrimp, but 13 

the existing Options 2b and 3b would exclude shrimp and so the 14 

new 2a and 3a would include shrimp and the existing 2b and 3b 15 

would not. 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  Why is Gulf of Mexico Shrimp listed twice in 2a and 18 

3a?  Is that penaeid shrimp for one and the royal reds for the 19 

other? 20 

 21 

DR. FROESCHKE:  I believe that’s just a typographical error and 22 

we’ll take care of that. 23 

 24 

MR. PEARCE:  Where should it be taken out, Mr. Froeschke? 25 

 26 

MR. PERRET:  To me, we should have one of the options that 27 

totally excludes Gulf Shrimp, perhaps with the exception of 28 

royal reds, because we do have a quota on royal reds and we need 29 

to track that, but with a handful of vessels fishing for royal 30 

reds, I don’t think that’s going to be much of a problem. 31 

 32 

MR. PEARCE:  Option 2b does that.  Should we take and go through 33 

all the options, one at a time, independently again or is 34 

everybody comfortable right now? 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess I’m now getting confused.  What are we 37 

trying to do with this document?  Do we need to choose a 38 

preferred or can we bring it back at the next meeting, when 39 

staff cleans it up and gets it a little bit clearer and cleans 40 

up the typos and stuff and then choose a preferred?  That seems 41 

to be the logical way to go and if that’s the case, I would 42 

suggest we don’t choose a preferred and we move on to Action 2. 43 

 44 

MR. PEARCE:  That’s fine and I agree. 45 

 46 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I was just going to ask what the timeline was on 47 

this.  Is it going to scoping next or is it coming back to the 48 
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council and then to scoping? 1 

 2 

DR. FROESCHKE:  I guess that’s up to you.  What we were hoping 3 

to do is bring it back to you at the June meeting and if you 4 

thought it was okay, you could approve it for public hearing at 5 

that time. 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think our goal, Jessica, has been to vote this 8 

up at the August meeting and have the South Atlantic vote it up 9 

in September.  We had wanted to get this in place by next year 10 

and I don’t know if we can make that or not and so the timeline 11 

that John just mentioned of clean it up and approve it to go to 12 

public hearing in June and go to public hearing and then come 13 

back and hopefully take final action in August is probably as 14 

good as we can do. 15 

 16 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree with you, Mr. Gill, that we need to clean 17 

this up, so we can all make our decisions past that point.  I 18 

will move on.  Action 2 addresses the frequency and method of 19 

reporting by seafood dealers.   20 

 21 

The South Atlantic Council provided revised versions of 22 

Alternatives 2 and 3 to clarify the language regarding frequency 23 

of reporting.  Alternative 4 was added to provide the potential 24 

to phase in electronic reporting in the Gulf of Mexico if 25 

separate dealer permits are created in Action 1.   26 

 27 

This alternative would permit submission of forms via fax or 28 

electronically in year one and electronically in year two and 29 

beyond.  Alternative 5 was also added to provide a provision to 30 

use paper-based components for basic required functions as a 31 

backup. 32 

 33 

There was some inquiry about why the language “as determined by 34 

the SRD” was added to Alternatives 2, 3, and 4.  Ms. McCawley 35 

stated that this language allows greater flexibility to increase 36 

frequency of reporting as an ACL is approached.  Dr. Crabtree 37 

asked how this system would work and if frequency of reporting 38 

could vary by species, noting the potential complications.   39 

 40 

Mr. Perret asked about the ability of National Marine Fisheries 41 

Service to receive and process data reported daily.  Dr. Ponwith 42 

stated that this would not be burdensome if reporting was 43 

electronic.   44 

 45 

However, the agency could not process these data on a daily 46 

basis if submitted via fax.  Dr. Crabtree further noted that the 47 

decision to include shrimp in reporting requirements, Action 1, 48 
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could substantially increase the administrative burden of daily 1 

reporting.  2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  How do you intend to proceed through the rest of 4 

the document?  Are you going to go through your report and then 5 

go back through the document or do you wish to go action-by-6 

action? 7 

 8 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, unless you would like to make some motions now 9 

on this and we can handle it right now. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would like to address Action 2 whenever it’s 12 

appropriate, by whatever you want to do. 13 

 14 

MR. PEARCE:  Go ahead and address Action 2 now and then we’ll go 15 

to Action 3. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I have several problems with Action 2.  As I 18 

mentioned in committee, Alternative 1 is no problem, but 19 

Alternative 2 and Alternative 3 have exactly the same language, 20 

in terms of the definition of the alternative, and what was 21 

added there, as I understand it, by the South Atlantic Council, 22 

they added the phrase “as determined by the SRD”. 23 

 24 

Now, I think I understand what that means in Alternative 2, 25 

because that’s got an option for fax or electronically.  26 

Alternative 3, however, it says require forms be submitted 27 

electronically as determined by the SRD and I guess I would ask, 28 

what the heck does that mean? 29 

 30 

MR. PEARCE:  Bonnie, can you answer that? 31 

 32 

DR. PONWITH:  I don’t have the document up on my computer and if 33 

you can read that alternative again or that option. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  Require forms be submitted electronically as 36 

determined by the SRD. 37 

 38 

MR. BOYD:  Could I ask you to tell the council which document 39 

we’re looking at and what page it’s on, so we can all get there? 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  This is Tab E-3, Dealer Reporting Requirement, 42 

4-4-2012. 43 

 44 

MR. BOYD:  Do you know what page it is? 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It’s page 12 for Alternative 2 and page 13 for 47 

Alternative 3.   48 
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 1 

DR. FROESCHKE:  Just to refresh your memory, when we talked 2 

about this in committee, the SRD -- The reason that they added 3 

that language was it would allow the Science and Research 4 

Director to change the reporting frequency without the delay 5 

necessary to come back to the council for approval.  That was my 6 

understanding. 7 

 8 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just point out that the way the regulations 9 

are specified now, it’s to provide some flexibility in 10 

reporting.  There are forms provided by the SRD and other things 11 

dictated or as determined by the SRD, so that if we change 12 

forms, we’re not stuck with having to come back in and go 13 

through a rule or maybe we want to shift to a more frequent 14 

reporting interval for some period and we don’t have to come 15 

back in and go through rulemaking. 16 

 17 

If we specify it so specifically in the regulations, then every 18 

time we want to make any change, we have to go through a 19 

rulemaking and that’s horribly inefficient. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If that’s the case, I did not read it as that.  22 

I read it as trying to assert whether the forms in Alternative 2 23 

were either fax or electronically and the SRD would make that 24 

determination and forms were not part of the consideration and 25 

so I think we have a clarity issue and I think if that’s the 26 

case, my recommendation would be that the reading for 27 

Alternatives 2 and 3 is the “as determined by the SRD” be 28 

deleted from the end and inserted after “forms”, if that’s the 29 

intent of what you’re trying to achieve here, because that’s 30 

decidedly different than how I read it and interpreted it. 31 

 32 

What you’re saying is the SRD, if that’s what you’re trying to 33 

do, gets to choose and change forms, but doesn’t get to choose 34 

whether or not it’s fax or electronically and that’s a different 35 

issue. 36 

 37 

MR. GRIMES:  I understand what you’re saying, Mr. Gill, and I’m 38 

actually not on this IPT, but I see your point and perhaps 39 

that’s something the IPT can look at and provide some 40 

clarification in the next iteration of the document. 41 

 42 

If you go to Alternative 3, it has the exact same language, to 43 

be submitted electronically as determined by the SRD, which 44 

means you’re -- It undermines the argument you just made and so 45 

it’s -- 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, it’s a meaningless sentence. 48 
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 1 

MR. GRIMES:  No, it just means that how you electronically 2 

submit it is dictated by the SRD.  They might require that you 3 

email a form or you do it on this website and if the SRD changes 4 

the website or the electronic means through which you submit the 5 

information, you find that out from the SRD and to me, that 6 

makes a lot of sense. 7 

 8 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Froeschke, have you got some clarity here? 9 

 10 

DR. FROESCHKE:  My recall of the discussions on the IPT is 11 

whether the form would be submitted electronically or fax or 12 

some combination would be determined by what option you select.  13 

The SRD component of this, I believe, was to reflect that if the 14 

frequency of reporting needed to be changed -- That was my 15 

understanding of what this language was trying to achieve. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think, in any event, clarity is needed, so 18 

that we understand fully what’s anticipated and what’s not and I 19 

would disagree with Dr. Froeschke, because I think the frequency 20 

thing is taken care of by the insertion in Options c and e and 21 

that’s a different issue altogether.  I think we need some 22 

clarity and I think we need that before we choose preferreds or 23 

anything like that. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think Mr. Gill is exactly right and I cannot 26 

recall what exactly we meant by “as determined by the SRD” in 27 

that sentence. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  This is where we’re at.  Let’s get -- Mr. 30 

Froeschke, we need to get this cleaned up for the next meeting, 31 

so that we can choose preferreds or really understand this 32 

document in a better way.  Is that what everybody is telling me? 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I mentioned during committee, but, 35 

unfortunately, since I was not on it, I could not -- I am not in 36 

favor of the vagaries of Options c and e in Alternatives 2 and 37 

3.  It seems to me that that unduly burdens the dealer side.  We 38 

ought to choose what we need for the data collection portion and 39 

decide whatever that is and do it and anywhere from daily or 40 

weekly or whatever.  I would move that in Alternatives 2 and 3 41 

that we delete the options that include c and e. 42 

 43 

MR. PEARCE:  Does anybody second it?  Pam seconds it. 44 

 45 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I am going to vote against this motion as the 46 

vice chair of this committee on the South Atlantic.  We had 47 

lengthy discussions about these particular options and I think 48 
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that they should stay in here, because I felt that the South 1 

Atlantic felt pretty strongly about these options and I think 2 

that what they’re thinking is, especially something that has a 3 

small quota or you’re getting close to that quota being met, 4 

that we don’t want the fishermen to be penalized and so this is 5 

going to more frequent reporting as needed, when you’re getting 6 

close to those numbers. 7 

 8 

MR. ANSON:  I think I see his hand up, but I thought Dr. 9 

Crabtree talked about this earlier today. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think I probably agree with Jessica not to take 12 

it out, but I think I probably agree with Mr. Gill that it’s not 13 

the way to go and the problem comes back to what I brought up in 14 

the committee meetings. 15 

 16 

It’s not clear to me that you can select just some dealers to go 17 

to weekly reporting for some species and I think we’ve got ACLs 18 

we have to monitor on everything now and so there’s always going 19 

to be something somewhere that’s going to require daily 20 

reporting and I just worry that it will become an overly 21 

burdensome, unworkable mess.  I’m not sure at the South Atlantic 22 

how much we got into that aspect of it, Jessica.  23 

 24 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I think we had that discussion some, but I agree 25 

with Roy.  I think that it should be clarified in these 26 

alternatives that that is an option on a species-by-species 27 

basis and that that doesn’t have to occur for every particular 28 

species. 29 

 30 

DR. PONWITH:  I am not on the committee, but as a recipient of 31 

these data, I am excited about this discussion, because I think 32 

that going to electronic is going to be an amazing improvement 33 

in how limber we can be in being responsive to changes in this 34 

fishery. 35 

 36 

I like the idea of having the ability to change the periodicity.  37 

I can’t, right now, totally envision the details of how that 38 

would play out, which may be troublesome right now, but by 39 

having it in there, it avoids the situation of having to come -- 40 

If we have an opportunity where finer-scale data would actually 41 

be beneficial and everybody agrees this would make the reporting 42 

better and it’s to the advantage of the industry as well as to 43 

us in trying to guide the council’s decisions, we don’t have to 44 

wait for that change to be put in. 45 

 46 

I can understand some discomfort from the council’s standpoint 47 

of the vagaries of not knowing when it would kick in, but the 48 
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intent -- I would share with you just simply the intent of this 1 

and the intent is to build into the system, at its onset, the 2 

flexibility to be able to change the periodicity without having 3 

to come back and go through this process again, in the event 4 

that circumstances drove us to the decision that that was 5 

actually going to be to the benefit of the industry. 6 

 7 

MR. GRIMES:  I would advise at this point that you not remove it 8 

from the document.  Maybe there are legitimate reasons and it 9 

sounds like there are potentially legitimate reasons for not 10 

going this way in the end, but that’s a reason for rejecting it 11 

or not having it as your preferred alternative. 12 

 13 

It’s not something that makes it unreasonable and that would 14 

need to come out of the document and I also think it’s 15 

premature, because -- I apologize, because I’m not on this IPT 16 

and so I’m not all that well versed in this action, but I think 17 

you need more information before you reject something like this. 18 

 19 

You need to have some more discussion of it and some specifics 20 

in there about how it’s going to work and so I think this motion 21 

is premature at this time. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think the discussion would support that.  I 24 

withdraw this motion, but I think we need to ask staff that 25 

Action 2 needs considerable work and clarification, so that we 26 

fully understand what these alternatives are trying to 27 

accomplish and the details that have been discussed, both in 28 

committee and here at council, are pretty darned clear when we 29 

bring it back in June.  With that caveat, I withdraw this 30 

motion. 31 

 32 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree with you, Mr. Gill, I really do. 33 

 34 

DR. DANA:  My only point was to just say pretty much what you 35 

said.  You were looking for more clarity in these options.  I 36 

very much appreciate the flexibility that you are seeing in the 37 

weekly and daily, but what I heard from you is the clarity that 38 

is needed and it wasn’t found right now. 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m in agreement with all that.  One thing I know 41 

we did discuss extensively at the South Atlantic Council meeting 42 

is what we’re really trying to do here is put some teeth on the 43 

requirements of when you have to report. 44 

 45 

The more we load this up with “if selected” and changing the 46 

timing, the Center is going to have to send notification to 47 

dealers that now you have to report daily instead of weekly and 48 
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for these species and the more of that you put in here, the more 1 

burden there is going to be put on any enforcement action that 2 

wants to penalize a dealer for not reporting, because you’re 3 

going to have to show that he actually got the notice and you’re 4 

going to have to go through all these steps. 5 

 6 

I just think the more complicated we make this, the more 7 

difficult it will be to ever actually enforce a fine for someone 8 

for failing to report.  It just gives them more ways to fight 9 

it, I think, and so that’s something to be cognizant of and 10 

probably something we ought to consult with the enforcement 11 

attorneys at the next council meeting. 12 

 13 

DR. FROESCHKE:  One thing I think would help clean this all up 14 

is that we have the strikethrough -- Because you hadn’t seen the 15 

changes from the South Atlantic and so I guess my question is on 16 

Action 2, like you did in Action 1, you could either vote to at 17 

least accept the changes that the South Atlantic made and so 18 

that would be a building block for us to revise it, based on 19 

your comments now, or if you prefer, I guess we could go back to 20 

the original one.  I don’t know what your pleasure is. 21 

 22 

MR. PEARCE:  John has a suggestion that we adopt or reject the 23 

South Atlantic changes, so we can finish the document. 24 

 25 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I was going to make a motion, if you’re ready for 26 

that. 27 

 28 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, we’re ready. 29 

 30 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I will make a motion that we accept the changes 31 

from the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council on Action 2 32 

and ask staff to clarify the specifics of these alternatives 33 

before the next round of this document comes out. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  Do we have a second?  We do have a second.  Any 36 

discussion on the motion? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I must admit I don’t have great familiarity with 39 

these, but at first blush, I am going to oppose this motion. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Jessica, nothing personal, but I’ve been trying to 42 

divorce the South Atlantic Council for twenty-five years and we 43 

haven’t done it and I have a mindset like Mr. Gill.  I don’t 44 

know if I want to give carte blanche to what another council 45 

did. 46 

 47 

MR. PEARCE:  Any other discussion? 48 
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 1 

MR. GRIMES:  We can pay a little more attention and read through 2 

the changes and gain more familiarity with it, hopefully 3 

beforehand, or you can realize that you’re going to see this 4 

again.  You’re going to get it back in June and you’re going to 5 

get it back in August. 6 

 7 

My sense of this is the effort to put the underlined strikeout 8 

stuff in here was to provide you greater familiarity, but it 9 

seems to have created as much confusion as it has caused 10 

familiarity and so I think it would be easier for you, for 11 

everyone, if you got a clean version next time that had 12 

everything there spelled out and without the underlined 13 

strikeout and everybody can look at it.  If you want to make 14 

changes then, you’re free to make changes. 15 

 16 

MR. PEARCE:  I would agree with Shep.  Let’s put everything in 17 

the document and let’s get it cleaned up, so we can clearly 18 

understand this for the next meeting.  Then we can make our 19 

decisions as to what we’re going to do. 20 

 21 

MR. PERRET:  I was going to talk to the motion on the board, but 22 

I agree with what Shep just said, but since he mentioned we need 23 

to -- Some of us are not reading things in its entirety and 24 

maybe you could explain what this means, this suggested change, 25 

because I sure as heck don’t understand it.   26 

 27 

No purchase forms, whatever that is, must be submitted at the 28 

same frequency via the same process and for the same species as 29 

specified for purchase forms in Action blah, blah, blah.  What 30 

does all that mean? 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  A no purchase form means if you didn’t buy any of 33 

the species, you have to report that you didn’t buy any. 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  Must be submitted in the same frequency via the 36 

same process for the same -- 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  If, for example, you’re selected to report daily 39 

on Species A, you have to report that you didn’t buy any on a 40 

daily basis for that species. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  I’m sure I’m the only one around this table that 43 

didn’t understand that. 44 

 45 

MR. PEARCE:  We have a motion on the floor.  Any other 46 

discussion of that motion?  Hearing none, all in favor of the 47 

motion say aye; all opposed.  We will have a show of hands.  All 48 
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in favor raise your hands, eight; all opposed.  The motion 1 

carries.   2 

 3 

Are we finished with Action 2?  Let’s go back to the report.  4 

Action 3 addresses requirements to maintain a dealer permit and 5 

five alternatives are proposed in this action.  The South 6 

Atlantic Council recommended that Alternative 4 be moved to the 7 

rejected alternatives appendix.   8 

 9 

Proposed Alternative 4 was added.  The first infraction, a fine 10 

in accordance with NOAA GC penalty schedule is administered.  11 

Alternative 5 was also added by the South Atlantic Fishery 12 

Management Council at their March 2012 meeting.  No purchase 13 

forms must be submitted at the same frequency, via the same 14 

process, and for the same species as specified for purchased 15 

forms in Actions 1 and 2.   16 

 17 

A dealer would only be authorized to receive commercially-18 

harvested species if the dealer’s previous reports have been 19 

submitted by the dealer and received by NMFS in a timely manner.  20 

Any delinquent reports would need to be submitted by the dealer 21 

and received by NMFS before a dealer could receive commercially-22 

harvested species from a federally-permitted vessel.   23 

 24 

Ms. Muehlstein summarized the comments received during scoping 25 

meetings and at site visits across the Gulf coast, Tab E, 3a.  26 

Specifically, fishermen in Fort Myers, Florida suggested that 27 

seafood dealers report online weekly until 75 percent of the 28 

quota caught, at which point daily reporting should be required.  29 

 30 

In Key West, Florida, fishermen wondered if creation of a 31 

universal permit would allow fishermen to transit to get a 32 

better price for fish.  They did not want separate Gulf and 33 

South Atlantic permits.  34 

 35 

During site visits across the coast, seafood dealers suggested 36 

that all reporting be consolidated into one central location to 37 

reduce the administrative burden.  Some dealers thought that 38 

weekly reporting was too frequent.  Dealers asked that the 39 

reporting system would send them reminders and prompt them to 40 

report before penalties were levied against them.  41 

 42 

They also asked that there be forgiveness for failure to report 43 

as long as non-reporting was not malicious.  At the Destin, 44 

Florida scoping hearing, Mr. Krebs and Mr. Morgan provided 45 

comments on this document.  Both spoke in support of electronic 46 

reporting for seafood dealers.   47 

 48 
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Dr. Ponwith provided an update on the status of electronic 1 

reporting programs being evaluated for headboats and the for-2 

hire sector in the Gulf of Mexico.  She stated that they are 3 

making good progress on implementing electronic reporting for 4 

head boats and they are working toward full implementation this 5 

year.   6 

 7 

In reference to the for-hire pilot program, Dr. Ponwith stated 8 

that compliance was too low to recommend implementation of a 9 

census survey in this sector.  A final report is being prepared, 10 

will be submitted and reviewed by MRIP, and released for public 11 

review and comment.   12 

 13 

Dr. Ponwith indicated that she would like to decouple the 14 

electronic and census components of the pilot program, as 15 

electronic reporting may be viable even if a census survey 16 

program in the for-hire sector is not feasible.   17 

 18 

Doctors Crabtree and Ponwith discussed the increased time to 19 

produce catch estimates from a survey and that continued use of 20 

paper-based reporting could further delay this process.  Dr. 21 

Ponwith stated the need to work in concert with MRIP to develop 22 

this program.   23 

 24 

Dr. Crabtree noted that a panel survey, where individuals are 25 

selected and repeatedly sampled, could be used to expand survey 26 

estimates that may increase timeliness and accuracy over the 27 

status quo methodology.  Dr. Ponwith suggested that the 28 

correlation between the headboat and for-hire sector could be 29 

evaluated, as headboat catch data are expected to be available 30 

near real time with an electronically-reported census survey.   31 

 32 

If catch patterns between the headboat and for-hire groups are 33 

similar, this relationship could be used to improve harvest in 34 

the for-hire sector.  35 

 36 

DR. DANA:  I think that last sentence doesn’t read correctly and 37 

I think there’s a word missing.  It says “this relationship 38 

could be used to improve harvest in the for-hire sector” and I 39 

think it’s “harvest data”, perhaps. 40 

 41 

DR. FROESCHKE:  Harvest estimates or something like that.  I 42 

apologize, but there is a typo there.  It’s harvest estimates. 43 

 44 

MR. PEARCE:  Add harvest data to the report. 45 

 46 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I’m afraid to even ask this, but we did not 47 

approve the South Atlantic Council’s changes to Action 3 and do 48 
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we need to do that? 1 

 2 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, we do.  Let me finish this report and we’ll 3 

come right back to that.  Thank you, Jessica.  There was some 4 

discussion about the factors affecting low compliance in Florida 5 

during the electronic reporting pilot program for the for-hire 6 

sector.   7 

 8 

Mr. Greene stated that he was unsure why compliance was low in 9 

Florida and Dr. Dana added that the Destin fleet, with which she 10 

is most familiar, was supportive of electronic reporting, 11 

although the potential costs would have to be considered.  12 

 13 

DR. DANA:  Just as a point of clarification, I think my remark 14 

was that in terms of the Destin fleet and in compliance with the 15 

electronic reporting with the pilot programs, I had not 16 

encountered pushback.  I didn’t say that there was necessarily 17 

full support, but I did not encounter pushback. 18 

 19 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you and, John, please make sure you add that 20 

to this final report, please.  With that, I would entertain a 21 

motion to accept the changes from the South Atlantic. 22 

 23 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  So moved. 24 

 25 

MR. PEARCE:  We have a motion to accept the changes from the 26 

South Atlantic Council in Action 3, Alternative 4 and 27 

Alternative 5. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Action 3? 30 

 31 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes, Action 3.  We did not accept it.  We did 32 

Action 1 and 2, but we didn’t do Action 3. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Was not the previous motion doing exactly that? 35 

 36 

MR. PEARCE:  No, that was Action 2. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  What changes were in Action 2 that -- They 39 

aren’t written the same and -- I’m sorry and just go ahead. 40 

 41 

MR. PEARCE:  I think let’s get this done and then when we put 42 

all this together for the next meeting, we’ll have it all in 43 

front of us in a better way. 44 

 45 

MR. GRIMES:  It’s the same situation.  It’s the underline and 46 

strikethrough stuff.  I was under the impression that the last 47 

motion took care of it universally, but I guess I missed that 48 
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and it was action-by-action and so I would say everything I said 1 

before applies to this action as well and you will see it again 2 

the next meeting. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  The only thing I would point out is there’s been 5 

a lot of discussion with NOAA Office of General Counsel 6 

enforcement attorneys about what we can and cannot require in 7 

terms of penalties. 8 

 9 

For example, Alternative 2, which says the dealer permit would 10 

be suspended if you miss a single report, it’s not at all clear 11 

to me that we have the authority to require that the enforcement 12 

attorneys do that and so I think in response to some of that, 13 

the South Atlantic Council added Proposed Alternative 4, which 14 

proposes a fine in accordance with the NOAA Office of General 15 

Counsel penalty schedule. 16 

 17 

I suspect as we go along that some of these other alternatives 18 

may drop out as things we don’t have the authority to do and 19 

frankly, to me, suspending a permit because someone missed a 20 

single report seems a little onerous anyway. 21 

 22 

MR. PERRET:  That’s what I was thinking, Roy.  One of the 23 

options is suspend the permit for a year and was there any 24 

discussion of catastrophic events, like we’ve certainly had with 25 

storms and things of that sort?  There’s all sorts of reasons 26 

that dealers will not be able to report if actions of that type 27 

take place and we must have consideration for things like that.  28 

We know what happened after Katrina, for example. 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  In the previous action, we inserted Alternative 31 

5, which provides for catastrophic conditions, that you can use 32 

back-up paper-based components for reporting and things.  I 33 

guess we could ask staff to expand that a little bit to give the 34 

RA authority to alter the reporting timeline requirements and 35 

things along with that.  I don’t know if that’s in here or not. 36 

 37 

MR. PEARCE:  Corky, would you like to add that as a motion? 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  It just seems to me this document needs so much 40 

work that we’re going to have plenty of time to work with it.  I 41 

think an option that suspends a permit for one year because 42 

somebody didn’t submit a form is going a little bit overboard, 43 

but still, at this stage, I’m willing to let it go. 44 

 45 

MR. PEARCE:  Let’s get this motion voted up or down and then we 46 

can go -- We’re getting off the subject right now.  Mr. Gill, is 47 

it to this point? 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It’s to the motion.  I’m going to oppose it for 2 

the same reasons I opposed the previous one. 3 

 4 

MR. PEARCE:  Any more discussion of the motion?  All in favor of 5 

the motion raise your hand; all opposed.  The motion passes. 6 

 7 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just like to reiterate what Dr. Crabtree 8 

said and I mentioned this last time the council reviewed this.  9 

Some of the alternatives that are in here are not things that 10 

this council can specify and the concerns about suspending a 11 

permit for one year based on non-reporting, we can’t do that. 12 

 13 

For some reason, the alternatives have remained in the document 14 

and I wouldn’t get too entrenched over that.  Again, you’ll see 15 

it when it comes back again and even if the alternative is there 16 

in your document, you can’t select it as preferred. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  Mr. Grimes, we would ask that NOAA General 19 

Counsel make it clear to us what we can and can’t do and remove 20 

some of the suspense. 21 

 22 

MR. RILEY:  This just goes back to cleaning up the document, but 23 

I think we should ask staff, if there’s a daily reporting 24 

requirement, to define a day, because obviously they’re looking 25 

at no-buying reports and are these going to be required on just 26 

the five workdays or are we looking at Saturday and Sunday?  27 

Make sure that’s clarified in the document. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  All right.  John, we’ve really got to get this one 30 

clarified for the next meeting completely.  We’ve got to get 31 

that straight, so we understand. 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  Then I would also ask that staff look at the 34 

possibility, under the catastrophe contingency plan, of allowing 35 

alterations of the reporting frequencies, because some dealers 36 

may in fact not be able to report, but they may be receiving 37 

seafood and selling it to local folks. 38 

 39 

MR. PEARCE:  John, do you understand that and you’ve got that 40 

one?  Okay.  Any other discussion of this document? 41 

 42 

DR. DANA:  On the members present, there are a number of members 43 

that are not listed. 44 

 45 

MR. PEARCE:  I noticed that.  We had a pretty full committee.  46 

Anything else for this document?  If not, Mr. Gill, my report is 47 

finished. 48 
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 1 

MR. BOYD:  Chairman Pearce, I did not hear any motions from the 2 

committee and is that correct? 3 

 4 

MR. PEARCE:  No, you had plenty of motions. 5 

 6 

MR. BOYD:  Those were internal motions and there were no motions 7 

from this council? 8 

 9 

DR. SHIPP:  Yes, those were all council motions. 10 

 11 

MR. BOYD:  Those were all council motions? 12 

 13 

MR. PEARCE:  They were all council motions.  My committee was 14 

sleeping yesterday. 15 

 16 

MR. BOYD:  We have several other committee reports and I would 17 

like to go ahead and adjourn for today, because of the time.  It 18 

is now 5:48 and in the morning, I would like to change the order 19 

just a little bit.  I would like to do Artificial Reef first and 20 

then start with Reef Fish after that.  Any discussion about 21 

that?   22 

 23 

MR. RILEY:  I just have a question.  Did Mr. Gill rescind his 24 

chairmanship? 25 

 26 

MR. BOYD:  For the moment.  One other point is that we’ll be 27 

starting at eight o’clock in the morning. 28 

 29 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes and so my important question is can Dr. 30 

Bortone ensure that the coffee and refreshments will arrive a 31 

little early tomorrow, so that people will be awake and 32 

stimulated adequately? 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s an important question, Dr. Crabtree.  35 

Congratulations for hitting the mark. 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Roy, it’s here early, but you’re 38 

just not here early and that’s all. 39 

 40 

MR. BOYD:  We stand adjourned until eight o’clock in the 41 

morning. 42 

 43 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 5:50 p.m., April 18, 2012.) 44 

 45 

- - - 46 

 47 

April 19, 2012 48 
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 1 

THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 2 

 3 

- - - 4 

 5 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 6 

Council reconvened at the Omni Bayfront Hotel, Corpus Christi, 7 

Texas, Thursday morning, April 19, 2012, and was called to order 8 

at 8:00 a.m. by Chairman Bob Gill. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I will call the council to order.  Thank you, 11 

all.  We’re embarked on committee reports and the first one, as 12 

mentioned by Vice Chair Boyd yesterday evening, is Artificial 13 

Reef and Chairman Anson. 14 

 15 

ARTIFICIAL REEF COMMITTEE REPORT 16 

 17 

MR. ANSON:  Thank you, Chairman Gill.  The Artificial Reef 18 

Committee was held April 16.  Myself, Mr. John Greene, Dr. Tom 19 

McIlwain, Mr. Robin Riechers, Mr. Patrick Riley, Mr. Dave 20 

Donaldson, and Dr. Bob Shipp were in attendance.  The agenda was 21 

adopted as written and the minutes of the February 1, 2012 22 

meeting were approved with no modifications.   23 

 24 

The committee reviewed the discussion paper, Tab H-3, 25 

summarizing Essential Fish Habitat designation for artificial 26 

structures in current fishery management plans.  Dr. Froeschke 27 

indicated that artificial reefs are not specifically indicated 28 

as EFH in the Gulf of Mexico.  29 

 30 

However, most artificial reefs are within areas already 31 

considered EFH for many managed species, Figure 1, the 32 

attachment.  To consider adding essential fish habitat status to 33 

artificial structures would require amending the generic 34 

amendment addressing essential fish habitat designation for Gulf 35 

of Mexico Fishery Management Plans.   36 

 37 

The value of hard substrate to reef fish production is well 38 

documented, although total reef area provided by artificial 39 

reefs is minor compared to natural reefs.  For consideration as 40 

EFH, the mechanism in which artificial structures serve as 41 

essential fish habitat by species and life stage would be 42 

necessary.   43 

 44 

If artificial reefs were to be designated as EFH, the council 45 

must minimize the impacts of fishing on the habitat, per Section 46 

303(a)(7) of the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and 47 

Management Act.   48 
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 1 

All federal agencies must then consult with NOAA Fisheries on 2 

federal actions that may adversely affect EFH.  Dr. Froeschke 3 

stated that the number of required consultations could be 4 

considerable, given the current rate of platform removals and 5 

installations.   6 

 7 

Despite these consultations, NOAA Fisheries can only make non-8 

binding recommendations as to how to conserve affected habitat.  9 

The EFH designation does not give the council or NOAA Fisheries 10 

any additional regulatory authority, especially with regard to 11 

oil and gas platforms regulated by other federal or state 12 

agencies. 13 

 14 

After discussion of the proposed actions, the committee 15 

recommends, and I so move, to direct staff to develop a plan 16 

amendment to evaluate the appropriateness of designating fixed 17 

petroleum platforms and artificial reefs as EFH and develop 18 

alternatives that they be recognized as habitat areas of 19 

particular concern. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 22 

discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, is there any objection 23 

to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries. 24 

 25 

MR. ANSON:  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Next up will be the 28 

Coral Committee and Chairman Abele. 29 

 30 

CORAL COMMITTEE REPORT 31 

 32 

DR. ABELE:  Mr. Chairman, the agenda was adopted as written and 33 

the minutes of the February 9, 2011 meeting were approved with 34 

no modifications.   35 

 36 

Dr. Simmons provided a summary presentation of the Coral SSC 37 

meeting held March 8, 2012 in Tampa, Florida.  The Coral SSC was 38 

convened to provide guidance on a project examining trends in 39 

coral health and fisheries.   40 

 41 

Specifically, the Coral SSC provided guidance on two components 42 

of the project.  One was development of a publicly-accessible 43 

spatial database focused on Gulf of Mexico corals and related 44 

fisheries and two was convening a workshop of coral experts and 45 

managers to examine the interrelationships between corals and 46 

fisheries relative to long-term trends in coral condition.   47 

 48 
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The SSC provided advice about datasets, potential information 1 

gaps, and recommended participants and potential conference 2 

topics, including threats to coral health, management, coral 3 

habitats, habitat suitability models, and emerging research.   4 

 5 

Dr. Abele asked if artificial platforms are considered essential 6 

fish habitat for corals.  Staff responded that artificial reefs 7 

are not considered essential fish habitat for any species in the 8 

Gulf of Mexico and a change in designation would require an 9 

amendment to the Essential Fish Habitat Management Plan.  Mr. 10 

Chairman, this concludes my report. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That brings us to the 13 

Reef Fish Committee and Chairman Shipp. 14 

 15 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 16 

 17 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I think late yesterday 18 

afternoon, Trish forwarded the report.  The agenda was adopted 19 

with the addition, under Other Business, of a discussion on the 20 

recreational gag season for 2013 and an exempted fishing permit 21 

request from Louisiana for red snapper catches during out-of-22 

season fishing tournaments and a discussion of the graphs used 23 

by the SSC when setting ABCs.  The SSC graphs were discussed 24 

during discussion of the Amendment 38 options paper and 25 

subsequently removed from Other Business.   26 

 27 

The minutes of the January 31 and February 1, 2012 Reef Fish 28 

Committee meeting were adopted with the following changes: page 29 

48, lines 23 to 25, the minutes do not state whether the motion 30 

in these lines passed and it is believed that it did pass; and 31 

page 75, line 32, “suggested” should be “suggesting”. 32 

 33 

Final Action on Amendment 35, Greater Amberjack, Dr. Carrie 34 

Simmons gave an overview presentation on the preferred 35 

alternatives in Amendment 35 and the changes made to the 36 

document since the council reviewed it at the last meeting.   37 

 38 

She also reviewed the tradeoffs and benefits of the two 39 

recreational management measures, that is minimum size limits 40 

and fixed closed seasons, and informed the committee that 41 

fishing effort may have increased in the commercial sector since 42 

the development of the decision tools.   43 

 44 

The committee reviewed Amendment 35 action-by-action, Tab B, 45 

Number 3a, and no changes were made by the committee to Action 46 

1, Preferred Alternative 3, Option b.  Action 1, Modifications 47 

to the Greater Amberjack Rebuilding Plan, the Preferred 48 
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Alternative 3 is to modify the rebuilding plan for greater 1 

amberjack using the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council’s 2 

Preferred Annual Catch Limit/Annual Catch Target Control Rule 3 

established in the Generic ACL/Accountability Measures 4 

Amendment.   5 

 6 

Using these methods, Preferred Option b is to set the Annual 7 

Catch Limit at 1,780,000 pounds whole weight and Annual Catch 8 

Target at 1,539,000 pounds whole weight, as reduced from the 9 

ACL.   10 

 11 

Based on the 27 percent commercial and 73 percent recreational 12 

allocation of greater amberjack the sector ACLs and ACTs are as 13 

follows.  Commercial ACL is 481,000 pounds and the ACT is 14 

409,000 and the recreational is 1,299,000 and the ACT is 15 

1,130,000.  The total is 1,780,000 is the ACL and ACT is 16 

1,539,000. 17 

 18 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  It says in here that we adopted the ACL/ACT 19 

control rule, but the codified text, the updated text, that was 20 

sent out yesterday did not reflect that language. 21 

 22 

MR. GRIMES:  I think that reflects a misunderstanding of the 23 

role of the control rule.  The control rule is something that’s 24 

in the fishery management plan.  The way we have it set up now, 25 

when we implement changes through our regulations, through an 26 

open framework process, then we should follow the control rule.  27 

The FMP has set that out. 28 

 29 

It’s not something that we have chosen to codify and have as a 30 

closed framework measure.  Now, that’s a possibility and that 31 

would be very different for this council, but it’s something we 32 

could move to, but I think it’s something we ought to consider 33 

more than what would be the case now if we just decided to all 34 

of a sudden switch to doing it that way. 35 

 36 

DR. SHIPP:  Does that answer your question, Jessica?  Okay.  37 

Action 2, Recreational Management Measures, Action 2.1 is Modify 38 

the Recreational Minimum Size Limit for Greater Amberjack and 39 

the committee discussed the benefits of increasing the minimum 40 

size limit to thirty-four inches fork length, because it would 41 

allow the recreational fishing season to be open year-round and 42 

provide the additional benefits to the stock for spawning 43 

potential.   44 

 45 

At thirty-four inches fork length, 40 percent of the female 46 

greater amberjack in the population are estimated to be mature.  47 

Some committee members felt the thirty-four-inch fork length 48 
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increase was too great and a thirty-two-inch fork length 1 

incremental increase would still be beneficial for spawning 2 

potential.  Approximately 10 percent of the females in the 3 

population are estimated to be reproductively mature.   4 

 5 

However, at the thirty-two-inch fork length minimum size limit, 6 

a fix closed season or fall closure is more probable, 7 

particularly as the greater amberjack stock rebuilds.  The 8 

committee also discussed the timing of the benchmark assessment 9 

scheduled in 2013.   10 

 11 

An initial motion was made to make Alternative 3, increase the 12 

minimum size limit for greater amberjack to thirty-four inches 13 

fork length, the preferred alternative.  However, a substitute 14 

motion was subsequently made and passed to recommend Alternative 15 

2, increase the minimum size limit for greater amberjack to 16 

thirty-two inches fork length.  17 

 18 

By a vote of five to three, the committee recommends, and I so 19 

move, that in Action 2.1, the preferred alternative be 20 

Alternative 2, to modify the minimum size limit for greater 21 

amberjack to thirty-two inches fork length. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 24 

on the motion? 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I actually voted for this, but I went back and 27 

read the discussion that took place at the last council meeting 28 

and so now I’m going to speak against it and I think we should 29 

status quo, but I would like to hear from some other members. 30 

 31 

MR. GREENE:  I was going to make a substitute motion to Action 32 

2.1, that the preferred alternative be Alternative 1, the 33 

minimum size limit for greater amberjack to thirty inches fork 34 

length. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a substitute motion and it’s seconded by 39 

Ms. Williams.  Is there discussion on the motion? 40 

 41 

MR. RIECHERS:  As I indicated in committee, we’ve had a lot of 42 

discussion about this and I know there’s some concern about the 43 

discard mortality if we do start moving this up.  I guess I 44 

would question the notion or ask the question about whether or 45 

not there is any benefit.  Myron, I’m speaking for your motion 46 

here and so perk up here. 47 

 48 
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Whether or not there’s a notion that if we start pushing this 1 

up, maybe by two-inches at a time, is there some benefit in us 2 

doing it that way?  The fish grows very rapidly and we get to 3 

that minimum size threshold of 50 percent spawn and if we don’t 4 

change our seasons that we already have, and obviously we’re 5 

kind of doing this as a tandem, even though we can’t link them 6 

necessarily, is there a benefit to that?  I just pose the 7 

question, because I would let Dr. Crabtree maybe speak to that. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think there is.  I think, one, it would be a 10 

less noticeable impact on the fishery, in that the change would 11 

be less, and I suspect that you would have a less noticeable 12 

change in discards, because you would move up gradually and the 13 

fish would grow into it more quickly.  I think there’s reason to 14 

do it and I believe we have an amberjack assessment in 2013 and 15 

is that correct? 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s correct. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m concerned and so I’m going to support raising 20 

it up to thirty-two and staying with that, because I’m concerned 21 

that we may not get good news when we do get an assessment that 22 

is a little more certain on it and this seems to be moving us in 23 

the path we need to go to.   24 

 25 

All of the analyses seem to indicate that there would be 26 

benefits from changing the size limit and I believe when you do 27 

change size limits that it’s always a good idea to do it 28 

incrementally, so that you don’t end up with a big noticeable 29 

change in the fishery that’s going to result in a lot of 30 

discards and so it seems appropriate to me. 31 

 32 

MR. GREENE:  Let’s just do some basic rudimentary math here.  33 

We’ve only got 1.13 million pounds and a thirty-inch fish is 34 

going to give us a total of 82,241 fish to harvest this coming 35 

year.  If we go to thirty-two inches, we’re going to be down to 36 

68,000 fish and if we go to thirty-four inches, we’re down to a 37 

29 percent reduction as far as a total number of fish that can 38 

be landed. 39 

 40 

We’re not talking about many fish for the entire Gulf of Mexico 41 

to harvest here and we have a direct payback.  If we exceed that 42 

quota, then it’s going to be a dire complication and as we heard 43 

overwhelming support to keep it at thirty inches and that it was 44 

working and let’s leave everything alone and we’re constantly 45 

criticized for finagling with things before we give it a chance 46 

to work. 47 

 48 
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I speak in support of my motion, obviously, and I think we’ve 1 

hashed this out at seven or eight different meetings here and I 2 

think everybody knows where we’re at and what we’re trying to do 3 

and I just strongly encourage you to support this motion. 4 

 5 

DR. SHIPP:  I think the original motion, which I voted for, is 6 

the worst of both worlds.  It doesn’t really get us that much 7 

closer to the sexual maturity issue, which I think we should go 8 

towards, and it doesn’t extend the season. 9 

 10 

I think, in my mind, we have to balance the increased discards, 11 

the negative biological aspect of that, versus trying to get to 12 

that minimum sexual reproductive stage.  With a new stock 13 

assessment coming in 2013 and with the overwhelming public 14 

testimony to keep it at thirty inches, I think I will support 15 

the substitute motion on the board, but reluctantly. 16 

 17 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I agree with what Johnny and Bob have said and 18 

I’m going to support this motion.  We’ve heard this from the 19 

fishermen and we heard it yesterday and we’ve heard it at the 20 

FWC Commission meetings, to give this time to work, and I agree 21 

that we need to incrementally step up this minimum size, but I 22 

would like to do that after we get the next assessment, which is 23 

coming out in just a few months. 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  Obviously the fishery won’t collapse if we don’t 26 

make any changes before the stock assessment.  I would just like 27 

to remind everyone the mix we’re in.  We just have a difficult 28 

time marrying the biology and survival of the various species to 29 

the economic benefits of the users who come to the podium and 30 

that’s what we have right now. 31 

 32 

Those users want to keep status quo, but we all know in our 33 

hearts that status quo will never get us out of the woods.  It’s 34 

very good job security, because we’ll be here year after year 35 

after year, because until we get the SPR -- It doesn’t matter if 36 

we’re biomass-based, but it’s still a scientific term.  If you 37 

don’t get the SPR high enough, you never have the adult fish 38 

spawning to get the larva in the water to grow into young of the 39 

year to grow into adults. 40 

 41 

We have to eventually get there and whether we wait until after 42 

the stock assessment is not the point.  That might give us more 43 

guidance, but just remember that the mode was thirty-one inches 44 

and so we’re only really moving from thirty-one to thirty-two. 45 

 46 

If you look at the graph from I believe it was Daryl and Debbie, 47 

we’re already catching that size fish.  The fallacy I don’t want 48 
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you to fall into is when the users say that the big fish float 1 

away and they die.  No, the big fish ought to be in your ice 2 

chest.  The big fish are the ones you get to keep. 3 

 4 

We’re only moving from thirty to thirty-two inches and we’re not 5 

saying you have to release thirty-six and forty-two-inch fish.  6 

A thirty-two-inch fish is still very immature and maybe, at 7 

best, might move up to around 10 percent maturity, which means 8 

we’re still killing 90 percent are immature fish that have never 9 

spawned. 10 

 11 

Like I say, the fishery won’t collapse between now and the next 12 

stock assessment, although I’m highly in favor of moving the 13 

size limit forward or we will be here year after year tweaking 14 

it to suit the socioeconomic needs and not tweaking it to suit 15 

the biology and trying to get ourselves out of the woods.  Thank 16 

you. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think everybody knows where they’re going to 19 

vote on this one and so we’ll bring it to a vote.  We have a 20 

substitute motion in Action 2.1 that the preferred alternative 21 

be Alternative 1.  Alternative 1 is no action, do not modify the 22 

current minimum size limit of thirty inches fork length.  All 23 

those in favor of the motion please raise your hand; all those 24 

opposed to the motion raise your hand.  The motion carries.  25 

Back to you, Mr. Chairman. 26 

 27 

DR. SHIPP:  Action 2.2 is Modify the Recreational Closed Seasons 28 

for Greater Amberjack and no changes were made by the committee 29 

to Action 2.2, Preferred Alternative 1, which is no action, do 30 

not modify the current fixed closed season of June 1 to July 31. 31 

 32 

Action 3, Commercial Management Measures, no changes were made 33 

by the committee to Action 3, Preferred Alternative 2, Option a, 34 

to establish a -- Go ahead, Myron. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  I would like to make a motion or a substitute 37 

motion, substitute to your committee report, regarding the 38 

closed seasons and this is not out of order from what we did at 39 

the last meeting. 40 

 41 

My goal would be to try to fill in this void from the July 10 42 

snapper closure to the end of July, to give the charterboats 43 

something to fish for.  The people I spoke to said even if it is 44 

a closure sometime in December, that we lose those days, then so 45 

be it and that they would really like to have something to fish 46 

for during the summer, when it’s calm and school is out and 47 

tourists are abundant. 48 
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 1 

If I can’t get support for moving the season back the full 2 

twenty days, I will shoot for ten days and say I would like to 3 

see amberjack season open by July 20, rather than the 1st, to 4 

give at least ten more days of summertime fishing and if someone 5 

is bolder than I and they want to pull it back to the end of 6 

snapper season, I would support that also.  I would move that 7 

the opening of amberjack season be pulled back ten days to that 8 

point in the July 20 and that is my motion. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Would you repeat that, Mr. Fischer? 11 

 12 

MR. FISCHER:  The motion would be the start date of amberjack 13 

season to be July 20 or it should say the closure would end July 14 

20, whichever way you want to -- The closure would only be June 15 

1 to July 20, rather than July 31 or whatever we have. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Do we have a second for the motion? 18 

 19 

DR. SHIPP:  I’ll second it. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It’s seconded by Chairman Shipp and is there 22 

discussion on the motion? 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  What’s the magical -- Why July 20? 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  Because I said my motions don’t pass and I would 27 

shoot for the end of snapper season, but that would give us ten 28 

more days of season and I figured the Service would say that it 29 

would take away so many days in December and it wouldn’t get 30 

support, but I would highly entertain -- I would second the 31 

substitute motion to pull it back to July 10, the closure.  I’m 32 

just trying to give these boats something to fish for in the 33 

summer. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think you’re pretty right in what the Service 36 

would say.  This is fine if it’s what you want to do, but it 37 

does increase -- The more you shorten this closure, the more it 38 

increases the probability of a closure in the fall. 39 

 40 

MR. FISCHER:  Right and what I hear is there’s not a lot of 41 

activity taking place from Thanksgiving to New Years Day and 42 

they would prefer a closure during those dates.  I’m sure 43 

there’s charterboat people here that would speak in opposition, 44 

speak differently, but I’m just saying it’s -- I’m making the 45 

motion based on what we’ve heard. 46 

 47 

DR. CRABTREE:  My worry is just that it knocks the closure back 48 



119 

 

to October sometime. 1 

 2 

DR. SHIPP:  I guess Roy is addressing my question to the 3 

Service.  Do we have an analysis to know how much of a closure 4 

we would have in the fall?  If it was just the month of 5 

December, I would say fine, but if you’re talking about closing 6 

in October, then I think that’s serious and, Roy, if you’ve got 7 

an answer to that, I would appreciate it. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t have an answer and I think the way you’ve 10 

got to think about this is it’s very inexact for us to predict 11 

how these things are going to work out.  The catches vary a lot 12 

from year to year, due to weather and effort and gas prices and 13 

all sorts of things. 14 

 15 

It’s just all a matter of probabilities and certainly the 16 

shorter this closure is, the more probability there is that you 17 

will have an earlier closure in the fall, but I don’t think we 18 

have any way to really exactly analyze that kind of thing, 19 

because we get the data in two waves and it just doesn’t have 20 

that kind of precision to it and so it’s just a matter of risk.  21 

Certainly the more you shorten the closure, the more risk there 22 

is that you have a closure in the fall. 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was just wondering when we set the date before 25 

that we’re under, surely we took public testimony then and we 26 

had some kind of analysis and that’s why those dates were chosen 27 

or we would have chose something that was more suitable for 28 

fishing in the summertime, I would think. 29 

 30 

Of course, I don’t have all of that in front of me to see why we 31 

chose that particular time and it probably had something to do 32 

with how many days you could stay open and if it would shorten 33 

the season, I’m sure. 34 

 35 

Also, I know they fish for certain things in Florida that they 36 

don’t fish for in Texas and vice versa at the same time.  37 

Sometimes I know they have a winter fishery and I don’t know 38 

what they fish for in Texas in the wintertime, as it gets later, 39 

and so I don’t know how this would affect the industries.  Thank 40 

you. 41 

 42 

DR. DANA:  A fall closure would be detrimental for at least 43 

northwest Florida, and I do believe in the Alabama area, because 44 

we do have a tourist season that exists and in the past, it has 45 

been closed, amberjack, in October and it really caused a lot of 46 

issues for Roy, in particular, and others.  I just don’t want to 47 

see a fall closure based on minimizing the summer season. 48 
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 1 

MR. RIECHERS:  This is a very similar motion to a motion that I 2 

believe Dr. Crabtree or an alternative that Dr. Crabtree had 3 

added to this document several months ago and then I think we’ve 4 

moved away from that. 5 

 6 

I would ask Carrie or Steve if you all remember that and is 7 

there any analysis that might help us with the number of days 8 

that we think this is going to remove from the end of the year? 9 

 10 

DR. CARRIE SIMMONS:  You can look at Table 2.2.3 in the document 11 

and it would be similar to what would be Alternative 5, with the 12 

taking three days away.  As you can see, you’re exceeding the 13 

ACT with Alternative 5 and so you would certainly be exceeding 14 

the ACT with this alternative, based on the analysis that we 15 

have from the Regional Office right now, and it’s more likely 16 

that you would potentially exceed the ACL and be closed earlier 17 

in the fall, potentially in November or December, based on 18 

maintaining the thirty-inch minimum size limit. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion? 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  This is the path we go down.  We got to a fork in 23 

the road a minute ago and we took it and a thirty-two-inch fish 24 

would have no additional closure, but we decided to stay at 25 

thirty inches and so now we can’t increase our summer season.  26 

If we would have went to thirty-two, the analysis that we’ve 27 

done, we could have gone to the full twenty-day opening in the 28 

summer and then given the boats something to fish for all 29 

summer. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We’ll vote on the motion.  The motion is in 32 

Action 2.2 to add a new Preferred Alternative 6 that the greater 33 

amberjack recreational closure would be June 1 to July 20.  All 34 

those in favor say aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion does 35 

not pass. 36 

 37 

DR. SHIPP:  That takes us to the commercial management measures.  38 

No changes were made by the committee to Action 3, Preferred 39 

Alternative 2, Option a, establish a commercial greater 40 

amberjack trip limit and maintain March 1 to May 31 closed 41 

season.  Preferred Option a is establish a 2,000-pound whole 42 

weight trip limit for greater amberjack. 43 

 44 

Next, the committee discussed the proposed rule for Amendment 45 

35, Tab B, Number 3(b).  Mr. Grimes stated that staff could 46 

modify the proposed rule to reflect any changes made to the 47 

preferred alternatives after full council. 48 
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 1 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 2 

and I so move, that the council consider Amendment 35 for final 3 

action and forward it to the Secretary of Commerce for 4 

implementation and approval of the codified regulations. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion and is there any 7 

discussion on the motion?  This requires a roll call vote. 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight.  Absent.  Dr. Shipp. 10 

 11 

DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 14 

 15 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Dana. 18 

 19 

DR. DANA:  Yes. 20 

 21 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Abele. 22 

 23 

DR. ABELE:  Yes. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riley. 26 

 27 

MR. RILEY:  Yes. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Boyd. 30 

 31 

MR. BOYD:  Yes. 32 

 33 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 40 

 41 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 42 

 43 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 46 

 47 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 48 
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 1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 2 

 3 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 4 

 5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 6 

 7 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 10 

 11 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. McCawley. 14 

 15 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Yes. 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 18 

 19 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 20 

 21 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Chairman, the vote is sixteen 26 

for and one absent in favor of the motion. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The motion passes.  Back to you, Mr. Chairman. 29 

 30 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Options Paper for 31 

Amendment 38, Recreational Accountability Measures for Shallow-32 

water Grouper, Steven Atran reviewed the alternatives in the 33 

Amendment 38 options paper, Tab B, Number 4.   34 

 35 

Alternative 1, no action, paraphrases the current accountability 36 

measures, because the final wording of the codified regulations 37 

for Amendment 32 was still being revised when the options paper 38 

was written.  This will be clarified in the next version of the 39 

amendment.   40 

 41 

Mr. Atran noted that Alternatives 2 and 3 will also be clarified 42 

to indicate that the relevant accountability measures from the 43 

Generic ACL/AM Amendment would replace the gag/red grouper 44 

accountability measures that would be removed by those 45 

alternatives.   46 

 47 

Kay Williams asked that the Generic ACL/AM Amendment 48 
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accountability measures that were referred to be explicitly 1 

stated in the amendment.  Dr. Crabtree noted that the amendment 2 

needed to clarify the use of in-season closures versus post 3 

season accountability measures, payback provisions that are 4 

currently in place from Amendment 32, and if ABC is exceeded, 5 

then future increases in ACL would be canceled. 6 

 7 

Shepherd Grimes stated that there was a need to add revisions to 8 

accountability measures to the list of actions that could be 9 

implemented under the Generic Framework Procedure, so that 10 

future changes could be implemented by framework action and not 11 

require a full plan amendment.   12 

 13 

He suggested that an action be added to Amendment 38 to add 14 

revisions to accountability measures to the Generic Framework 15 

Procedure.  Steven Atran noted that the Generic Framework 16 

Procedure currently applies to all FMPs except those that are 17 

jointly managed.  Any changes implemented in a Reef Fish 18 

amendment would only apply to reef fish. 19 

 20 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 21 

and I so move, that an action to allow revisions to 22 

accountability measures via framework be added to Amendment 38. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 25 

discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, is there any opposition 26 

to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries unanimously. 27 

 28 

DR. SHIPP:  Interim Rule for Gray Triggerfish Annual Catch Limit 29 

and In-Season Closure Authority, Dr. Simmons gave a presentation 30 

on the purpose and need of the gray triggerfish interim rule, 31 

Tab B, Number 5(a) and (b), and the subsequent Amendment 37 that 32 

would replace the interim rule after it expires.   33 

 34 

The committee reviewed two actions in the interim rule for gray 35 

triggerfish to end overfishing until long-term management 36 

measures could be implemented.   37 

 38 

The first action in the interim rule would reduce the 39 

recreational and commercial ACLs and ACTs based on buffers 40 

calculated by using the ACL/ACT control rule and the second 41 

action would establish a recreational in-season closure 42 

authority once the annual catch target is reached or projected 43 

to be reached.   44 

 45 

The committee also discussed data timeliness and the ability to 46 

accurately project when the sector annual catch targets would be 47 

caught.  Dr. Crabtree responded that the projections based on 48 



124 

 

the annual catch target are possible and the recreational sector 1 

is currently projected to close in June or July 2012.   2 

 3 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 4 

and I so move, to recommend to the council that the Interim Rule 5 

for Gray Triggerfish Annual Catch Limit and In-Season Closure 6 

Authority be forwarded to the Secretary of Commerce for 7 

implementation. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We have a committee 10 

motion.  Is there any discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, 11 

this also requires a roll call vote. 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 14 

 15 

DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  No. 20 

 21 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Abele. 26 

 27 

DR. ABELE:  Yes. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 30 

 31 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 32 

 33 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 34 

 35 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight is absent.  Mr. 38 

Greene. 39 

 40 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 43 

 44 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. McCawley. 47 

 48 
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MS. MCCAWLEY:  Yes. 1 

 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 5 

 6 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riley. 7 

 8 

MR. RILEY:  Yes. 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce is absent.  Dr. Dana. 11 

 12 

DR. DANA:  Yes. 13 

 14 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Boyd. 19 

 20 

MR. BOYD:  Yes. 21 

 22 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes. 25 

 26 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Chairman, the vote is fourteen 27 

in favor, one no, and two absent. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The motion carries. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just to explain my no vote, I have instructions, 32 

on a procedural basis from Washington, to vote no on emergency 33 

rule requests if necessary to prevent a unanimous vote to 34 

preserve the Secretary’s discretion in terms of approval or 35 

disapproval.  It does not reflect my lack of support for the 36 

decision you made, which I think was the correct decision. 37 

 38 

DR. SHIPP:  Options Paper, Amendment 37, Gray Triggerfish 39 

Rebuilding Plan, Dr. Simmons reviewed the Draft Options Paper 40 

Amendment 37, Tab B, Number 6, to begin developing long-term 41 

management measures to rebuild the gray triggerfish by 2017.   42 

 43 

In Action 1, the committee was concerned with the timing of the 44 

rebuilding plan listed in the alternatives and felt that staff 45 

should be sure that the timelines laid out in the action will 46 

meet the gray triggerfish rebuilding plan by 2017.   47 

 48 
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Based on the timing of the interim rule, Action 1, Alternative 4 1 

is probably not a viable alternative.  There were no 2 

modifications made by the committee to Action 2, Establish 3 

Annual Catch Limits and Optional Annual Catch Targets for Gray 4 

Triggerfish.   5 

 6 

Action 3 has three commercial sub-actions, Action 2.3.1 and 7 

2.3.3.  The committee discussed minimum size limits and felt 8 

that a twenty-inch fork length gray triggerfish was too big.  By 9 

consensus, the committee recommends and I so move, that in 10 

Action 2.3.1, Alternative 4, modify the minimum size limit for 11 

gray triggerfish to twenty inches fork length, be removed. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 14 

on the motion?  Not seeing any discussion, is there any 15 

objection to the motion?  Not seeing any objection, the motion 16 

carries unanimously. 17 

 18 

DR. SHIPP:  Next, the committee reviewed the commercial trip 19 

limit alternatives.  A motion was made to move the commercial 20 

trip limits from the options paper to considered but rejected.  21 

However, the motion failed by a vote of four to four, primarily 22 

because some members of the committee thought it was important 23 

to maintain it as a potential action that could be combined with 24 

other alternatives to meet the necessary reductions for the 25 

commercial sector. 26 

 27 

Action 4 has three recreational sub-actions, Action 2.4.1 and 28 

2.4.3.  The committee reviewed Action 2.4.1 to modify the 29 

recreational minimum size limits and determined that a twenty-30 

inch inch fork length gray triggerfish this was too large and 31 

was landed in too low a frequency, based on the distribution of 32 

landings.   33 

 34 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 35 

and I so move, that in Action 2.4.1, move Alternative 4 to the 36 

considered but rejected section. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 39 

discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, any objection to the 40 

motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries unanimously. 41 

 42 

DR. SHIPP:  Based on the 2009 to 2011 landings for both the 43 

recreational and commercial sectors, there is a non-compliance 44 

issue with the minimum size limit for gray triggerfish.  The 45 

committee felt it was important to collaborate with the state 46 

directors, council staff, and NOAA Fisheries service to develop 47 

education and outreach materials to bring to the public.  48 
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 1 

It is possible that the modification in the regulations, 2 

changing from a total length to fork length, is still confusing 3 

to fishers in the Gulf of Mexico.  It is possible, through 4 

education about the gray triggerfish and the regulations, a 5 

reduction in landings could be achieved for both sectors.   6 

 7 

The committee requested in Action 2.4.3, to modify recreational 8 

bag limits, that additional analysis be completed for 9 

maintaining gray triggerfish as part of the twenty reef fish 10 

aggregate bag limit, with a fish per angler limit for gray 11 

triggerfish.  The committee also requested that information on 12 

regional management for gray triggerfish be considered in the 13 

next draft. 14 

 15 

Scoping Document, Amendment 33, Limited Access Privilege 16 

Program, Ava Lasseter reviewed the scoping document for the 17 

proposed commercial reef fish IFQ program, Tab B, Number 7, 18 

focusing on the additional information requested by the council 19 

during the January/February 2012 meeting.   20 

 21 

Additions to the document examine the context of each proposed 22 

species or species grouping for consideration of their 23 

appropriateness for inclusion in a new IFQ program.   24 

 25 

Generally, the proposed species are of low ex-vessel value 26 

compared to species in existing IFQ programs.  Rather than 27 

primary target species, they are generally bycatch species for 28 

many commercial vessels.   29 

 30 

The species and species groupings also vary as to their existing 31 

regulations.  Additional regulatory steps would be required 32 

prior to incorporating some of the proposed species in a new IFQ 33 

program.  These steps include establishing ACLs, AMs, and sector 34 

allocations.  Red porgy would first need to be included in the 35 

Reef Fish FMP.  36 

 37 

The committee then discussed the amendment and the species 38 

proposed for inclusion and questioned whether a new IFQ program 39 

was warranted.  Bob Gill requested that supporters of the 40 

proposed IFQ program contact the council to provide a rationale 41 

for why the program should go forward and have the comments 42 

presented at the June 2012 council meeting.   43 

 44 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 45 

and I so move, to request that staff cease work on Amendment 33 46 

and request it be brought back up at the June 2012 council 47 

meeting.   48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 2 

discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, is there any opposition 3 

to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries unanimously. 4 

 5 

DR. SHIPP:  Scoping Document for Red Snapper Provisions for 6 

Overage Adjustments, Steven Atran reviewed the scoping document 7 

on red snapper overage adjustments, Tab B, Number 8.  The 8 

document discussed three possible issues: response to overages, 9 

actions to prevent ACL overages, and response to underages.   10 

 11 

Kay Williams felt that the scoping document should solicit 12 

recommendations from the public for ideas on how to deal with 13 

the issues, such as the use of fish tags or days at sea.  Mr. 14 

Atran noted that there was an open-ended question of that type 15 

in the document, but it could be given more emphasis. 16 

 17 

Due to an expectation of low attendance if in-person scoping 18 

meetings were scheduled, Mr. Atran suggested instead that the 19 

scoping document be posted on the council web site and comments 20 

solicited via the internet.   21 

 22 

However, Ms. Williams responded that not everyone has a computer 23 

and she felt that in-person meetings were needed to connect with 24 

the fishermen.  Dr. Shipp recommended that if scoping meetings 25 

are held, they be piggy-backed with other meetings.  No action 26 

was taken on the scoping document. 27 

 28 

DR. ABELE:  I would like to move that this item be tabled, 29 

because we are going to have a red snapper benchmark in the very 30 

near future and there are a lot of issues associated with it and 31 

I think it would be a mistake just to isolate this one issue 32 

when it can be part of a larger overview of the red snapper 33 

issue and so I so move. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Is there a second to the motion?  It’s seconded 36 

by Ms. McCawley.  Is there discussion by the council? 37 

 38 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  There’s no discussion. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I’m sorry.  There’s no discussion on tabling and 41 

it’s my bad.  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all 42 

those opposed to the motion like sign.  The motion carries 43 

unanimously. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  Does that now mean we cannot discuss overage issues 46 

on red snapper, since we tabled it? 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN GILL:  I’m not sure I understand the nature of your 1 

question. 2 

 3 

MR. PERRET:  What did we table, the Scoping Document for Red 4 

Snapper Provisions for Overage Adjustments?  I assume we’re not 5 

going to have any discussions about what to do with overage 6 

adjustments, since we tabled this issue? 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we’re not going to have discussions about 9 

this scoping document, but that doesn’t mean we’re not going to 10 

discuss what happens if we go over in terms of adjustments and 11 

the implications for all sorts of other things. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  When I voted, I thought I was voting for us to 14 

table just that motion, which dealt with these people that -- 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The motion was whether or not to table the 17 

scoping document and the council voted to table it and so the 18 

scoping document has been tabled. 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  If there was confusion over the motion, I would 21 

suggest a revote would be in order, because some folks may want 22 

to change their vote. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Fair enough. 25 

 26 

DR. ABELE:  My intent was only that scoping document, because I 27 

don’t think we are anywhere close to where we need to be.  I 28 

never intended for us to not have a discussion on that.  I think 29 

the discussion would benefit greatly with the additional 30 

information, so that we can have an overview of all the issues 31 

related to red snapper, rather than before we even know what the 32 

new benchmark is, start having a discussion about overages.  33 

That was my reason for tabling it. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Given the confusion, I think Dr. Crabtree’s 36 

suggestion is well taken, but I will first recognize Ms. 37 

McCawley. 38 

 39 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I just wanted to agree with the discussion to 40 

table this.  I think we’re waiting for this benchmark assessment 41 

and I think that staff needed to do a lot of work on this 42 

document.  We’ve added some additional things in the mix and if 43 

we pull this document off the table, that will give staff time 44 

to work on other things and we can possibly look at this again 45 

after the next benchmark stock assessment. 46 

 47 

MR. ANSON:  I was wondering, when would that report come, the 48 
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red snapper IFQ report?  Does anyone know?  I can’t recall?  1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It’s on the schedule for August discussion.  Is 3 

there further discussion?  We’re going to revote on this motion, 4 

to clarify.  Is there further discussion before we do so?  It’s 5 

been voted and so we’re re-voting.  The motion is to table the 6 

discussion of the scoping document for red snapper provisions 7 

for overage adjustment.  All those in favor raise your hand; all 8 

those opposed raise your hand, please.  The motion carries.  9 

Back to you, Mr. Chairman. 10 

 11 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Grouper Allocations, David 12 

Carter and Juan Agar of the Southeast Fishery Science Center 13 

presented a study evaluating the economic efficiency of 2012 14 

allocations of gag, red, and black grouper in the Gulf of 15 

Mexico.   16 

 17 

Dr. Carter provided an outline for the presentation and 18 

discussed the recreational sector analysis.  Dr. Agar discussed 19 

the commercial sector analysis and summarized the results and 20 

conclusions of the study.   21 

 22 

The results suggest that the 2012 allocations of gag and red 23 

grouper are not economically efficient.  The magnitude of the 24 

reallocation and the extent to which societal benefits can be 25 

increased can only be confidently determined with improvements 26 

in the quality of existing data collections and new data 27 

collections.  Based on committee questions, Doctors Agar and 28 

Carter provided additional information relative to the 29 

assumptions and limitations of the study.     30 

 31 

Ava Lasseter reported on the Socioeconomic SSC meeting.  The 32 

SESSC heard presentations on the economic efficiency of grouper 33 

allocations, social indicators for quantifying community well-34 

being, and an update on the status of the five-year review of 35 

the red snapper IFQ program.   36 

 37 

Without a quorum in attendance, the committee chose to make 38 

recommendations to the council as follows.  The SESSC accepts 39 

the findings and conclusions in the presentation on “Economic 40 

Evaluation of Grouper Allocation” made by Dr. Agar and Dr. 41 

Carter, including that an effective framework presently does not 42 

exist that could be used to optimally allocate this marine 43 

resource of black, red, and gag grouper. 44 

 45 

The SESSC recommends that the council direct the committee to 46 

develop an effective framework to allocate this resource of red, 47 

black, and gag grouper and that necessary information and sets 48 
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of tools be identified to develop this framework. 1 

 2 

The SESSC recommends that while these effective frameworks are 3 

pursued, the council request that NMFS conduct the following: 4 

improve quality of IFQ allocation and share price data; collect 5 

charter/for-hire fees and variable costs per trip; collect 6 

continuous client information for charter/for- hire boats; 7 

collect demographic and socioeconomic profile information on 8 

captains and crew of commercial and charter/for hire boats; 9 

collect demographic and economic data on dealers and processors. 10 

 11 

The SESSC recommends that while incremental reallocation of red, 12 

black, and gag grouper may be warranted, it is premature for the 13 

council to consider significant reallocations, because both the 14 

recreational and commercial sectors are currently making 15 

adjustments to recently enacted management measures, such as bag 16 

limits, ACLs, IFQs and endorsement programs. 17 

 18 

Assane Diagne presented a scoping document for a grouper 19 

allocation amendment, Reef Fish Amendment 28.  The presentation 20 

discussed the purpose and need for the amendment, an overview of 21 

historical landings for the grouper species under consideration, 22 

a review of the allocation methods suggested in the council’s 23 

principles and guidelines for allocation, and a scope of actions 24 

to consider.   25 

 26 

Committee discussions suggested that practicable allocation 27 

methods, such as catch-based methods, be highlighted in the 28 

scoping document.  Committee members also suggested the 29 

consideration of approaches that would only reallocate increases 30 

to the quota. 31 

 32 

MR. PERRET:  Dr. Shipp, we had a recommendation for NMFS to do 33 

certain things, five bullets.  Did you committee do anything 34 

with that?  The SESSC recommends that while these effective 35 

frameworks are pursued that the council request that NMFS 36 

conduct the following. 37 

 38 

DR. SHIPP:  The reason was they didn’t have a quorum, but the 39 

committee did not formally recommend it.  They suggested it. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  They are asking the council. 42 

 43 

DR. SHIPP:  Yes and so it would be appropriate if you wanted to 44 

make a motion to that effect. 45 

 46 

MR. PERRET:  Dr. Crabtree, do you want to say something before I 47 

pursue making a motion? 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  No. 2 

 3 

MR. PERRET:  It seems like we’ve got a recommendation and the 4 

SESSC recommends -- I so move that we recommend to NMFS that 5 

they conduct the following and it’s the five bullets that are 6 

there in the minutes, improve quality of IFQ allocation and 7 

share price data; collect charter/for-hire fees and variable 8 

costs per trip; collect continuous client information for 9 

charter/for- hire boats; collect demographic and socioeconomic 10 

profile information on captains and crew of commercial and 11 

charter/for hire boats; collect demographic and economic data on 12 

dealers and processors. 13 

 14 

DR. SHIPP:  I will second it. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a motion and it’s seconded and let’s 17 

give Phyllis a little time to get it on the board and hopefully 18 

everybody understands it.  Is there discussion by the council? 19 

 20 

DR. ABELE:  I can only really support the first one, the IFQ, 21 

and I base that on the NOAA 2010 report on the snapper IFQ, in 22 

which it was reported the data were all over the map.  23 

Supposedly there were leased allocations for a dime and because 24 

no one was required, in the past, to report it, most people 25 

didn’t. 26 

 27 

There’s also -- I don’t know and maybe Dr. Crabtree can tell us, 28 

where the rule is on ex-vessel prices, because it’s clear from 29 

the official data reported that snapper, the ex-vessel price of 30 

snapper, has not increased in five years, which is odd, given 31 

that a share last year was selling for forty-five dollars.  32 

There’s something wrong and it makes it very difficult to assess 33 

what’s going on when what the sellers, buyers and sellers, 34 

report is that snapper has been flat and so only the first one. 35 

 36 

The others, I just really think it’s way more intrusive than I 37 

feel comfortable with, but I definitely believe that we need 38 

that IFQ allocation share price and ex-vessel price data cleaned 39 

up. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Are you making a substitute motion or just 42 

commenting? 43 

 44 

DR. ABELE:  I am making a substitute motion that the substitute 45 

motion only include the first bullet. 46 

 47 

DR. SHIPP:  I will second it. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a substitute motion to include the first 2 

bullet of improve quality of IFQ allocation and share price 3 

data.  It’s seconded by Dr. Shipp.  Discussion on the substitute 4 

motion? 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am going to speak against the substitute motion 7 

and this is why.  We ask our SSC to advise us and then we don’t 8 

take their advice.  That’s one of the biggest problems that 9 

we’ve got, because we’re paying these people a little stipend or 10 

something, but yet they’re also taking time away from their job 11 

and they give us this advice. 12 

 13 

When you say you think it’s a little intrusive, it’s really not.  14 

We already collect most of this data anyway, as far as the 15 

demographics and stuff.  A lot of those questions have already -16 

- There’s been a lot of research and studies done and the 17 

information is probably out there, but we just don’t have it, 18 

because I’ve seen it.  It’s on the internet. 19 

 20 

The other thing is that we need more information about these 21 

dealers.  We have dealers going out of business because they 22 

don’t have fish to buy because this swapping or leasing or these 23 

things is affecting them, because where they used to buy these 24 

fish from a certain amount of vessels, you take and you lease 25 

those fish to maybe someone in another state, they’ve just lost 26 

that product and so we have to realize what’s going on with our 27 

dealers, because a lot of them have already went out of business 28 

or some of them are in the process of going out of business. 29 

 30 

It’s going to get to where there’s no place to process these 31 

fish and so I think we need that information to help us make 32 

some decisions perhaps in the future, even to say maybe we feel 33 

like we need to put a cap on how much you can lease or 34 

something. 35 

 36 

There’s some information there that they need to advise us.  37 

There’s information there that we need to make decisions and not 38 

only that, but one thing that I saw lacking in that other list 39 

was we need some information, as Harlon was talking about, on 40 

the end product. 41 

 42 

What’s the value of that fish in that restaurant?  We don’t have 43 

any of that.  We’re missing so many things, because seafood is 44 

extremely important.  It’s important to our heritage, when you 45 

talk about the Gulf coast. 46 

 47 

You see it on the news with this BP oil spill and they talk 48 
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about the commercial industry and how it’s affecting the 1 

restaurants and all of that, but yet when we sit here and we do 2 

management measures, we don’t consider that and we should be 3 

doing that and so that’s why I speak in opposition to the 4 

motion. 5 

 6 

DR. PONWITH:  Certainly we appreciate a clear understanding of 7 

what the SSC’s priorities are in terms of additional research 8 

needs and data collection needs to help them properly advise the 9 

council and we give a lot of weight to the views of the council 10 

in terms of your input on research priorities, particularly in 11 

the form of the research priority document that you put out on 12 

an annual basis.  What information do you need, from a science 13 

perspective, to better serve your decision making process? 14 

 15 

I know that economic and social science analysis is plagued by 16 

the same types of problems that we have for understanding the 17 

critters in the marine environment and that is the availability 18 

of good data and so getting a recommendation on data types that 19 

would actually be valuable in making those decisions. 20 

 21 

I think it’s important and it helps us in our strategic planning 22 

and it helps us in making decisions about where we put emphasis 23 

when we’re seeking new funds.  I am concerned about seeing a 24 

recommendation from the SSC and then not have it go forward, 25 

because I do know that data problems are an issue.   26 

 27 

This is on another subject, but there were some follow-up 28 

requests regarding the economic study that I just want to make 29 

sure we get to in the course of this discussion and now is 30 

probably not the right time, but eventually. 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  I guess I’m going to support the substitute and I 33 

probably would have supported the first one as well, because I 34 

don’t see any harm in pushing it forward, to some degree, but I 35 

think we need to be looking at this in terms of tradeoffs, 36 

folks.  We’re not going to be getting more money for data 37 

collection, or not a lot more money, I should say, even though I 38 

think Bonnie is hopeful that she would. 39 

 40 

The reality of it is I suspect if we want to go down a road of 41 

prioritization about what data is the most important and we get 42 

all the different datasets, both biological and economic, et 43 

cetera, in front of us and we create that prioritization, that 44 

makes some sense. 45 

 46 

We do that once a year and I’m sure on this list or previous 47 

lists we’ve sent forward that some of this is in there.  At some 48 
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point, we need to prioritize and make sure we ask for the real 1 

critical things we need and not just the things that someone 2 

wants. 3 

 4 

As Kay indicated, some of this may be out there and it may be 5 

somewhat dated, but there may be some information about it and 6 

if that’s out there, they should have had it already and they 7 

should have already taken it into account as they deliberated 8 

the other day. 9 

 10 

If it wasn’t in front of them, they should have helped staff 11 

understand, or whoever was leading that meeting to understand, 12 

that it was out there in various forms and go get it and bring 13 

it to the table.  Again, I’m going to support the substitute, 14 

but I think we just need to think about prioritization as we 15 

move forward. 16 

 17 

DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  Of the list of recommendations by the SSC, 18 

on the second bullet, the first part of it, the charter fees, 19 

would be on the easiest and most critical things to collect.  20 

During previous discussions, a lot of council members have 21 

questions about the stated preference approach.   22 

 23 

Getting charter fees will help us reveal some of those prices 24 

and would go a long way towards helping the recreational 25 

analysis in the recreational sector, because those are actual 26 

prices in the market and so maybe if you would consider also 27 

just the second bullet, the first part, collecting charter fees 28 

by themselves. 29 

 30 

MR. ANSON:  I will not be supporting the substitute motion.  I 31 

agree that the comments that Ms. Williams had made in regards to 32 

supporting our SSC and making the recommendations to NMFS staff 33 

to go out and collect the information that we need as a council 34 

to go ahead and make the best judgment. 35 

 36 

We received a report at this meeting using the angler preference 37 

data from 2003 and that, although you can apply some inflation 38 

and such adjustments, there’s changes in the industry and the 39 

sector and so those numbers may not reflect actual reality. 40 

 41 

There are some instances, I think, where as the SSC starts to 42 

come into its own that they will be in tune and in touch with 43 

some information and there has been some information collected 44 

to these very bullets that were proposed in the original motion.  45 

However, they too are outdated and it’s one of those things that 46 

they’ll have to, in the light of further decreasing budgets, to 47 

prioritize, but certainly us giving them some indication as to 48 
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what we feel is important to help in our decision making process 1 

would certainly provide them some additional guidance on how 2 

they prioritize their budgets and their data collection 3 

activities. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  I agree with Kevin and I won’t support the 6 

substitute motion.  We’re going to be under tremendous pressure 7 

to adjust these allocations and just like what happened this 8 

week, we’re going to see people poke every hole they can imagine 9 

in these analyses. 10 

 11 

I don’t disagree with Robin about prioritizing and that’s the 12 

thing, but Assane is exactly right that some of these things 13 

would be relatively cheap and easy to collect the data on them 14 

and as for it being intrusive, let’s not forget that people are 15 

making a living exploiting a public resource and I think the 16 

public has a right to ask questions about what they’re doing and 17 

how they’re doing that, in order to make sure that we’re using 18 

these resources wisely and maximizing the benefits to the 19 

country. 20 

 21 

I would urge you to vote against the substitute motion.  If we 22 

want to come back to priorities, I think we could ask the panel 23 

to advise us on that, but I think we ought to go back to the 24 

original motion. 25 

 26 

MR. BOYD:  I’m in a dilemma.  I agree with Kay that when the 27 

SSC, any SSC, gives us their recommendations that we need to 28 

seriously consider those and only reject those if they’re 29 

onerous in some way. 30 

 31 

If we approved all of these items that are listed, these bullet 32 

points, one of them is continuous client information for chart 33 

for-hire boats and I’m not sure how we collect that.  I’m not 34 

sure if Dr. Ponwith’s staff has the ability to collect all that 35 

or we have the right to ask for all of that.  I haven’t made a 36 

decision about whether to support the substitute motion yet, but 37 

I am in a dilemma, because I think we need both. 38 

 39 

MR. GREENE:  I kind of agree with what Mr. Boyd is saying.  40 

We’ve got a couple of issues here with this.  Charter for-hire 41 

fees and variable costs per trip, I kind of understand that, but 42 

collect continuous client information on for-hire boats, you’re 43 

going to into proprietary information and everything else. 44 

 45 

I guess second only to my GPS book is my customer list.  It is 46 

the most important thing I have and I sure would hate for that 47 

information to be out there and maybe that’s not the direction 48 



137 

 

they’re going here with it, but I don’t see anything that says 1 

it is or is not. 2 

 3 

Now, the demographic and socioeconomic profile of captains and 4 

crew for commercial and charter for-hire boats, I don’t know 5 

that I necessarily agree with that, but what about the private 6 

recreational angler? 7 

 8 

I don’t see anything in here for the private recreational angler 9 

at all and so I don’t really know where to go with this, but I 10 

do have some major issues with it.  I think if you all want to 11 

punch this through, we might be better to break these out 12 

bullet-by-bullet and go through them individually. 13 

 14 

DR. PONWITH:  Just a quick comment and, again, this is why these 15 

motions are worded as a recommendation, because the council 16 

can’t direct us to do it, because it’s all hinging on what we 17 

have for resources and that’s why prioritization is so important 18 

and having the list in its complete form is good, because it 19 

enables us to know if we have an extra dollar, what’s the first 20 

thing that we’ll do and work our way down the list. 21 

 22 

It doesn’t necessarily mean the existence on the list means that 23 

all of those things are going to be done, but it’s basically a 24 

gap analysis of what it would take to actually do an adequate 25 

socioeconomic analysis on this industry, to answer the very 26 

questions that you’re asking. 27 

 28 

You have asked us is it possible to look at the charter for-hire 29 

and the headboat industry as a separate pool for the red snapper 30 

and some of the very points that the SSC recommended are the 31 

types of information that would make that analysis possible and 32 

so, again, I think having the list of high-priority questions or 33 

data that need to be asked is valuable and it doesn’t 34 

necessarily mean that tomorrow you’re going to have it.  It 35 

helps us in our strategic planning to make decisions about what 36 

are the most important collections we should be focusing on 37 

next. 38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Johnny, I don’t think they, in their motion, or I 40 

didn’t take it that way, but they weren’t asking for a list of 41 

your clients and who they were and where they live and their 42 

address and their phone number. 43 

 44 

I think what they’re trying to get to is the socioeconomic 45 

aspect.  We talk about people coming in from out of town and 46 

utilizing the for-hire sector so that they can go fishing and 47 

the dollars that they’re bringing into the community, because 48 
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they are from out of town. 1 

 2 

We also have individuals that live in town that utilize this 3 

charter for-hire service and so I think more or less that’s what 4 

they’re asking.  They’re not asking for your client information 5 

as far as their names and addresses. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a substitute motion that we’ll vote on.  8 

The substitute motion is to recommend to NMFS that they conduct 9 

the following: improve quality of IFQ allocation and share price 10 

data.  All those in favor please raise your hand; all those 11 

opposed please raise your hand.  The motion fails.  Back to you, 12 

Mr. Chairman. 13 

 14 

DR. SHIPP:  That brings us back to the original motion, Mr. 15 

Chairman. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Correct and thank you, sir.  We’re back to the 18 

original motion.  Is there further discussion on the motion on 19 

the board?  We’ll vote on the motion to recommend to NMFS that 20 

they conduct the following -- Go ahead, Ms. Williams. 21 

 22 

MS. WILLIAMS:  In looking at this, do we see where, like what 23 

Harlon was talking about, the end use of that product, like in 24 

the restaurants and stuff?  In other words, tracing the value of 25 

that fish, since we’re looking at how much that fish is worth, 26 

rather than just ex-vessel price? 27 

 28 

The fish goes through several stages.  It goes to your retail 29 

markets or wholesale markets and your restaurants and stuff and 30 

is that in there or can we add something like that to that? 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I don’t see that, but, Dr. Diagne, could you 33 

address that? 34 

 35 

DR. DIAGNE:  I’m sorry, Mr. Chair, but I didn’t hear the 36 

question. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Ms. Williams, you could rephrase it? 39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Assane, we were talking about like in the 41 

presentation that was given and they was looking at the value 42 

per pound of fish or something or this willingness to pay and 43 

stuff and is what Harlon brought up, like the end use, where we 44 

take that fish and we from the vessel to the dealer or processor 45 

or whatever to your local seafood market or to your restaurant 46 

as far as how much somebody is willing to pay to eat that piece 47 

of fish, is that included in there?  If not, how would you 48 
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structure something to capture that, to add that to the list? 1 

 2 

DR. DIAGNE:  I guess a short answer to that is there is some 3 

additional value, if you would, by the time the fish moves 4 

through the system until it is served at the restaurant, but the 5 

bottom line is in most studies looking at allocating the 6 

resources, that value is considered to be extremely small and so 7 

it is just basically a negligible value. 8 

 9 

The reason being is that there are a lot of substitutes 10 

available for such a product.  Keep in mind that we are talking 11 

about overall benefits here, but if one were to measure that, 12 

you would need some retail information and that is not 13 

explicitly included here. 14 

 15 

It has been talked about, but in most studies, that consumer 16 

surplus, which is what it is, is considered to be negligible, 17 

because the demand associated with it is basically in a certain 18 

shape, very flat, so that it is very small. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I sort of disagree with the outcome, if that’s 21 

what you’re talking about, saying you can eat chicken instead of 22 

fish.  To me, that’s not the same thing and I don’t think that’s 23 

what we’re looking at, but I think we need to collect some type 24 

of information of the end use value of the product. 25 

 26 

DR. DIAGNE:  We will certainly ask the Socioeconomic SSC to be 27 

more explicit in their recommendation to you the next time we 28 

discuss this framework and I hope that we will have that 29 

opportunity soon. 30 

 31 

I didn’t say that they eat chicken instead of fish.  For fish 32 

itself, we have a lot of substitutes.  If we shut down the Gulf 33 

today, even though we have a fantastic product, fish would be 34 

coming in from Chile, China, Mexico, and you can go down the 35 

list.  That’s what I mean when I say we have a lot of 36 

substitutes. 37 

 38 

DR. SHIPP:  Let’s vote. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a motion on the board to recommend to 41 

NMFS that they conduct the following: improve quality of IFQ 42 

allocation and share price data; collect charter/for-hire fees 43 

and variable costs per trip; collect continuous client 44 

information for charter/for- hire boats; collect demographic and 45 

socioeconomic profile information on captains and crew of 46 

commercial and charter/for hire boats; collect demographic and 47 

economic data on dealers and processors.  All those in favor of 48 
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the motion please raise your hand.  The motion passes. 1 

 2 

DR. SHIPP:  That brings us, I believe, to Update on the Status 3 

of Red Snapper Five-Year IFQ Review.  Assane Diagne provided an 4 

update on the studies and documents prepared for the five-year 5 

review of the red snapper IFQ program.  6 

 7 

He indicated that a draft report summarizing results of the 8 

survey conducted by Doctors Agar of the SEFSC and Keithly of 9 

Louisiana State University, an economic efficiency analysis 10 

conducted by Dr. Solis of the University of Miami, and an 11 

analysis of red snapper IFQ prices and allocation and shares 12 

transfers conducted by Dr. Agar are expected to be available by 13 

the August 2012 council meeting.   14 

 15 

In her summary of the Socioeconomic SSC, Ava Lasseter indicated 16 

that the SESSC recommends that future IFQ five-year review plans 17 

use a more systems-based approach and will develop the details 18 

at future meetings.  The SESSC also recommends that the council 19 

convenes an SESSC meeting before the August 2012 council meeting 20 

to review studies relative to the red snapper IFQ five-year 21 

review. 22 

 23 

DR. PONWITH:  I just have a correction.  That analysis on the 24 

red snapper economic efficiency would be conducted so that it 25 

could be briefed to the SSC in the July/August timeframe, in the 26 

SSC meeting that immediately preceded the November meeting for 27 

the council.  The intent is that that analysis would be 28 

available and briefed out to the council at their November 29 

meeting. 30 

 31 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Ponwith.  Framework Action, 32 

Contractual Services for the For-Hire Sector, Dr. Simmons 33 

reviewed a discussion paper to address contractual services in 34 

the for-hire sector by vessels that do not currently hold a 35 

federal charter fishing permit, Tab B, Number 10.   36 

 37 

On a number of occasions, the council has discussed situations 38 

where fishing vessels are taking passengers fishing in the 39 

federal waters in exchange for the passengers paying for some 40 

service other than the fishing trips itself, such as consulting 41 

packages or real estate transactions.   42 

 43 

There were three draft alternatives developed for the committee 44 

to review.  The intent of Option 2 is to modify the regulations 45 

to have a clear delineation between charter and private fishing 46 

trips, so that enforcement can facilitate the regulations 47 

governing charter fishing in federal waters of the Gulf of 48 
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Mexico.   1 

 2 

The committee requested this action be completed as soon as 3 

possible through the appropriate procedures, such as the 4 

accelerated framework process.   5 

 6 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 7 

and I so move, that in the contractual services discussion paper 8 

the Preferred Option be Option 2.  Option 2 is modify the 9 

regulations for a federal charter permit to remove the word 10 

“fee” and adopt the following language: “A vessel will be 11 

considered a charter vessel or headboat when the vessel in 12 

question is carrying a passenger for whom consideration is 13 

provided as a condition of carriage on the vessel, whether 14 

directly or indirectly flowing to the owner, charterer, 15 

operator, agent, or any other person having an interest in the 16 

vessel.  Any quid pro quo exchange provided for the trip can be 17 

considered to satisfy this requirement.” 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 20 

discussion on the motion? 21 

 22 

MR. RILEY:  Would this ensnare private recreational who go out 23 

together and share costs on fuel and things of that nature? 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Grimes, could you come to the table and 26 

respond to Mr. Riley’s question, sir? 27 

 28 

MR. RILEY:  The language that’s on the board, would this ensnare 29 

private recreational fishermen who share costs on a trip, as far 30 

as like gas and things of that nature? 31 

 32 

MR. GRIMES:  No, not generally, I don’t think.  I mentioned some 33 

of this in committee and in enforcing any requirement, there’s 34 

going to be some discretion and some, in this case, on-the-water 35 

application of it, but this is not intended to target people who 36 

are going fishing and it’s a couple of guys going out on the 37 

boat and they split the cost of gas.  It’s to include people who 38 

are essentially running charter operations and just not 39 

receiving express payment for it. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Is there further discussion on the motion?  42 

Seeing none, is there any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, 43 

the motion carries unanimously.  Back to you, Mr. Chair. 44 

 45 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That brings us to the 46 

Sector Separation Discussion.  Assane Diagne gave a presentation 47 

on a potential separation of the recreational red snapper 48 
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fishery into sub-sectors.  He discussed changes in the number of 1 

permits and licenses, recreational red snapper fishing effort, 2 

season length, and landings.   3 

 4 

A decision model developed by NMFS Southeast Regional Office was 5 

used to estimate potential season lengths for the for-hire and 6 

private recreational sub-sectors.   7 

 8 

Following committee discussions, the following motion was 9 

passed.  By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee 10 

recommends, and I so move, to request that a plan amendment on 11 

sector separation be developed and moved to scoping. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 14 

on the motion? 15 

 16 

MR. RIECHERS:  It’s not as much about the motion as it is about 17 

the presentation of the materials in the previous section you 18 

just read, Mr. Chairman.  Assane, I’m going to just suggest that 19 

as you move forward with that discussion -- There were some 20 

conclusions about private recreational and some numbers 21 

presented there. 22 

 23 

I think you’re probably going to want to work with the states 24 

and describe more fully changes in licensing that have occurred.  25 

We made some changes to accommodate the angler registry and 26 

MRIP, which those people were already in the private 27 

recreational community, but they are now licensed, where you can 28 

count them. 29 

 30 

I know other states have had to make adjustments as well and 31 

there’s always change in license structures that can occur and I 32 

think you just need to kind of incorporate some of that 33 

discussion, so that people get a fuller understanding of whether 34 

or not you’re really seeing increases or decreases or whether -- 35 

Some of it is going to be subjective and I don’t think you’re 36 

going to be able to quantify it exactly, but I think it will 37 

help people understand that a little bit better. 38 

 39 

DR. DIAGNE:  The next iteration of this document, as we move 40 

through the scoping document, would reflect those changes. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  Sometime back, this council picked up the tab for a 43 

sector separation workshop and I think it was held in Tampa and 44 

we had a room full of people and I don’t know if any official 45 

poll or unofficial poll was taken, but I know I came away from 46 

there with the preponderance of the people in attendance were 47 

against sector separation. 48 
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 1 

Now, that’s not saying we can’t change our minds and we 2 

certainly change our minds on this council from meeting to 3 

meeting and the members of the public certainly have that right, 4 

but I can tell you the people in the area that I am from, with 5 

emails that are coming to me and so on, they are 100 percent 6 

against sector separation. 7 

 8 

We’re hearing different things here and we’ll probably hear 9 

different things if this thing goes forward, but I have not seen 10 

enough information to change my mind from the time I sat in that 11 

workshop and tried to listen to all the people that made 12 

presentations on this issue that I’m not going to support this 13 

at this time, even though it’s just to develop a scoping 14 

document. 15 

 16 

DR. DANA:  I think my comments follow along with what Corky’s 17 

were and while yesterday we heard overwhelming support for 18 

sector separation in the public comment period, I know firsthand 19 

that there is a lot of contention -- This is a contentious issue 20 

out there, depending on what community you’re in or speaking to 21 

throughout the Gulf. 22 

 23 

In Florida, we have a number of communities that are strong with 24 

charter fleets and also the recreational sector and depending on 25 

what community, you’re going to have different perspectives, 26 

very strong perspectives.  I though will probably -- Yes, I’ll 27 

vote for this motion, only because I would like for it to be 28 

circulated for public comment, so that we can get the broad 29 

perspectives on record. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I agree somewhat with what Dana said, because 32 

that was my intent, is to have it circulated across the broad 33 

demographics and let’s once and for all see and also to some of 34 

the points that Corky made and that’s another reason to go 35 

forward in scoping, because this is what I heard at this sector 36 

separation meeting, that we don’t know what it is and we don’t 37 

know it means and we don’t know what we’ll get. 38 

 39 

To me, that’s what this scoping document is going to address.  40 

If it shows the charter for-hire fishery, if they became their 41 

own sector, wouldn’t get any more days than what they’re getting 42 

now, well bingo, guess what?  You will probably never hear 43 

another word from them, but this is going to answer all those 44 

questions that they’ve had. 45 

 46 

What I heard was they were scared because they thought this 47 

council was going to go throw them into an ITQ system and that’s 48 
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not even what it was about and that’s what I heard and this is 1 

going to answer their questions.  I know I spoke with Mr. Zales 2 

and he said you have not told me how many days we would get to 3 

fish if we went into something like this and I need to know that 4 

answer. 5 

 6 

Well, I know he probably figures we can give him the answer, but 7 

everybody wants to know that answer and so that’s the reason for 8 

having a scoping document and so I’m going to support it, to 9 

give the community the answers they’ve been asking for and to 10 

lay this thing to rest one way or the other.  Thank you. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would comment, Ms. Williams, that the scoping 13 

document will not have any analysis in it.  It’s there to 14 

provide alternatives and request the public to ensure the 15 

alternatives provided encompass everything that we think ought 16 

to be there.  The analysis will come later. 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To me, the analysis, a lot of the analysis, was 19 

there in what Assane presented to the council and with what has 20 

been presented to the council by Andy Strelcheck and so there 21 

are some analyses that can be in that scoping document. 22 

 23 

MR. FISCHER:  To that though, I don’t deem this the purpose of a 24 

scoping document.  A scoping document is to seek out the 25 

problems and not to present possible solutions.  It’s to hear 26 

the fishermen’s version. 27 

 28 

We work at different speeds.  I have not sat and seen warp speed 29 

and typically we work at the speed of molasses, but I would like 30 

to see the results of the five-year commercial ITQ and I would 31 

like to see the new stock assessment. 32 

 33 

I don’t know the timing of moving forward with this document 34 

with these other very important documents that’s going to have a 35 

conclusion that we could base our decisions on.  I’m not saying 36 

I’m opposed to this, but I would like to slow it down to where 37 

we at least get some results, something we could see what 38 

direction we’re going in. 39 

 40 

At the present time, I’m mixed on it.  In Louisiana, we have 41 

vessels for sector separation and we have vessels against sector 42 

separation and I don’t want to say I’ll put it to a vote of 43 

those charter vessels that it would affect and it probably would 44 

affect the entire recreational community that’s now depending on 45 

the outcome and the regulations. 46 

 47 

You’re going to have some boats leaving the dock during closed 48 
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seasons while others are forced to stay tied up and I’m not sure 1 

where it’s going to go, but I would like to see the results of 2 

two items that’s going to be coming forward rather soon, the 3 

five-year review and the stock assessment. 4 

 5 

MR. BOYD:  I agree with Mr. Perret and Mr. Fischer.  I think 6 

this is premature.  I don’t think I can quote Mr. Pearce, but 7 

the other day he said something to the effect of that the issue 8 

is not how we divide the recreational fishery, but it’s how do 9 

we give the for-hire business the ability to manage themselves. 10 

 11 

I think that’s the bigger issue here.  This sector separation 12 

discussion is only one part of a bigger issue and Mr. Fischer 13 

just alluded to that, that there are other things that we’re 14 

dealing with that are a bigger picture than this and so I would 15 

speak against it. 16 

 17 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Fischer may not be able to pass motions, but he 18 

just gave me a new term.  We don’t operate at the speed of 19 

government anymore, but we operate at the speed of molasses and 20 

so I agree with you, Mr. Fischer. 21 

 22 

Doug, also I agree with what you just said.  I think that the 23 

words “sector separation” isn’t what I like to hear and I like 24 

to hear how these guys want to prosecute their fishery and how 25 

they want to survive into the future and if this will help us do 26 

that, we need to get it done and I know that it’s a bigger 27 

picture out there, but I think it’s time we sat down and fleshed 28 

this out in a little better form than we’ve done in the past and 29 

see where it goes. 30 

 31 

They need a business plan that works for them.  They’re a 32 

different world and it’s not about separating classes, but it’s 33 

about survival for these guys and so I’m going to support this 34 

motion. 35 

 36 

MR. ANSON:  I too am going to support this motion.  I also agree 37 

with some of the comments that have already been made regarding 38 

the process and that this is a necessary part of the process.  39 

It will get more information out to the public for them to 40 

ruminate on the problems that are in that sector. 41 

 42 

I also recall that workshop, as Corky had mentioned, but I 43 

recall also speaking with a couple of folks that were involved 44 

in setting up and organizing that event and that they wished 45 

they had swapped days and put the items in day two in day one 46 

and they did not do that and they felt that could have had a 47 

tremendous impact on getting the word out or getting some of the 48 
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information out to those folks, which may or may not have 1 

changed their opinions, but I think this is just a necessary 2 

part of the process and it’s looking at some of the issues and 3 

providing some flexibility. 4 

 5 

Even if we get to fifteen-million pounds, there’s still some 6 

limited amount of days that the for-hire guys will have and so 7 

just taking a limited resource and a limited number of days and 8 

maybe potentially down the road giving them some options as to 9 

how they can manage that better efficiently for their business. 10 

 11 

MR. RIECHERS:  I have to agree with Mr. Fischer and Mr. Boyd, to 12 

some degree.  The reality of this is this is a -- We’ve been led 13 

to this because people are looking for solutions that will help 14 

their businesses. 15 

 16 

Not only are the charterboat businesses being impacted, but so 17 

are bait houses and other fishing industry businesses by these 18 

short seasons, hotels and tourism and the whole nine yards.  19 

What we really need to be looking for is ways to tailor make 20 

decisions down to a more local level and that includes the 21 

possibility of management down to more local levels. 22 

 23 

One size doesn’t fit all and that should be something we’re 24 

looking at.  We should be looking at allocation, as we’ve talked 25 

about in the last couple of days, regarding species and really 26 

all of those options should be there together.   27 

 28 

This is one option of several that would help, I think, manage 29 

these fisheries in a more profitable manner and we really need 30 

them all together.  We don’t need to go forward with one or the 31 

other and so at this point, and much like Corky indicated as 32 

well -- I was at that workshop and since that time, I think it’s 33 

still a very divisive issue with people on both sides. 34 

 35 

I don’t think there is an overwhelming support for this at this 36 

point in time in my part of the world as well.  I hear from both 37 

sides and both are very passionate about their side on this 38 

case, but I think we need to -- To Mr. Gill’s point I guess as 39 

well, but if this isn’t going to bring forward the analysis, 40 

then it’s not providing any purpose at all, other than to go out 41 

there and have the same discussion that’s been ongoing for two 42 

years. 43 

 44 

Someone needs to provide that analysis so people can make some 45 

rational decisions and then base their support or opposition to 46 

us on real numbers and not just the notions that are going on 47 

out there. 48 



147 

 

 1 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I agree with at least one comment just about that 2 

everybody has made and will I vote for something like this in 3 

the very end?  I don’t know, because I don’t know what the end 4 

product is going to be and I think that’s what we’re looking 5 

for. 6 

 7 

All this is, it’s just trying to get some answers out to the 8 

public.  I don’t think this is going to delay anything.  Our 9 

staff does not work on stock assessments and we don’t work on 10 

stock assessments.  That’s the Science Center and so that’s not 11 

going to slow us down. 12 

 13 

The five-year review, we’re already into that.  This is not 14 

going to slow it down.  We’ve had money in our accounts to move 15 

forward and get the studies and the analysis done probably for 16 

the last five years and so we’re finally going to start doing 17 

something with some of those monies and so it’s not a money 18 

problem, as far as the scoping issue. 19 

 20 

To me, we’ve seen some analysis already, bits and pieces from 21 

each council meeting over time, over the years, and I believe 22 

it’s just going to be a very important job for Assane, if he’s 23 

the one that’s going to be doing the document, to make sure that 24 

those analyses are in the scoping document. 25 

 26 

MR. GRIMES:  Just a couple of quick things.  The committee 27 

report includes Dr. Diagne’s discussion and his presentation, 28 

which was specifically to recreational red snapper, but the 29 

motion isn’t and at least as part of the team of your advisors, 30 

I would tend to read that as being reef fish-wide and so I just 31 

want everyone to be clear on that. 32 

 33 

I’ve heard some of the comments that this is premature and I 34 

guess I’m not inclined to view that as a valid criticism.  35 

You’ve been talking about this for years and sending it out and 36 

developing some sort of document that actually puts options down 37 

on paper, given the usual process, I don’t think that’s fairly 38 

characterized as being premature. 39 

 40 

Given some of the extensive discussion you’ve had, maybe you 41 

want to go out -- It seems to me you’ve performed the functional 42 

equivalent of scoping at this point.  You had a workshop in 43 

Tampa relative to this and you got a bunch of public comment 44 

there and you’ve heard public comment on it at at least a half-45 

a-dozen council meetings and maybe you do want to develop an 46 

options paper and almost move straight to that stage. 47 

 48 
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At the same time, I also don’t know that you’ve really done much 1 

to precisely identify the issues, because you hear a lot of the 2 

discussion and it seems that maybe everyone is not thinking or 3 

has the concept in mind or the same problem to be addressed in 4 

mind when you start talking about sector separation. 5 

 6 

I just offer those comments to you, but I would ask that you be 7 

clear on whether you’re thinking, if you move forward with this, 8 

it’s reef fish-wide or just red snapper. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s hard for me to see how this premature 11 

either, as much time as we’ve put in this.  I know it’s a 12 

contentious issue and we seem to drag all kinds of things into 13 

this, catch shares and commercial IFQ review and all these 14 

things, but when you look at the presentations you’ve had, we’re 15 

seeing a shift go on in the recreational fishery in terms of who 16 

is catching the fish. 17 

 18 

The private sector is catching more and more of the red snapper 19 

quota and the proportion caught by charterboats is going down.  20 

Now, maybe you don’t regard that as a problem or not, but that, 21 

to me, seems the issue this clearly addresses. 22 

 23 

Then the other thing we’ve heard is the desire to develop 24 

different data collecting programs for the charterboat sector, 25 

but those really aren’t going to benefit us in terms of 26 

timelines and things if we don’t go down this path. 27 

 28 

We know we have a problem.  We’re hearing about that and it 29 

shows up in the data, in terms of the way things are shifting, 30 

but somehow this has gotten blown up into much more than I think 31 

it is and so I’m going to support the motion. 32 

 33 

MR. RILEY:  I think this needs to go forward.  I’m not 34 

necessarily a proponent of sector separation, just because 35 

there’s about fifty different definitions out in the public 36 

domain of what it actually is.   37 

 38 

I think if we go out to scoping and getting a better handle of 39 

what people have issues with and whatnot and come back and 40 

develop this thing, to where we can get a concise explanation of 41 

what it entails, I think we would all be better off.  We need to 42 

quit punting and put this thing out for scoping. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will vote on the motion.  The motion is to 45 

request that a plan amendment on sector separation be developed 46 

and moved to scoping.  All those in favor raise your -- 47 

 48 
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MR. GRIMES:  Just before everybody votes then, it’s reef fish 1 

wide, the way it’s set up now? 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Since it isn’t to the more exclusive, it would 4 

be to the broader and I believe you’re correct and that’s what 5 

we’re voting on here.  Nobody has made a motion to make the 6 

change.  All those in favor of the motion please raise your 7 

hand; all those opposed to the motion please raise your hand.  8 

The motion carries. 9 

 10 

DR. PONWITH:  When we were discussing economic studies, I 11 

alluded to the fact that we had a discussion in the committee 12 

meeting that relates to the economic study as well as sector 13 

separation and that was that in the evaluation of red snapper 14 

economic efficiency we discussed, the council asked the Science 15 

Center to evaluate, prior to full council, whether it would be 16 

technically feasible to add an evaluation of a three-way 17 

economic analysis for red snapper and in other words, a 18 

commercial, a private vessel, and a charter for-hire/headboat.  19 

I have an answer for that, if this is the appropriate time. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think so. 22 

 23 

DR. PONWITH:  The answer for that is it’s technically feasible 24 

to be able to do this.  It is plowing new ground and for that 25 

reason, prior to actually conducting that analysis, our 26 

scientists would like to discuss it with the SSC, to make sure 27 

that there is a full understanding of what we’re trying to 28 

accomplish and that there’s agreements on the methodologies. 29 

 30 

For that reason, from a timing standpoint, adding that to the 31 

analysis would jeopardize our ability to get the full analysis 32 

completed by the November meeting and so it becomes a question 33 

of would you rather the see the three-way split and have it be 34 

at the meeting after November or would you be willing to do the 35 

analysis with the two-way split and discuss adding the three-way 36 

split analysis sometime in the future? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think, given the vote that we just had, that 39 

as this document moves forward, it may or may not carry today, 40 

and that would be the point to do the three-way allocation, 41 

rather than do it prematurely.  If this one doesn’t carry, then 42 

it becomes academic. 43 

 44 

DR. SHIPP:  I’m a little puzzled.  Does this imply that we’re 45 

not going to have the socioeconomic analysis at the November 46 

meeting, because I would certainly be against that.  We need to 47 

have that as soon as possible.  Am I missing something? 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I believe the answer that Dr. Ponwith suggested 2 

was yes, but that would be for recreational and commercial 3 

allocation and not splitting it three ways. 4 

 5 

DR. SHIPP:  Right, but that would be available in November?  6 

That’s fine. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think this would be a good point to take a 9 

ten-minute break and we’ll reconvene at five of. 10 

 11 

(Whereupon, a short recess was taken.) 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will resume the Reef Fish Committee Report.  14 

We have a quorum and so we’re back to you, Mr. Chairman. 15 

 16 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That takes us to the 17 

Goliath Grouper Workgroup Meeting.  Steve Bortone reviewed a 18 

summary of the Goliath Grouper Workgroup meeting held on 19 

February 29, 2012, Tab B, Number 12.   20 

 21 

The workgroup formulated a four-part work plan that consisted of 22 

four parts.  One is a stakeholder survey to determine 23 

expectations from management, two is a stakeholder workshop to 24 

produce a list of desired goal, three is a presentation to the 25 

results of the stakeholder survey and workshop to the Gulf 26 

Council and South Atlantic Council and four is a science 27 

workshop to suggest how the goals can be achieved.   28 

 29 

The results of the science workshop would then be brought to the 30 

councils for consideration for future management actions.  The 31 

work plan is expected to be completed by June 2013.  The 32 

stakeholder survey is already underway by the Florida Fish and 33 

Wildlife Research Institute and is being paid for by FWC.  The 34 

council will pay for the science workshop. 35 

 36 

Pilot Studies on Headboat IFQ and Days at Sea, Assane Diagne 37 

gave a presentation on the charter days-at-sea and headboat IFQ 38 

pilot programs under consideration.  His presentation discussed 39 

regulatory implications and summarized design elements for each 40 

pilot program.  Design elements discussed included the duration 41 

of the programs, participation criteria, transferability, sample 42 

selection, data validation, and enforcement.   43 

 44 

Mr. Chairman, I think at that time I asked Shep where do we go 45 

from here and he said that he didn’t know, but would have an 46 

answer by today and so I’ll see if the Counselor lives up to his 47 

commitments. 48 
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 1 

MR. GRIMES:  This is the pilot study thing we’re talking about? 2 

 3 

DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 4 

 5 

MR. GRIMES:  I will, as always, live up to my word and I’ve been 6 

thinking about this for a while and we’ve had some discussions 7 

in St. Petersburg as to what exactly the purpose of the 8 

council’s efforts in developing a pilot study and what staff was 9 

doing and it had been my understanding that the council’s 10 

efforts were intended to guide the public or industry, if they 11 

wanted to submit this kind of proposals, and that this is the 12 

kind of stuff the council was looking for, if you will. 13 

 14 

Now, the stuff brought back to you raised significant underlying 15 

questions, at least in my opinion and I think Dr. Diagne would 16 

agree, that there are questions relative to the utility of that 17 

type of pilot project, if you’re looking at it as being a true 18 

study and trying to select people.  There are issues with the 19 

sampling and whether it’s voluntary or mandatory and that type 20 

of stuff. 21 

 22 

I thought it was, again, just to sort of guide the public or 23 

guide industry if they wanted to submit applications.  If the 24 

Gulf Council wants to create something like this, then the only 25 

way for the Gulf Council to do it is to amend the plan to create 26 

some sort of structure in the plan and I’m not really sure 27 

exactly how we would do that. 28 

 29 

In addition to seeking input from the public, it could also be a 30 

request from the council that perhaps the Science Center or the 31 

agency or somebody undertake this kind of study and maybe it 32 

could be done through some sort of cooperative research or 33 

exempted fishing permit type system, but I think the only way -- 34 

If the council wants to move forward with something like this, 35 

the council’s authority is to create fishery management plans 36 

and manage fisheries pursuant to those plans. 37 

 38 

If you want to create a mechanism whereby studies would be 39 

conducted, then you would have to create that structure in the 40 

plan and a I think there are a number of ways that the council 41 

could perform that, but it wouldn’t be something that’s going to 42 

happen overnight.  We would have to develop a fishery management 43 

plan amendment and we would have to have options and NEPA 44 

analyses and regulatory flexibility analyses and all the bells 45 

and whistles that go along with it. 46 

 47 

DR. SHIPP:  It wouldn’t happen overnight is for sure, because 48 
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we’ve been talking about this for eighteen months and nothing 1 

has moved off the dime yet.  Especially for the days at sea 2 

program, if I hear you right, you’re saying if we want to move 3 

forward with the days at sea pilot program that we have to 4 

create a management plan to do that.  Is that what you’re 5 

saying, Shep? 6 

 7 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes or amend the Reef Fish FMP or Coastal Migratory 8 

Pelagics or whatever you’re going to use.  Again, I think at 9 

least my understanding of it was that okay, guys who are 10 

interested in this kind of stuff, if you’re thinking you’re 11 

going to submit a proposal, this is the kind of proposal we 12 

would favor and then they would come forward with an exempted 13 

fishing permit application and you guys would review it and say 14 

yes, that addresses the stuff we think it should address and, 15 

agency, we support you issuing this permit. 16 

 17 

DR. SHIPP:  Roy, do you have a comment? 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  We have the headboat cooperative EFP to us now 20 

and so the headboat guys have basically stepped up with a 21 

proposal.  I guess one way for this to work would be if a group 22 

of charterboat fishermen put together an EFP proposal for some 23 

sort of charterboat cooperative that would explore a days at sea 24 

kind of program. 25 

 26 

I guess that’s one way this could go, if we just wanted to try 27 

things out.  The other way would be to go down, like Shep said, 28 

the amendment process and try to set something up. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was looking through Magnuson and there is a 31 

section in there that says -- I know we as a council that we are 32 

not in the research business and I don’t think we need to try 33 

and get into the research business, but I think if fishermen 34 

come to us with an idea and it’s something that we think could 35 

possibly be feasible, then I think we should support them in 36 

taking it to the Science Center or National Marine Fisheries 37 

Service or whoever they are supposed to take it to and have 38 

something down, such as this cooperative that you’re doing. 39 

 40 

What it said in there was if fifty -- I think it was if fifty 41 

fishermen put together a plan and brought it before the council 42 

that this council would do something or the Secretary would do 43 

something as far as I guess looking at that plan and how you go 44 

about doing it, I don’t know, but I thought I saw that in 45 

Magnuson.  It speaks about how the fishermen can come before the 46 

council and I think it requires fifty of them. 47 

 48 
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As far as I’m concerned, we’ve already had fifty people come and 1 

ask us, or more than that in the charter industry, come and ask 2 

us to look at a days at sea type of thing and so I think they’ve 3 

already asked and it’s just National Marine Fisheries Service 4 

deciding what it is and how they do it and all of the protocol 5 

that goes with it and then just move forward with it. 6 

 7 

DR. DANA:  My apologies, Chairman Shipp, but did we jump in the 8 

agenda somewhere? 9 

 10 

DR. SHIPP:  No, where we are is the pilot study.  We’re on page 11 

8, the pilot studies on headboat IFQ and days at sea, and at the 12 

end of that paragraph, I recalled that I had asked Mr. Grimes a 13 

couple of days ago where we would go from here with this and 14 

that’s where he provided this answer and so we’re still on that 15 

section, although there are no motions. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Relative to your question, it’s clear that the 18 

path suggested by Dr. Crabtree is the fastest one, by industry 19 

coming back with an EFP proposal and to be considered.  If we go 20 

down the plan amendment way, it will be years before anything 21 

gets enacted, if ever.  From the standpoint of those that are 22 

interested in that kind of program, making a proposal such as 23 

the one that we have before us that we’ll discuss shortly would 24 

be the fastest way, by far. 25 

 26 

DR. SHIPP:  I agree, Mr. Gill, and what I would ask council 27 

staff is through the outreach program to make that available to 28 

the charter industry, that if they want to pursue a days at sea 29 

program that they approach us with that request in a plan, 30 

similar to what the headboat people did.   31 

 32 

If there are no further discussions on that, we’ll move on to 33 

Other Business and Barotrauma Issues.  Steven Atran noted that 34 

the council had requested in 2009 that the SSC review the 35 

venting tool requirement and other barotraumas issues, but the 36 

review has been deferred, due to higher priority issues.   37 

 38 

Recently, he received an e-mail received from Ken Haddad on 39 

behalf of the American Sportfishing Association, Tab B, Number 40 

14, requesting that the council’s venting tool requirement be 41 

modified to also allow the use of other devices to reduce 42 

barotraumas mortality, such as recompression devices that return 43 

the fish to depth.   44 

 45 

In addition, a barotrauma workshop was just held in St. 46 

Petersburg sponsored by FishSmart, an industry initiative to 47 

improve survival of released fish.  Several new devices have 48 
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been developed for returning fish to depth and studies have been 1 

done on the biology of barotrauma-related injuries.   2 

 3 

One particular issue noted during the barotraumas workshop is 4 

that the venting tool regulation requires the use of venting 5 

tools when fishing for reef fish even in situations when it is 6 

not necessary.   7 

 8 

A motion was passed at the workshop encouraging the Gulf Council 9 

to consider expanding the venting tool requirement to include 10 

venting and/or recompression tools.  The committee agreed that 11 

the SSC and Reef Fish AP should begin addressing these issues.   12 

 13 

If possible, the AP should meet before the SSC, so that they can 14 

provide input to the SSC.  One issue that can be addressed 15 

immediately is the requirement to always use venting tools 16 

rather than only as needed.  Mr. Atran suggested that this 17 

change could be done through the abbreviated documentation 18 

process of the Generic Framework Procedure. 19 

 20 

By consensus, the committee recommends, and I so move, that the 21 

council initiate a framework action to modify the venting tool 22 

use requirement to permit use of venting tools as needed. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 25 

discussion? 26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we need to review the whole notion of 28 

using venting tools when we look at this and there was a paper 29 

that came out in Fisheries, which is a scientific journal by the 30 

American Fishery Society, and their conclusion was venting 31 

should not be required and in fact, it should be prohibited, 32 

because it does more harm than good. 33 

 34 

It seems to me at some point we wanted to ask the SSC to review 35 

this issue, but they’ve never done it, to the best of my 36 

knowledge, I suspect because they ran out of time. 37 

 38 

About two years ago, the Fisheries Service disapproved a venting 39 

requirement proposed by the South Atlantic Council based on 40 

conflicting science and the fact that it hadn’t been adequately 41 

addressed and so I support the motion, but I think as a part of 42 

this that we probably ought to ask the SSC their view on the 43 

wisdom of venting at all and probably one of the options in 44 

here, in addition to venting tools as needed, is whether we 45 

ought to remove the requirement completely and I don’t know what 46 

the answer to that is, but I think we need to think this through 47 

pretty carefully. 48 
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 1 

DR. SHIPP:  I would agree, Dr. Crabtree, but I do think this is 2 

the first step in using venting tools as needed.  It certainly 3 

opens the door toward not using them when they’re not needed.  4 

Any further discussion on this? 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It’s my understanding, from the committee 7 

discussion, that the committee agreed and staff is prepared to 8 

put these items on the agendas of both the SSC and the Reef Fish 9 

AP, which would accomplish exactly what Dr. Crabtree has 10 

requested.  My understanding is we’re going forward as we speak. 11 

 12 

DR. SHIPP:  Correct, but we do have a committee motion. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Correct and is there further discussion on the 15 

motion?  Seeing none, is there any objection to the motion?  16 

Seeing none, the motion carries unanimously.  Mr. Chairman. 17 

 18 

DR. SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Other Business, 19 

Recreational Gag Season for 2013, Jessica McCawley noted that in 20 

response to public input, Florida FWC had implemented a regional 21 

season for recreational gag fishing in state waters in certain 22 

areas of north Florida.   23 

 24 

The federal recreational gag season for 2012 is based on 25 

providing the longest season possible.  However, Florida FWC is 26 

requesting that the council reconsider adopting a split season 27 

alternative for the 2013 season. 28 

 29 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 30 

and I so move, that the council request staff to begin work on a 31 

framework action to address the 2013 gag season and to consider 32 

a split season. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 35 

discussion? 36 

 37 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I just wanted to clarify that what the FWC 38 

adopted, that regional season, is for 2012 only. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion? 41 

 42 

DR. CRABTREE:  Jessica, then the commission will have to take 43 

another action to set the gag season for next year or it would 44 

just lapse and reopen year-round again? 45 

 46 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I think their plan is to take an action next year 47 

to figure out what season they want in 2013. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, 2 

is there any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion 3 

carries unanimously. 4 

 5 

DR. SHIPP:  Other Business, Exempted Fishing Permit Request by 6 

Louisiana for Red Snapper Tournament Fishing, Myron Fischer 7 

discussed the request for an exempted fishing permit by the 8 

Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries.   9 

 10 

The EFP would allow red snapper to be taken during fishing 11 

tournaments outside of the recreational red snapper season.  At 12 

each tournament, up to 200 individuals would be selected, to 13 

allow a harvest of one red snapper per person.   14 

 15 

Currently, seven tournaments are identified in the request, one 16 

in Alabama, which would result in a maximum of 1,400 fish being 17 

taken.  This is fewer than one day’s worth of red snapper taken 18 

during the fishing season.   19 

 20 

The purpose of this request is to obtain a more temporal and 21 

spatial distribution of red snapper for age composition and 22 

fecundity studies and to get samples from fishing tournaments, 23 

which are not sampled by MRIP.   24 

 25 

Kevin Anson added that Alabama’s Dauphin Island Sea Lab has been 26 

conducting a ten-year study of larger red snapper and this EFP 27 

would allow them to continue that study.  Dr. Crabtree noted 28 

that, of the seven tournaments listed in the EFP request, one 29 

occurred during the red snapper season and did not need to be in 30 

request and another was scheduled for May 25-26 and the EFP, if 31 

approved, may not be implemented by then.   32 

 33 

Florida and Texas representatives indicated that they were 34 

unaware of the EFP request and they may have tournaments in 35 

their states that they would like included.   36 

 37 

The following motion was made and seconded, but was not voted 38 

on.  The motion is that the council offer support for the EFP as 39 

presented in Tab L, Number 4, based upon the initial letter with 40 

an additional tournament from Florida and Texas, as selected by 41 

the appropriate state agency, and a review by NMFS Science 42 

Center. 43 

 44 

Bob Gill cautioned that with the potential addition of 45 

tournaments, it was not yet known how many fish would be taken 46 

under the EFP or whether this would shorten the season.  Dr. 47 

Crabtree encouraged Louisiana DWF to work with the other Gulf 48 
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state representatives to revise the list of tournaments so that 1 

the request could be evaluated by the Science Center.   2 

 3 

Because of the uncertainties about the number of tournaments and 4 

red snapper, committee members felt that further consideration 5 

of this issue should be deferred to full council.  By a voice 6 

vote with no opposition, the committee tabled the above motion 7 

to until full council.  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I am looking in my email, Myron, and got an email 12 

from Harry Blanchet that modified the request and was that 13 

distributed to the council? 14 

 15 

MR. FISCHER:  No, being it’s a request to your agency, it was 16 

sent directly to you and we were waiting for you to possibly 17 

distribute it and I can explain the modifications very quickly 18 

from the original document, if the council would so choose to 19 

hear. 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  I am sending it right now to Trish.  I would 22 

suggest, Mr. Gill, that we ask Mr. Fischer to go through the new 23 

request and the changes. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I concur.  Mr. Fischer, could you bring us up to 26 

date on the proposed changes? 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes.  To satisfy the size of the universe of 29 

tournaments and therefore fish, we deleted some of the Louisiana 30 

tournaments and added the 77th Annual Deep Sea Roundup in Port 31 

Aransas and added the 79th Annual Destin Fishing Rodeo and being 32 

it’s a thirty-day event, selected it with Sundays only and they 33 

could advertise it and promote it as a snapper Sunday. 34 

 35 

All tournaments were to receive an allocation of 200 non-36 

reusable tags.  That would be the maximum amount of fish 37 

harvested per tournament, except for the Destin tournament, 38 

being that encompassed the whole month and really covered that 39 

entire Panhandle area of Florida and it is a larger area and 40 

they would get 400 tags. 41 

 42 

The total tags were 1,600 tags.  If one was to translate this 43 

into poundage, it might be difficult, because they’re 44 

tournaments and you have to assume that not all tags are used, 45 

similar to the ITQ program commercially.  Not all fish are 46 

harvested. 47 

 48 
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Not all tags will be used and it could be rough and not many are 1 

used for a given tournament and those are wasted.  It’s a one-2 

time, one-event tag and so that would be the maximum amount of 3 

fish and on a ten-pound average, it would be 16,000 pounds of 4 

fish, which doesn’t come close to the 80,000 to 100,000 pounds 5 

per day we’ll be catching during the season. 6 

 7 

I’m just going to discuss the changes, because we went through 8 

this quite a bit during the committee and I think I’ll leave 9 

that to be open for questions for people who are uncertain. 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a couple of issues with it, Myron.  First, 12 

the tournament.  In order to get one of the tags, you say 200 13 

people is going to be chosen and who is going to pick these 14 

people and decide and what’s going to be the cost to that person 15 

or vessel to get this red snapper tag?  That’s my first 16 

question. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  The tags would be issued and first they would have 19 

to declare that they’re fishing in a reef fish category.  The 20 

tags would be issued by the states and there are five states 21 

involved and whether those states want to allocate it down to 22 

someone beneath them, meaning the county or town, they would be 23 

just allocated to the 200 individual anglers. 24 

 25 

MS. WILLIAMS:  This is the second question.  You say it’s to 26 

collect the otoliths and we have otoliths now where we don’t 27 

have the personnel to even process those otoliths and they’re in 28 

the freezer and why do we need to go collect more and back even 29 

more up into the freezer stage?  Like I said, we don’t have 30 

enough personnel to look at what we’ve got now.  That’s my 31 

second question. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  I’m not aware of where this backlog is.  We read 34 

otoliths in Louisiana and we probably read 30 or 40 percent of 35 

the time and staff is doing other work that 50 or 60 percent of 36 

the time and so we’re not -- Our capability to read this many 37 

otoliths, this is not a large number.  A good reader can cut, 38 

mount, and read otoliths in a timely manner. 39 

 40 

I can’t give you a timeframe.  We could actually read all 1,600 41 

otoliths in a timely manner, if the other states wanted to send 42 

them forward that way, but the otoliths are just one part of the 43 

puzzle in looking at the fish. 44 

 45 

The two more important issues are going to be the gonads, the 46 

fecundity rates, the fecundity levels, verifying that there’s no 47 

issues in the last couple of years, coupled with the tissue 48 
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samples. 1 

 2 

We’ve had a very good success rate with getting our tissue 3 

samples processed and making certain that seafood is safe for 4 

consumers across the Gulf coast and we want to continue that and 5 

this is what part of it is.  We just want to look at these adult 6 

fish, because now we’re not catching the sixteen-inch fish and 7 

hopefully we’re catching some adults that are further along 8 

their life cycle. 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  That really concerns me, that last remark 11 

that you said.  We’re going to be going out there and trying to 12 

catch some really large snapper, some really large female 13 

snapper, that have more eggs and that means that’s going to 14 

impact the status of the stock, because you’re removing those 15 

eggs out by catching those large red snapper. 16 

 17 

I don’t see why the snappers that are caught when the season is 18 

open, why you can’t do your analysis from them.  I don’t know 19 

why you need them year-long.  We collect samples year-long and 20 

we have so many EFPs out there that are collecting red snapper 21 

and I don’t know where these fish are going to come from. 22 

 23 

Even if they came off the recreational quota, that could throw 24 

us into an overrun, which then right now where we are, everybody 25 

pays back because of it.  I don’t really see the necessity to do 26 

this.  We’ve been doing seafood sampling since the oil spill all 27 

the time and so we’ve had so much research going on out there, I 28 

really don’t understand why we haven’t already collected this, 29 

because it’s my understanding that we have. 30 

 31 

Is there anything that they’re going to -- Let me ask Bonnie 32 

this.  What are they going to collect from this research that 33 

we’ve never collected? 34 

 35 

DR. PONWITH:  We’re in the process of being asked to evaluate 36 

this and so until I get the full scope of the project and what’s 37 

being proposed and why it’s being proposed, I don’t feel like 38 

I’m in a position at the table today to land on a conclusion on 39 

the scientific merits of this. 40 

 41 

What I would like to see is sort of the final suite of these and 42 

the program plan and consult staff to evaluate this from the 43 

scientific merit.  Data are important and everybody around this 44 

table knows this and I think we’re eager to take a look at this 45 

and then compare what we could get from this to what we already 46 

have, to be able to do a fair assessment of the scientific 47 

merits. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Ms. Williams, we have a long list and -- 2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am almost through.  To that point, Bonnie, I 4 

don’t understand how the collection from this data is going to 5 

give you anything that you haven’t already gotten and while -- I 6 

just think if this is necessary, then I think we need to set up 7 

an EFP for some fish tags or something and let’s let the private 8 

recreational people participate, some kind of EFP to get some 9 

kind of scientific information from that too.  This is nothing 10 

more than a way to let people go catch red snapper out of 11 

season. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Pearce, followed by Dr. Abele. 14 

 15 

MR. FISCHER:  She was asking me a question and I think I’m 16 

entitled to answer it.   17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I missed that in all that. 19 

 20 

MR. FISCHER:  She wanted to know what the need was on why to 21 

catch these fish outside the forty-day season and there’s a lot 22 

of need.  When you’re studying otoliths, you really need to 23 

catch them throughout the annual cycle, to see when the rings 24 

are formed.  You have to prove your analysis. 25 

 26 

Also, with fecundity, the spawning season of the fish far 27 

exceeds the forty days and we’re concerned about the fecundity 28 

of the fish and therefore, we need fish throughout, before and 29 

after and throughout the spawning season.  The forty-day season 30 

is far too short to gain both of these issues, to gain that data 31 

toward both of these issues, and we have to spread it out 32 

throughout the year. 33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  I understand what Kay’s concerns are, but I think 35 

this is a bigger picture than just that.  I think that I have 36 

always been concerned about the fact that our major fishing 37 

rodeos didn’t have the opportunity to access fisheries that they 38 

needed that people want to come and catch in those rodeos. 39 

 40 

I also firmly believe that fishery-dependent datasets I think 41 

are necessary for this council to understand more about our 42 

fishery and I think that we need a set-aside of allocation to do 43 

exactly these things.  Other councils do that. 44 

 45 

I will support this motion, but I want to throw something else 46 

out on the table for discussion before this motion goes on.  I 47 

think that we need to consider, if we do this, that we only do 48 
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it with states that are compliant with federal regulations.  If 1 

you’re not compliant with federal regulations, I don’t think you 2 

ought to have the option to do this and I would like to hear 3 

some discussion on that, Mr. Chairman. 4 

 5 

MR. GREENE:  I support what Myron is doing here.  I think the 6 

every fisherman that comes up to the podium is offering to help 7 

us and it’s a big cost savings for data collection throughout 8 

the whole Gulf.  It’s basically we’re going to give you a tag 9 

and you go bring us these fish and we’re going to have people 10 

waiting at the dock.  There’s a lot of ongoing, long-term 11 

studies I think that should continue and I’m offering my support 12 

for this. 13 

 14 

MR. RIECHERS:  Myron, I support your motion, but given your 15 

colleague from Louisiana and the statement that he just made, if 16 

he would like to make a substitute and change the motion, then 17 

we probably want to do that now, so that those of us around the 18 

table know how we will vote on this, because that may change the 19 

way I would vote. 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  It may change the idea of many states. 22 

 23 

MR. PERRET:  Help me with the wording, but I want to do just 24 

that, that motion only for states that comply with the federal 25 

regulations.  That’s what I would add. 26 

 27 

MR. RIECHERS:  Does that mean all federal regulations? 28 

 29 

MR. PERRET:  No and you know which ones I mean.  My substitute 30 

motion is to support the -- 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would hold that as a motion.  We haven’t 33 

untabled the motion from the committee and so that’s not -- You 34 

would be offering a motion. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  Okay.  I will follow the advice of the chair. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You can make a motion, but we haven’t brought 39 

the other one and untabled it.  It’s non-existent. 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  I think, procedurally, we have to untable it to 42 

take part in all these discussions. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The motion that he’s offering is different than 45 

the motion that was made in committee and that one has not been 46 

untabled and so if somebody wants to untable it and use it, 47 

that’s fine, but we haven’t done that. 48 
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 1 

MR. FISCHER:  So we can move forward, I make a motion that we 2 

untable this motion, because we really can’t take part in this 3 

discussion until. 4 

 5 

MR. ANSON:  Second. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It’s been moved and seconded to untable the 8 

motion from the committee.  There’s no discussion.  All those in 9 

favor of untabling the motion from the committee raise your 10 

hand.  The motion passes. 11 

 12 

MR. FISCHER:  Is all the discussion stricken from the record 13 

that we just had? 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The motion on the table is the motion you see on 16 

the board and is there discussion on the motion? 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  One question I would ask to I guess the state 19 

directors is what depths -- These guys are going to have tags 20 

and they’re going to be out there trying to catch the biggest 21 

red snapper they can, I assume, because that’s how you win the 22 

tournament, and one of my concerns is high-grading, because how 23 

many red snapper are they going to sort through looking for that 24 

big one and what depths of water do we think they’re going to be 25 

fishing in to get to that? 26 

 27 

My question is if -- Right now, the proposal is limited to about 28 

1,600 fish and assuming they weigh between ten and twenty pounds 29 

each, that’s getting us into 16,000 to 30,000 pounds of snapper, 30 

which is less than a day, if you buy the argument that the 31 

recreational fishery is catching around 100,000 pounds a day. 32 

 33 

There could be substantially more mortality associated with this 34 

than with the normal red snapper fisherman who goes out and 35 

catches his bag limit and maybe throws a few back in the course 36 

of doing that, but generally once they limit out, they quit and 37 

go home and the concern would be, are these guys going to go out 38 

there and fish all day for two or three days trying to find that 39 

huge red snapper and literally discard a hundred red snapper 40 

each trying to get that one big fish?  If that’s the case, there 41 

could be substantially more mortality resulting from this. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  The fish have to be tagged with a non-reusable tag 44 

and so if you try to high-grade, you have no way to tag the 45 

second fish, which now means you’re illegal because you can’t 46 

verify -- 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  Are you going to have observers on all the boats 1 

to make sure that every fish is tagged immediately when it’s 2 

caught and that no fish -- They don’t wait until they’re on the 3 

way home and put the tags in? 4 

 5 

MR. FISCHER:  If they’re boarded at sea, they will be highly 6 

illegal. 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  How many vessels will you have out at sea in all 9 

of these tournaments boarding them?  What’s your ability to 10 

enforce that, Myron?  I would say, realistically, it’s not real 11 

great and can all of you vouch that everyone that participates 12 

in the tournament -- What you’re saying, Myron, is they’re going 13 

to go out and first red snapper they bring in the boat, that’s 14 

the one they’re going to bring in for the tournament.  Do you 15 

really believe that’s going to happen? 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  I don’t know if that’s going to happen, but you’re 18 

suddenly not having faith in your joint agreement with law 19 

enforcement. 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  We can call law enforcement up.  The Coast Guard 22 

is here.  Are you able to enforce that requirement that the 23 

first fish they catch they insert the tag in it and don’t catch 24 

any more fish? 25 

 26 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  No. 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s a problem, Myron, and I’m trying to find out 29 

how much of a problem it is. 30 

 31 

MR. FISCHER:  I can’t tell you.  I don’t have the answer for how 32 

much of a problem it is.  I have more faith in the fishermen 33 

that they’re going to have tags issued and there will be severe 34 

penalties, because they’ll be fishing out of season if they 35 

don’t have the fish tagged. 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  Having said that, that’s a concern I have.  I 38 

don’t think that means we can’t do this, but I think it is 39 

something you need to think about.  I think the real concern 40 

here is right now we’ve got a forty-day season and I don’t think 41 

anybody wants to see anything happen that would result in that 42 

season being shortened. 43 

 44 

What I think you need to think about is if it was determined 45 

that somehow if we do this that the season has to be shortened 46 

or if anything else that’s going to transpire among the other 47 

states that could result in the season being shortened, would 48 
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you still want to do this or would you want to make your support 1 

on this contingent upon we have a forty-day season and it’s not 2 

going to be shortened by any of the things that may happen over 3 

the course of the next few weeks. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Let’s move on to some of the other discussion, 6 

Myron.  We have a growing list of folks and clearly it will 7 

probably grow some more. 8 

 9 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Roy somewhat took the words out of my mouth.  I 10 

was going to say that Florida FWC supports this proposal, with 11 

the caveat that in NOAA’s examination of this proposal if it 12 

looks like the proposal would result in shortening that forty-13 

day season, then we don’t support the proposal. 14 

 15 

Also, to respond to his other point about the bringing the fish 16 

onboard and the person not taking the first fish, I believe that 17 

with the Destin tournament that we would work with the 18 

tournament organizers and go through an education process and do 19 

the best we could to assure that that wouldn’t happen, but even 20 

that said, we wouldn’t be proposing observers on the boat and we 21 

couldn’t guarantee that it wouldn’t happen. 22 

 23 

MR. PERRET:  Roy, let me ask you a question.  I haven’t seen 24 

what Mr. Blanchet sent to you by email.  Is it considerably 25 

different than what L-4 is? 26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s not considerably different.  I just got it 28 

and looked at it this morning myself, but the list of 29 

tournaments has changed and the number of fish has gone from 30 

1,400 to 1,600 and it has been sent out to everybody.  Trish 31 

sent it out and so you should have it now. 32 

 33 

MR. PERRET:  I’m going to offer a substitute motion that the 34 

council offer support for the EFP as presented in Tab L, Number 35 

4, based upon the initial letter and follow-up email -- 36 

 37 

MR. FISCHER:  Corky, just state it the letter dated April 18. 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  For tournaments in states that are in compliance 40 

with federal red snapper bag and season regulations. 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a substitute motion and it’s seconded by 45 

Ms. Williams.  Is there discussion on the motion? 46 

 47 

DR. DANA:  This is not on the motion, but I just want to clarify 48 
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something with legal counsel.  In that I’m from Destin and in 1 

that I have charterboats that would compete in the Destin 2 

Fishing Rodeo, is this a conflict of interest for me? 3 

 4 

MR. GRIMES:  The statutory provisions of Magnuson allow you to 5 

vote and participate in discussions unless it has -- The 6 

language is “significant and predictable” and it’s sort of a 7 

matter of special interest and I don’t think you own anywhere 8 

near the 10 percent threshold in the charterboat industry that 9 

would prohibit you from voting.   10 

 11 

If you do, you’re doing a lot better than I think you are, but I 12 

don’t think you’ve exceeded that threshold or come anywhere near 13 

it and so you’re okay to participate and the same is true for 14 

any of the other charterboat-owning members of this council. 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Shep, does it say something about an advantage, 17 

an advantage over someone else?  Isn’t that language in there 18 

too? 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  That’s what I was talking about.  That’s the unique 21 

identifiable interest for the individual, but Dr. Dana does not 22 

have a problem in that regard and it’s not an exempted fishing 23 

permit just for her vessel to go and conduct these activities. 24 

 25 

Also, I would say this is something the council makes a 26 

recommendation on, but this is the National Marine Fisheries 27 

Service’s responsibility and if they want to issue the fishing 28 

permit, they will issue the fishing permit and this is just the 29 

council making a recommendation as to whether or not they 30 

support that permit. 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t think she has a conflict of interest any 33 

more than any other charterboat person around the table. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Johnny, did you want to speak to this motion? 36 

 37 

MR. GREENE:  My comment was before this motion came up and so I 38 

will decline. 39 

 40 

MR. RIECHERS:  I would like to amend the motion, the end of the 41 

motion, and it’s just an amendment to the motion to say “federal 42 

red snapper bag and season regulations and compliance with TED 43 

and BRD regulations”. 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I think that’s out of order, because it has 46 

nothing to do with catching red snapper. 47 

 48 
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MR. RIECHERS:  It’s certainly not out of order and I appreciate 1 

you -- Well, I’ll let the Chairman rule on that, but I would 2 

suggest that it isn’t. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I would agree that it’s not out of order and do 5 

we have a second to the amended motion?  It’s seconded by Ms. 6 

McCawley.  Is there discussion? 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  Before guns are drawn, let me suggest perhaps a 9 

different way to come at this.  I think what you ought to focus 10 

on is the forty-day season and that your support of this is 11 

contingent on we have a forty-day season this year.  Now, I 12 

wouldn’t phrase it the way Jessica did that it’s this EFP, but I 13 

would phrase it that the season is going to be forty days and if 14 

anything else happens that shortens the season beyond forty 15 

days, you don’t support it. 16 

 17 

Now that has connotations in terms of what’s going on with state 18 

compliance, but I think we need to think about that and we’re 19 

all sitting here and we know we’ve got two big commission 20 

meetings coming up in Louisiana and Florida and we already have 21 

different regulations in Texas and if the season gets any 22 

shorter, I think we would all be hard pressed to say we’re going 23 

to let a group of tournaments fish outside of that, regardless 24 

of whether it has much merit. 25 

 26 

I think at that point that the Fisheries Service would have to 27 

come in and look at this in terms of can we afford to allow any 28 

more fish to -- You guys can figure out amongst yourselves as to 29 

how you want to do this, but I just think we don’t want to see 30 

this season erode anymore and get any shorter. 31 

 32 

I don’t want to have to explain to all the other fishermen out 33 

there who aren’t in these tournaments, if the season gets any 34 

shorter, why they aren’t fishing but these tournaments get to 35 

fish.  I think that just becomes inequitable and difficult to 36 

justify. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think your point is well taken, Dr. Crabtree. 39 

 40 

MR. ANSON:  I won’t support the amendment and then I wanted to 41 

make a couple of comments as to the discussion to this point.  42 

The fish will be caught in deep or deeper water and I can’t say 43 

how much.  Dr. Crabtree had asked that. 44 

 45 

Yes, there is the potential for high-grading and how much, I 46 

don’t know.  Then Johnny and I started talking a little bit and 47 

they will be fishing for other species and then I got to 48 
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thinking that amberjack isn’t going to be available for at least 1 

the Dauphin Island, the one I’m concerned with. 2 

 3 

Triggerfish more than likely won’t be available and so there may 4 

not be any reason to go reef fish fishing I guess at that point, 5 

but that’s just a comment I wanted to add. 6 

 7 

MR. GREENE:  Mr. Anson certainly covered a lot of my things, but 8 

I think we’re kind of losing the track here of where we were 9 

originally trying to go with Mr. Fischer’s motion.  I will speak 10 

against this and hopefully we can get back to it.  Personally, I 11 

wouldn’t have a problem giving up a day of red snapper to enable 12 

these tournaments to continue for the sake of data collection. 13 

 14 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If there are fish left over after the season and 15 

they want to take whatever that amount is, like we did the 16 

weekend fishing somehow, to where there is fish available for 17 

both the charter for-hire in these tournaments and maybe some to 18 

give to the states for your private recreational fishermen, then 19 

I don’t have a problem with that.  I just don’t want to go over 20 

the quota. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  We seem to have a solution to where we are on the 23 

issue and now we have three motions on the board and we can’t 24 

add any more.  I would like to request a very small, couple of 25 

minutes, break and I think the issue is if we could formulate a 26 

substitute motion or an amendment to the motion that would not 27 

shorten the days of the open season -- I can’t declare forty 28 

days, because I don’t think we were guaranteed forty days yet.  29 

It might already be thirty-nine. 30 

 31 

I think we could come up with an immediate solution that would 32 

end a lot of the debate, but we would probably need a couple of 33 

minutes to do so. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  All right and we’ll take Dr. Abele before we act 36 

on that request. 37 

 38 

DR. ABELE:  I just had two items I wanted to put at the end of 39 

this and I think I could probably do them while they were 40 

getting together to rewrite an amendment. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I suspect we ought to focus on getting this mess 43 

cleared up and straightened out before we address the issues 44 

that you would like to bring up and so we’ll take a five-minute 45 

recess and we’ll crank back up at ten to the hour. 46 

 47 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I’ve got a few administrative items and then I 2 

will recognize you, Mr. Grimes, if I don’t forget.  If I do, 3 

please remind me.  If we could come back to the table and 4 

proceed. 5 

 6 

Before we proceed, I have a few administrative items for the 7 

council.  I remind you that checkout is at twelve o’clock, which 8 

those that need to do so will have to take into account.  If 9 

council members need help with boarding passes, Trish will be 10 

happy to help you. 11 

 12 

Given the timing, it’s looking to me like we will recess at 13 

11:30 for lunch, because I don’t see, given what we have left on 14 

the schedule, on expediting through.  If we were further along, 15 

I would work through lunch, but I don’t think that’s going to 16 

work. 17 

 18 

My thinking is we’ll recess at 11:30 and do lunch and regain 19 

ourselves at 1:00 and continue wherever we are in the queue.  20 

With that, Mr. Grimes has requested the floor. 21 

 22 

MR. GRIMES:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I just wanted to revisit 23 

some of the statements I had made to Dr. Dana and I apologize 24 

that I’m a little rusty on the recusal stuff.  You would have to 25 

recuse yourself from a financial decision or a council decision 26 

that has a clear and predictable effect on your interests, but a 27 

council decision is defined as approval of an FMP, FMP 28 

amendment, request for amendment or regulations implementing an 29 

FMP, or emergency rules.  It wouldn’t include an EFP and so the 30 

issue doesn’t arise relative to this vote. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Grimes.  Where we are is we have 33 

an amendment on the floor. 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Chair, I move to withdraw the amendment on 36 

the board. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The amendment has been withdrawn, if there’s no 39 

objection.  That says we are back to the substitute motion and 40 

is there discussion on the motion? 41 

 42 

MR. ANSON:  I would like to offer an amendment and the amendment 43 

would be adding to the original motion language -- 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  No, Corky first. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Perret, I will recognize you for the 48 
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purposes of the motion. 1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  We’ve got to get to the substitute motion and 3 

that’s what we’re on now.  I withdraw my substitute motion. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That brings us back to the main motion.  Now, 6 

Mr. Anson, I would recommend a substitute as opposed to an 7 

amendment. 8 

 9 

MR. ANSON:  Yes, a substitute motion to the original motion 10 

would be to as long as in the NMFS determination that it would 11 

not impact the 2012 season, the forty-day season. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  You really mean “reduce” as opposed to “impact”, 14 

I think. 15 

 16 

MR. ANSON:  I thought impact would mean reduce, but I will take 17 

that as a change, to reduce the forty-day red snapper 2012 18 

season. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a substitute motion and it’s seconded by 21 

Ms. Williams.  Discussion? 22 

 23 

MR. FISCHER:  What I would like to do is also offer a quick 24 

amendment and it would be where it says “based upon the initial 25 

letter”, I think we should amend that to be “the April 18 26 

letter”, for clarity. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think we could consider that a friendly.  I 29 

think we can change that as a friendly change to the substitute 30 

motion and would you give the words to Phyllis please, Mr. 31 

Fischer? 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  Based upon the April 18 letter to National Marine 34 

Fisheries Service. 35 

 36 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would just make a suggestion to the wording of 37 

it.  I would suggest that you change that last clause just to 38 

say “provided that the 2012 season is no shorter than forty 39 

days”. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  By deleting “a review of the NMFS Science 42 

Center”? 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  They’re going to review it for science merit, but 45 

they’re not going to review it in the context of number of days 46 

and so I would just delete that phrase “and a review of the NMFS 47 

Science Center”.  That’s going to happen under anything. 48 
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 1 

I would suggest that you delete “and a review of the NMFS 2 

Science Center” and just say “provided that the 2012 season is 3 

no shorter than forty days”. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We’ll consider that a friendly if the maker of 6 

the motion concurs and the seconder. 7 

 8 

MR. ANSON:  I concur. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Very good.  I think we’ve actually got a motion 11 

here now.  The motion is on the board and is there further 12 

discussion of the motion?  13 

 14 

Seeing none, we will vote on the motion.  The substitute motion 15 

is that the council offer support for the EFP as presented in 16 

Tab L, Number 4, based upon the April 18, 2012 letter to NMFS 17 

with an additional tournament from Florida and Texas, as 18 

selected by the appropriate state agency, provided that the 2012 19 

season is no shorter than forty days.  All those in favor of the 20 

motion please raise your hand.  The motion carries.  I believe 21 

we’re now back to Dr. Abele, who had several issues relative to 22 

the Reef Fish Committee Report. 23 

 24 

DR. ABELE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I would like to make a 25 

motion requesting staff to assess the consequences of not having 26 

a closed season for red grouper.   27 

 28 

This came up in public comment and as well as in the informal 29 

discussions and so much has changed regarding grouper and 30 

shallow-water grouper and I think that Dr. Crabtree can help me 31 

out with more specifics, since he did have some very specific 32 

comments related to this. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Before we get to that, we need a second.  Ms. 35 

McCawley seconds it.  Comments? 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  We’re talking about removing the February/March 38 

closure, which I believe right now would just be for red grouper 39 

and black grouper.  This did come up from a fisherman from south 40 

Florida who was here. 41 

 42 

That closed season was originally put in place for a variety of 43 

reasons.  At that time, remember we had problems with red 44 

grouper and it was at one time thought to be overfished and in a 45 

rebuilding plan. 46 

 47 

We also had concerns about gag and potential discards that may 48 
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have occurred and black grouper was an unknown in terms of its 1 

status and there were concerns about confusing identify and 2 

nomenclature with gag and black grouper. 3 

 4 

Things have changed quite a bit then.  I think our concerns 5 

about red grouper aren’t there right now.  The stock appears to 6 

be in good shape and in fact, we just increased the bag limit 7 

and raised the quotas.  We now have an assessment on black 8 

grouper, which we know is in pretty good shape, and more 9 

importantly, gag is closed throughout all of that season and 10 

it’s closed for quite a bit of time outside and beyond this two 11 

months. 12 

 13 

It isn’t clear to me right now that we get much benefit out of 14 

this two-month closure and I think an analysis of what the 15 

implications of removing it would be would be in order to look 16 

at and if it comes back from the analysis that it’s not doing 17 

anything beneficial for gag, then it’s not clear that we need it 18 

at that point and so I don’t have any problems with asking staff 19 

to evaluate this and report back to us. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  A question.  You say the closure is for red and 22 

black only and it’s not for shallow-water? 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  I believe that the two-month closure was red, 25 

gag, and black grouper and staff can check that. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The motion might be modified to include black 28 

and would that be part of your -- As a friendly, for red and 29 

black grouper.  If staff will confirm that that’s correct, in 30 

terms of closure, and it’s not other shallow-water. 31 

 32 

MR. STEVEN ATRAN:  I believe at the moment is all shallow-water 33 

grouper. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  I stand corrected. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  How would the maker of the motion like to 38 

proceed? 39 

 40 

DR. ABELE:  For all shallow-water grouper except gag. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Does that reflect your intent and the seconder 43 

of the motion concurs?  Okay.  Further discussion? 44 

 45 

MR. ATRAN:  I was just wondering, since we already have a motion 46 

that passed a little bit earlier asking us to consider a split 47 

season for gag for 2013, is it your intent that those two months 48 
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still be off limits during that split season?  Otherwise, you 1 

might want to remove it for all shallow-water grouper. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would suggest that we fold that into this 4 

framework action and consider a split season for gag along with 5 

the possibility of changing this closed season or getting rid of 6 

it.  Then we can figure out what we want to do.  That would seem 7 

to be a reasonable vehicle to move this. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess if somebody would propose a substitute 10 

or do a friendly on this motion.  Larry, would you like to 11 

address that? 12 

 13 

DR. ABELE:  Maybe Roy or Steve could put the substitute in 14 

there?   15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  Did we pass a motion already asking staff to 17 

develop a framework action to look at a split season?  Okay.  18 

Larry, I would just suggest that you change your motion to 19 

request that staff include alternatives to modify or eliminate 20 

that closed season in that particular framework amendment. 21 

 22 

DR. ABELE:  Thank you.  That would be perfect. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Could you help with the wording, Dr. Crabtree? 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  Include alternatives to modify or eliminate the 27 

February/March recreational shallow-water grouper closure in the 28 

framework action evaluating a split gag season.   29 

 30 

I would suggest to you that it would be really good if we could 31 

make some good progress on this so that we could have a fairly 32 

detailed discussion at the June council meeting, which will be 33 

in Tampa and will be right in the heart of the affected 34 

constituents and we could get a lot of feedback there. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dr. Abele, that’s consistent with your intent 37 

and Ms. McCawley concurs, being the seconder?  Okay.  Is there 38 

discussion on the motion on the board?  Seeing none, is there 39 

any objection to the motion on the board?  Seeing none, the 40 

motion carries unanimously.  Dr. Abele, you had another point? 41 

 42 

DR. ABELE:  There was so much confusing and difficulty in 43 

understanding the presentation on economic willingness to pay 44 

that I just wanted to put on the record that I really think we 45 

need these people in person on something so important and 46 

especially something as complex as this. 47 

 48 
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It’s my sense, from talking to members of the audience and 1 

fellow council members, that there’s a lot of confusion about 2 

what was done.  They are confusing total economic impact and the 3 

multiplier effect when it was a very narrow analysis and I think 4 

if we had had someone here, and especially with the phone 5 

breaking down the way it did, and so I don’t know how Dr. 6 

Bortone and Dr. Ponwith can get together to sort that out, but 7 

it was really hard and many of the members of the audience said 8 

they just couldn’t hear at all. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I concur and I think Dr. Ponwith has taken note 11 

and do you wish to comment, Dr. Ponwith? 12 

 13 

DR. PONWITH:  Yes, I am taking note of this and these are 14 

excruciating decisions under the current budget and time 15 

constraints that we have.  The situation that I’m in is every 16 

decision to have someone here counts not only financially 17 

against the Center, but in travel ceilings.   18 

 19 

We’ve been given travel ceilings that we have to live within and 20 

when the ceiling is gone, whether you’ve got the money or not, 21 

you’re done traveling and so every decision to go somewhere is a 22 

decision not. 23 

 24 

I agree with you that this is important.  The second 25 

consideration is this, that every day someone spends sitting in 26 

an airport is a day that they’re not sitting at their desk 27 

working.  I know that I’ve got our people queued up to the 28 

second that this was done to start working on red snapper. 29 

 30 

What I’m trying to do is the best decision that maximizes the 31 

most work that we can get and this time, it came at the expense 32 

of in-person communication, for which there is no substitute.   33 

 34 

I will make a commitment to the council to work very closely 35 

with you in making these decisions when things rise up, in terms 36 

of their complexity or their importance about whether or not 37 

someone should be here in person, but I beg your indulgence that 38 

the answer won’t or can’t always be that they will be here in 39 

person, but I do make a commitment to working closely with you 40 

to make sure that we’re weighing the relative costs and the 41 

benefits on those decisions. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you and I think I understand where you’re 44 

at, but I would also echo that there is probably no more 45 

contentious issue than allocation and that, in my view, would 46 

throw it right to the top of the heap. 47 

 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We wrote the letter to Bonnie and I 1 

understood the reasons why they couldn’t show up, but I think 2 

some issues it might be possible -- Not all, but some issues, if 3 

our staff were given the presentation early enough that Assane 4 

or Ava would be able to make a presentation in its place. 5 

 6 

I think having someone there with that expertise could do it, 7 

but I wouldn’t want to blanket say that that’s what we’ll do, 8 

but when we can, that would be sufficient. 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  I will offer up that at the June meeting, which 11 

is in Tampa, I can have Dr. Steve Holliman, who is an economist 12 

in the Regional Office and also is on our SESSC and has reviewed 13 

all of this, attend that meeting, if we wanted to ask questions. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think it would be helpful to everyone, 16 

council, the audience, et cetera, if somebody could start off at 17 

ground zero, so to speak, and in plain language help everyone 18 

understand where this report got to, because I think 98 percent 19 

did not. 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  He’s an economist and so I don’t know about how 22 

plain his language will be, but if, Steve, if you want to talk 23 

to Phil and Dr. Holliman about that, I’m sure we can arrange 24 

that. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Just tell him to talk in plain language, that’s 27 

all. 28 

 29 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ve tried that with you and it didn’t work. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I have nothing further on the Reef Fish 32 

Committee and is there anything from the council relative to the 33 

Reef Fish Committee? 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just before we leave, while we’re all here, 36 

relative to -- Where did Mr. Fischer go? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  He’s up next and so I hope he appears shortly. 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  Myron, relative to the EFP, I would ask that the 41 

states who are involved in this get together, but I would ask 42 

that you put some language in there that addresses the issue of 43 

high-grading and that you’re going to make it clear to the 44 

tournaments that they’re going to have to -- I would suggest 45 

that the first fish you catch has to be tagged, so we don’t into 46 

high-grading. 47 

 48 
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Then, Myron, I would suggest that you talk to Dr. Branstetter.  1 

We will need, for example, a list of all of the vessels that 2 

will be participating in the tournament under the EFP and we’ll 3 

need their documentation number, owners names, addresses, and 4 

there’s a whole host of other information we’ll have to have to 5 

move through and so I would suggest, Myron, that you get with 6 

Dr. Branstetter and get a list of what’s required. 7 

 8 

Then, just procedurally, what will happen now is we will publish 9 

a notice in the Federal Register and there will be a public 10 

comment opportunity on it and there will be a review by the 11 

Science Center and then we will make a decision sometime after 12 

the public comment is completed. 13 

 14 

MR. FISCHER:  What we’ll probably do is put Mr. Blanchet on 15 

this.  He put my name on here to deflect his phone from ringing, 16 

but we’ll probably have Mr. Blanchet in contact with your office 17 

and he’ll be involved with the other states and we’ll piece this 18 

together. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If I may offer a comment.  It may help to let 21 

them know that they really should tag that first red snapper 22 

caught, because in looking at them, Roy is going to assume 23 

that’s what they did and so is the Science Center and if 24 

everybody comes in with a big, large fish, guess what?   25 

 26 

The weight of your fish is going to go up and your season is 27 

probably going to get shortened the next time around, because we 28 

go by the weight of the fish and if it shows all these big old 29 

sow snappers, then I think you’ve got a big problem for the next 30 

year. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further comments or considerations for Reef 33 

Fish, before we leave that committee report?  Seeing none, the 34 

last committee report that we have would be the Mackerel 35 

Committee and Chairman Fischer. 36 

 37 

MACKEREL COMMITTEE REPORT 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.  We’re going to 40 

keep Mr. Greene in the bullpen and ready to come out and rescue 41 

me as soon as my voice fails and so he’s been warmed up and he’s 42 

pretty much ready when I walk a couple of batters and LSU is 43 

number one in the recent poll. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Chairman Fischer, if I could interject, and I 46 

apologize, but my intention is that utilize the next twenty 47 

minutes, at which time we’ll recess.  If you want to work that 48 
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time around, it’s not ironclad and use your discretion. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Sure and we’ll run through this.  I would just use 3 

a little license to summarize, but the Mackerel Committee met 4 

and the agenda was adopted as written.  The minutes of the 5 

January 30, 2012, meeting in Mobile, Alabama were adopted as 6 

written.   7 

 8 

Emily Muehlstein reviewed the comments from the Amendment 19 9 

scoping meetings.  We reviewed the options paper for Amendment 10 

19.  Dr. Leard went through the paper and of which, we went 11 

through the actions and we have these motions to make. 12 

 13 

On Action 1, following discussion, the committee recommends, and 14 

I so move, to direct staff to add an Alternative 4 which would 15 

require that for a person to sell king or Spanish mackerel in or 16 

from the EEZ of the Gulf of Mexico or Atlantic, those fish must 17 

have been harvested aboard a vessel with a commercial vessel 18 

permit/endorsement for each species taken and prohibit the sale 19 

of king or Spanish mackerel caught under the bag limit.  20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 22 

on the motion? 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The only difference, because later you removed 25 

Alternative 2, is that you added “prohibit the sale of king or 26 

Spanish mackerel caught under the bag limit”? 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  This was different from the alternative that was 29 

removed slightly.  It tied up all the loose ends and I don’t 30 

know what your question is, what you’re trying to seek. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think that’s right, Ms. Williams.  That’s my 33 

recollection. 34 

 35 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Then rather than remove it and make this 36 

Alternative 4, why didn’t they just modify it and add to 37 

prohibit the sale of king or -- 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  That came up. 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wondered why and okay. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  Because it came up in that order, in a different 44 

order. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the committee motion?  47 

Seeing none, is there any objection to the committee motion?  48 
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Seeing none, the motion carries unanimously.  Mr. Chairman. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  This is where we get to the 3 

next part.  The committee also recommends, and I so move, that 4 

in Action 1, Alternative 3, to remove “South Atlantic Council” 5 

and to add Option a. Gulf Council and Option b. South Atlantic 6 

Council to read as follows: Alternative 3 is to prohibit the 7 

sale of king and Spanish mackerel caught under the bag limit 8 

except for allowing sale by for-hire vessels that possess the 9 

necessary state and federal commercial permits to sell coastal 10 

migratory pelagic species harvested in or from Option a, the 11 

South Atlantic Council’s jurisdiction, or Option b, the Gulf 12 

Council’s jurisdiction, and the prohibition of sale during a 13 

commercial closure would apply. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 16 

on the motion? 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m going to speak in opposition to that.  I 19 

really do not understand why this has come back up before the 20 

council.  I remember us having a lot of public testimony and, of 21 

course, it’s been a few years back, because what you have to 22 

understand is that even if you allow the charter vessels, for-23 

hire, and that was one of the issues, because it was mainly 24 

coming from there, to sell their king and Spanish mackerel, even 25 

though they had the necessary state permits and all with the 26 

fish that’s under the bag limit, that’s coming off of the 27 

commercial TAC the next year. 28 

 29 

Actually, you’re probably doing two things.  They’re being 30 

double counted and you’re probably adding, possibly, a little 31 

more TAC to the commercial and maybe or maybe not, depending on 32 

whether or not if they were double counted.  It could also work 33 

the same way on the recreational side. 34 

 35 

The fact that any overruns, by doing this, the next year is 36 

still going to come off the commercial industry’s TAC and these 37 

fish were caught under a bag limit.  We’ve already had this 38 

discussion many, many times and that’s why the Gulf Council was 39 

probably the first -- We had a lot of people from the South 40 

Atlantic screaming at us for doing it, for stopping the sale of 41 

bag limit fish caught on a charter for-hire trip. 42 

 43 

As a matter of a fact, I thought Magnuson says you cannot sell, 44 

possess, barter, or trade anything caught under the bag limit.  45 

I thought.  Shep can double check and maybe that’s been changed 46 

since then, but at one time, there was something in there that 47 

you could not sell recreational-caught fish and that would be a 48 
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recreational-caught fish. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  I think the committee stands by its motion, 3 

because it ends with we would prohibit the sale during the 4 

commercial closure and so it wouldn’t be an overrun.  When the 5 

commercial season ends, you couldn’t sell your fish and so the 6 

committee motion stands. 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To that point, no, you didn’t take care of it, 9 

because those fish are still going to be added as being taken by 10 

a commercial vessel and they’re being caught under a bag limit 11 

and so right, they can’t catch the bag limit when the season is 12 

closed, but they can catch it when the commercial industry is 13 

open.  Do you see what I’m saying?  I mean they can sell it and 14 

then that’s going to be counted against the commercial industry. 15 

 16 

MR. FISCHER:  If you go back to the inception of the mackerel 17 

plan, there was a 2 percent shift to account for these fish. 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  I just wonder if our esteemed esquire would like to 20 

comment on that, about recreational fish being sold.  Are we 21 

violating anything? 22 

 23 

MR. GRIMES:  No, there is nothing in the statute that deals with 24 

the sale of recreationally-caught fish.  I guess commercial 25 

fishing is defined as fish that are intended to enter the stream 26 

of commerce and so in some respects if you catch it to sell it, 27 

then it’s not considered -- It would meet the definition of 28 

commercial fishing, but I don’t know that there are a whole lot 29 

of consequences to that. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  We put in Alternative 4, which prohibits the sale 32 

of king or Spanish mackerel caught under the bag limit and so it 33 

prohibits all that.  How doesn’t it? 34 

 35 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Because in our document, it even says all fish 36 

from the EEZ that are -- It depends on what they choose.  These 37 

are alternatives, true, and we don’t know what the final outcome 38 

is going to be, but we’ve already fought this battle how many 39 

times? 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  What we’re doing is preparing an options paper and 42 

we’re not preparing a final -- Mr. Chair, the committee motion 43 

stands.  44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will vote on the motion, the committee 46 

motion.  All those in favor say aye; all opposed like sign.  The 47 

motion passes. 48 
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 1 

MR. FISCHER:  The committee also recommends, and I so move, that 2 

in Action 1, to move Alternative 2, which is for a person to 3 

sell king or Spanish mackerel in or from the EEZ of the Atlantic 4 

or Gulf of Mexico, those fish must have been harvested aboard a 5 

vessel with a commercial vessel permit/endorsement for each 6 

species taken and that this goes to the considered but rejected 7 

section. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 10 

on the motion? 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Can somebody tell me why? 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Could you repeat that please, Ms. Williams?  I 15 

missed it. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Can someone tell me why you removed that? 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  I believe because after we modified Alternative 20 

4, we realized that Alternative 2 was duplicative and wasn’t 21 

necessary.  Is that not correct, Mr. Fischer? 22 

 23 

MR. FISCHER:  That is correct, sir. 24 

 25 

MS. WILLIAMS:  How is that so, because what you’re doing in 26 

Alternative 4 is you’re allowing the sale of bag-limit-caught 27 

fish aboard a for-hire vessel, whereas in Alternative 2 you’re 28 

not and so how are they --  That’s the way I read it. 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  Alternative 4 prohibits that sale of king or 31 

Spanish mackerel caught under the bag limit, period. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Right, Alternative 2 does. 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, Alternative 4 does too and that’s why they’re 36 

duplicative.  Read Alternative 4, the last clause in it.  It’s 37 

to prohibit the sale of king or Spanish mackerel caught under 38 

the bag limit. 39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  No, but it says prohibit the sale of king and 41 

Spanish mackerel caught under the bag limit except for -- 42 

 43 

DR. CRABTREE:  Alternative 4 does not say that. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Page 1, the bottom of the committee report, is 46 

Alternative 4. 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, I’ve got it. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will vote on the committee motion.  All those 3 

in favor say aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion passes 4 

unanimously. 5 

 6 

MR. FISCHER:  On Action 2, the committee did not recommend any 7 

changes to the alternatives.  Moving on to Action 3, the 8 

committee didn’t make any specific recommendations, but 9 

requested the IPT revise the alternatives to potentially create 10 

a tournament permit, prohibit sales, and ensure that sales, if 11 

allowed, would be counted against the recreational allocation, 12 

as well a reporting requirements and who is responsible for 13 

reporting these.  It was discussed at length and no motions were 14 

made, but it was by consensus. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  To that point, Ms. McCawley? 17 

 18 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  On Action 3, during that discussion, we talked 19 

about the possibility of having the guy that does the regional 20 

king mackerel tournaments that came to the South Atlantic 21 

Council come to the Gulf Council and speak on those tournaments 22 

and if that’s something that the council wants, I could try to 23 

contact this gentleman and see if he would attend the next 24 

council meeting where we’re going to be discussing this item. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  He’s from the Southern Kingfish Association. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  What’s the pleasure of the council? 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  I suggest that we ask Jessica to do just that.  I 31 

think it would be a good idea. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will proceed in that direction.  Back to you, 34 

Mr. Chairman. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  I think we were moving to Action 4, which is on 37 

the board.  The committee also recommends, and I so move, to 38 

eliminate Option c. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 41 

on the motion?  Seeing none, any objection to the motion?  42 

Seeing none, the motion carries unanimously. 43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you and we will be taking our morning break 45 

in about five minutes, if that’s right, and so let’s try to get 46 

through some more of these.  In Action 5, the committee also 47 

recommends, and I so move, to eliminate Option c. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion 2 

on the committee motion?  Seeing none, is there any objection to 3 

the committee motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries 4 

unanimously. 5 

 6 

MR. FISCHER:  On Action 6, the committee also recommends, and I 7 

so move, to move Action 6, which is Passive Reduction of 8 

Permits, to the considered but rejected section. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on 11 

the motion?  Seeing none, is there any objection to the motion?  12 

Seeing none, the motion passes unanimously. 13 

 14 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 7, we didn’t recommend any changes.  Action 15 

8 is where we got bogged down.  We were at the point where we 16 

were discussing Alternative 2 and I think it’s something at this 17 

stage we might want to take from the top, but we were discussing 18 

to remove Alternative 2, which is on the board, and I think we 19 

were in the midst of discussion and I will leave it at that for 20 

now and you can instruct us how to proceed. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think we would be well advised to finish up 23 

Action 8 and Action 9 and then we’ll break for lunch. 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  At this stage, what I’ll do is get Dr. Leard 26 

prepared.  Action 8 was to modify or eliminate the income 27 

requirement for Gulf and South Atlantic commercial coastal 28 

migratory pelagic permits.  It’s to eliminate the income 29 

requirement and, Rick, would you want to -- Maybe just the 30 

council deliberate and move forward, whichever would be shorter.  31 

I don’t know if we need explanation from staff at this stage. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  This is similar to the reef fish income 34 

requirement discussion and is there discussion by the council 35 

relative to Action 8? 36 

 37 

DR. DANA:  My comment yesterday during committee was that there 38 

is not a cobia permit that currently exists and that the sale of 39 

cobia is managed by the states and so I have problems with this 40 

alternative. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  I will say if someone is not a pure mackerel 43 

fisherman and they just sell their cobia, an income requirement 44 

might be very difficult if we add cobia to the plan and so some 45 

of the discussion to eliminate the income requirement could be a 46 

method to go.  We also have other criteria and keep in mind 47 

these people have already qualified years ago into the program. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion by the council?  Seeing none, 2 

let’s move on to Action 9, Mr. Chairman. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  We’re getting to Action 9. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Clarify for me, Mr. Chairman.  Is the motion on 7 

the board, was that passed by the committee? 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  I don’t think the committee passed it.  It was in 10 

discussion. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  They ran out of time. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Nobody brought it up during the discussion under 15 

Action 8 and so I’m assuming there’s no interest on the council 16 

relative to the motion on the board. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  It appears that way. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Chairman, we’re back to Action 9. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 9 is the Spanish mackerel gillnet 23 

endorsement, of which we have various alternatives and I would 24 

just ask the pleasure of the -- The committee did not get to it 25 

and I would ask the pleasure of the council, if it’s something 26 

they want to streamline, delete, or move forward with.  How 27 

grave of an issue is this Spanish mackerel gillnet fishery where 28 

we need a specific endorsement for it?  That would be the 29 

question. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Is there discussion by the council? 32 

 33 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  This was an action that was brought up 34 

actually by the South Atlantic Council.  We kind of threw Gulf 35 

in there, but there never really has been much of a gillnet 36 

fishery in the Gulf since Florida eliminated the gillnets from 37 

state waters, which is where most of that gillnet fishery was 38 

operating. 39 

 40 

It’s my understanding, and Duane can probably weigh in, but my 41 

understanding is this was primarily directed at the gillnet 42 

fishery in the Atlantic, probably off of North Carolina. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Harris, would you like to comment on Action 45 

9 and Dr. Leard’s comments? 46 

 47 

MR. HARRIS:  I’m not sure there is a gillnet fishery off of 48 
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North Carolina is there?  I thought it was off of Florida that 1 

we were talking about, off the east coast of Florida. 2 

 3 

DR. LEARD:  It may have been the east coast of Florida, because 4 

there’s only a three-mile jurisdiction there. 5 

 6 

MR. HARRIS:  I may be wrong, but that’s what I think it is. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Ms. McCawley, can you add to our confusion? 9 

 10 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  What was the question again? 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Where the Spanish mackerel gillnet fishery is on 13 

the Atlantic coast?  Is it solely Florida, as far as you know? 14 

 15 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I’m not certain.  I’m pretty sure North Carolina 16 

still allows gillnets and so I can’t say that there isn’t any 17 

gillnet fishing off of North Carolina. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you.  Any further discussion or druthers 20 

by the council?  I don’t see any and back to you, Mr. Chairman. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, this would conclude this amendment 23 

and now we would still have to go forward on the next amendment 24 

and if you wanted to address this after lunch. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think this would be a good time to recess for 27 

lunch.  We will come back to Mackerel and Amendment 20, which 28 

has not been discussed by the committee, and we’ll do that at 29 

one o’clock and so we’ll recess until one o’clock and then get 30 

back to Mackerel Amendment 20. 31 

 32 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 11:30 a.m., April 19, 2012.) 33 

 34 

- - - 35 

 36 

April 19, 2012 37 

 38 

THURSDAY AFTERNOON SESSION 39 

 40 

- - - 41 

 42 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 43 

Council reconvened at the Omni Bayfront Hotel, Corpus Christi, 44 

Texas, Thursday afternoon, April 19, 2012, and was called to 45 

order at 1:00 p.m. by Chairman Bob Gill. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will come back to order and get started.  A 48 
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couple of things before we get started.  First of all, Mr. 1 

Grimes has requested a moment. 2 

 3 

MR. GRIMES:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I just wanted to inform 4 

members of the council that I will not be attending your next 5 

two meetings.  I am going to be going on rotational assignment 6 

in Washington, D.C. for the summer and at your June meeting and 7 

your August meeting, you will have someone else from the 8 

Southeast Section here to provide you guidance.   9 

 10 

I can’t tell you who that is at this point, because frankly it 11 

hasn’t been decided, but I just didn’t want it to catch any of 12 

you by surprise and I’m sure you will miss me and thank you, Mr. 13 

Chairman. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We will miss you about this much.  For those of 16 

you that don’t know, this is the last meeting for Carmen 17 

DeGeorge, who has been with us for a number of years, and we’re 18 

sad to see you go and we wish you well in going back to the 19 

Northeast, but thank you. 20 

 21 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.  I’m heading 22 

to Boston, Massachusetts and so thanks very much, everybody.  23 

It’s been a pleasure working with you the last couple of years, 24 

but I have orders to return back afloat and so my wife and I are 25 

heading up to Boston.  Thanks very much. 26 

 27 

MR. PEARCE:  I just want to personally thank him too for all the 28 

work he did during the oil spill for us in Louisiana.  He was 29 

great to talk to and discuss with and handle our problems as 30 

discreetly as he did and thank you. 31 

 32 

MR. PERRET:  I have a comment for Shep.  Are you going on a two-33 

month assignment to Washington or are you going on a two-month 34 

vacation? 35 

 36 

MR. GRIMES:  It’s a four-month detail, rotational assignment, 37 

whatever.  It’s four months. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  He’s going to straighten Washington out, Corky. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Four months is not long enough. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The other thing I would like to mention is that 44 

we were scheduled to go into Amendment 20 when we got back and a 45 

request has been made, because of various folks leaving to catch 46 

planes, et cetera, that we deal with the remaining EFP first and 47 

go to Amendment 20 thereafter.   48 
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 1 

If there’s no objection from the council, that’s what I would 2 

propose we do.  I’m not seeing a whole bunch of folks getting 3 

excited about that change and in that case, we’ll do the EFP and 4 

Dr. Crabtree, go ahead. 5 

 6 

DISCUSSION OF GULF HEADBOAT COOPERATIVE EFP REQUEST 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  We have the headboat cooperative request for an 9 

exempted fishing permit.  We went over a summary of it yesterday 10 

and you all have it in your briefing book and we heard quite a 11 

bit about it in public comment. 12 

 13 

Now, from a procedural point, the process will be that we will 14 

publish a notice in the Federal Register acknowledging that 15 

we’ve received a request for an exempted fishing permit.  There 16 

will be, I suspect, a thirty-day public comment period on it and 17 

then we will make a decision on it. 18 

 19 

Like most of these generally, we look to the council for a 20 

recommendation of support or not support or specific concerns 21 

and things you may have with it.  I think, given that we have to 22 

go to the Federal Register and have a comment period, it’s not 23 

likely that any final decision would be made prior to the June 24 

council meeting, but it would be good if you want to have some 25 

discussion and if you can come to a decision as to whether you 26 

support this or identify concerns you believe need to be 27 

addressed, that would be helpful. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree.  Is there discussion by 30 

the council on the EFP and the headboat cooperative? 31 

 32 

MR. ANSON:  This is a contentious issue and it’s a topic that 33 

many people spoke upon yesterday and we’ve received some 34 

comments from the public and I don’t know if it will help -- You 35 

all can decide, but I would recommend that one of the points 36 

that the cooperative brought that they would like to include in 37 

their pilot program would be the ability to purchase leased 38 

shares or lease shares from the commercial sector and I would 39 

suggest that maybe that not be included in any program, pilot 40 

program, that goes forward and I would support possibly removing 41 

that from this particular program so it would not be considered. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further comments by the council? 44 

 45 

MR. BOYD:  We heard several times yesterday that there was a 46 

concern about the possibility of bias in this study and that the 47 

boats that were participating were volunteers rather than being 48 
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selected at random and so I would like to ask Dr. Ponwith if 1 

this kind of a study can give us credible evidence that this is 2 

the right thing to do or the wrong thing to do, based on the 3 

participation in it. 4 

 5 

DR. PONWITH:  Again, what I’m eager to do is see the full -- 6 

I’ve seen kind of this Frankenstein patchwork of what’s being 7 

proposed and what I want to see is the whole list of the 8 

materials together, so that I can take a look at this and 9 

consult with the scientists within the Center and then come back 10 

with a more measured evaluation. 11 

 12 

I can say, in general terms, that we welcome data and to be able 13 

to do a good assessment on this, I really need to see -- First 14 

of all, age data and fecundity data are important elements in a 15 

stock assessment.  Those data, in the general case, are very 16 

important to being successful and understanding the status of 17 

the stock.  In terms of this, seeing the full proposal I think 18 

is going to be important. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess that raises the question of does the 21 

Fisheries Service have more materials that the Science Center 22 

hasn’t seen?  Does the Fisheries Service expect more materials 23 

from the EFP requesters?  What is that status?  I thought that 24 

all we had was what we had. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think that’s right, Bob, but the Center really 27 

hasn’t had time -- We just got this on the 9th of April and so 28 

they haven’t had real time to go through this.  I expect, 29 

because it’s true of almost every exempted fishing permit 30 

request, that almost invariably we go back to the applicant and 31 

request additional information and clarifications.  I am 32 

confident that’s going to happen here. 33 

 34 

In a perfect world, I suppose you would want to select the 35 

vessels at random, but I don’t see how this could work other 36 

than on a volunteer basis.  I don’t think we could come in and 37 

select a vessel and say you’ve been selected and you’re required 38 

to participate in an EFP like this. 39 

 40 

I don’t think there’s any way to do it other than have the 41 

vessels that choose to participate to volunteer to do it and so 42 

while that might not be perfect from a science standpoint, I 43 

think in the real world it’s probably the best we can do. 44 

 45 

Now, to Kevin’s comment on the intersector trading, that is 46 

exclusive to the second year of the project and I suppose if the 47 

council had reservations of that, we could issue the EFP without 48 
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that, but tell the applicants that we’re willing to come back 1 

and relook at that at some point during the first year, after we 2 

have some idea as to how things are working and how it’s 3 

proceeding and maybe people’s perception of these issues evolves 4 

a little bit and we could come back and look at that say nine 5 

months into the project and then potentially modify the EFP at 6 

that time.  There are probably some options in how we could deal 7 

with that. 8 

 9 

MR. BOYD:  Just a follow-up.  It seems to me that any 10 

organization that forms their own entity and asks for a permit 11 

that gives them the ability to study whatever it is has built-in 12 

bias.   13 

 14 

I would submit to you that if a recreational fishing group, 15 

purely recreational, came to you with this same request, we 16 

probably, as a council, would question the viability of the data 17 

that came out of it and so I don’t know how the council is going 18 

to use the data that comes out of this study. 19 

 20 

DR. PONWITH:  There again, this is one of the things that we 21 

either have been tasked or in the near future will be tasked 22 

with the full suite of information.  This is one of the aspects 23 

that we can take a look at, is in terms of the study design, of 24 

when it’s voluntary and what does that do to the data, in terms 25 

of its ability to help us evaluate this as a management tool 26 

going forward. 27 

 28 

The Science Center will certainly be looking at this and making 29 

a determination on the utility of data, given that it’s 30 

voluntary as opposed to a random selection. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  I suspect that the majority of the data and 33 

things that we get has bias in it, to some degree, but just 34 

because there may be some bias in the information, it doesn’t 35 

mean that it’s not informative and you can’t get some viable 36 

information in it.  It just depends on how biased is it and how 37 

those biases affect the conclusions or how robust the 38 

conclusions are.  39 

 40 

A lot of what we’re trying to see here is would this work as a 41 

viable way to manage the fishery and so the people who 42 

participate in it feel like there are economic benefits to them 43 

for coming into it and so I think some of this is just going to 44 

hinge on the experience of the vessels that come out of it and 45 

that sort of thing.  That’s a concern, Doug, but I don’t 46 

consider that a reason to reject the idea. 47 

 48 
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DR. DIAGNE:  I just wanted to offer that also yesterday you 1 

heard testimony from Dr. Josh Abbott from Arizona State, I 2 

believe, and he is the one that will work with the co-op and be 3 

responsible for some of the socioeconomic analysis and based on 4 

previous work that he has done and what he described to you, I’m 5 

sure that he will do his utmost best to provide usable results, 6 

if you are considering to move forward with this. 7 

 8 

DR. ABELE:  I certainly heard a lot of valid concerns raised in 9 

public testimony and I’m looking at the information and has it 10 

been determined if they’re going to go with an EFP and include 11 

snapper grouper?   12 

 13 

On the material, it still shows question marks there.  That all 14 

said, I would just like to see some other models tested and if 15 

this is one of them, I would like to see it tested simply 16 

because a lot of things that are going on right now are just not 17 

working well for everyone and I don’t think we ought to continue 18 

doing business as usual. 19 

 20 

I don’t know how I would feel if I’m next to a headboat 21 

participating.  I might have a very different point of view, but 22 

I do think that we have to look at a wide range of options to 23 

support the for-hire industry, the commercial industry, and the 24 

recreational industry.  In the year-and-a-half I’ve been on, 25 

this is the first sort of new and different approach and I’m 26 

willing to see it to the next step. 27 

 28 

MR. RILEY:  I too have grave reservations about the second year 29 

of the program, as far as the transferability, but I would hope 30 

if you do go forward with the applicant that you would ask that 31 

they would strive to expand that to, and I guess there are 32 

twenty boats that they’re looking at in total, to try and get 33 

more folks outside of just the established cooperative, to try 34 

to get a better geographical representation. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion by the council? 37 

 38 

DR. DANA:  When I read the letter on this and heard we were 39 

going to make a vote on the recommendation, I reached out to -- 40 

We have seven headboats in Destin and we have a pretty 41 

consolidated fleet within the harbor.  It’s very cohesive and 42 

very consolidated. 43 

 44 

I reached out to two of the headboat owners that respectively 45 

own two headboats apiece and they’re very successful operations 46 

and asked them what their opinion of this effort was and they 47 

had not had any knowledge of it. 48 
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 1 

I don’t know who just said it, but the number of folks that 2 

would possibly be able to be part of the pilot beyond those who 3 

were named is important.   4 

 5 

One of the headboat operators, Captain Kelly Windes, noted that, 6 

based after he read the application, that he would be interested 7 

in participating with his two boats, if implemented, but he 8 

would prefer that the seven or so true headboats in town be 9 

treated equally and not have one boat at the same marina with an 10 

advantage over others.  With our limited number of headboats, 11 

this would be the best way to do it. 12 

 13 

I also, and I know all of you, received a number of emails 14 

opposed to this and a few of them were from headboat operators.  15 

We heard testimony and Pam Anderson spoke to the effect of 16 

having, and I think Mark Kelley did as well, about having a 17 

headboat next to another headboat or a charterboat and having 18 

different treatment. 19 

 20 

That’s where I have concern and I’m not saying good or bad, but 21 

I do have concern about -- Captain Kelly Windes, for example, 22 

his headboats are right next to one of the headboats that are 23 

listed on that list and that same dock there are a lot of 24 

charterboats as well. 25 

 26 

DR. SHIPP:  I think Pam has voiced my concern.  I would really 27 

like to see the experimental model go, but what concerns me is 28 

how the participants were selected and the thought that many 29 

headboat operators didn’t even know this was happening. 30 

 31 

It does concern me that we’re going to have some with what does 32 

seem like an advantage and some not.  I love the idea of a pilot 33 

program, but the way these were selected makes me very cautious 34 

and maybe perhaps negative. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  I feel very much like Larry and I agree with his 37 

statements on it.  I don’t know what percentage of the headboat 38 

operators were or were not contacted across the Gulf of Mexico, 39 

but I do see a proposal that came forward by a group of people 40 

that obviously put a lot of work into this. 41 

 42 

I’m sure there are a number of things that probably would have 43 

to be adjusted.  Personally, I would have never gone with 44 

thirteen vessels.  Thirteen is an unlikely number and I would 45 

have done twelve or fourteen or whatever. 46 

 47 

I would hope that we would recognize the effort that’s made on 48 
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this and recommend to NMFS that after careful consideration and 1 

modification and so on and so forth that they would approve this 2 

proposal.  I would further add that while vessel numbers, names, 3 

captains, et cetera are named, that I think that should be 4 

subject to modification to get possibly better geographic 5 

coverage.  I think four come from one area and three come from 6 

one area and a couple from others and only one from a certain 7 

area of Florida. 8 

 9 

I appreciate the effort that’s been done on this and would hope 10 

that we could encourage that it move forward with a thorough 11 

review, which I know NMFS will do, and hopefully rule 12 

successfully to go with this pilot program. 13 

 14 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m not certain how they were chosen.  I thought 15 

that back when we went out and solicited and if these people in 16 

Destin didn’t know about it, that kind of -- That’s a little bit 17 

of a concern, because staff went out twice was my understanding, 18 

soliciting people to get on this AP and help put this plan 19 

together. 20 

 21 

The fact that nobody didn’t know anything about it, that is a 22 

little bit concerning, but there’s a lot of things that comes 23 

down the pike that we have people came and say I didn’t know 24 

anything about it. 25 

 26 

I also heard Ms. Anderson and I believe their choice to not 27 

participate was just that.  It was their choice and so 28 

therefore, if somebody were to have an advantage over, then that 29 

was their choice.  They chose not to participate and so you 30 

can’t really complain about that at that point. 31 

 32 

I would like to see it go forward, to see what’s going to 33 

happen.  We’ve heard an awful lot about it and I think as far as 34 

the thing of trading or buying or anything the second year, I 35 

don’t think that’s a deal breaker or anything.  I think that was 36 

just something that they threw out there to get comment on and 37 

hear some suggestions of whatever we thought, but basically they 38 

are just trying to come up with a business plan that will allow 39 

them to work all year and not take anything away from anybody, 40 

but just try to be able to have a better business plan and so I 41 

would be in support of it at this time. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  We presently don’t have a stand for or against, 44 

but there are a couple of areas of concern that weren’t 45 

mentioned yet that I would like to voice about, one being the 46 

poundage criteria is based on a single point and not over a long 47 

time series.  Typically, we try to use as long a time series as 48 
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we can and if I’m not mistaken, we’re using one year here and 1 

that’s not even enough for an average.  That’s just one point. 2 

 3 

The other issue is the methods of how the poundage is 4 

ascertained from the headboat program, of which obviously the 5 

headboats are the only segment of the recreational industry that 6 

belongs to it and they have hard numbers, hard data, where 7 

everything else is estimated. 8 

 9 

If this program is to move forward, I think we have to consider, 10 

down the road, that we can’t weigh the MRFSS estimates against a 11 

solid headboat program and then allocate the remaining shares to 12 

the millions of recreational fishermen and six-pack 13 

charterboats.  The numbers would have to be looked at in total 14 

of what they are together and not broken away from the logbooks.  15 

That’s some of the concerns we’ve seen so far. 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Chairman, we’ve had a lot of discussion without 18 

a motion and so let me offer a motion and then we can discuss it 19 

and up or down or modify it or whatever.  I would move that we 20 

recommend to NMFS that they approve the pilot Gulf headboat 21 

cooperative two-year exempted fishing permit program, with 22 

necessary modifications.   23 

 24 

I’m not sure what the necessary modifications are, but Mr. 25 

Fischer has got some and I think someone else had some, but I 26 

just want to get a motion up on the board for discussion. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a motion and do we have a second?  It’s 29 

seconded by Dr. Abele.  30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  Larry had mentioned the species and I think the 32 

species are red snapper and gag and I heard that there were 33 

questions about how the vessels were selected and Johnny 34 

Williams is here and could probably address that, if you wanted. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  There have been a number of questions and so I 37 

think that would be helpful and, Johnny, if you would come to 38 

the podium and address that question, that may help folks decide 39 

on their views on the program. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Boggs is also here. 42 

 43 

MR. WILLIAMS:  Could you ask the question again, please? 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  There were questions, Johnny, about how the 46 

vessels that were in here are selected or how it came about to 47 

be this particular group of vessels. 48 
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 1 

MR. WILLIAMS:  I’m not sure exactly.  We were called to this 2 

meeting and we were asked to participate or not participate, the 3 

participants that were there.  I’m not sure how they were 4 

selected, but I think they were probably selected on the people 5 

that have some interest in this. 6 

 7 

For a long period of time, I tried to convince the other 8 

partyboat operation in my area -- I can speak for that, 9 

Galveston Partyboats.  I attempted to convince Ed Schroder that 10 

this would be a good thing for everyone.  We had no success 11 

convincing Ed to do it and we had another participant that 12 

looked like she wanted to be in it and that was the Big E down 13 

in Freeport and they subsequently sold the boat to someone over 14 

in Louisiana and so that’s why they’re not participating.  Randy 15 

might know more about how they did in his area, but that’s how I 16 

can address it to over in my area. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Mr. Boggs, could you help answer that question? 19 

 20 

MR. BOGGS:  Yes, sir, I can.  I initially started this whole 21 

headboat thing and as it kind of took flight, I’ve spoken to -- 22 

As best I can tell from the records that I can get from the 23 

Beaufort Headboat Survey, there’s seventy-nine participating 24 

headboats in the Gulf of Mexico, including some boats in 25 

Mississippi that were put into the Beaufort Headboat Survey 26 

because they didn’t have a data collection system there. 27 

 28 

Kelly Windes and almost every headboat has been called at least 29 

three times and messages left and I’ve spoken with almost every 30 

owner from right on the Mexican border to all the way down into 31 

south Florida. 32 

 33 

Since this actually made it to the Gulf Council, we’ve had about 34 

ten or twelve more boats that have called that are willing to 35 

step forward and want to be in the program if we can go forward 36 

with it and we’ve left the co-op open so that we can do that. 37 

 38 

The one thing that we did try to protect in the co-op is it is a 39 

voluntary program, but we’ve made sure that the screening 40 

process going forward is if you pull somebody into this program, 41 

if you don’t already have a VMS and the iSnapper and some of the 42 

other things on your boat that you’re going to have to buy, 43 

you’re looking at spending about $10,000 per boat, I would 44 

estimate, to get in this program and to get the computers and 45 

everything set up and operational.  There is a cost associated 46 

with it and we didn’t want to try to drag somebody in. 47 

 48 
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The other headboat program that’s out there is designed -- 1 

There’s a lot of boats that have changed hands in the last 2 

couple of years that don’t have the catch data and stuff and 3 

that’s what the other program is about. 4 

 5 

One of the parts of this program is where the fish come from.  6 

We chose not to go back for historic data and ask for a huge 7 

amount of the ACL.  What we did is we’re trying to work within 8 

the framework of what we have now. 9 

 10 

Last year was the shortest snapper season that we’ve ever had 11 

and we chose to use the catch data from last year, not knowing 12 

what this season -- There’s eight days difference between the 13 

forty-day and the forty-eight-day season and instead of asking 14 

for my 1999 data, when it was four fish and a lot more 15 

aggressive, we chose a very conservative approach that will stay 16 

within, we hope, the ACL and not create an overfishing program. 17 

 18 

We didn’t ask for pie in the sky.  We asked for solid things and 19 

as far as anybody being excluded, we have not excluded anybody, 20 

because I personally have spoke with them and I have the numbers 21 

and the phone records where I called them and where I’ve left 22 

messages and the dates and times that I spoke with these people. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Boggs.  25 

 26 

DR. DANA:  Again, I reached out on Monday and spoke with Captain 27 

Kelly Windes and Captain Jim Westbrook, who respectively have 28 

two successful headboats in Destin, and there’s also the Swoop 1 29 

and 2 in our area. 30 

 31 

That’s just Destin and I know that Captain Kelly Windes and Jim 32 

Westbrook expressed interest in wanting to be part of the 33 

program if it was implemented, but they also expressed the 34 

concern for fairness amongst the headboats and the charterboats, 35 

based on the cohesiveness of our fleet and where we’re at. 36 

 37 

Again, going back to those who participate, and I very much 38 

appreciate that the cooperative came together and have 39 

volunteered to be part of this.  On two levels, you have nine 40 

captains that have volunteered with thirteen vessels and so 41 

there are some captains that would have multiple vessels.  Is 42 

there the opportunity, if this were to be passed, for each 43 

captain only to have one vessel and then allowing for additional 44 

participation, first of all? 45 

 46 

Secondly, revisiting the random selection, I heard from Dr. 47 

Crabtree and Shep that there may not be -- This is a volunteer 48 
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and that’s the joy of it, but what if you had a random selection 1 

and you offered this to the headboat operator and they can say 2 

yes or no, we don’t want to be part of it, but at least you do 3 

the random and then no one feels like this was kind of a set-up 4 

deal. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  This is something that’s being originated from a 7 

group of fishermen and so if this was the council that wanted to 8 

do this and set up your own program, we could go that way, but I 9 

think with the way we are right now with the fishermen coming up 10 

with this program, it would be difficult for us to come in and 11 

change the whole process. 12 

 13 

Now, if these guys were agreeable to adding a couple of other 14 

boats to the program, we could do that, I suppose, and I don’t 15 

know if that would be a problem or not with you guys. 16 

 17 

MR. WILLIAMS:  We have thirteen participants currently in the 18 

program.  From what I understand from you all that if we get too 19 

large of a program that it will actually be a full-blown program 20 

and it wouldn’t really be a cooperative and so we have to be 21 

very careful not to exceed that limit. 22 

 23 

I’ve heard from Dr. Crabtree or through the pipeline that 24 

probably twenty would be the maximum.  From what I understand, 25 

we have Marv Hubbard there in the John’s Pass area that would 26 

like to participate and we also have Viking Fleet that’s 27 

interested in participating, after they’ve read the program. 28 

 29 

We still have some room, but keep in mind that we can’t get this 30 

program too large or it will become a full-blown program and 31 

we’ll have to go through the framework procedure. 32 

 33 

MR. BOGGS:  To that point, I would be willing to take one of my 34 

boats out of the program and reduce mine to one to put somebody 35 

else back in, if it would make the Gulf Council more receptive 36 

to this and to make sure that the geographic areas are covered. 37 

 38 

Like I said, I’ve talked to people all the way from Texas, right 39 

on the Mexican border, all the way to south Florida and we’re 40 

willing to do to work to do whatever to move forward and what 41 

we’re trying to show is exactly what everybody is worried about, 42 

that this is economically viable. 43 

 44 

If we get twenty boats in it, that’s 25 percent of the entire 45 

fleet and that’s including the boats out of Mississippi that 46 

don’t actually qualify under the Beaufort survey. 47 

 48 
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MR. GRIMES:  My prior comments today were just that -- They were 1 

directed towards the pilot study concept that you requested and 2 

the IPT had gotten together and talked about it and some of our 3 

feedback was simply that you’re asking for a pilot study and 4 

putting together a voluntary group of people to come and do it 5 

has a sampling bias and it’s not a pilot study that’s really 6 

looking at how this might work in the fishery as a whole. 7 

 8 

It occurs to me that -- Those comments were separate from the 9 

EFP application.  It was a request that you had provided and 10 

discussion that the IPT had engaged in, but what you have here, 11 

these guys have come in and they’ve provided an application and 12 

they want to take a look and see if this is viable. 13 

 14 

Now, it’s certainly possible that they could go out the first 15 

year or the second year or whatever and decide that this wasn’t 16 

economically viable for them or that it wasn’t beneficial to do 17 

it and then turn around and have this go nowhere in the long run 18 

and the whole point is that these guys would like to see if 19 

works for them and see if it’s something that they could get you 20 

to go along with in the long term, maybe. 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  The bias question, you can’t get around that if 23 

it’s voluntary.  The only way to not have some bias would be to 24 

make it mandatory and you choose the vessels and they have to 25 

participate, but if it’s voluntary, the group of people who 26 

volunteer to participate may be somewhat different than the 27 

group that doesn’t want to participate and you would have a bias 28 

right off the bat. 29 

 30 

I’m pretty comfortable with it and when I look at the geographic 31 

distribution of it, it’s pretty good.  We’ve got vessels from 32 

most of the states and it generally lines up where most of the 33 

vessels are. 34 

 35 

Now, do you want to have a couple of extra vessels in it or not, 36 

I think that could be worked out, but because this is a pilot 37 

study, it’s inherent that it’s going to just be a small 38 

subsample of the fleet to do it. 39 

 40 

Now, you as a council could go ahead and start working on this 41 

type of program for the whole headboat fishery and go through 42 

that whole process, but that hasn’t seemed to be something we 43 

were comfortable doing and so this seems to be a reasonable and 44 

I think it’s a pretty well thought out program they have here.  45 

It’s the first step to get some sense as to how this works. 46 

 47 

I know some people object to it and there are all kinds of 48 
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feelings about these kinds of things, but it seems like a pretty 1 

reasonable program to me, but I wouldn’t get too focused on the 2 

bias, because I just don’t think there’s any way to get around 3 

that and it’s just inherent in what we’re doing. 4 

 5 

DR. PONWITH:  Just a quick comment.  Again, we will want to 6 

interact with the authors and ask questions and make sure we’ve 7 

got the full understanding when we do this evaluation and so I 8 

don’t want to jump the gun and make a final statement on this. 9 

 10 

I will say, from a scientific standpoint, that it’s a classic 11 

example of kind of adaptive sampling, where we have a standard 12 

regime under which this fishery is prosecuted and we’ve got a 13 

proposal on the table for altering the model for how that 14 

fishery is carried out and it does represent a unique 15 

opportunity to do a comparison of one model against the other 16 

and so this is, from a general standpoint, is exactly how 17 

adaptive sampling is carried out. 18 

 19 

DR. DANA:  Again, I really am uncomfortable in pitting one boat 20 

against another and I’m just talking about my fleet and I just 21 

read an email from a very successful captain who would be 22 

interested in being part of the program, but he doesn’t want -- 23 

He would prefer that the seven or so headboats in town be 24 

treated equally and that’s not even counting the charterboats 25 

that are parked right next to it. 26 

 27 

I don’t know that we as a council want to pit our boats against 28 

each other and I appreciate what everyone has said.  I would be 29 

much more comfortable if this didn’t come up through a letter to 30 

you on April 9, I guess it was, April 6 or 9, and then it just -31 

- I would be more comfortable if it felt that the -- Is it 32 

seventy-nine headboats out there? 33 

 34 

MR. BOGGS:  As far as I can tell, there’s seventy-nine boats 35 

that participate in the Beaufort study.  As far as actual 36 

headboats that meet the criteria, there’s several different 37 

criteria that are described in the paperwork for headboats, but 38 

as far as I understand, there’s seventy-nine boats in the 39 

Beaufort, but actually there’s actually about seventy-one or 40 

seventy-two that actually participate as pay-per-person 41 

headboats. 42 

 43 

DR. DANA:  I would be much more comfortable with this motion and 44 

proposal if those headboats out there, true headboats out there, 45 

were aware of this and able to offer up their willingness to be 46 

part of the program as well and then to have another list of who 47 

would be part of the program, volunteers for the program. 48 
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 1 

MR. GRIMES:  I tried to get to this a little bit in my comment a 2 

minute ago and I think I did a horrible job of it, but it seems 3 

to me in their application -- Everyone is saying it’s putting 4 

them at a competitive advantage and that, to me, doesn’t 5 

necessarily seem to be the case. 6 

 7 

It’s providing them the flexibility and as we heard when we 8 

rolled out the grouper IFQ program, some commercial fishermen 9 

went out and they used up all of their allocation early in the 10 

year and then were complaining that we need more quota because 11 

we’re new under this system and they really put themselves at a 12 

disadvantage later in the year because they did that. 13 

 14 

Now, it’s perfectly conceivable that under this program the same 15 

thing could happen.  People could hold on to their fishing days 16 

or their quota until late in the year and not get to use it and 17 

it could end up placing them at some economic disadvantage, but 18 

isn’t that the whole point of testing something like this? 19 

 20 

A lot of those issues just seem unavoidable and it doesn’t 21 

necessarily seem, in my opinion, to as a matter of a fact create 22 

this economic advantage for the people who are participating. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  The question has been called and all those in 25 

favor of calling the question say aye; all those opposed like 26 

sign.  All those in favor of the motion please raise your hand 27 

to call the question.  The question at this point is whether we 28 

want to terminate discussion and that’s the issue. 29 

 30 

MR. ANSON:  I have a point of clarification relative to the 31 

motion.  Mr. Perret, you had some other additional verbiage at 32 

the end, where you were talking about some additional comments, 33 

particularly the one I mentioned about intersector -- 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s not to calling the question, Mr. Anson.  36 

We need to get to that first.  The question is all those in 37 

favor of calling the question, that is terminating discussion, 38 

raise your hand, please.  The question is called.   39 

 40 

That brings us to the motion, which is to recommend to NMFS that 41 

they approve the Gulf Headboat Cooperative Exempted Fishing 42 

Permit.  All those in favor please raise your hand, seven; all 43 

those opposed raise your hand, please.  The motion passes seven 44 

to six. 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  What I was trying to get to and he had 47 

reservations of exceptions that were made that would be 48 
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addressed and that’s not in the motion. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  He reviewed that and did not come back to add 3 

additional items and so the motion that he proffered stood.  4 

Moving on, the next item that we’re back to now is Mackerel 5 

Committee and I turn it over to the chair, Chairman Fischer. 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  For clarification, I would have to ask, we are on 8 

Amendment 20? 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Yes. 11 

 12 

MR. FISCHER:  Amendment 20 has ten action items.  We’ll try to 13 

get through these quick and let’s remember that we’re not here 14 

to debate the individual items.  We’re here to either streamline 15 

and cut them out or add more alternatives for the public to 16 

discuss later.   17 

 18 

Rick, do you want to go through these and give a brief 19 

explanation and if we’re satisfied with it, we’ll move forward 20 

and if we’re not satisfied with it, obviously we’ll make 21 

changes.  Should that be a method we approach this by? 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s fine with me, sir. 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you.  Rick, could you handle that? 26 

 27 

DR. LEARD:  If you to the management alternatives, and they 28 

begin on page 4, the first action would be just to consider 29 

modifications to the existing commercial boundary between the 30 

eastern and western zones for Alabama and Florida and we have 31 

just three alternatives there. 32 

 33 

They are the no action, move the boundary to Cape San Blas, or 34 

move the boundary to an area near the mouth of the Mississippi 35 

River.  Again, a lot of these are old actions that both councils 36 

considered a number of years ago and it’s just whether or not 37 

you want to continue forward with these. 38 

 39 

I will say that as far as the boundary that we drew initially 40 

with Amendment 1 at the Alabama/Florida border, there was strong 41 

justification for that, because the fishery basically operates 42 

in areas off of south and western Louisiana and eastern Texas, 43 

in and around the Panama City area, and down in the Keys.  There 44 

is very little commercial fishing effort and permits in the 45 

Mississippi/Alabama area and in the very edge of Florida. 46 

 47 

As I go through some of these things, if there’s no -- If you 48 
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don’t feel like you want to move to something else and you want 1 

to stay with the no action alternative, we would appreciate 2 

consideration of just moving them to considered but rejected. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Rick.  That was a brief discussion by 5 

staff.  This is an older issue from the past and I think the 6 

fishermen have come up with a newer method of solving the 7 

problem, either moving the start date back or declaring what 8 

zone you’re in, which those items come up later.   9 

 10 

This is one that possibly could go the rejected stack, but it’s 11 

up to the council to decide, if there was any discussion to 12 

follow or discussion to retain it.  It doesn’t look like there’s 13 

heartache either way.  If there’s no real reason to retain it, 14 

that might be the method we want to ask, is there any reason to 15 

retain it? 16 

 17 

MR. GREENE:  I was just going to make a motion to move it to 18 

considered but rejected, in an effort to try to streamline this 19 

motion. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a motion to move Action 1 to the 22 

considered but rejected and do I hear a second?  It’s seconded 23 

by Mr. Fischer and is there discussion on the motion?  Seeing 24 

none, is there any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, the 25 

motion carries unanimously. 26 

 27 

MR. FISCHER:  The second action that I will turn over to Rick to 28 

explain is the consider retaining or eliminating the northern 29 

subzone, based on any boundaries chosen in Action 1 and Action 1 30 

will be considered but rejected.  If eliminated, consider 31 

transferring the current allocation percentage to either -- That 32 

just means that the fish follow what we do with the boundary, 33 

but after Rick explains this, I think this is something that 34 

Jessica may want to weigh in on, because it would affect the 35 

Panhandle zone. 36 

 37 

DR. LEARD:  This goes along with the first one.  We had these 38 

bundled in a previous document, but we split them out so that we 39 

could look at them a little clearer.  Again, the no action 40 

alternative is just retain the existing northern and southern 41 

subzones.  The current boundary is at the Lee/Collier line 42 

between the southern subzone and then the northern subzone runs 43 

from Lee County to Escambia.  44 

 45 

We also have alternatives there to possibly eliminate the 46 

northern subzone and either combine that allocation with the 47 

eastern zone or eliminate the northern subzone and take that 48 
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allocation and give it to the western zone.  Based on as you 1 

just indicated, we’ll leave the boundary where it is at the 2 

Alabama/Florida border. 3 

 4 

There was another thing in conversation with Mr. Gill that I 5 

think is a reasonable alternative that you may want to consider 6 

and that would be to retain the northern subzone, but modify the 7 

boundary between the northern and the southern subzones. 8 

 9 

We considered separate boundary alternatives in Amendment 9 and 10 

basically, there were two of them, to where the existing one is 11 

at Collier/Lee and another boundary line at Dixie/Levy.  Kind of 12 

the reasoning behind the Dixie/Levy is that king mackerel 13 

migrating up the west coast of Florida -- Typically, coming up 14 

from the Keys, they get to about the Tarpon Springs/Port Richey 15 

area and then they go straight across the Big Bend area and they 16 

end up around Franklin County, around the Panama City area. 17 

 18 

There’s very few commercial permits and there’s very little 19 

commercial fishing in that Big Bend area and so, again, you may 20 

want to add an alternative here to retain the northern subzone, 21 

but modify the boundary between the northern and southern 22 

subzones and after we kind of stratify and update the data on 23 

where those permits are, we can probably provide you with two or 24 

three options of different splits, if you wanted to consider 25 

that. 26 

 27 

MR. FISCHER:  Rick, is there possibly a different way to manage 28 

that northern subzone and protect those fishermen by changing 29 

the opening date of their season? 30 

 31 

DR. LEARD:  That’s certainly one of the other actions in here.  32 

We can consider changing the opening date of the season in any 33 

of the subzones or in the Gulf as a whole.  Of course, the Gulf 34 

operates on a July to June fishing year and the South Atlantic 35 

Council, I believe, operates on an April to March timeframe. 36 

 37 

There’s some people that have indicated, as you’ll see in these 38 

other actions, that they would like, in the western zone and 39 

possibly even in the northern zone, an opening more towards the 40 

fall period. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I have transferred the gavel to the Vice Chair 43 

so I could discuss this and make a motion.  When the northern 44 

zone/southern boundary was established twenty-five years ago, 45 

what effectively happened, as Dr. Leard pointed out, is those 46 

that had been regular mackerel fishermen just north of the 47 

Collier/Lee zone effectively have been cut out of the mackerel 48 
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fishery. 1 

 2 

Dr. Leard proposed one way to accomplish that and I suspect it’s 3 

not the only, but I have been requested, by some of those 4 

fishermen, that they have an opportunity to participate in that 5 

fishery, if even to a limited degree, and then relative to the 6 

proposal Dr. Leard has mentioned, Tom Marvel has told me that 7 

since he’s on the northern side of the southern zone, just the 8 

south side of the Collier/Lee boundary, he didn’t favor that, 9 

because he would be losing quota as a result, as he saw it. 10 

 11 

I think we ought to consider and not necessarily wind up doing 12 

it, but we ought to consider the folks who were cut out and see 13 

if there’s a way, particularly if it’s an increasing fishery by 14 

the time this gets down and the new assessment may provide that, 15 

because we do believe it’s an in excellent shape fishery. 16 

 17 

I would move that we add an Alternative 4 that requests staff to 18 

add alternatives to permit a limited harvest of king mackerel by 19 

those folks just north of the Collier/Lee boundary.  One option 20 

is moving the boundary and there may be others. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  You’re not in favor of creating a southern portion 23 

of the northern subzone? 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  No, I’m not trying to make it more complex.  I’m 26 

just trying to find a way to -- They have indicated in public 27 

hearing that they’re willing to deal with just fifty fish or 28 

some such numbers.  They want to have the opportunity to somehow 29 

participate on a reasonable basis, however that’s done. 30 

 31 

The motion is to add an Alternative 4 that requests staff to 32 

develop alternatives to permit limited access to the king 33 

mackerel fishery by those just north of the Collier/Lee 34 

boundary. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion on the board.  Do we have a 37 

second?  Jessica seconds and we have discussion. 38 

 39 

DR. ABELE:  I thought that one of the issues was fishermen 40 

moving into different areas as the fish move and so if these 41 

people are so close, can’t they just run their boat down into 42 

the next zone?  You’re not restricted to zones, are you? 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Say you’re fifty miles north of the line.  Just 45 

to get there, you’re going quite a way for a small boat and so 46 

you’re imposing a condition on those folks and the fish do 47 

travel through, but as Dr. Leard explained, when they’re 48 
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traveling through, the season is currently closed and when the 1 

season is open, the fish are gone. 2 

 3 

It’s one of those timing instances and the intent is that they 4 

have an opportunity, in some kind of reasonable basis, to 5 

participate, however minimally. 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  I have a few people on the list and that was my 8 

question I brought up, if we could solve their problem by 9 

changing the season date and not moving boundaries around. 10 

 11 

MR. PERRET:  I was going to comment on the same thing.  Mr. 12 

Gill, a lot of our problems in the northern Gulf stem from 13 

Florida fishermen moving to the northern Gulf and if they can 14 

travel that far, they ought to be able to move fifty miles. 15 

 16 

Just at a state level, we’ve got similar problems with our 17 

oyster fishery, because those foreigners from Alabama come about 18 

forty miles every day to harvest those better quality oysters, 19 

but I have a specific question.  What do you mean by to permit 20 

limited access? 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  As I mentioned, they talked about if they could 23 

have some on the order of up to fifty mackerel is all they’re 24 

looking for.  They’re not looking to make substantial changes in 25 

the quota.  That’s not what they’re looking for.  They want to 26 

be able to participate to some limited degree and thinking being 27 

is if you go for the whole hog, then they probably won’t get 28 

anything.  Here, they can do a piece of it and that’s what 29 

they’re looking for. 30 

 31 

MR. PERRET:  That limited access would be by permit? 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I see what you’re saying.  I didn’t understand 34 

the problem. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  Where I’m going is if you’re limiting by a permit, 37 

what happens if we’ve got some fishermen from another part of 38 

the Gulf that decides they want some of those permits?  We’re 39 

creating a whole -- 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I’m sorry and that wasn’t the intent.  If my 42 

seconder will agree, we’ll delete the word “limited”.  It’s not 43 

intending to set up a more complicated system, but it’s just 44 

trying to allow them to get some access, however limited it 45 

might be.  My seconder agrees and so we’ll deleted “limited”. 46 

 47 

MR. ANSON:  I’m not in favor of this motion.  I certainly have 48 
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heard the same testimony by some of those folks in that area and 1 

other areas, but as far as being right on the line puts them at 2 

a disadvantage to access the fish, I think a date would probably 3 

be more appropriate. 4 

 5 

You mentioned fifty miles away and what if the next guy is 6 

fifty-two miles away?  Where is the break going to be?  There’s 7 

always going to be a line and the next guy that’s fifty-five 8 

miles away isn’t going to be able to have access, because he 9 

doesn’t live in the right zip code.  That’s my thinking. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  To that point, I’m not trying to define changing 12 

lines.  That was the one described by Dr. Leard and there’s 13 

other mechanisms perhaps, seasons or whatever, but given the 14 

nature of this fishery, it’s a little bit unique.  It’s not like 15 

a snapper fishery or something.  It doesn’t have that motion and 16 

so it’s not trying to redefine the line necessarily and the 17 

staff can come back in this document and have several 18 

alternatives on how one might accomplish that. 19 

 20 

All I’m asking to do is that it’s in there to be considered and 21 

at the end of the day, the council may not support it.  I don’t 22 

know, but if we don’t look at it, we know there’s no option and 23 

so I think we owe those guys a look and if we don’t think it’s 24 

any good, shoot it down. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  Do we have any further discussion?  Seeing no 27 

further discussion, we will vote on the motion and we will use a 28 

show of hands and all those in favor of this motion raise your 29 

hand; all those opposed.  The motion carries. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  Rick, is there any reason to keep Alternative 3 32 

now? 33 

 34 

DR. LEARD:  I wouldn’t think so, because it seems to me that, 35 

from the discussion, that you’re planning on retaining the 36 

northern subzone and you’re just -- Actually, you may not even 37 

need Alternative 2.  It’s just that you’re looking for ways to 38 

assign fish to where all the people within that northern 39 

subzone, from Lee County to Escambia, have some opportunity to 40 

harvest those migrating fish. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  Do you choose to make a motion to delete some 43 

alternatives? 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  Unless someone has a reason to keep it, I will 46 

move to eliminate Alternative 3. 47 

 48 



204 

 

MR. FISCHER:  There’s a motion to eliminate Alternative 3 and 1 

it’s seconded by Mr. Gill.  Is there further discussion?  Seeing 2 

no discussion, all in favor, a voice vote, say aye; all opposed.  3 

The aye’s carry. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  On Alternative 2, would it make sense to change 6 

it to eliminate the subzones and just have one allocation for 7 

the west coast or do you think we ought to -- 8 

 9 

DR. LEARD:  Alternative 2 would eliminate the northern subzone 10 

and just make one big eastern zone and so there wouldn’t be a 11 

southern subzone and a northern subzone, but if you plan on 12 

retaining some allocation of the annual catch limit for 13 

essentially the Keys area and the rest of the west coast of 14 

Florida, then you really don’t need this, because you’re not 15 

planning on eliminating the northern zone. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Maybe I don’t understand, but the original 18 

reason that was put in there is to permit the folks on the west 19 

coast of Florida, north of Collier/Lee, to have access to some 20 

of the fish and not let them get all caught up in the Keys and 21 

was it not? 22 

 23 

DR. LEARD:  Yes, that’s correct. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  If you eliminated the line at Collier/Lee, 26 

you’re basically saying you’re back to where you were before you 27 

put the line in and so the rationale goes by the board, because 28 

they may get caught up in the Keys and the folks don’t have them 29 

anyhow and so I think it ought to be in there as an alternative, 30 

if that’s correct, and whether we go that way or not is a 31 

different issue, but it’s at least there to consider. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  So you have no changes to make?  Does anyone have 34 

any more discussion on Action 2?  Seeing no discussion on Action 35 

2, we’ll move to Action 3, which is to consider modifications in 36 

trip limits in the eastern and western zones.  This is something 37 

that the public has spoke about a bit and we’ll let Dr. Leard 38 

discuss. 39 

 40 

DR. LEARD:  Really, all this does is it looks at the existing 41 

trip limits, which is 3,000 pounds in the western zone and 1,250 42 

pounds in the eastern zone, with a step-down provision when 75 43 

percent of the quota is taken to 500 pounds. 44 

 45 

Some people, particularly in the Keys, have wanted a larger trip 46 

limit, because of fuel prices going up and because in some years 47 

the fish are further offshore and they have to go and make 48 
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longer trips and so they’ve asked -- I know the Florida Keys 1 

Commercial Fishermen’s Association asked for a straight 1,500 2 

pounds, but we just threw in alternatives here to retain the 3 

3,000-pound trip limit in the western zone and then either 4 

change the trip limit in the eastern zone to 1,500 pounds, 2,000 5 

pounds, or 2,500 pounds or Alternative 3 would be to just 6 

simplify all of it for enforcement and probably for other 7 

purposes and just have a single trip limit of 1,500, 2,000, or 8 

2,500 pounds in both of the eastern and western zones. 9 

 10 

MR. FISCHER:  Before I call on Mr. Gill, I would like to make a 11 

comment on Alternative 3.  I would like to see a 3,000-pound 12 

trip limit in there, considering what the existing regulations 13 

are, rather than the 2,500.  I know it’s nice increments, but 14 

when it comes to the options paper, I think people in the 15 

western Gulf would speak on that. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That was half of my comment and the other half 18 

was wouldn’t it make sense, since we’re looking at alternatives 19 

here, that the same thing is true in Alternative 2?  It 20 

simplifies different trip limits, and maybe that’s not the way 21 

to go, but at least we look at it and then make a decision from 22 

there. 23 

 24 

I would argue that it would be desirable to add a 3,000-pound 25 

trip limit in both Alternative 2 and Alternative 3 and we’ve 26 

heard some public testimony requesting just that. 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  Is there something you want to do in the form of a 29 

motion? 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I think just staff direction is fine, unless Dr. 32 

Leard needs a motion. 33 

 34 

MR. FISCHER:  I think the South Atlantic would like to see a 35 

motion.  We could just do it by consensus. 36 

 37 

DR. LEARD:  I think if you want to be able to consider a 3,000-38 

pound trip limit in both the eastern and the western zone that 39 

you don’t need both Alternative 2 and Alternative 3.  You would 40 

just change from your status quo to either options for 1,500, 41 

2,000, 2,500, or 3,000 pounds for either or both of those zones. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  Right and I think just the list of change the trip 44 

limits to a, b, c, and d would get a lot smoother comments.  By 45 

consensus, that’s what we’re doing and we’re moving on to Action 46 

4.  Action 4 is to change the opening date of king mackerel in 47 

the eastern and western zone. 48 
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 1 

DR. LEARD:  All this does is it either retains the existing July 2 

1 opening for Gulf group king mackerel or it changes it and I 3 

made this and/or, the eastern and/or the western zone, so that 4 

you have a choice of making them different if you want to, but 5 

change the opening date from July to September or to October or 6 

to November.  You could also apply different openings to the 7 

subzones, but, once again, with that you may encounter some 8 

enforcement burdens along the way. 9 

 10 

MR. FISCHER:  Do we see any discussion on this?  We’ll leave it 11 

this way for the options paper.  Seeing no changes, we’ll move 12 

on to Action 5, which is to establish a transit provision for 13 

the fish harvested off of Monroe County.  I think this is 14 

probably similar to something we did with fish traps probably 15 

fifteen years ago. 16 

 17 

DR. LEARD:  Yes, this is similar to I think what we’ve done, 18 

like you said, with reef fish and whatnot.  This just allows 19 

them to transit.  It’s primarily when the Gulf season usually 20 

closes in the southern subzone.   21 

 22 

It’s been closing about late February or sometime into mid-23 

March, but at that particular time, Monroe County, at the first 24 

of April, becomes Atlantic group mackerel and that’s when their 25 

season actually opens and so you’ve got people that are home 26 

ported in Collier County and maybe a few in Lee County that go 27 

and fish in Monroe County and they want to be able to bring 28 

their fish back. 29 

 30 

There may be a little bit of a complication that I learned today 31 

from Sue Gerhart and that’s that Florida, in providing for a 32 

transit provision, they only included Collier County, as I 33 

understand it, and so I don’t know that there are any people in 34 

possibly Lee County, up in the Naples area, that may be going 35 

down there or not and so I don’t know if that’s going to present 36 

a problem, but I think we kind of ought to leave this here and 37 

then try to see how it works out.  Certainly Florida can change 38 

their regulations quicker than we can. 39 

 40 

MR. FISCHER:   Thank you and, of course, as it goes to the 41 

public, we may hear their comments. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  I guess the question I would ask is whether or 44 

not the terms and definitions are as identical to Florida’s as 45 

we can make them, so we don’t get into that imbroglio and I 46 

don’t know if Jessica knows the answer, given all this, but we 47 

certainly ought to make them as compatible as we can, so that we 48 
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minimize the differences. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Jessica, do you want to comment on this? 3 

 4 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  I’m not certain that they’re identical to this 5 

and as staff mentioned, it just includes Collier County, but we 6 

could work staff and just like they mentioned, it would be 7 

easier for us to change a couple of words in our rule than it 8 

would be for the council to ultimately change theirs and so we 9 

can work on this. 10 

 11 

MR. GRIMES:  Is this issue, transit issue, only a problem in 12 

this southern subzone?  We have so many zones and aren’t there -13 

- Is it not an issue elsewhere? 14 

 15 

DR. LEARD:  I don’t know of an issue in any other place, because 16 

it’s just that when they shift, when the winter fishing zone 17 

changes over and we go into that April timeframe, then all of a 18 

sudden Monroe County opens back up and the rest of the Gulf 19 

stays closed until July. 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  Any further discussion on Action 5? 22 

 23 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  Off of Florida, we haven’t heard any complaints 24 

about that problem in any other place and I guess it’s because 25 

if you’re fishing near that Monroe County line, the closest 26 

dealer is apparently in Key West and so that’s why it was an 27 

issue there, because they would have to transport those fish so 28 

far away to land them. 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you.  Any further discussion on Action 5?  31 

Seeing no further discussion, we’ll move to Action 6, which is 32 

restrictions on fishing in multiple zones.  This is where one 33 

would have to declare what zone you’re fishing in prior to the 34 

season. 35 

 36 

DR. LEARD:  Right now, of course, there’s only one permit for 37 

king mackerel in both the Gulf and the Atlantic and so fishermen 38 

are free to fish in any of the Atlantic areas or any of the Gulf 39 

areas, as they so choose. 40 

 41 

We have alternatives there to require that prior to the season 42 

that they identify the zone that they’re going to fish in and 43 

allow them to pick either one or two zones and then the second 44 

alternative would be to require them to obtain an endorsement to 45 

fish in one or two zones. 46 

 47 

I kind of looked at this and I know where people are coming 48 
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from, but I think that this is going to be very difficult to 1 

enforce.  Also, there’s a number of things that we would have to 2 

work out as to, especially with an endorsement, what would be 3 

the criteria under which you could get an endorsement? 4 

 5 

Fishermen have been moving around, back and forth amongst 6 

different zones, for a long time and so usually catch history is 7 

what we’ve usually used and so that presents some problems.   8 

 9 

Then the other thing might be that if people don’t declare that 10 

or if not enough people declare that they’re going to fish in a 11 

particular area or too many people declare that they’re going to 12 

fish in an area, then you have the potential for either having 13 

an underage, or in a subzone or zones quota may not get caught, 14 

or you may have a case where it would actually increase effort 15 

in a particular zone and that zone would close even quicker. 16 

 17 

I just chose those as some things to consider as you look at 18 

this, but like I say, I think it presents some very unique 19 

problems. 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  It may have some problems, but I think this is 22 

something fishermen have requested and Mr. Perret is going to 23 

shed some light from a different angle. 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  I agree with Rick that it’s probably going to be an 26 

enforcement nightmare, but, Rick, in the alternative language, 27 

it says “zone” and “subzone”, but the options only say “zone” 28 

and so I suggest you slash “subzone” and put in there. 29 

 30 

DR. LEARD:  Thank you and yes, we’ll do that and also, if you 31 

look at your scoping document or the scoping comments I should 32 

say, in Tab C, Number 3, there was very little support for this 33 

from the people that commented.   34 

 35 

Most of the people that did support some sort of this were in 36 

the western zone, but not necessarily in the eastern zone, but, 37 

once again, we had very few people attend the scoping meetings 38 

and even testify on this at all and so we probably need to get a 39 

good bit more feedback. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I agree this would be difficult and it’s hard for 42 

me to see Alternative 2, if you just identify the zone, how 43 

that’s going to work.   44 

 45 

Enforcement is going to board a vessel and it might be the Coast 46 

Guard and there’s got to be something onboard the boat that 47 

identifies what zone they picked and that seems, to me, to be an 48 
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endorsement and so it’s almost like you would have to pick the 1 

zone you’re going to fish in at some point well in advance and 2 

then you get an endorsement that allows you to fish that zone, 3 

but that’s the only zone you can fish in.  I don’t know and 4 

maybe there’s a way to make it work, but it’s complicated and I 5 

sure see a lot of enforcement issues with it. 6 

 7 

DR. LEARD:  Just one quick thing.  Before Amendment 9, we had 8 

basically what Roy is talking about, an endorsement system for 9 

the gillnet portion.  In other words, the month prior to the 10 

start of the season, you had to declare whether or not you were 11 

going to fish with a gillnet or whether or not you were going to 12 

fish with a hook and line. 13 

 14 

If you were going to fish with a gillnet, then you got an 15 

endorsement, but, once again, you were dealing with twenty-five 16 

people.  In the case of the hook and line fishery, you’re 17 

dealing with something over 1,500 and so it would be very 18 

difficult to assign those things and then provide all that 19 

information to enforcement when they stopped to make sure that 20 

he was fishing in the zone that he had declared. 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  It almost seems, if we’re going to get into that 23 

kind of spatial management, that you would need to go to VMS, so 24 

you could tell where the boats are to make it enforceable. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  Do we have further discussion or any motions on 27 

this action?  Seeing no further discussion, do we have a motion 28 

forthcoming? 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, but to me, if there are folks out in the 31 

public who are interested in this and it’s important to people, 32 

they need to speak up, because I would say if we don’t hear a 33 

lot of support and need for this, this is one we ought to think 34 

about removing as just logistically too complicated. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  Do you feel in the discussion, when it goes to the 37 

public, that it should have some sentence structure about VMS 38 

would probably be required? 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, I think that it ought to have a discussion 41 

highlighted about the enforcement and logistical problems with 42 

it and probably it would be good to raise VMS as one way to do 43 

it and maybe the only way, really, to be able to enforce it. 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  Rick, the record gives you sufficient information 46 

to write on this?  Okay. 47 

 48 
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MR. ABELE:  I don’t really want to prolong this, but when you go 1 

back to the tables we looked at earlier, in terms of landings, 2 

it looked like there was less than twenty boats that really 3 

followed around and so out of 1,500 boats, do we want to get 4 

into VMS and a lot of detail for 15 percent of the fleet? 5 

 6 

MR. FISCHER:  That may take care of some latent permits. 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  My initial response to that would be no, if 9 

that’s all it is.  At some point, I think that’s what we’ve got 10 

to look at, is what we’re trying to do here worth it? 11 

 12 

MR. FISCHER:  Any further discussion?  Seeing none, we’ll move 13 

on to Action 7.  This is where we’re changing gears to cobia and 14 

we’ll set the Gulf and Atlantic migratory group cobia annual 15 

catch limits. 16 

 17 

DR. LEARD:  This Action 7 is setting the annual catch limits for 18 

cobia.  As far as the Gulf goes, we haven’t expressed any need 19 

to make any changes to our annual catch limits for Gulf group 20 

cobia from what we set in Amendment 18, at least not until the 21 

ongoing stock assessments are completed. 22 

 23 

The South Atlantic has wanted to add these additional 24 

Alternatives 2 and 3 and they haven’t provided much discussion 25 

there.  I know they have discussed it in their meeting, but I 26 

wouldn’t be able to discuss as to why they have these in here at 27 

this particular time, because obviously this new assessment -- 28 

We’ve never had an assessment for cobia in the Atlantic and the 29 

assessment that was done for cobia in the Gulf back in 2001 used 30 

a boundary line at the Dade/Monroe County line. 31 

 32 

From the data workshop, it seems that the assessment that’s 33 

ongoing now, we use a boundary between the Gulf and Atlantic 34 

group cobia at the Georgia/Florida line and so it’s obviously 35 

going to change what our overfishing levels are and probably 36 

what the SSC will recommend as an ABC for cobia once those stock 37 

assessments are completed, which won’t be until the fall. 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  Dr. Leard, do I get the impression that you think 40 

that this action is slightly premature? 41 

 42 

DR. LEARD:  I think from the Gulf’s perspective it is, but I 43 

don’t -- I wouldn’t speak for the South Atlantic.  They know 44 

what they want to do. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  As I understand it, Rick, the issue is that in 47 

the assessment they’re assigning a lot of the east coast Florida 48 
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fish to the Gulf group and so we’re going to have to figure out 1 

how to deal with that, if that’s the way it is.  Doesn’t this 2 

action give some of the fish out of the Gulf group to the South 3 

Atlantic that are on their side? 4 

 5 

DR. LEARD:  Yes, that’s basically what they’re proposing, is 6 

that the Gulf would set the annual catch limit for the entire 7 

area, from the Florida/Georgia border all the way around through 8 

the Gulf. 9 

 10 

Then what we would do, because we set a boundary between cobia 11 

at the jurisdictional boundary between the councils, we would 12 

then, as we have with king mackerel in the past, we would give 13 

them authority to actually set the management regulations for 14 

that area of the east coast of the Florida, to maintain whatever 15 

portion of the ACL there is within its limits or annual catch 16 

target, whichever one they want to set, but we would just give 17 

them the authority to do that. 18 

 19 

I don’t think until the assessment is complete that we’ll know 20 

what percentage of that ACL will be assigned to that particular 21 

area. 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  Right.  It’s just encouraging to know it’s going 24 

to get even more complicated.  25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  Rick, do you have any advice for this body? 27 

 28 

DR. LEARD:  From the Gulf’s perspective, I think we may have a 29 

different preferred alternative than what the South Atlantic 30 

Council may have.  I wouldn’t suggest actually any changes to it 31 

at this particular time, but I think the Gulf’s position has 32 

been that it would probably have the no action as its preferred 33 

alternative, but the South Atlantic Council may have something 34 

else. 35 

 36 

If they change their mind or if they come up with a preferred 37 

alternative as no action at this particular time, then at that 38 

point in time, I think we could probably just move this whole 39 

action out of the amendment and into considered but rejected. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I wouldn’t do that now.  I think we just let it 42 

ride for now and see how this develops. 43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  Okay and so at this time, we won’t make changes to 45 

Action 7 and we’ll move it forward and let it flesh itself out 46 

as time goes on and we’ll move to Action 8.  Action 8 is to 47 

establish state-by-state or regional quotas for Atlantic 48 
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migratory group king mackerel, Spanish mackerel, and cobia.  It 1 

sounds dear to Louisiana. 2 

 3 

DR. LEARD:  Again, this is primarily an action that was proposed 4 

by the South Atlantic Council.  We threw the Gulf in here and 5 

you may not want to do that, because we already have zones and 6 

whatnot for king mackerel.   7 

 8 

We have a boundary for Spanish mackerel at Dade/Monroe and for 9 

cobia, we just talked about what we are considering there and a 10 

lot of that is going to depend on how the stock assessment 11 

shakes out.  Again, most of these alternatives came from the 12 

South Atlantic Council. 13 

 14 

MR. FISCHER:  Dr. Crabtree, did you have comments?  No? 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  I have a comment.  In the discussion, allocating 17 

state-by-state would be similar to how commercial quotas are 18 

managed in the Mid-Atlantic and New England areas, and I suggest 19 

we insert the same language that’s on page 11 under the 20 

discussion and I quote: “On the other hand, it would probably 21 

increase the monitoring and enforcement burden tremendously”. 22 

 23 

I really believe it will increase monitoring and enforcement 24 

tremendously and if we’ve got that language in the discussion of 25 

Action 6, to be consistent, I think it should be in this one 26 

also. 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you and so noted.   29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s fine and this is really a North Carolina 31 

issue and so far they’ve wanted state-by-state quotas, but none 32 

of the other South Atlantic states are interested in that, but 33 

North Carolina essentially wants to know how many fish can they 34 

get and they’ll monitor the quota and handle all of that, but it 35 

does put a lot of complexities in it the more we start breaking 36 

all of these up, but it’s mostly a North Carolina issue. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  Any further discussion on Action 8?  We’ll leave 39 

the item as it is, the action item, and we’ll move on to Action 40 

9, where we set the annual catch target by subzones for Atlantic 41 

migratory group cobia. 42 

 43 

DR. LEARD:  Again, Mr. Chairman, this is an action that the 44 

South Atlantic Council has proposed and it wouldn’t have any 45 

application to the Gulf at all and so we’ll leave it up to the 46 

South Atlantic Council as to whether or not they want to leave 47 

it in. 48 
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 1 

MR. FISCHER:  Unless we see further discussion, we’ll leave that 2 

for the South Atlantic and move forward and if I’m not mistaken, 3 

Action 10 is also the accountability measures on these same 4 

fish.  Rick, do you have any comment or that’s basically it, the 5 

accountability measures on the same fish? 6 

 7 

DR. LEARD:  It’s the same thing.  This is just a follow-up to 8 

Action 9, where they’re putting the accountability measures to 9 

match their annual catch limits and catch targets. 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Rick.  Do we have any other discussion 12 

on any other item in this amendment, Amendment 20?  Does anyone 13 

want to rehash anything in Amendment 19?  If not, Mr. Chairman, 14 

this concludes our mackerel issues. 15 

 16 

DR. LEARD:  There is, if you go to Tab C-5(a), there is a 17 

proposed Action 11 that would modify the framework procedure.  I 18 

think this is similar to what you dealt with in reef fish.   19 

 20 

Mr. Grimes has noted that we need to modify the framework 21 

procedure to change the accountability measures and so we’ve put 22 

together some alternatives here and it also included the base 23 

framework procedure that you adopted with Amendment 11. 24 

 25 

I’m not exactly sure myself as to why we need to modify the 26 

framework for these accountability measures, because we’ve got 27 

about fifteen measures in there, but Shep and I have talked 28 

about this and maybe he can explain it further, if he so 29 

desires. 30 

 31 

MR. FISCHER:  Go for it, Shepherd. 32 

 33 

MR. GRIMES:  Nothing would make me happier and thank you.  In 34 

Reef Fish Committee, I mentioned that we should wait and discuss 35 

this when you had something in front of you and that something 36 

is in C-5. 37 

 38 

Now, first I will -- If you look in Tab C-5, there are two 39 

sections that are highlighted in the document and let’s go down 40 

to the bottom section first, because I think this is the most 41 

easily dispensed with. 42 

 43 

The framework that was in the Coastal Migratory Pelagics 44 

Amendment established separate authority for the South Atlantic 45 

Council and the Gulf Council to take certain actions relative to 46 

their own migratory groups and those frameworks could occur and 47 

the councils would act independently and they wouldn’t have to 48 
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go back and forth like you do with a joint plan amendment. 1 

 2 

When we changed the framework, we inadvertently removed all that 3 

stuff.  The authority that was in the FMP to do it was based in 4 

the framework and we changed the framework and eliminated the 5 

capability to do it and so this would go back in and reestablish 6 

that separate authority.  It’s what you’ve been operating under 7 

for a long time and, again, it was just inadvertently removed. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  This would be Action 11 and is that correct? 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  That would be right. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  I move that we add Action 11 to Amendment 20 to 14 

make the changes to the framework as discussed by staff and 15 

General Counsel. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  We have a motion and I’m looking for a second.  We 18 

have a second by Johnny.  Do we have further discussion on this 19 

motion? 20 

 21 

MR. GRIMES:  If I could, Mr. Chairman, I’ll go over the second 22 

half that Dr. Crabtree jumped the gun on. 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s getting late.  I suspend my motion. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s temporarily suspended. 27 

 28 

MR. GRIMES:  The other provisions, if you scroll back up, page 3 29 

has the first highlighted portion of text and when the IPT met 30 

to discuss changes to the framework, which we implemented via 31 

the Generic Amendment and then again through changes to the 32 

Coastal Migratory Pelagics Amendment, we did not include 33 

accountability measures. 34 

 35 

I am the one who drafted the framework and I did so expressly 36 

because I did not think that accountability measures were 37 

something that you could change via framework. 38 

 39 

Now, we have accountability measures -- All accountability 40 

measures are a closed framework, in essence.  They specify very 41 

specific factual circumstances, quota closures and paybacks and 42 

the rest.  When Facts A, B, and C occur, you take Action X and 43 

there’s no discretion involved and it’s just done and there’s no 44 

review by the council and that is a closed framework. 45 

 46 

The question is whether you could include accountability 47 

measures as part of an open framework and if you read the 48 
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statute, accountability measures are something that must be 1 

contained in the FMP.  It is a mandatory element of the FMP. 2 

 3 

As we all should know, an open framework only changes the 4 

underlying regulation and it does not change the fishery 5 

management plan.  Therefore, if you specified an accountability 6 

measure in the fishery management plan and you wanted to change 7 

that accountability measure, you must amend the plan to change 8 

the measure and not just change the regulations. 9 

 10 

I did it deliberately and we left it out and now we’ve had 11 

subsequent discussions with other regions and discussed with 12 

Headquarters what approach we might take, because accountability 13 

measures are something that we’re going to want to change more 14 

rapidly in the future. 15 

 16 

Therefore, what we’ve developed here is let’s say a compromise 17 

approach, but what we’ll do is have the open framework 18 

provisions list a bunch of accountability measures.  It would be 19 

a laundry list of accountability measures and those are 20 

contained in the FMP. 21 

 22 

All of them are listed there and should you want to change, you 23 

are merely choosing from that list and therefore, you can 24 

implement different accountability measures via the framework, 25 

but all the accountability measures are still specified in the 26 

fishery management plan and that’s probably a longer explanation 27 

than you desired, but that should do it. 28 

 29 

MR. FISCHER:  This should make life easier down the road. 30 

 31 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, it should. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  Back to Dr. Crabtree’s motion.  It is on the 34 

board, but did we second this motion?  Yes, Johnny seconded it 35 

and so do we have further discussion on this motion?  Seeing no 36 

further discussion, we’ll look for opposition and do we have 37 

opposition to this motion?  Seeing no opposition, the motion 38 

carries.  Do we have any further business in the mackerel arena?  39 

Seeing no further business, we will turn the gavel over to Mr. 40 

Gill. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That concludes 43 

Committee Reports.  We finished Item IX on the agenda, which was 44 

Exempted Fishing Permits, when we took it out of sequence and 45 

that brings us to Other Business, which is Tab L.  The first 46 

item under Other Business is Update on the Status of the Report 47 

from the Shrimp Stock Assessment Workshop and Dr. Leard. 48 
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 1 

OTHER BUSINESS 2 

UPDATE ON THE STATUS OF THE REPORT FROM THE SHRIMP STOCK 3 

ASSESSMENT WORKSHOP 4 

 5 

DR. LEARD:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  There’s really not much to 6 

add.  We did a lot of work on trying to incorporate the SS3 7 

model into the penaeid shrimp stocks, brown, white, and pink.  8 

The panel had I would say some real difficulties, particularly 9 

with white shrimp, in trying to get the model to behave, so to 10 

speak, and there were also problems with pink shrimp. 11 

 12 

Dr. Rick Hart and Dr. Rick Methot, who had been working on those 13 

SS3 models for those shrimp and previously presented them to the 14 

SSC, basically had a lot of additional work to do at the end of 15 

that workshop and so I have not heard back from them as to where 16 

they are with those. 17 

 18 

We had planned to present that to the SSC at this meeting that 19 

we had previously scheduled in March, but due to some problems 20 

with not getting some reef fish issues, as well as not getting 21 

what we needed there, we canceled that SSC meeting, but we plan 22 

to get a report from that workshop, from Dr. Hart, and present 23 

that to the SSC for their consideration at their meeting at I 24 

believe it’s the first part of June.  The answer is right now, 25 

we don’t have a report and so I really can’t tell you what 26 

they’ve been doing. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you for the report on nothing.  Thank you, 29 

Dr. Leard.  The next item under Other Business is Rulemaking 30 

Process Review and Dr. Bortone. 31 

 32 

RULEMAKING PROCESS REVIEW 33 

 34 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  As some of you may be aware, all 35 

the councils are being looked at from the IG’s Office with 36 

regard to rulemaking and I would just like to report briefly on 37 

that. 38 

 39 

We have a meeting coming up, on Wednesday of next week, with the 40 

IG’s Office in our office and I believe that’s a follow-up from 41 

the review and meeting that they’re having at the SERO Office 42 

that same week. 43 

 44 

Just to briefly go over this, on the 23rd of February, we had a 45 

conference call regarding this with the IG and other people in 46 

his office.  The main discussion seems to be items regarding the 47 

rulemaking process in councils.  48 
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 1 

We’ve been asked to prepare some materials and these involve our 2 

flow chart and processes, as well as contracts that we have, 3 

which aren’t very many.  We’ll have those available, but we’ll 4 

be meeting with them all day on that day and we will be 5 

discussing this at the CCC meeting, as it’s obviously a topic of 6 

conversation among the other councils as well. 7 

 8 

They expect this entire review to take about a year and we’ll 9 

just report to you as we learn any more information as a result 10 

of this. 11 

 12 

DISCUSSION OF RED SNAPPER CONSISTENCY 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Questions regarding the IG review?  Seeing none, 15 

the next item under Other Business, if I have this correctly, is 16 

Red Snapper Consistency, which I raised, and the issue there is 17 

whether the council wants to consider its options should the 18 

states go not consistent with the federal rule.   19 

 20 

I guess I would ask Dr. Crabtree to -- We have talked about that 21 

some relative to the EFP and so some of it has been addressed, 22 

but I would ask Dr. Crabtree if he wanted to lead further 23 

discussion. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  Only as we’ve talked about before.  I believe the 26 

Florida Commission meets on May 2 and Louisiana on May 3.  I 27 

have no crystal ball that says what they will do and if you have 28 

any words of wisdom or position you want to convey to me, now 29 

would be the time. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Any comments by the council?  32 

 33 

DR. ABELE:  I am just worried what the economic impact would be 34 

for the regular season and all the other people who hold federal 35 

permits.  I think it could have a really negative impact, even 36 

though I think the states would think it would be a positive and 37 

I don’t think so. 38 

 39 

MS. MCCAWLEY:  If a certain number of states do not go 40 

consistent, how soon would you all have an idea on how much the 41 

season would be shortened?  Would it be a week or so until you 42 

all knew how much? 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  We’ve put out a proposed rule to raise the TAC 45 

and with that, we put out a Fishery Bulletin which had the July 46 

10 closure date in it, assuming the TAC is increased, and that 47 

was based on assuming where we’ve been the past few years in 48 
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terms of the states. 1 

 2 

That final rule probably won’t come out until the second week of 3 

May and so the potential is there that if something goes awry, 4 

we could make an adjustment to the season and the final rule. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  There is the potential, is there not, that 7 

depending on what the states do and presuming they’re 8 

inconsistent in how they contrive that, there may be no federal 9 

season in red snapper and is that possible? 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think I would rather not speculate on that, but 12 

it could be a real problem, depending on what the states do, but 13 

I’m optimistic and I feel like cooler heads will prevail and the 14 

states will make a wise decision. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further comments by the council?   17 

 18 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  Obviously inconsistent regulations at the state 19 

level will cause some enforcement challenges out there on the 20 

boarder there, the state and federal boarders. 21 

 22 

SHRIMP ELECTRONIC LOGBOOKS 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  So noted.  The next item under Other Business is 25 

Shrimp Electronic Logbooks.  That’s there because the last time 26 

we addressed this subject, it looked like the electronic logbook 27 

program would not be funded and we had funding through 28 

September, early fall kind of mode, or at least that was the 29 

expectation.   30 

 31 

I guess I would ask Dr. Ponwith whether there’s anything that 32 

has changed in that and assuming it’s not changed favorably, 33 

whether the council had any thoughts about what that does 34 

relative to red snapper constraints and shrimp effort 35 

monitoring, et cetera. 36 

 37 

DR. PONWITH:  Headquarters has informed me that they will put 38 

money into continuing the electronic reporting coverage through 39 

the fall.  That said, they have urged us to find a way to be 40 

able to continue that program without having to have it 41 

subsidized by Headquarters going forward.  To that end, Dr. 42 

Crabtree, did you -- 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think what we need to do is I’ve talked to 45 

Bonnie and I think the Center can come forward with a plan for 46 

how we might develop a cost-sharing program with the industry.  47 

I think what would be a good idea, Bob, would be to convene the 48 
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Shrimp Committee at the June meeting so we can take a look at 1 

that. 2 

 3 

What we need to make progress is we need to nail down what 4 

exactly would we be asking the shrimp industry to do in order to 5 

keep the program.  If they need to buy a unit, then we need to 6 

identify what that is and the cost, et cetera, et cetera. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Dr. Ponwith, you will have this plan to be 9 

included in the briefing book for the June meeting?  Is that 10 

correct? 11 

 12 

DR. PONWITH:  That is correct.  What we’re looking at are two 13 

angles on this.  Number one is looking at how the project is 14 

carried out right now and evaluating if there are technological 15 

advances that would enable us to be able to gather those data in 16 

a way that’s more cost efficient than the way it’s being carried 17 

out right now. 18 

 19 

The first thing we’re trying to do is find a way to do it more 20 

cheaply and then the second thing that we need to look at is 21 

some sort of mechanism for cost sharing to be able to keep this 22 

important data stream going into the future.  What we would 23 

propose then is to have materials available for the briefing 24 

book on both of those components. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Comments by the council?  Seeing none, we’ll go 27 

to the next item under Other Business and that’s Meetings and 28 

Attendance and I believe that was Ms. Williams. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Pass. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Pass?  The next item, therefore, is staff 33 

meetings and, Dr. Bortone, is that you? 34 

 35 

MEETINGS ATTENDED BY STAFF 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I have attended a few meetings in 38 

the past, since our last meeting, that had to deal with Gulf of 39 

Mexico Alliance, the hypoxia workshop, and a grouper modeling 40 

workshop.  All of these had the same theme to them, however, and 41 

so that’s what I will get to, and that is trying to incorporate 42 

environmental data in fisheries management. 43 

 44 

Right now, that’s not part of our equation or isn’t considered 45 

too frequently in our equation and all the recent efforts are 46 

pointing in that direction. 47 

 48 
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The modeling structure isn’t quite there yet, but clearly other 1 

organizations, like the Gulf of Mexico Alliance and hypoxia 2 

group, are interested in that.   3 

 4 

We saw a demonstration of Ecosim, Ecopath, Ecospace and if we 5 

can schedule it, I would like to have a demonstration of that to 6 

you at some time.   7 

 8 

I don’t know that June is going to be the time, because I think 9 

our agenda is already pretty full, but just to let you know 10 

that’s coming down the road, how we can incorporate 11 

environmental conditions, long-term trends, and changes, things 12 

like hypoxia, and hopefully eventually being able to figure out 13 

how to handle oil spills in this process. 14 

 15 

MR. PERRET:  Steve, we still have an Ecosystem Committee?  Dr. 16 

Walters was chair, if I remember correctly? 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Walters is on the committee.  19 

We have an Ecosystem SSC and that hasn’t met in a while, but 20 

we’re going to, hopefully when we talk about the reorganization 21 

or the potential restructuring of the SSC, that will come to 22 

light as to more of that happens. 23 

 24 

Some of you may or may not know we are not going to renew Karen 25 

Burns’s contract.  We looked at the amount of workload that was 26 

being done by the Ecosystem SSC and other ecosystems and it just 27 

wasn’t justified. 28 

 29 

As you know, when you approved that, it was a three-year 30 

process.  We are going to continue with ecosystems and John 31 

Froeschke and I will be leading that, but Dr. Burns services 32 

won’t be used on that. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion? 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am all for presentations and stuff being given 37 

to us, but we’re in fisheries management and if it’s not 38 

something we can do something about, and I don’t think we can do 39 

anything about the pollution and the runoff and all of that 40 

that’s causing these hypoxia zones, then we’re just wasting 41 

time, money, and energy, as far as I’m concerned, if it’s 42 

something we can’t do something about and we can’t and so 43 

myself, I wouldn’t be interested in it. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion by the council?  The next 46 

item on the list I believe were Dr. Leard’s, the Law Enforcement 47 

Advisory Panel Workshop. 48 
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 1 

LAW ENFORCEMENT ADVISORY PANEL WORKSHOP 2 

 3 

DR. LEARD:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  The Law Enforcement Advisory 4 

Panel and the Gulf States Marine Fisheries Commission’s Law 5 

Enforcement Committee have been kind of, I guess, coordinating 6 

their enforcement efforts via a strategic plan and an operations 7 

plan. 8 

 9 

The strategic plan usually has been for about four or five years 10 

and the operations plan, they started off at one year and now 11 

they’ve gone to two years.   12 

 13 

Both of those plans expire at the end of this year and so what 14 

they want to do is to have a workshop to update those plans, the 15 

strategic plan for four years and I believe the operations plan 16 

for two more years, and they want to do that in a workshop 17 

probably in July. 18 

 19 

Louisiana has volunteered to let them use the lab at Grand Isle 20 

and Gulf States Marine Fisheries Commission has approved 21 

funding, as we have done in the past.  It will be jointly 22 

funded, 50/50 between Gulf States and us. 23 

 24 

The cost should be very minimal, because most of them can drive 25 

state cars in and the lab facilities I don’t think are going to 26 

cost them anything and so travel expenses would be very low and 27 

as I said, the Gulf States Marine Fisheries Commission approved 28 

that at their October meeting and we’re asking for your approval 29 

to pay travel and whatnot for that activity. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  How many folks would be involved? 32 

 33 

DR. LEARD:  It would be the five state people, Karen Raine, and 34 

I believe a representative from National Marine Fisheries 35 

Service Office of Law Enforcement. 36 

 37 

MR. PERRET:  What’s the estimated cost? 38 

 39 

DR. LEARD:  Pardon me? 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  What is the estimated cost if we do this? 42 

 43 

DR. LEARD:  It depends, I guess, on whether or not the Texas and 44 

Florida representatives would need to fly into New Orleans and 45 

rent a car or something like that, but I expect that for 46 

Louisiana, Alabama, and Mississippi that the cost would be 47 

probably nothing more than food.  That’s typically what it has 48 
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been. 1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  Are we talking under $5,000 total? 3 

 4 

DR. LEARD:  Probably, yes. 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  I move that we authorize funding up to $5,000 to 7 

cover the cost of this law enforcement meeting. 8 

 9 

DR. LEARD:  It’s our LEAP/LEC workshop. 10 

 11 

MR. PERRET:  That’s my motion. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  Second. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  It’s seconded by Mr. Anson and is there 16 

discussion on the motion? 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I am going to support it, because I’m Chairman of 19 

Law Enforcement, but that’s not the only reason.  We had a Law 20 

Enforcement Advisory Panel and we used to meet all the time and 21 

we never meet anymore, other than a half-day sometimes with Gulf 22 

States, if you know about it.   23 

 24 

One time we thought one person was handling it and another time 25 

we thought somebody else was handling it and there were issues 26 

that they wanted to discuss, but to be cost efficient, we 27 

decided not to do that and to just stay at Larry’s meeting. 28 

 29 

The guys got together and actually went off and tried to have a 30 

discussion and they shouldn’t have to do that.  They’re part of 31 

our Law Enforcement AP and if they want to have a meeting, they 32 

should be able to have a meeting, just like any other AP that we 33 

have.  I would support them getting together and having a 34 

meeting and if you all don’t want me there, I won’t go.  Thank 35 

you. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, 38 

is there any objection to the motion?  The motion carries.  Dr. 39 

Leard, I believe the next item was yours as well, the Update of 40 

the SEDAR-28 Assessment Workshop. 41 

 42 

UPDATE OF THE SEDAR-28 ASSESSMENT WORKSHOP 43 

 44 

DR. LEARD:  Just briefly, with regard to Amendment 28, and this 45 

is the stock assessments for Gulf and Atlantic group Spanish 46 

mackerel and cobia, of course the data workshop has been 47 

concluded and the assessment workshop is scheduled for May 7 to 48 
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11 in Miami. 1 

 2 

There have been some problems with the data availability that 3 

they had identified and formatting issues and delays in 4 

generation of the report.  I think they still don’t have a 5 

report yet and just other problems with people that have been 6 

assigned to write portions of that report and time constraints 7 

and just a lot of work that they’ve had to do. 8 

 9 

I just wanted to let you know that there’s the potential that 10 

there may be some delays in getting some of this done.  Right 11 

now, we think we’re on track with having the assessment workshop 12 

in May and I think Ryan Rindone is planning on giving you a 13 

little broader discussion about the workshop and about the 14 

process that we’re going through now at the June meeting. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  That’s the last item that I have under Other 17 

Business and are there other items? 18 

 19 

DISCUSSION OF IDLE IRON POLICY 20 

 21 

MR. RIECHERS:  I apologize and I was not at the public testimony 22 

yesterday, but in a discussion with Mike Nugent this morning, he 23 

had indicated that he brought up in his testimony the issue 24 

regarding idle iron again and the removal of rigs. 25 

 26 

I think someone had indicated to him from the council that we 27 

had previously sent a letter and I think he was asking whether 28 

or not we have ever received a response to that letter and does 29 

anyone on staff know whether we did receive a response or not? 30 

 31 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I don’t recall specifically if we 32 

received a response, but that was -- The letter we wrote was 33 

with regard to the explosion of the rigs and I don’t recall that 34 

we got one and if we did, it was thank you for your letter and 35 

it wasn’t anything more positive. 36 

 37 

MR. RIECHERS:  As a follow-up to that, Dave, I think you all 38 

have sent a letter as well and I don’t know whether it was on 39 

the explosion or the removal. 40 

 41 

MR. DONALDSON:  It was the idle iron issue and removal of those 42 

rigs and we got the same thank you for your letter, although we 43 

did have a meeting at our commission meeting and representatives 44 

from BOEMRE did attend and their response was pretty much thank 45 

you for your comments. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I recall now there was a second 48 
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letter, more recent, and that one had to do with the council 1 

advising BOEMRE to take into consideration the ecological impact 2 

of removing oil rigs and it was just to make sure you look into 3 

this when you’re doing it and there was no response. 4 

 5 

MR. RIECHERS:  I didn’t really anticipate we got many responses, 6 

but I thought I would ask the question and just a couple of 7 

things.  One is, if I could, Dave, could I get a copy of your 8 

letter?  I will ask that Trish give me the letters from the 9 

council as well. 10 

 11 

I would like to make a motion that we send a letter to BSEE now 12 

and it’s not BOEMRE anymore and it’s BSEE and address the issue 13 

of the idle iron policy more specifically than we may have done 14 

in our second letter to them, where we just said please think 15 

about this, regarding those removals, but let’s go ahead and 16 

mention the idle iron policy and other reasons for removal. 17 

 18 

MR. GREENE:  Second. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Could you provide the language for the motion 21 

please, Robin? 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  Idle iron policy and the other issues we had 24 

already addressed in our previous letter. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  We have a motion and a second. 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  I wonder if you mention in this letter that the 29 

council is contemplating designating their rigs as essential 30 

fish habitat and in fact invite them to comment on that if that 31 

might not get their attention and get a response. 32 

 33 

MR. RIECHERS:  We could certainly add that we passed a motion to 34 

move forward with an amendment to do that. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wanted to say Larry Simpson and I went to 37 

a Minerals Management meeting and had a bunch of the oil company 38 

folks there and this was back in probably the early 1990s and I 39 

gave a presentation and so did Larry, telling them how important 40 

the red snapper fishery was. 41 

 42 

I went and got statistics and showed them about the turtle and 43 

fish kill and we had someone come that even had something that 44 

was developed to cut the rigs off at the mud line, down beneath.  45 

No human was involved as far as where they had to worry about 46 

someone getting hurt and they basically said thank you very much 47 

and it’s more expensive to do it that way and we’re not going to 48 
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do it and so good luck. 1 

 2 

MR. RILEY:  Dr. Crabtree echoed my sentiment. 3 

 4 

MR. BOYD:  We heard several people testify yesterday that the 5 

explosive removal of rigs was causing issues with endangered 6 

species, specifically turtles is what they mentioned, and so I 7 

guess I would ask Roy, is there any way that we can require an 8 

observer to be there to see if something like that is really 9 

happening or is there anything we need to do about that? 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  We generally do that now.  We do biological 12 

opinions that cover endangered species issues and they’re 13 

required to consult with us on these and there are incidental 14 

take allowances and there are various requirements and 15 

restrictions put on them to minimize those takes. 16 

 17 

I also recall that if you go to the SEDAR website now, where 18 

they’re doing the new red snapper, and I’m pulling it up as we 19 

speak, but SEDAR-31, I believe if you look in the data workshop 20 

presentations in there, there is a working paper that was done 21 

looking at -- It’s called “Estimation of Fishery Impacts Due to 22 

Underwater Explosions Used to Sever and Salvage Oil and Gas 23 

Platforms in the U.S. Gulf of Mexico”. 24 

 25 

I think it’s several years old now, but I think that folks went 26 

through this exercise in the past and I think the determination 27 

was that it was a negligible amount of fish in comparison to the 28 

overall fishing mortality that the stock is expending and so 29 

that issue has been looked at and you might want to -- If this 30 

is an issue we want to know more about, it might be worth 31 

pulling that up. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  I think my last comment is it was a negligible 34 

amount of fish when we didn’t have large populations and now 35 

that fish have rebounded quite well, we’ve been called to fish 36 

kills that, when we trace them back up current, are the sites of 37 

rig removals. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Further discussion on the motion?  Seeing none, 40 

is there any opposition to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion 41 

carries unanimously.   42 

 43 

MR. GREENE:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to request that you 44 

convene the Ad Hoc Restoration Committee at the next meeting.  45 

We had several comments under public testimony yesterday and 46 

specifically, Mr. Warner brought up a conversation about leasing 47 

shares of fish to NRDA and I think Mr. Frady brought up another 48 
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concern about maybe potentially shelving some future allocations 1 

of red snapper. 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We have that scheduled for the next 4 

meeting.  We just didn’t have time this time to put it on. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Does anyone else have other business to be 7 

brought up before this council? 8 

 9 

MR. GRIMES:  Since I won’t be here for the next couple of 10 

meetings and it is my understanding that in all likelihood I may 11 

not see you again on this council, I didn’t want to miss the 12 

opportunity to say goodbye and say that you and I have seldom 13 

seemed to agree on a lot of things and despite the fact that if 14 

you are no longer on this council that it may make my job 15 

easier, in some respects, I have found you to be, without a 16 

doubt, one of the most competent, prepared, thoughtful, 17 

engaging, and effective council members I have ever dealt with 18 

in this process and I, for one, will miss you. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Thank you, sir.  I appreciate that.  Does anyone 21 

else have other business to be brought up before this council?  22 

Seeing none, we stand adjourned.  Thank you all and I will see 23 

you all in Tampa. 24 

 25 

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m., April 19, 2012.) 26 

 27 

- - - 28 

29 
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